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VISION STATEMENT 
 

Miriam College is a premier Filipino Catholic institution of 
learning that forms leaders in service who combine 
competence with caring, are rooted in Filipino culture and 
Asian tradition, and yet are citizens of the world. 
 
Miriam College, by integrating the work of education with 
the life of faith, develops persons, particularly girls and 
young women to build the Filipino nation and to be co-
creators of God’s kingdom on earth. 
 
Miriam College is committed to excellent academic programs 
infused with Christian values, enhanced by modern 
technology, and enriched by national and international 
linkages. 

 
Finally, Miriam College commits itself to creating and 
living within our school community the very changes we seek 
to realize in society. 

 
 
MISSION STATEMENT 
Miriam College, in partnership with families and the 
community, provides quality and relevant Christian 
education that prepares students to become effective 
leaders, lifelong learners, and productive citizens. 

 
It offers excellent programs at the basic, tertiary, post 
graduate and adult education levels through learner-
centered, value-integrating, research-based and innovative 
approaches. 
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OUR HISTORY 
 

The story of Miriam College dates back to 1926 when the Archbishop of 
Manila, then Reverend Michael O’ Doherty, requested the Sisters of the 
Maryknoll Congregation in New York to initiate a teacher-training program for 
women in the Philippines.  In an old remodeled Augustinian Convent in 
Malabon, Rizal, the Malabon Normal School was established.  The school 
transferred sites several times until finally in 1952, with its name officially 
changed to  Maryknoll  College, it laid down its permanent roots in Diliman (or 
Loyola Heights), Quezon City. 

Its graduates have distinguished themselves in various professions.  Several 
have been cabinet secretaries, legislators, accomplished business 
executives, entrepreneurs, educators and leaders of government and non-
governmental organizations.  To date, nineteen alumnae have been selected 
as “The Outstanding Women in the Nation’s Service” (TOWNS) awardees. 

 
After Vatican II, the Maryknoll congregation began to evaluate its work, not 
only in the Philippines but worldwide, in the light of their original apostolate as 
a missionary order.  In the 60s, the Maryknoll congregation saw the readiness 
of the Filipino laity to continue the educational mission they had started.  In 
1977, the ownership and management of the school were turned over to lay 
administrators.  In accordance with the agreement, the name Maryknoll was 
to be changed to pave the way for the promotion of the school’s unique 
identity, distinct although not disconnected from the identity of the Maryknoll 
sisters.  In 1989, after a series of consultations, Maryknoll College was re-
named Miriam College. 

 
To meet the challenges of the times, Miriam College has expanded its 
course offerings and has set up three major centers for curriculum 
development, research and community outreach- Center for Peace 
Education (CPE), Environmental Studies Institute (ESI) and Women and 
Gender Institute (WAGI). 
 
THE SCHOOL NAME 

 
“Miriam” is the Aramaic name with which Mary, our Blessed Mother and 
the school’s patron, was called in her lifetime. “Miriam” is also a fitting 
reminder and tribute to Sr. Miriam Thomas Thornton, M.M., who devoted 50 
years of service to Maryknoll College. 

 
Fr. Bernardo Perez, OSB, once reflected that the name “affirms in word 
what has long been established in fact: namely, that an excellent leading 
Catholic School founded and administered by religious continues to be an 
excellent leading Catholic School administered by lay persons.” 
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HIGHER EDUCATION UNIT  
VISION AND MISSION  
 
VISION STATEMENT 
The Higher Education Unit is a progressive learning 
institution that forms effective Filipino leaders, particularly 
women, and well-rounded citizens, excellent professionals, 
and socially responsible intellectuals who are prepared to take 
on productive, relevant and fulfilling careers that serve the 
needs and aspirations of the Filipino people and the global 
community. 

 
MISSION STATEMENT 
Proud of its Catholic character and deeply rooted in Miriam 
Spirituality, the Higher Education Unit provides holistic 
graduate and undergraduate academic programs using an 
interdisciplinary, values-oriented, critical, and independent 
study approach that inspires lifelong learning, research, 
reflection, and social action. 

The Higher Education Unit, steered by a dynamic faculty, 
employees and leaders who serve as engaged agents and 
advocates for social change, promotes the core values of 
truth, justice, peace, and integrity of creation. 

 
PHILOSOPHY 
Miriam College is a learning institution that fosters a climate 
of academic excellence and collegiality. It provides an 
empowering environment that sees the student as the center 
of the educational process. Dedicated to a holistic education 
for lifelong learning, Miriam College exposes students to 
diverse learning opportunities for intellectual engagement, 
social transformation, and nourishment of the spirit that is 
rooted in Miriam spirituality. The school also prepares 
students for responsible leadership, while instilling social 
consciousness anchored on love of country and global 
awareness.   
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MIRIAM COLLEGE IS COMMITTED TO THE CORE VALUES OF   
TRUTH, JUSTICE, PEACE AND INTEGRITY OF CREATION 
  

 

 

 

JUSTICE: We believe that all human beings should be equally blessed to be 
responsible for and to enjoy the fruits of knowledge-generation and social progress.  
We commit ourselves to a society where power and opportunity are equally shared 
and where the “naked are clothed and the hungry are fed.”  We reject discrimination 
of any kind against any individual or any group. We strive for and support a diverse 
and interdependent human community in which people’s rights, welfare and 
empowerment are centrally valued. 

 

PEACE: We believe that God has called us to be peacebuilders.  We also believe 
that peace means the absence of violence as well as the presence of values, 
attitudes, behavior, and ways of life based on active nonviolence and respect for the 
fundamental rights and freedom of every person.  We reject all forms of violence in 
every social interaction and all institutions.  We are committed to work for creative 
and constructive ways of solving conflict and to foster just, caring and loving 
relationships among all human beings and between humans and the rest of creation. 

INTEGRITY OF CREATION: We believe that God has called us to be stewards of all 
creation and that the well-being and happiness of future generations rest upon 
sustainable and equitable systems and processes of production and consumption.  We 
reject destruction of the environment and waste of natural resources.  We commit 
ourselves to care for the earth and to practice a lifestyle that sustains the health of the 
planet on which all life depends. 

TRUTH: We believe in the power of knowledge and the liberating force of truth.  We 
commit ourselves to the systematic and scientific search for truth and to fairness and 
openness in its pursuit.  We reject all forms of deceit, falseness and dishonesty.  We 
strive for the highest quality of intellectual and academic output at the same time that 
we recognize and value the wisdom of the heart. 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 | P a g e  
 

4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



GENERAL INFORMATION 

 | P a g e  
 

7 

INSTITUTIONAL PARTNERSHIPS 
AND PROGRAMS OFFICE 
The Institutional Partnerships and Programs Office (IPPO) 
facilitates, nurtures and continuously expands the international 
partnerships and linkages of Miriam College in organizations, 
institutions and networks in Asia, Australia, Europe and North 
America. To this end, Miriam College offers a unique 
opportunity for young women to experience the world outside of 
the classroom --- to witness the diversity of cultures, to hear the 
ideas of other people, and to learn from the realities of different 
societies.  The concretization of this vision is the basis for an 
institutionalized program for international student exchange and 
short-term international programs. 

The MC-IPPO offers and coordinates academic exchanges, 
internships, study tours and short-term programs, conferences, 
and workshops to ensure that Miriam College is strategically 
involved and positioned in the various types of international 
education engagements. 

OUR PROGRAMS 

Students and faculty members from both Miriam College and 
any of its partner institutions may participate in any of the 
following international programs: 

1.       Academic Exchanges 
2.       Study Tours and Short-term Programs 
3.       Conferences 
4.       Internships 
5.       Alumni Affairs 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACADEMIC EXCHANGES 
The academic exchange inbound program allows international students to 
experience studying in the Philippines and in Miriam College for a 
semester or up to a year. On the other hand, its outbound program opens 
opportunities for MC students to spend a semester or up to a year 
overseas, enrolled in any of the partner schools of Miriam College. In most 
cases, academic exchanges entail the student to pass through the 
application and screening processes at Miriam College and comply with 
all the requirements of the partner university (i.e. Test of English as a 
Foreign Language/TOEFL, student visa, health insurance, etc.) The 
maximum unit load will be mutually determined by Miriam College and the 
partner university. The grades of the exchange students will be provided 
by the partner university and will be transmuted to the Miriam College 
grading system.  

The academic exchange program also includes the arrangement of 
visiting lecturers and professors, both inbound and outbound. Currently, 
the most active exchanges of Miriam College are with its partner schools 
in Australia, Japan, Thailand, Indonesia, and the United States.  

Participants will shoulder the cost of roundtrip airfare, lodging and meals 
unless waived or provided by the host university under a special 
arrangement. 

INTERNSHIPS 
Through its various offices, advocacy centers, and external partner 
organizations, MC welcomes office-based, field, and academic 
research interns. Internships are directed at providing hands-on 
experience and training in various fields. 

As host, MC-IPPO coordinates with the base institution of the 
applicants. Requests for internships with Miriam College and its 
networks generally run for a minimum of 3 months up to 6 months. 
Currently, the internships are financially supported by the 
applicants and/or external grants they are able to secure. 

STUDY TOURS AND SHORT TERM PROGRAMS 

Study tours and short-term programs are designed to suit the 
specific needs of a group of participants seeking alternative 
learning opportunities. The programs are designed to encourage 
alternative classroom learning and to expose participants to the 
various cultures, social institutions, languages, and everyday 
practices of a given country or community. Such programs are 
generally done in groups of 5 up to 30 and run from as short as 3 
days to 2 weeks. 
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Miriam College fulfills its vision and mission through achievements in four key result areas – 4Ps. 

 

KEY RESULT AREAS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROGRAM 

Miriam College will continue to focus on maintaining high academic standards in all levels 
and areas, and developing innovative, relevant and student-centered programs that 
address multiple intelligences and areas supported by solid research.  

 

PEOPLE 

To ensure the successful delivery of the school’s various programs and services, Miriam 
College will focus on achieving a high performing organization by developing and recruiting 
competent, caring, efficient and effective administrators, faculty and staff. 

For our students, we want to provide a transformative experience, bringing them to a higher 
level of intellectual, physical, spiritual, emotional and cultural growth from admission to 
graduation, while providing them with the necessary skills and competencies needed by the 
industry. Emphasis is placed on the crucial role of our parents and alumni as partners in 
the development of the institution. 

 

PROCESSES AND SYSTEM 

Miriam College will focus on instituting effective and efficient policies, processes and 
systems aligned with the needs of the organization, its students, employees and partners. 

It will intensify collaboration among academic units, advocacy and special centers and 
offices and establish open lines of communication within and between institution and its 
relevant publics. 

 

PHYSICAL PLANT AND RESOURCES 

Miriam College will work to ensure that the school is an exemplar of a Green Lifestyle, 
while maintaining an environment that is conducive to teaching, learning and research. 

To meet the enrolment goals, it will continue to innovate and introduce new recruitment 
strategies to attract more students at all levels. The strategic management of our 
resources for sustained operations and growth continues to be a priority.  
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RATIONALE 

 
The Consortium of Women’s Colleges (CWC) is a collaboration and cooperation of three women’s colleges in Metro 
Manila, namely: Assumption College, Makati; Miriam College, Quezon City; and St. Scholastica’s College, Manila; whose 
main thrust is to achieve more efficiently common educational goals and objectives. Noted for their respective distinct 
charisma, vision-mission, and academic programs in the country, the CWC puts premium on the principle of 
interconnectedness for the maximization of resources, both human and material, as against duplication of efforts and 
competitiveness in the field of education. 

 
VISION AND MISSION 

 
The CWC envisions a community of Catholic educational institutions united by a commitment to excellence through the 
dynamic integration of knowledge, culture and faith. 

 
The CWC forms women leaders who are confident and steadfast in their Christian values, joyful and compassionate in 
their leadership and dedicated and competent in their service. 

 
The CWC commits to the renewal of women’s education through innovative collaboration, synergetic lay-religious 
partnership and courageous advocacy for the empowerment of women and the transformation of society. 

 
CROSS ENROLMENT 

 
In a consortium agreement, a student may enroll and take a subject in another school if said subject is either not offered 
in her home school or in conflict with her schedule for the semester. This unique arrangement provides both the school 
and students an efficient way of addressing common problems such as back subjects, which generally lead to the delay 
in the completion of academic requirements for graduation. 
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CONFERENCES, SEMINARS AND WORKSHOPS 

Given the MC thrust built on developing lifelong learners, the MC-IPPO 
encourages its students, professional staff, and faculty to join international 
conferences, trainings, seminars, and the like. Potential participants need 
to express their willingness and desire to join these activities by fulfilling 
the requirements and initiating the application process. MC-IPPO can 
facilitate and provide support to applicants where needed, which could 
include directing participants to individuals or organizations that offer 
financial aid within and outside of MC, advising participants regarding the 
application procedures and/or assisting them with their administrative and 
logistical concerns. 

 

SPECIAL PROJECTS 

MC-IPPO provides resource and support services to the different units, colleges, centers and office hosting international events on 
campus in the undertaking of various international events initiated by its different units, academic departments, centers and offices. 
Among some of the recent projects are the Action Research Training with Southeast Asian Scholars and Advocates, Gender and 
Macroeconomics Intensive Training Program, Youth Women Speaking the Economy and the International Conference of Learning 
& Teaching, all of which were held in and hosted by Miriam College. 
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Thematic Programs 
1. International Women’s Human Rights and Governance 
Program: Provides consulting, research and training on women’s 
human rights, women’s empowerment and gender equality. It aims to 
popularize the United Nations instruments particularly UN CEDAW, 
as well as, regional (ASEAN) agreements and declarations relating 
to women.  

2.  Gender Fair Education Program: Integrates the perspectives, 
values and strategies related to the mainstreaming of women’s rights 
and messages of gender equality and equity in the curricula, teaching 
strategies, student welfare, and administration at Miriam College and 
other educational institutions. 

3.   Gender, Peace and Security Program: Seeks to highlight the 
gender dimensions of war, militarism, conflict, peace and security. It 
highlights the voices of women in conflict and post-conflict situations 
and their valuable contribution to the articulation of an alternative 
security paradigm that is gender responsive and inclusive of women’s 
initiatives to end war and contribute to peacebuilding efforts.  

4. Gender, Development, and Economic Globalization Program: 
Generates information and analyses from critical feminist 
perspectives on trade, finance, international cooperation/aid, and 
economic globalization processes, in support of socio-economic 
policy alternatives and democratic and accountable governance 
institutions.  

5.  Young Women Leadership Program: Aims to enhance the 
political participation of young women through leadership training 
focused on gender, human rights and governance issues.  

6.  Migration Research and Training Program: Aims to generate 
knowledge and competencies on migration issues in order to 
contribute to an informed and critical discourse on migration.  

WOMEN AND GENDER INSTITUTE 
WAGÎ means 'win' in Filipino and "sister" in Ibanag, a Philippine 
language. The term epitomizes the long term objective of the Women 
And Gender Institute, which is to achieve women's empowerment and 
gender equality in society as this will, in the end, result in a win-win 
situation for both women and men. 
 
The Women and Gender Institute is Miriam College’s center for 
research, training and advocacy on women’s rights, gender equality and 
non-sexist learning in support of the leadership of young women and 
students. It offers a cross-disciplinal perspective on women’s 
empowerment that is interlinked with democracy, human rights, social 
justice and values formation. WAGÎ forges links with other sectors, 
organizations and institutions at the national, regional and international 
levels. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Regular Short Courses 

 
Gender Fair Education (GFE) 
 
An intensive one-week course that provides 
development workers specially in the field of formal and 
non-formal (i.e. teacher, administrators, module writers, 
trainers) with the framework of gender and development 
and how teaching and learning situations can fill in the 
gaps of both the work on gender equality and education 
for all. 
 
International Women’s Human Rights (IWHR) 
 
IWHR is the first academic-based women’s human 
rights course offered in the Philippines. It examines the 
use of international human rights instruments from both 
gender and Asian perspectives in analyzing complex 
issues of discrimination, inequality and oppression 
brought about by the intersecting factors of class, 
gender, ethnicity, age, sexual orientation, and others. 
 
The training is designed for educators, graduate 
students, NGO workers, technical staff of legislators and 
mid-level public servants from national agencies and 
other professionals who seek to deepen their 
understanding of women’s human rights issues and 
challenges and endeavor to work on the practical 
application of the human rights instruments in their 
respective professions. 
 
Summer Institute on Migration (SIM) 
 
SIM aims to provide a critical overview of the migration 
process, dynamics, issues and challenges. The training 
utilizes an interdisciplinary approach and focuses on 
migration, globalization and development, gender 
analysis of migration; human right laws and policies on 
the economic dimensions of migration, among others. 
The course is most useful for those in the forefront of 
migration issues; frontline government officials 
(including local government officials) concerned with 
migration, graduate students, NGO, media practitioners, 
and community leaders. 
 
Gender Responsive Planning and Budgeting Course 
 
The gender and development (GAD) budgeting process 
secures financial support for activities promoting gender 
equality and women’s empowerment. Financial support, 
while necessary, must be complemented by 
strengthened organizational capacity for successful 
planning and implementation. This course will introduce 
the theories and practice of GAD budgeting in the 
Philippines in line with PCW-NEDA-DBM Joint Circular 
No. 2012-01 on GAD Plans and Budgets and 
Accomplishments to implement Magna Carta of Women. 
The approach will use case studies and sharing of 
participants’ experiences to enhance learning.  
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ADVOCACY CENTERS 
CENTER FOR PEACE EDUCATION 

MISSION  
The Center’s mission is to help advance a culture of peace through  
education and advocacy. A culture of peace is a set of values, modes of behavior  
and ways of life that  reflect respect for life and for human dignity, rejects violence in all its forms, prevents violent conflicts 
by tackling their root causes, and recognizes the importance of cooperation, tolerance and dialogue.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROGRAMS 

• Teacher-training on peace 
education 

• Student Development  
• Conflict Resolution training 
• Peer Mediation training 
• Youth Conferences 
• Curriculum Development 
• Materials Development 
• Peace Advocacy 
• Disarmament and Arms 

Control Advocacy 
• Women, Peace and Security 
• Networking - National and 

Global 

 

OBJECTIVES  
• To institutionalize and strengthen the peace 

education thrust of Miriam College through 
faculty training, curriculum development 
and student development programs. 

• To help promote the culture of peace in the 
larger society by sharing Miriam College’s 
inspiration, knowledge and experience with 
other groups and educational institutions, 
including those that are underserved. 

• To network and develop partnerships with 
other peace-oriented groups and with all 
people of goodwill towards building a 
culture of peace. 

 

The Environmental Studies Institute (ESI) is a pioneer in 
academic offerings as well as in school-based advocacy. Its 
program is a synthesis of academic expertise, field projects, 
and service learning. As it implements the third thrust in the 
school's motto, Peace, Justice, and Integrity of Creation, the 
ESI catalyzes the Miriam Community in spreading to the 
larger society what it promotes in its campus--care for the 
Earth. 

As an active player in the Philippine environmental 
movement, the ESI is a locus of activity and networking 
among those who champion sustainable development. 

As a center for environmental studies and education, the 
ESI envisions the development of citizens and leaders, 
respectful of the sacredness of creation, which will work for 
an ecologically sound environment, equitable economic 
growth, and people empowerment as pillars of sustainable 
development. 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES INSTITUTE 
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SPECIAL CENTERS 
BALLET CENTER   
For over 20 years, Miriam Ballet has been training classical performing artists. Through its outreach programs, they are 
able to share the world of ballet and promote Christian values to the underprivileged through dance. Its graduates have 
been accepted into prestigious ballet companies such as the UP Filipiniana, Ballet Philippines and the Philippine Ballet 
Theater. 

The following technique classes are offered: 

• Classical Ballet 
• Baby Ballet 
• Children’s Ballet 
• Adult Ballet 
• Partnering Class/ Pax de deux 

CENTER FOR APPLIED MUSIC 

In 1954, then Maryknoll President Miriam Thomas Thornton granted Ms. Gregoria Cayco permission to teach piano at the 
school which was then still located along Pennsylvania St. (now Leon Guinto) in Manila. Through the years, it has 
expanded in scope and size from an initial offering of piano lessons to that which includes a variety of other musical 
instruments and voice instruction.  Thus was born the Miriam College Center for Applied Music. Today, the Center for 
Applied Music continually strives to be innovative in its programs by constantly updating and upgrading its facilities, 
services and course offerings that reflect the changing musical needs and persuasions of our esteemed students.  

Program 
Students who complete a year of study perform in a culminating activity at the end of each school year at the La Porte 
Hall of the Center for Applied Music. A concert venue that accommodates a seating capacity of 200 persons, the hall has 
good acoustics thereby complementing the 2 full concert grand pianos housed in the theater. 

• Piano 
• Voice 
• Strings 
• Winds 
• Theory 
• Ensemble Classes  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Teachers’ Training Workshops 
• Boys Class, Variation Class 
• Pointe Class 
• Modern Jazz and Contemporary Dance 
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INTEGRATED LIFESTYLE AND WELLNESS (ILAW) CENTER 
To address the total well-being of its employees, Miriam College established the integrated Lifestyle and Wellness (ILAW) 
Center in 2006.  The center, which is allied with the school’s Human Resources Division, provides programs and services 
that aim to educate, promote, and provide holistic health among the school’s employees. 
 
An integrated approach is espoused in ILAW, which encompasses the physical, mental, emotional, social and spiritual 
wellness of the individual.  In Filipino, ILAW means light- a source of energy that can transform or create power and 
wellness, hence the center’s name. 
 
The ILAW Center was made open to the public in 2007.  Its services include individual counseling, group therapy, 
psychological assessment, therapeutic massage, and seminar-workshops on various topics, such as stress management, 
positive lifestyle, caring for aging loved ones, creative solo parenting and talks on fatherhood, among others.  The Center 
also houses a gym for cardiovascular conditioning and a massage clinic, which are open five days a week.  Weekly 
cardiovascular activities such as Yoga, Zumba, High Intensity Interval Training, Aerobics, and Ballroom Dancing, among 
others are also offered. 
 
LANGUAGE LEARNING CENTER 
The Language Learning Center is a special program of Miriam College under the Office of the Vice President for Academic 
Affairs. It provides quality instructional services to local and international students, teachers, and other professionals who 
wish to develop their communication skills in English and other foreign languages.  

The center is imbued with a dynamic and committed mission in developing effective and competent international 
communicators who can become active agents of change in the global arena of interaction and communication. The 
center provides relevant programs and services that promote mutual understanding and respect for other cultures and 
nationalities as reflected in the various forms, content, and modes of lesson delivery. 
 
Language Programs      Foreign Language Program 
•    English as a Second /Foreign Language    Mandarin, French, Spanish, Nihongo 
•    English as a Second/Foreign Language Tour Program   Filipino, French, German 
•    MC English Camp       
•    English Proficiency for Students    Special Programs: 
• English Proficiency for Professionals    - Teaching English as a Second Language         

Oral Communication in the Workplace       (TESL) 
Effective Business Writing      -  Beyond Borders:  Writing and Presenting  
Active and Interactive Listening           Conference Papers 
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GUIDELINES FOR INCOMING FIRST YEAR COLLEGE STUDENTS  

The following students are qualified to apply as an incoming first year college student:  
1.   Grade 12 graduating students;  
2.   Students who graduated in high school on or before June 2016; and 
3.   High school graduates of the old basic education curriculum for ALS. 
 
CAMBRIDGE INTERNATIONAL A AND AS LEVEL 
 
Miriam College welcomes female applicants with Cambridge A Level qualifications for entry to  undergraduate degree 
programs.  
 

GUIDELINES FOR TRANSFER STUDENTS 
Transferees who meet the following requirements may be admitted to Miriam College:  
1.   Have a satisfactory academic performance in the last college/university attended; 
2.   Have favorable recommendations from their previous school prior to application to Miriam College; 
3.   Have not been classified as incoming junior or senior upon evaluation by the Registrar to qualify for at least five (5) 

semesters residence at Miriam College prior to graduation; 
4.   Meet the required admission score which is the aggregate of their grade average from their previous school and their 

entrance test score; 
5.   In the case of applicants who were enrolled in several schools prior to application at Miriam College, they must possess 

above average academic records and have favorable recommendations from all the schools attended; and 
6.   Obtain favorable interview ratings from the Admissions Officer.  

 

GUIDELINES FOR CREDITING SUBJECTS OF TRANSFEREES 
a. Applicant must submit the latest Transcript of Records duly signed by the Registrar of the previous school. 
b. Only General Education subjects can be credited. 
c. The syllabus of the subject to be credited should be presented. 
d. Subject content and description and number of units should be the same as in Miriam College. 
e. Grade should not be lower than 87% or its equivalent. 
f.  A validating exam, oral or written, may be given when necessary. 
g. Units earned five (5) years ago will not be credited unless transferee is pursuing a second degree. 
h. Contemporary Moral Issues (T-103) and NSTP 1.1 shall be taken in Miriam College.
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ADMISSION PROCEDURES FOR LOCAL APPLICANTS  
 
1.  For creation of online account on the Student Database Management system (SDMS), First Year Applicants will log on 
to http://sdms.mc.edu.ph 
2.  Fill out the college application slip and attach two (2) recent 2 × 2 in. pictures (with white background) at the Admissions 
Office.  
3.  For Transferees: Submit the latest Transcript of Records or Certified True Copy of Grades and undergo interview with 
the Admissions Officer. 
4. Pay the NON-REFUNDABLE application fee at the Cashier’s Office.  
5. Present the official receipt to the Admissions Office to claim the examination permit and application kit which includes 
application form, secondary school record form and recommendation forms.  
6. Submit the completed forms (application kit) on the specified deadline.  
7. Take the entrance test on the scheduled date. Bring your High School ID card on the test date.   
8. The applicant will be notified about the exam results thru e-mail. If applicant is accepted, pay the non-refundable 
confirmation fee and submit other requirements:  

a. Original NSO copy of Birth Certificate;  
b. Baptismal Certificate or Dedication Certificate (photocopy); and  
c. Original fourth year card (F138), if an incoming first year student or honorable dismissal, if a transferee.  

9. Undergo Annual Physical Exam (APE) at the College Clinic. 
10. Get clearance to enroll from the Admissions Office. 

11. Enroll on the scheduled date and attend the First Year Students’ Orientation.  

Applicants who are deaf may enroll in the 4-year program of their choice if they passed the Miriam College Admissions 
criteria.  Those who do not pass must take the Associate in Digital Technology program before enrolling in a regular 4/5 
year-degree program of their choice.  
 
ADMISSION PROCEDURES FOR FOREIGN APPLICANTS 
 
The admission of foreign students to Philippine colleges and universities is guided by Executive Order 285 (dated 
September 4, 2000). The student applies in writing and secures pertinent application forms from the Admissions Office. 
 
Foreign student who studied or is currently studying in the Philippines: 
1. Submit a photocopy of the applicant’s passport showing applicant’s bio-page, admission stamp and authorized stay. 
2. Fill out the college application slip and attach two (2) pieces recent 2 x 2 in. picture (with white background) at the 

Admissions Office. 
For Transferees: Submit copy of grades and undergo interview with the Admissions Officer. 

3. Pay the NON-REFUNDABLE application fee of one hundred dollars (U$100) or its equivalent in Philippine peso at the 
Cashier’s Office. 

4. Present the official receipt to the Admissions Office to claim the examination permit and application kit (which includes 
application form, secondary school record form and recommendation forms). 

5. Submit the completed forms (application kit) on the specified deadline. 
6. Take the entrance test on the scheduled date. Bring your High School ID card. 
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7. The applicant will be notified thru e-mail on the result of the entrance exam. If accepted, the applicant will pay the non-

refundable confirmation fee and submit other requirements:  
a. Original copy of Birth Certificate (in English); 
b. Baptismal Certificate or Dedication Certificate (photocopy); and 
c. Original fourth year card (F138), if an incoming first year student or honorable dismissal, if a transferee. 

8.    Undergo an Annual Physical Exam at the college clinic.  
9.    Get clearance to enroll from the Admissions Office. 

10.  Enroll on the scheduled date and attend the First Year Student Orientation.  

Note: Any foreign student who seeks admission to any Philippine university or college must present an appropriate Student 
Visa issued by the Philippine Foreign Service Post in the foreign student’s country of origin or legal residence. The Special 
Study Permit (SSP) issued by the Philippine Bureau of Immigration is required of foreign students who enroll in a special 
program of less than one year. 
 
Foreign applicant who studied or is currently studying abroad 
 1. Foreign applicants are required to submit the following: 

Two (2) original copies of Transcript of Records duly authenticated by the Philippine Foreign Service Establishment    
        located at the student’s country of origin or legal residence 
Notarized Affidavit of Support including bank statement and  
Photocopy of the applicant’s passport showing applicant’s bio-page, admission stamp and authorized stay 

2. Fill out the college application slip and attach two (2) pieces recent 2 x 2 in. picture (with white background) at the 
Admissions Office 
For Transferees: Submit copy of grades and undergo interview with the Admissions Officer. 

3. Pay the NON-REFUNDABLE application fee of one hundred dollars (U$100) or its equivalent in Philippine peso at the 
Cashier’s Office 

4. Present the official receipt to the Admissions Office to claim the examination permit and application kit (which includes 
application form, secondary school record form and recommendation forms) 

5. Submit the completed forms (application kit) on the specified deadline 
6. Take the entrance test on the scheduled date. Bring your High School ID card 
7. The applicant will be notified of results thru SMS. If applicant is accepted, pay the non-refundable confirmation fee 

and submit other requirements 
a. Original copy of Birth Certificate (in English) 
b. Baptismal Certificate (photocopy) 
c. Original fourth year card (F138), if an incoming first year student or honorable dismissal, if a transferee 

8. Undergo physical exam at the college clinic 
9.  Get clearance to enroll from the Admissions Office 

10.  Enroll on the scheduled date and attend the First Year Student’s Orientation 

 
Extension of Stay as a Foreign Student 
A foreign applicant who has been accepted to enroll must secure a student visa or special study permit prior to registration. 
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Foreigners Exempted from Securing Student’s Visa and Special Study Permit 
Exemption from securing Student Visa or Special Study Permit applies to the principals, spouses and unmarried dependent 
children below 21 years old of the following: 

a. Immigrants (permanent foreign residents); 
b. Aliens with valid working permits under either Section 9(D) or 9(G) or 47(A)(2) of the Philippine Immigration Law 

of 1940, as amended; 
c. Personnel of foreign diplomatic and consular missions residing in the Philippines; 
d. Personnel of duly accredited international organizations residing in the Philippines such as, but not limited to the 

Asian Development Bank, International Rice Research Institute, and specialized agencies of the United Nations; 
e. Aliens who have valid Special Investor’s Resident Visa (SIRV); 
f. Aliens who have valid Special Retiree’s Resident Visa (SRRV); and 
g. Foreign students coming to the Philippines with 47(A)(2) visas issued pursuant to existing laws, e.g. PD 2021. 

 
Students should present passport and other necessary documents to prove exemption. 
 
Note: Children already enrolled before their marriage and/or before reaching the age of 21 shall be allowed to finish their 
studies without the need to secure student visa or special study permit as long as their principals remain in the country. 
 
CHECKLIST OF DOCUMENTARY REQUIREMENTS 
  

1. Application for Special Study Permit (SSP) – for foreign students 18 years old below 
or who enroll in a special course of less than one (1) year. 

 
• Letter of request addressed to the Commissioner from the representative of the petitioning 

school 
• Duly accomplished CGAF (BI Form CGAF-003-Rev 0). If the applicant is a minor, it shall be 

signed by the parent or the legal guardian 
• Photocopy of passport bio-page and latest admission with valid authorized stay 
• Certificate of Acceptance issued by the learning institution accredited by the Bureau of 

Immigration to accept foreign students, indicating the number of months (length of study) of the 
technical/vocational, and/or primary or secondary level courses for applicants below 18 years 
of age 

• Photocopy of BI school accreditation ID of the registrar or school representative 
• National Bureau of Investigation (NBI) Clearance, in case of flying schools 
• BI Clearance Certificate 

 
2. Application for Conversion to Student Visa  

 
• Joint letter request addressed to the Commissioner from the authorized representative of the 

petitioning school and applicant, using the school letterhead with dry seal 
• Duly accomplished CGAF (BI Form CGAF-003-Rev 0) 
• Photocopy of passport pages bearing the bio-page, latest admission with valid authorized stay 

and Bureau of Quarantine(BOQ) stamp 
• Notice of Acceptance of the applicant bearing a clear impression of the school’s official dry seal 
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• Endorsement addressed to the Commissioner from the school for the conversion of the 
applicant’s status, signed by the School Registrar 

• Certificate of Eligibility for Admission from Commission on Higher Education (CHED), in case 
of Medicine/Dentistry 

• CHED Endorsement for transfer and shifting of course, if applicable 
• National Bureau of Investigation (NBI) Clearance, if application is filed six (6) months or more 

from the date of first arrival in the Philippines 
• Photocopy of BI school accreditation ID of the registrar or school representative 
• BI Clearance Certificate 

 
 

3. Extension of Student Visa 
 

• Joint letter request addressed to the Commissioner from the applicant and the authorized 
representative of the petitioning school, stating that the applicant qualifies for the application 
with the school letterhead and dry seal 

• Duly accomplished CGAF (BI Form CGAF-003-Rev 0) 
• Photocopy of passport bio-page, visa implementation page and latest admission with valid 

authorized stay 
• Copy of Latest Transcript of Records or Certificate of Grades for two (2) previous semesters 
• Honorable Dismissal or Certificate of Transfer from previous school, in case of transfer 
• Commission on Higher Education (CHED) endorsement, in case of shifting of course and/or 

transfer of school 
•  Photocopy of BI school accreditation ID of the registrar or the school representative 
• BI Clearance Certificate  
• Original or certified true copy of Bureau of Quarantine Medical Clearance, if applicant is a 

national of any of the countries listed under Annex “A” of Immigration Operations Order No. 
SBM-14-059-A who arrived in the Philippines on or after June 2014 
 

Miriam College submits these documents to the Bureau of Immigration for approval under a cover letter written 
on the school’s official letterhead, signed by the Registrar, and stamped with the school’s official dry seal. 
 
LANGUAGE REQUIREMENT 
Non-native speakers of Filipino are required to take Conversational Filipino (FIL-100 A) and basic Reading and Writing in 
Filipino (FIL-100 B) with the Language Learning Center.  
A descriptive term mark of P (Passing) or F (Failed) is given to students at the end of their pre-academic English and 
Filipino subjects.  
A certificate of completion is issued to students upon passing the pre-academic English and Filipino subjects. This 
certification will be presented to the Registrar when the student enrolls for her regular English and/or Filipino subjects in 
the first year curriculum. 
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SCHOLARSHIP AND FINANCIAL AID 
Miriam College aims to make quality education accessible to all by providing scholarships and financial aid to deserving 
and talented students regardless of their socio-economic status. These scholarships and aids are administered by the 
academic units, from scholar selection to monitoring and reporting. Grants awarded are based on both financial need and 
academic performance. These are granted on a yearly, semestral, or need basis, depending on the circumstances the 
students’ families may find themselves in.  

A. MERIT SCHOLARSHIP 
I. Academic Scholarship  

This is awarded to students with excellent academic standing (admission score of at least 4.20) and with favorable 
recommendations from the High School Guidance Counselor and Teacher, and QPA and CQPA of at least 4.30 for 
continuing students. The academic scholarship may cover tuition, basic, and other fees for the duration of the chosen 
program. 

The HEU – Admissions Office identifies the qualified candidates and calls them for a series of interviews with the 
Admissions and Scholarship Committee.  

• Academic 1 – This is awarded to incoming first year students with admission score of at least 4.20 with 
favorable recommendations from High School Guidance Counselor and Teacher. 

• Academic 2 – This scholarship is granted to continuing students who applied for Financial Aid, but there is no 
established financial need. Students who will apply for this scholarship must have a very good academic 
standing with QPA and CQPA of at least 4.30. 

• Academic 3 – This scholarship is offered to continuing students who applied for Financial Aid but with QPA and 
CQPA of at least 4.30.  A student who applies for this scholarship has established financial need but will be 
considered a Merit Scholar because of her grades. 
 

II. Honor Scholarship 
 

This is awarded on a yearly basis to students with exemplary academic standing (CQPA of at least 4.30 with no failing 
marks and no grades below 2.5) It is also awarded to an incoming first year student who graduates as a valedictorian, 
salutatorian and 1st honorable mention among a population of at least 100 students. An honor scholar enjoys discount on 
tuition for a school year excluding summer. 100% tuition discount for the valedictorian (incoming first year) and top 
students of their batch across all colleges/continuing students, 75% tuition discount for the salutatorian and 50% 
tuition discount for top 3 to 10.    

*The HEU – Admissions Office identifies the incoming first year college students who are  qualified and calls 
them for a series of interviews with the Admissions Officer and the College Dean of their chosen program. 

B. FINANCIAL AID 
All Miriam College continuing students and incoming first year students are eligible to apply for financial aid as long as 
they conform with the established criteria based on academic performance (admission score or quality point average 
(QPA) or cumulative quality point average (CQPA) of at least 3.50), deportment and demonstrable financial need. 
Application Form for Financial Aid is given to eligible students upon evaluation of admission score or CQPA. 

The following are the categories of the financial aid: full scholarship, partial scholarship, self-help grants, scholarship for 
the deaf or discount on tuition fee. College grantees are expected to render certain hours of service each semester.  
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I. Full Scholarships (SMT 1 or Category I*) 
Full or 100% discount on tuition, basic and laboratory fees for a regular circular load of one school year 
and may be renewed for the succeeding school years. Tuition, basic and laboratory fees of subjects 
taken during summer are included, provided that they are prescribed in the curriculum. 

*Category 1: 100% tuition, basic, laboratory fees or SMT 1: 100% tuition fee 

II. Partial Scholarship (SMT II or Category II*) 
Partial or 50% discount on tuition, basic and laboratory fees for a regular circular load of one school year 
and renewable for the succeeding school years. Tuition, basic and laboratory fees of subjects taken 
during summer are included, provided that they are prescribed in the curriculum. 
 
* Category 2: 50% tuition, basic, laboratory fees or SMT 2: 50% tuition fee 

III. Self – Help Grants (Self – Help Grants or Category III*) 
Partial or 50% discount on tuition, basic and laboratory fees for a regular circular load of one school year 
and renewable for another semester, for a maximum of two semesters. 
* Category 3/ Self-help: 50% tuition, basic, laboratory fees (max of 2 semesters only) 

 
IV. Scholarship for the Deaf 

 
Full or 100% discount on tuition, basic and laboratory fees for a regular circular load of one 
school year and may be renewed for the succeeding school years. 

  Discount on Tuition fee (SMT 3: 25% tuition or MERIT: 10 to 20% tuition)  

C. SPECIAL SCHOLARSHIPS 
 
The funds come from foundations/ organizations that choose to send students to Miriam College. These scholarships are 
renewable on a yearly basis or after the scholars have graduated. To be eligible, the student must have an admission 
score or CQPA of at least 3.50. Other factors may be considered such as: family’s financial standing, results of the initial 
interview, and recommendations from High School Guidance Counselor and Teachers.  The donors decide who will receive 
the grant based on their set criteria. This scholarship covers tuition and other fees for the duration of the chosen program.  

D. ENDOWED SCHOLARSHIPS 

The nature of an Endowed Scholarship ensures that the grant will continue on in perpetuity. Only ninety percent (90%) of 
its fund yearly earnings will be used for the scholarships and grants. The remaining ten percent (10%) will be returned to 
the principal amount so that the fund renews itself and is able to support a scholar until she completes her program of 
study.  
 
The alumni class or individual donor may specify to which unit and/or course of study they wish to direct their donations. 
The funds will be administered by Miriam College Foundation, Inc. through its Finance Division, which is overseen by a 
Finance Committee of the Miriam College Board of Trustees. These funds are invested conservatively by the school’s 
Fund Managers.  
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These scholarships are renewable on a yearly basis or after the scholars have graduated. To be eligible, the student must 
have an admission score or CQPA of at least 3.50. Other factors may be considered such as: family’s financial standing, 
results of the initial interview, recommendations from guidance counsellors and teachers.  The donors decide who will 
receive the grant based on their set criteria. This scholarship covers tuition and other fees for the duration of the chosen 
program.  

E. ATHLETIC SCHOLARSHIP 
This is given to placers in the athletic auditions for varsity players (Team A player) who are granted exemption from the 
payment of two units of PE classes for first year and second year students and two – unit discount for students in the 
higher year with no PE classes.  
 
Tuition discounts are also given to athletes who are part of the Mythical Selection, awarded as Most Valuable Player, and 
who are Team A players with the highest CQPA of a champion team.  Endorsed athletes for this scholarship are upon the 
approval of the Student Affairs Officer.  
 
Athletes with established financial need are qualified for endorsement of their coach to apply for a 25% tuition discount. 
Application, screening and selection process will be done by the Athletics Coordinator and the Student Affairs Officer.       

 
STUDENT REGISTRATION 
 
Rules of Registration  
(2008 Manual of Regulations for Private Schools, section 84)  
 
The enrolment of student/s in every private school shall be held during the registration days indicated on the approved 
calendar. It shall be conducted in accordance with pertinent procedures of the institution and is subject to the following 
rules:  

1.  The enrolment or registration is for the entire term, i.e., semester, trimester.  

2.  A student may enroll after the lapse of the registration period specified in the school calendar and be admitted in 
accordance with the reasonable rules of the institution for late enrolment but which in no case shall exceed two (2) 
weeks after the opening of classes. Thereafter, no further enrolment shall be allowed.  

3. After enrolment, the transfer of a student to another institution is discouraged, especially when the student is expected 
to graduate during the academic year.  

4. A student may transfer to another institution during the school term, provided the consent of both institutions concerned 
is obtained.  

5. No student shall be accepted for enrolment unless s/he presents the proper school credentials on or before the 
enrolment period for the school term.  

6.  A student is deemed officially enrolled after s/he has submitted her/his appropriate admission or transfer credentials, 
made an initial payment of his/her tuition and other fees to the institution, and has been allowed to attend classes by 
the institution.  

7.  For purposes of enrolment, the name and other personal data or circumstances of each student as indicated in her/his 
birth certificate or alien certificate of registration, where applicable, shall prevail.  
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Policies and Guidelines  
Students who have been cleared of all entry, property, and financial accountabilities are the only ones allowed to enroll for 
the succeeding semester.  

Requirements for New Students  
As a pre-enrolment requirement, new students are required to request for access to online registration in the MC Enrolment 
System. 

ENROLMENT PROCEDURES 
There are two ways by which students can enroll in Miriam College. These include (1) internet enrolment which may be 
done at home or outside the campus, and (2) on-site campus enrolment.  

1. Internet enrolment  
To avoid long queues within the campus on regular enrolment days, Miriam College recommends internet enrolment 
and payment during the enrolment period. Irregular students shall undergo advising by the Department Chairperson 
before they can register.  

Payment of tuition and other fees can be done using the following payment options:  

• Payment to Miriam College Cashier  
• Credit Cards  
• Over-the-Counter Bank Payment  
• Online Payment  

   
On-Site Campus Enrolment  

Enrolment is also conducted on-line inside the campus on specific dates provided by the Registrar’s Office. While 
students are required to register personally, the Registrar on a case-to-case basis allows registration by proxy. 
Irregular students shall undergo advising by the Department Chairperson before they can register. The steps are as 
follows:  
 
a. Student gets a queue number from the guard at the College entrance 
b. Student proceeds to the registration facilitators at the designated enrollment area to get the pre-numbered 

enrolment slip. Old students should present their ID and a printout of their online student clearance; new students 
should present their acceptance letter 

c. Once queue number is called, student proceeds to the Internet Research Center and accomplishes the following 
•  Logs on to the MC Enrolment System using her/his user ID and password 
•  Verifies the subjects/schedules assigned 
•  Clicks payment scheme (semestral, quarterly, or monthly 
•  Clicks “accept” to print the registration/assessment form and 
•  Gets the registration/assessment form and pays at the Cashier’s Office  

      d. Student gets a new ID card (for new students), or validation sticker (for old students) 

22 23
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Note: No credit is given to any subject not listed in the Registrar’s copy of the validated registration form, 

even if such a subject may have been attended and a grade is earned. At the same time, once a subject 

appears in the Registrar’s copy, a student is enrolled in the subject, whether or not s/he actually attends 

classes. Because of these serious implications, any incorrect entry in the registration form should be brought 

to the attention of the Registration Facilitators immediately before it is printed.  

Payment Options  
1. Pay to Miriam College Cashier 

Cash or check payment is accepted at the Miriam College Cashier from Monday to Friday, 8:00 A.M. to 3:30 P.M 
(NO LUNCH BREAK). Please note that post-dated checks are not accepted.  

2. Credit Cards  
For your payment convenience, Miriam College has established partnerships with the following:  
• Citibank Card – Straight or Paylite  
• BPI Express Credit – Straight or Paylite  
• Diners Card – Straight  
• Metrobank – Straight  
• BDO – Straight/ Paylite 

3. Over-the-Counter Bank Payment  
The Bank of the Philippine Islands accepts over-the-counter payment. The following are the details:  

Account Name:   Miriam College Foundation, Inc.  
Bank Name:                 Bank of the Philippine Islands  
Branch:                Katipunan, Quezon City  
Current Account No.:                3081-1112-42  
Note: A clear, enlarged copy of the validated deposit slip should be presented to the Cashier for 
issuance of the official receipt. The Registration Form with the official receipt (OR) serves as proof of 
official enrolment.  

4. Online Payment – Bancnet  
a. Visit www.bancnetonline.com and go to the Bancnet Online link  
b. Select the depository bank  
c. Click the I Agree button found in the Terms and Conditions page  
d. Choose Payment to start the transaction  
e. Using the drop down menu, select Miriam College as the biller/institution  
f. Key-in the bank reference number  
g. Key-in the ATM card number and member number (if required)  
h. Select the preferred Account Type (Savings or Checking)  
i. Key-in the amount that you wish to pay  
j.  Using the mouse, click on the PIN pad on the right side of the screen to enter the ATM PIN.  
k. Click the Submit button.  
l.  Details of the transaction will appear on the screen. Once verified as correct, click OK  
m. Print the screen that shows the payment details. This serves as your transaction record and proof of payment.   

You may also select the Transaction Log and print the last ten transactions made using your ATM card.  
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Note: The printed proof of payment should be presented to the Cashier’s Office for the issuance of an official 
receipt. The Registration Form with the official receipt (OR) serves as proof of official enrolment.  

Changes in the Registration  
After the enrolment period, official changes may be made on the student’s current registration assessment form (RAF) 
within certain deadlines by securing a form from the Registrar’s Office for any of the following:  
• Request to add/drop a course  
• Request to change section of the same course  
• Request to change from audit to credit, or vice-versa  

Students who have paid the current registration fees are the only ones allowed to make changes in their registration 
assessment form. Approval of these requests is done by the respective Academic Chairperson of the student. A minimal 
service fee is charged for such changes.  
A revision in the current enrolled subjects within the first week of the semester does not affect the student’s academic 
record. After this period, another form is accomplished if a student officially drops a subject. A grade of “W” (Withdrawn) is 
indicated in her copy of grades for the semester (including the Transcript of Records), provided the withdrawal is done 
within the deadline stipulated. Students who fail to withdraw a subject are considered officially enrolled and are therefore 
covered by all provisions applicable to enrolled students. Thus, a student who unofficially drops or stops attending her/his 
classes will receive an “FA” (Failure due to Absences) or “NE” (Never Entered) mark.  

Request for Overload  
1.  Only graduating students who meet the required CQPA may be allowed an overload or additional subject load up 

to a maximum of nine (9) academic units in excess of the current load prescribed in their curriculum.  
2.  Recommendation from the Department Chairperson and approval of the Registrar and College Dean must be 

obtained for request for overload.  

Course/ Major Shifting  
1.   Application for course/major shifting should be completed within the deadline set by the Registrar’s office.  
2.   The student should comply with the required CQPA of the intended course/major.  
3.  As a general rule, general education subjects are automatically credited. Major subjects are credited based on 

the evaluation of the department chairperson.  
4.  Students who have met the admission requirements whether regular or probationary, and who have opted to 

enroll in the associate programs are allowed to shift major programs for as long as they meet the CQPA 
requirement of the program and have obtained the approval of the department chairperson concerned.  A student 
whose admission status is on probation will only be allowed to shift after one (1) school year. 

5.   A student may change programs two (2) times maximum for the duration of her stay at Miriam College.  
6.  An application for shifting, if and when approved, is effective the succeeding semester.  
7.  With regard to foreign students, the Bureau of Immigration (BI) requires a CHED endorsement for change of 

programs. 
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Cross Enrolment  
Policies and Guidelines  

 a.   Official credit is given to a student enrolled at Miriam College for work done during the same term in another 
educational institution only when such cross-enrollment has been previously approved by the College Dean, 
Registrar, and the Department Chairperson of the subject concerned. 

 b.   The only subjects that may be cross-enrolled are General Education (GE) subjects not offered in Miriam 
College. All major subjects must be taken at Miriam College. 

 c.  Subjects to be cross-enrolled require the approval of the Department Chairperson, College Dean, and the 
Registrar. 

 d.   A minimum grade of 80% or its equivalent is required in the cross-enrolled subject to be credited. 
 e.   No student may cross-enroll in more than one school during the same term. 
 f.   During the summer term, only irregular and incoming seniors are allowed to cross-enroll in any one of the 

accredited schools for subjects not offered in Miriam College.      
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CLASSIFICATION OF STUDENTS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Students on probation; 
4. Students readmitted after 
taking a leave; and 
5. Students with 3 F marks at 
the end of the school year. 
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Student Assessment 

Student Load 
 
The academic year at Miriam College is divided into two semesters of 18 weeks each. A semester hour or 
unit of credit is given for satisfactory work in one class hour a week for one semester. A student must carry 
the load prescribed in the curriculum of the respective year level to be considered a regular student. The 
maximum load for first-year students is 25 units; for upper-class students, this varies from 15 to 27 units as 
prescribed by their respective program curricula. No student may carry a load exceeding what is prescribed 
in the curriculum without permission from the Department Chair, College Dean and the Registrar. 
 
 
 
Students should keep track of their academic records. The record is basically a checklist of all general and major 
course requirements for a particular degree program. This is designed to help the student keep track of her academic 
progress and thereby help her/him assume responsibility for the completion of all unit requirements for graduation. 
Every student is expected to keep the record throughout her entire college stay and to update the records every 
semester in consultation with the Department Chair and the Registrar. This is done by indicating new courses enrolled 
each registration time, and by recording grades and units earned at the end of each term.  
Fourth year students report for final evaluation to the Department Chair during the first semester after which 
the Department Chair confers with the Registrar to confirm deficiencies. Graduating students are held 
responsible for correcting deficiencies for graduation. 
 
Class Attendance 
Absences  
The maximum number of absences or cuts that may be allowed are as follows:  

1. Three-unit subject held twice a week for 1½ hours each meeting:  
a. 1st Year students are allowed to be absent for a maximum of three meetings.  
b. 2nd Year students are allowed to be absent for a maximum of five meetings.  
c. 3rd, 4th and 5th Year students are allowed to be absent for a maximum of seven meetings.  

2. Three-unit subject held once a week for 3 hours each meeting:  
a. 1st and 2nd Year students are allowed to be absent for a maximum of two meetings. 
b. 3rd, 4th and 5th Year students are allowed to be absent for a maximum of three meetings. 

3. Two-unit subject held once a week for 2 hours each meeting:  
a. 1st Year students are allowed to be absent for a maximum of two meetings.  
b. 2nd Year students are allowed to be absent for a maximum of three meetings. 
c. 3rd, 4th and 5th Year students are allowed to be absent for a maximum of four meetings. 

4. Five-unit science with laboratory subject held twice a week for 4 ½ hours each meeting:  
a. 1st Year students are allowed to be absent for a maximum of three meetings in the lecture part and 
three meetings in the laboratory part.  
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b. 2nd Year students are allowed to be absent for a maximum of five meetings in the lecture part and 
five meetings in the laboratory part.  
c. 3rd, 4th and 5th Year students are allowed to be absent for a maximum of seven meetings in the 
lecture part and seven meetings in the laboratory part.  

5. Five-unit subject (no lab) held once a week for 5 hours and a five-unit subject (no lab) held 3 times a 
week distributed   into 1 ½ and 2 hours:  
a. 1st Year students are allowed to be absent for a maximum of three meetings in the 1 ½ hour session 
and two meetings in the two-hour session. 
b. 2nd Year students are allowed to be absent for a maximum of two meetings in the 5-hour session, 
five meetings in the 1 ½ hour session, and three meetings in the 2-hour session.  
c. 3rd, 4th and 5th Year students are allowed to be absent for a maximum of three meetings in the 5-
hour session, seven meetings in the 1 ½ hour session, and four meetings in the 2-hour session. 

6. Six-unit subject held twice a week for 3 hours each meeting:  
a. 2nd Year students are allowed to be absent for a maximum of five meetings. 
b. 3rd, 4th and 5th Year students are allowed to be absent for a maximum of seven meetings.  

7. Six-unit subject held once a week for 6 hours each meeting:  
a. 2nd Year students are allowed to be absent for a maximum of two meetings. 
b. 3rd, 4th and 5th Year students are allowed to be absent for a maximum of three meetings.  
Note: Upper-class students taking up lower year level subjects shall abide by the policy on 
absences for their year level. The allowed number of absences shall include both excused and 
unexcused absences. Students absent due to official functions will not be marked absent.  

Tardiness  
A student is considered tardy if she enters a 1 ½ hour class within the first 15 minutes after the second bell, 
a two-hour class within the first 20 minutes, a three-hour class within the first 30 minutes, a five-hour class 
within the first 45 minutes, etc. After these time allowances, tardiness is considered an absence.  
Three incidents of tardiness are considered as one absence.  

Overcuts  
In cases where the student has incurred an overcut, Section 101 of the 2008 Manual of Regulations for 
Private Higher Education, shall be followed, to wit:  
Section 101. Student Absences. A student who incurs absences of more than twenty percent (20%) of the 
prescribed number of class or laboratory periods during the school year or term shall fail and earn no credit 
for the course or subject except in the instances as follows:  

1. When the institution adopts a different attendance policy for students who belong to the upper half of 
their classes; and  

2. When the institution exempts a student for a just and reasonable ground, provided however that, the 
student is not excused from keeping up with lessons, assignments and examinations. A faculty member 
may exempt a student who incurs absences beyond the twenty percent (20%) limit, but with the 
approval of proper school authority.  
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In the case of first year students, the First Year Coordinator will take charge of issuing waivers for overcuts 
when these are justifiable, such as for reasons of death in the family, extended illness, and the like. The 
College Dean will assess and give exemptions to upper-class students.  
The above policies on attendance shall be of universal application. No individual faculty member can lay 
down an attendance policy different from the above. 
 
Examinations 
Midterm and final examinations are given for each semester. Students are required to obtain clearance on 
the dates designated by the Registrar’s office for each examination period.  

Special Final Examinations  
Special Final Examinations may be of two types:  

1. Late examinations are given only in cases of illness or when the chairperson allows it for a just and 
reasonable ground and with the approval of the College Dean.  
2. Early examinations given only to students who have a CQPA of 3.00 and in cases where the instructor 
approves the request.  

Forms for special examinations are available at the College Dean’s Office. Since early or late examinations 
are considered special examinations, they are subject to fees. 
 
Grading and Reporting 
 
Grading System  
 
Grading at Miriam College is a unique numerical system based on the principle of quality of work done rather 
than on average percentage points acquired. The analysis of quality of performance takes into consideration 
the following:  

1. Mastery of subject matter as evidenced by exams, recitations, etc.;  
2. Promptness and good quality of assignments;  
3. Positive attitude towards learning;  
4. Participation in class work;  
5. Clear and effective written or oral expression;  
6. Ability to reason and analyze; and  
7. Other criteria that the teacher may choose to emphasize for his/her specific subject at the start of the 
semester  

The final grade ordinarily consists of one-third (1/3) of examination work and two thirds (2/3) of class 
standing. 
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Grading System  
5.0 (99–100)  Outstanding  
4.5 (96–98)  Excellent  
4.0 (93–95)  Very Good  
3.5 (90–92)  Above Average  
3.0 (87–89)  Average  
2.5 (84–86)  Below Average  
2.0 (81–83)  Fair  
1.5 (78–80)  Fair  
1.0 (75–77)  Poor  

 
Legend  
P – Passed  
F – Failed  
NE – Never Entered  
W – Withdraw from the Course  
FA – Failure due to Absences  
INC* – Incomplete  
*INC grades must be completed on the deadline specified 
by the Registrar’s Office or the grade automatically becomes 
an “F”.  

 
The grading system also introduces descriptive grades for courses that do not carry quality points. 

Descriptive Grades  
Ex – Excellent  
VG – Very Good  
G – Good  
S – Satisfactory  
FS – Fairly Satisfactory  
U – Unsatisfactory 

Computation of Quality Points  
Only grades in courses taken at Miriam College shall be included in the computation of the cumulative QPA. 
Except for MC-101, MC-102, and NSTP-2.1, all grades obtained in academic courses are included in the 
computation of the semestral and cumulative QPA for as long as such grades have been obtained at Miriam 
College, regardless of the course under which they were obtained and whether they were credited to the 
current degree program or not.  
The semestral Quality Point Average (QPA) refers to the weighted average of grades in all academic courses 
taken in a given semester, whereas the cumulative QPA refers to the weighted average of grades in all 
academic courses from the first semester in which the student was enrolled up to the last semester.  
A grade, except for “F” or “FA”, is at the same time the quality point of each unit of subject required for 
graduation. The Quality Point Average (QPA) whether for the semester or Cumulative Quality Point Average 
(CQPA) from first year is computed as follows:  

QPA or CQPA = ∑QP 
  ∑U 

Where ∑QP = sum of QP (quality points) = (Grade per subject X Units per subject) ∑U = total number of units  
Summer grades are included in the computation of the CQPA for the current school year and not for the succeeding 
school year.  
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A student who enrolled in summer classes will be re-evaluated for retention after the summer grades have 
been inputted into her CQPA. 

Reporting of Student’s Performance  
After the midterms, the Registrar’s Office sends D-warning letters to the parents of students with 
unsatisfactory academic performance in the subject/s (with grades of 2.0 and below, including Failure (F), 
Failure Due to Absences (FA), and Never Entered (NE)) as assessed by their teacher/s.  
At the end of each semester, the Registrar’s Office sends the students’ Semestral Report, which includes the 
student’s grades in each of the currently enrolled subjects, her QPA, and CQPA for the semester.  
Students who are cleared of entry, property and financial accountabilities are allowed electronic access of 
their semestral grades on the schedule set by the Registrar’s Office.  

Transcript of Records  
The transcript of records is a document showing the student’s academic records and is used for reference 
and for transfer purposes. Requests for transcript of records are for pick-up only by the graduate or her/his 
authorized representative. Official transcript of records which requires a certificate of honorable dismissal/ 
transfer credentials, imply a transfer of the permanent record to another college.  
Processing of transcript of records is five (5) working days, except during peak months when processing 
takes (9) working days. All requests for transcripts should be made in writing. Requests over the phone are 
not honored. Request forms are secured from the Registrar’s Office, or may be downloaded from the MC 
website. 
 
Policies Pertaining to Incomplete (INC) Grades 
 
1.    An INC grade must be completed within a period of one semester after it was incurred (counting starts 

from the end of the term) for undergraduate students. However, this does not apply to courses taken 
abroad under student exchange programs and international internship. Graduate students have one 
school year to complete their INC grade. The exact date of the deadline for completion will be announced 
by the Registrar’s Office. 

2.     If the subject is a prerequisite to a subject to be taken the following semester, the deadline for students 
to complete the INC mark is on the first day of the enrollment for the following semester/term. Faculty 
should encode the grade at least two days before the last day of the enrollment. 

3.    A student who obtains an INC mark at the end of the semester and whose CQPA is below the minimum 
retention grade required of her year level must complete her INC mark at least a week before the start 
of the enrollment for the following semester/term. Non completion may cause the student to be put on 
probation (deloaded) for the following semester or to be sent out if previously on probation.  

4.    An INC which is not completed within the deadline set will automatically become F.  
5.     If the student incurs an INC mark in subjects requiring the completion of a thesis, special problem report, 

feasibility study/ strama, or special research, the student should enroll in thesis direction (if she still has 
other subjects to take) or residency (if she has no more subjects to take) in the next semester for her to 
complete her requirements. Failure to do so will disqualify her from passing the subject. 
The deadline for the faculty to encode the grade is on the deadline of the submission of students’ grades 
in that semester (for the second semester, it is on the deadline of the submission of the grades of 
graduating students).  Students must re-enroll the subject if they fail to complete the INC mark within the 
deadline.  
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6.    INC grade is included in the computation of the CQPA and has a numerical value of zero (0).  
7.    The INC grade, once completed, will not appear in the Transcript of Records. 
 
Student Evaluation of the Teaching and Learning Process (SETLP) 
 
The SETLP is an instrument by which students evaluate their teachers and the learning process. This is 
administered every semester for all non-permanent and permanent faculty at least one week after the 
midterm examinations. This is an important source of feedback to the College regarding the teaching-learning 
process. Non-compliance can cause student to be put on-hold for the succeeding enrollment. As such, 
students are required to accomplish the SETLP, which can be completed online, guided by the following 
procedures:  
1. Log on to http://sels.mc.edu.ph  
2. On the main page, click on the Students link  
3. On the Student’s Login Page, enter the student ID number and the user ID  
4. If it is the student’s first time to use the system, her/his default password is her/his Student ID  
5. Click on the Log In button to submit the entered credentials  
6. If this is the student’s first time to use the system, s/he will be prompted to change her/his password to a 

new one for security reasons  
 7. Fill out all the required fields.  This process is repeated until the student has completed the evaluation of 

all her teachers’ subjects.  
8. Her/his enrolled subjects to be evaluated will be displayed. Click on the Evaluate button for a subject and teacher to 

start the evaluation process  
9. Completely fill out the evaluation form honestly and objectively  

10. Click on the Submit button.  
11. This process is repeated until the student has completed the evaluation of all her teachers’ subjects.  
12. Log out when the evaluation for all the enrolled subjects or teachers has been completed. 

 

Tutorial Classes 
Policies  

1. A maximum of nine units may be enrolled on a tutorial basis.  
2. All tutorial classes should be held inside the Miriam College campus.  
3. The number of meetings should be determined by the following factors:  

a. Nature of the subject—Skills subjects have more meetings than non-skills subjects  
b. Work plan prepared by the teacher—The teacher should submit the work plan to the Department Chair  
c. Nature of course requirements—Course requirements are subject to the approval of the Department Chair  

4.  Only graduating students who have remaining subjects not offered in the semester they wish to enroll in or 
whose remaining subjects may not be cross-enrolled, are allowed to enroll in tutorial classes.  

5.   Other students, who for valid reasons cannot attend regular classes, may be allowed to enroll on a 
tutorial basis upon the endorsement of the Department Chair and the approval of the College Dean 
and the Registrar.   
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Summer Classes 
General Policies  

1. Miriam College students may take summer classes only in Miriam College. If the subject is not offered 
in Miriam College, the students may take it from the member schools of the Consortium of Women’s 
Colleges (CWC) Ateneo de Manila University, University of the Philippines, De La Salle University and 
University of Sto. Tomas, upon the recommendation of the Department Chair of the subject and the 
approval of the College Dean and the Registrar.  

2. The Commission on Higher Education (CHED) requires that no student may take courses in more than 
one school during the summer without prior authorization from the CHED. It also stipulates that a 
student may take a maximum load of nine (9) units, or not more than one laboratory and one lecture 
course.  

3. The school reserves the right to dissolve a summer class if it has less than the minimum number of 
students for a regular class.  

4. No student may enroll in an advanced subject without the approval of the Registrar.  

 

Enrollment Requirements for Summer Classes  
For students from other schools, a cross-enrollment permit from the home institution is required. For Miriam 
College students, attendance in summer classes is limited only to the following:  

1. B.S. Psychology students who would like to enroll in S-107 Lec/Lab;  
2. B.S. Biology students who need to enroll in S-113, S-125, H-105 or E-110;  
3. BSA students who need to enroll in H-105, H-104;  
4. Students who will enroll in NSTP 2.1;  
5. Students who will take Practicum;  
6. Irregular students whose appeals have been approved by the Registrar; or 
7. Students who received failing marks (copy of grades should be presented to prove that the subject was failed). 

 
Maximum Residence 
 
A student must complete the requirements of her course within six years or a residence of twelve semesters 
for a four-year Bachelor’s degree, seven years or fourteen semesters for a five-year Bachelor’s degree and 
three years or six semesters for an Associate degree. Students who finished an Associate degree and are 
pursuing a Bachelor’s degree must also complete the requirements for both courses in six or seven years. A 
semester wherein a student withdraws after the second week of classes is counted toward her residence. 
 
Enrollment beyond the maximum residency 
 

A student who has completed her maximum residency in Miriam College but has less than 18 units 
remaining in her program curriculum will be allowed to stay for one more semester to finish her 
program. Failure to complete the remaining units in one semester may cause the student to apply for 
an extension subject to the approval of the VPAA upon the recommendation of the Program 
Chairperson and the College Dean. 
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Residency after shifting to another program 
 

A student who intends to shift to another program will be evaluated by the chairperson of the accepting 
department and must comply with the required CQPA of the intended program. The number of years 
for said student to complete the requirements of her new program is based on her year level 
classification by the accepting chairperson after the evaluation. 
  

Residency after Re-admission 
 
Category 1. Re-admitted student whose program curriculum still exists 
 
The student can continue with her old program curriculum. She must complete the requirements of her 
program within the maximum residency inclusive of the number of years of stay in MC prior to her LOA. 
 
Category 2. Re-admitted student whose program curriculum no longer exists 
 
The student must enroll in the new program curriculum that is in place. Said student is granted the 
maximum residency, counting from the time of her re-admission, to complete the requirements of her 
program. Also, the student can apply for subject crediting or subject substitution as recommended by 
the Program Chairperson and approved by the College Dean. 

 
The Standards Deciding Body 
The Standards Deciding Body (SDB) is a decision-making body in Miriam College that acts on cases 
pertaining to academic policies and standards.  
It is tasked to deliberate and decide on the following cases/appeals:  

1. Review of grade  
2. Change of grade  
3. Graduation deliberations (with Department Chairpersons)  
4. End-of-the-semester deliberation of students who will be dismissed or placed on probation. 

 
Any request for change in grades by students/teachers/parents will be considered by the Standard Deciding 
Body if submitted within one year from the end of the semester/term of the grade in question. 
 
Retention and Discontinuance of Study 
Retention Policies  

1. The minimum over-all CQPA for retention in Miriam College for four-year, five-year, and two-year 
courses are:  

2.20 for incoming Sophomores 2.30 for incoming Juniors 2.40 for incoming Seniors  
2. Exempted from such requirements are the deaf students taking up Associate in Digital Technology.  

   
 

 36 | Page 

3. A student who fails to obtain the minimum retention CQPA may be retained on a probationary status. 
A student who is placed on probation must obtain the minimum retention CQPA for the next year level 
after the period of deloading, or else will be accordingly dismissed.  

4. No second probation is allowed. 

Retention Guidelines  
1. An incoming sophomore who does not obtain the minimum retention CQPA shall be retained on 

probation and deloaded by 6 units if the CQPA is from 2.10–2.14, and by 3 units if the CQPA is from 
2.15–2.19.  

2. An incoming junior who does not obtain the minimum retention CQPA shall be retained on probation 
and deloaded by 6 units if the CQPA is from 2.20–2.24 and by 3 units if the CQPA is from 2.25–2.29.  

3. An incoming senior who does not obtain the minimum retention CQPA of 2.40 but whose CQPA is not 
lower than 2.20 and has only 48 or less remaining units shall be retained. Student will be allowed to 
enroll a maximum of 12 units per semester until such time that she obtains a minimum CQPA of 2.40. 
Only then is the student allowed to enroll the full load prescribed by her curriculum.  

Leave of Absence  
A request to take a leave of absence from the College may be filed by students who:  

• have a minimum overall CQPA required for retention for each year level: for Sophomores, 2.20; for Juniors, 
2.30; and for Seniors, 2.40; 

• have good academic standing in the current semester and  
• intend to resume their studies at Miriam College after the date of the effectivity of the leave, which should not 

be more than one calendar year at a time. 
Student may be granted maximum of only two LOAs.  All LOAs are counted towards the maximum residence 
in the program. A student who is officially under LOA is not allowed to enroll in other degree programs in any 
school or HEI. 
The student must submit a letter of request for Leave of Absence (LOA) with necessary documents attached 
(e.g. medical certificate, travel papers) before forms are given.  

Readmission  
Students who left Miriam College without filing a leave of absence and would like to resume their studies will 
need to seek formal readmission before they are allowed to register. 
Students may be readmitted provided that they meet the required retention CQPA for their year level at the 
time of their withdrawal. In case the CQPA requirement is not met, the student may appeal to the SDB. 
Readmitted students will be considered irregular. 

Dismissed Students  
Students who have been dismissed from Miriam College because of failure to meet the retention 
requirements may apply for readmission provided they satisfy the following requirements:  

1. Enrolled and obtained satisfactory academic performance in another school after Miriam College;  
2. With favorable recommendation from their previous school; 
3. Obtained favorable interview ratings from the Admissions Officer;  
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4. Have not been classified as incoming junior or senior upon evaluation by the Registrar to qualify for at 
least five (5) semesters residence at Miriam College prior to graduation; 

5. Students who have been out of school for one year or more before applying for readmission should 
retake and pass  the entrance examination and meet the required admission score; and 

6. A dismissed student can be readmitted only once.  

Transfer Credentials  
Transfer Credentials (previously referred to as “Honorable Dismissal”) is requested upon a student’s 
withdrawal from the college. The release or issuance of the Transfer Credentials indicates that the student 
is free from all financial and property accountabilities from the school. 
 
The certificate of Transfer Credentials is issued once and valid for one (1) school only. Students who did 
not graduate are required to surrender their Miriam College ID. If student is currently enrolled, s/he will 
only be allowed to file for Transfer Credentials after the semester/term. 
 

General Requirements for Graduation 
Minimum Requirements  
A Miriam College Degree is awarded to a student who meets all the following minimum requirements:  

1. Filed an application for graduation on the deadline set by the Registrar’s Office every semester 
2. Residence of at least eight (8) semesters and completion of at least 90 units at Miriam College  
3. Completion of the specified requirements in the curriculum in which the student is enrolled 
4. Minimum CQPA of 2.40 at the end of the last semester at Miriam College 

Application forms for graduation can be secured from the Office of the Registrar.  

Late Application for Graduation 

A student who failed to apply for graduation on the deadline set by the Office of the Registrar shall: 

• Fill up the application form for graduation intended for late applicants. Said student must indicate her reason 
for late application. 

• Be charged a late application fee in accordance with the schedule below 
Description Fees 

1 week after the deadline but before the Chairperson’s and Registrar’s evaluation 
P 500.00 

After the Chairperson’s and Registrar’s evaluation but before the SDB 
deliberations. 

P 1,000.00 

After the SDB deliberations and the presentation of the candidates for graduation to the EXECON, late 
applications for graduation will no longer be accepted 

First Semester candidates for graduation who file the application for graduation only on the Second Semester 
shall be required to enroll for Residency and shall be considered as Second Semester graduates. 
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Honors and Awards  
1. Dean’s List  
Dean’s List Requirements: 

• A QPA of 4.30 with no grades below 2.50 for the semester 
• Must not be under probation 
• Must carry the current load required in their curriculum for the semester 
• Must not have an INC mark for the semester 

The list is announced the following semester at the Students’ Assembly where certificates are given to each 
student in the list.  

2. Honors at Graduation  
a. Scholastic Honors  

Latin Honors are awarded to students who obtain the following CQPA at graduation:  
Summa Cum Laude 4.8500–5.0000  
Magna Cum Laude 4.6000–4.8499  
Cum Laude 4.3000–4.5999  

The minimum grade requirement in all subjects for the three Latin Honors is as follows:  
Summa Cum Laude Minimum of 3.5  
Magna Cum Laude Minimum of 3.0  
Cum Laude Minimum of 2.5  
 

For either or both of the following conditions, however, a student is disqualified for Latin Honors:  
• if she earned more than 12 units of her graduation requirements from other schools;  
• if she finished her course for more than the prescribed number of years. 

 
b. Area Award  
The Area Award is given to students who earn the highest major CQPA of at least 4.30 in the Area with 
no grade below 3.0 in the major subjects and below 1.0 in all other subjects. However, a student is 
disqualified for an Area Award if she earned more than 12 units of her graduation requirements from 
other schools or if she finished her degree program for more than the prescribed number of years.  

c. Meritorious Academic Performance Award  
This award is granted to student/s of associate courses who earn the highest major CQPA of at least 
4.30 with no grade below 3.0 in major subjects.  

d. Mother Mary Joseph Award  
This award is given by the College to graduates who are outstanding from the point of view of Scholastic 
Achievement, Leadership, Responsibility and Christian Social Consciousness, and thus have learned 
to personalize the College objectives. It is expected that this will be lived out in different individuals in 
different manners, and this is recognized at graduation by means of citations. Upon graduation, one 
Mother Mary Joseph awardee is chosen to deliver the Message to the Graduates.  
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e. Non-Scholastic Honor  
A Loyalty Acknowledgment is given to graduates who have been continuously enrolled in Miriam 
College since the first grade. 

 
General Policies 
Attire  
Students of Miriam College are encouraged at all times to follow those standards of attire consonant with the 
dignity of Christian women. All students must wear the prescribed uniform (material, pattern, length) in coming 
to school. For physical education classes, a special uniform is prescribed. The PE uniform may not be worn 
in other classes.  

Dismissal  
Students may leave the campus anytime, except when an official activity is scheduled in which their presence 
is required. They are enjoined to use their vacant periods wisely and pursue activities that enrich their college 
experience.  

Campus Visitors  
Social visiting on campus is discouraged. Only persons on official business who are cleared by the college 
offices will be permitted entry into the College Campus.  

Student Discipline  
At all times, on or off-campus, all Miriam College students are expected to behave in such a way as to earn 
greater respect for themselves and for the College as an educational institution. The College Discipline 
Committee, under the Student Affairs Office, handles and investigates all reported major violations.  

Emergency Measures  
In case of emergency situations, HEU administrators shall implement the following guidelines:  

1. Students and personnel shall be asked to evacuate the building through the nearest safe exit routes in 
going to the designated evacuation sites. An evacuation guide will assist them to evacuate in a quiet 
and orderly manner. Emergency floor plans are posted inside the classrooms and offices.  

2. In case students and personnel are stranded on campus during an emergency situation, arrangements 
with cafeteria will be made so that food is available.  

3. The nurse and emergency team members will be asked to stay during the emergency period.  
4. During an accident or any emergency situation that needs further evaluation, the patient will be brought 

to the nearest accredited hospital or clinic. Parents or guardians will be notified.  

All Miriam College students are covered by an accident insurance with Prudential Guarantee and 
Assurance, Inc.  

Tuition and Other School Fees  
Information on tuition, basic and miscellaneous fees for the school year may be obtained from the Students 
Accounts Office at telephone number: 930-6272 local 1141. 
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Mode of Payment  
Payment may be made by cash, check, Citibank credit card, or by postal money order made payable to 
Miriam College and not to “Cash”, or to individuals in the institution. Out-of-town checks should be drawn 
against banks in the Metro-Manila area, if possible. Personal checks are not accepted for the period of March 
1-31, so parents and students are encouraged to settle accounts before March 1 (if they choose to pay in 
check). Otherwise, they have to pay in cash or certified checks. It is understood that parents or guardians 
are responsible for the payment of tuition and other expenses of the student.  

Central Bank Requirement for Foreign Students  
Under existing Central Bank regulations, foreign students are required to meet their school expenses such 
as tuition fees, matriculation fees, laboratory fees, books and other fees. These can be paid out of the 
proceeds of inward remittances of acceptable foreign currencies that they can exchange in pesos at any 
commercial bank or authorized foreign exchange dealers of the Central Bank. Correspondingly, foreign 
students are required to submit evidence of sale of foreign exchange in such amount as necessary to cover 
payment of school fees and books as a condition for their enrollment. 

Refunds  
% of Tuition, Basic Fees 
and Misc. Fees Refunded  

Regular Semester  Summer Session  

75% of tuition and fees  If the student transfers or withdraws 
within the 1st week of classes whether 
these were attended or not  

If the student transfers or 
withdraws within the first and 
second day of classes whether 
these were attended or not  

50% of tuition and fees  After the 1st week to 2nd week of 
classes, whether attended or not  

From 3rd to 8th day of classes  

None  After the 2nd week of classes, whether 
attended or not  

From 9th to 16th day of classes  

 
Miriam College refunds payments according to CHED regulations.  

1. For dropping all courses, refund is made of tuition and general fees as follows, assuming that corresponding 
payments have been made. The computation is made as of the time of request and is based on the semestral 
amount payable.  

2. For dropping a subject involving a fee, e.g., science lab, computer lab, refund will depend on the reasons 
advanced by the student. Full refund of fees is made for any course or subject which has been 
discontinued or a similar administrative act through no fault of the student. In general, the following 
applies: 

 
% of Fee Refunded  Regular Semester  Summer Session  
75%  Within the 1st week of classes, whether attended or 

not  
Within the 1st day of classes  

50%  After the 1st week to 2nd week of classes, whether 
attended or not  

Within 1st week of classes  

None  After the 2nd week of classes, whether attended or not  After 1st week of classes  
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ASSOCIATE IN DIGITAL TECHNOLOGIES 
 

Description:             

 The Associate in Digital Technologies (ADT) is a two-
year program that aims to empower students to realize 
their full potential within a supportive and accepting 
environment. The ADT Program is designed to equip 
students with knowledge, skills and attitudes befitting a 
technologically savvy individual in accordance with 
industry standards that cover competencies on simple 
programming, actual software applications, 
troubleshooting and critical thinking. 

 Program Outcomes:  

The revitalized ADT curriculum hones the students’ 
competence in basic computer application programs 
and develops their skills in diagnosis and 
troubleshooting of computer systems. The addition of 
two new courses on Videography and Motion Graphics 
will provide additional skills for the students, enabling 
them to meet the demands of a highly digitized 
world.  Moreover, the ADT may be considered for 
further studies in the field of Applied Arts major in 
Visual Design. 

 Program Goals:  

1.     To enable the students to learn the essentials of 
digital technologies and develop an understanding on 
how these are applied in varied industries related to 
design and digital media; 

2.     To develop students who will contribute to the 
community by using their skills in animation, web and 
graphic design and troubleshooting; and  

3.     To contribute to the community graduates who are capable and productive in their respective workplaces. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADT CURRICULUM SUMMARY SY 2018 – 2019  

Courses 
No. of 
Units 

GENERAL EDUCATION   15 
UTS-1.0 PCOM-1.0    
LWR-1.0 ETH-1.0    
ARTA-1.0  

   
GENERAL EDUCATION ELECTIVES 
GEE-2 3 
NATIONAL SERVICE TRAINING PROGRAM 6 
NSTP-1.1               NSTP-2.1     
PHYSICAL EDUCATION   8 
PATHF-1.0             PATHF3.0    
PATHF-2.0  PATHF-4.0     
MC REQUIRED COURSES   5 
MC-101                      MC-102    
T-101            
        
PROFESSIONAL MAJOR 
COURSES   39 
DT-101 DT-106 DT-111   
DT-102 DT-107 DT-112   
DT-103 DT-108 DT-113   
DT-104 DT-109    
DT-105 DT-110    
INTERNSHIP/ PRACTICUM   3 
DT-114     
        
        
TOTAL NUMBER OF UNITS   79 
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COURSE DESCRIPTIONS 
 
DT-101: COMPUTER FUNDAMENTALS (3 UNITS) 
 
The students are expected to develop and implement a fully functioning program for general and scientific solutions 
using Visual Basic.NET, apply the skills on how to use the tools in the Flash interface and develop a fundamental 
understanding on how to solve problems using object-oriented programming as a tool to solve most of the day-to-day 
problems.  
 
DT-102: DIGITAL BUSINESS PROCESSES (3 UNITS) 
 
This course deals with the fundamentals and advanced concepts in the evolution of the productivity tools, word 
processing software, data processing software, and slide presentation software most accessible to consumers. More 
specifically, this course demonstrates how the aforementioned productivity tools can be maximized in businesses and 
in the students’ chosen fields.  
 
DT-103: WEB PAGE DESIGN, HOSTING AND DEVELOPMENT (3 UNITS) 
 
The course deals with the technical aspects of creating a web page using the latest computer software tools for 
webpage design.  
 
DT-104: DESKTOP PUBLISHING & WEB DESIGN GRAPHICS (3 UNITS) 
 
The course provides instruction in the use of Adobe Photoshop and InDesign for making text and graphics. The 
students are expected to create, edit, and manipulate text and graphics for publication and presentation, using the 
latest computer tools.  
 
DT-105: VIDEOGRAPHY (3 UNITS) 
 
The course tackles the fundamental processes of filmmaking: pre-production, production, and post-production. The 
students will have the opportunity to explore and utilize the technology behind digital video production and editing. 
 
DT-106: DIGITAL IMAGING (3 UNITS) 
 
The course deals with the technical and theoretical aspects of processing images from digital equipment and from 
internet, and explanation of the tools needed to work with those images.  
 
DT-107: PC TROUBLESHOOTING AND REPAIR (3 UNITS) 
 
The course provides an introduction to the computer hardware skills needed to help meet the requirement for entry-
level information and communication technology professionals. It covers the fundamentals of PC hardware technology, 
networking, laptop, and printer, operational procedures, and provides an introduction to advanced concepts in the ever 
growing field of Computer Technology.  
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Curriculum for SY 2018-2019 
 

 
 

 

First Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units  Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units 

UTS - 1.0 Understanding the Self 3  ARTA - 1.0 Art Appreciation 3 
LWR - 1.0 Life & Works of Rizal 3 PCOM - 1.0 Purposive 

Communication 
3 

MC-101 MC Culture, Identity 
and Social 
Responsibility I 

1 MC-102 MC Culture, Identity and 
Social Responsibility II 

1 

NSTP-1.1 
 

National Service 
Training Program 
(NSTP I) 

3 
NSTP-2.1 National Service Training 

Program (NSTP II) 
3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity 
Towards Health and 
Fitness I 

2 PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness II 

2 

DT-101 Computer 
Fundamentals 

3 DT-103 Web Page Design, 
Hosting and Development 

3 

DT-102 Digital Business 
Processes  

3 DT-104 
 

Desktop Publishing & 
Web Graphics 

3 

 Total  18   Total  18 

Second Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units 

DT-105 Videography 3 ETH - 1.0 Ethics 3 
DT-106 Digital Imaging 3 GEE- 2 The Entrepreneurial 

Mindset and Innovative 
Thinking 

3 

DT-107 PC Troubleshooting 
and Repair 

3 DT-111 Multimedia Processes & 
Animation II 

3 

DT-108 Multimedia Processes 
& Animation 

3 DT-112 Programming Language II 3 

DT-109 Programming 
Language I 

3 DT-113 Motion Graphics 3 

DT-110 Advanced Data Base 
Management System 

3 DT-114 Practicum 3 

T-101 Biblical Foundation of 
Christian Faith 

3 PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness IV 

2 

PATHF-3.0 Physical Activity 
Towards Health and 
Fitness III 

2    

 Total  23   Total  20 
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DT-108: MULTIMEDIA PROCESSES AND ANIMATION (3 UNITS) 
 
The course presents the principles of 3-D Design and Modeling created by combining simple three-dimensional (3D) 
shapes to form complex structures and organisms that are currently being used as actors in digital animation and 
prototypes for 3D printing. With the use of Adobe Photoshop and Autodesk’s Tinker CAD, these software applications 
will enable the student to work in 3D space and manipulate pixels and vectors using program tools to construct 3D 
figures, architecture and wearable product designs.  
 
 
DT-109: PROGRAMMING LANGUAGE 1 (3 UNITS) 
 
The course provides the students with hands on experience using Visual Studio.NET in creating dynamic web 
applications with the ASP.NET 4.0 Framework using C#. It aims at imparting expertise in developing interactive and 
dynamic web applications using the .NET framework. Learning the essentials of .NET framework using C# (C SHARP) 
and using ASP.NET in building interactive, feature-rich webpages with C# as its code-behind and using AJAX in 
designing rich user interfaces.   
 
DT-110: ADVANCED DATA BASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (3 UNITS) 
 
This course develops and manages efficient and effective database applications. It aims at helping learners understand 
the fundamentals of database management systems, techniques for the design and databases, and principles of 
database administration.  
 
DT-111: MULTIMEDIA PROCESSES AND ANIMATION II (3 UNITS)                                      Prerequisite: DT-108 
 
The course presents concepts of media and information and the essentials of programming. With the use of varied 
software applications, the students will be able to process and manipulate different types of media such as images, 
sounds and videos and come up with their own animation.  
 
DT-112: PROGRAMMING LANGUAGE II (3 UNITS)                                                   Prerequisite: DT-109  
 
The course is a continuation of Web-based Programming 1. It covers the programming techniques in developing 
graphical user interfaces for the web. It also deals with events and objects in assessing a database for web site 
functionality using the web development software for website functionality.  
 
DT-113: MOTION GRAPHICS (3 UNITS) 
 
The course covers the technical and historical evolution of motion graphics and the different forms of animation. The 
output of this course is the production of hands-on animated projects.  
 
DT-114: PRACTICUM (3 UNITS)                                                                                                    
Prerequisites: DT-101; DT-102; DT-103; DT-104; DT-105; DT-106; DT-107; DT-108; DT-109 & DT-110 
 
The course provides an opportunity for the students to apply the knowledge and skills acquired in her/ his academic 
studies particularly on the major subjects in actual work practice. This is conducted under the supervision of the faculty 
in charge and requires at least 200 hours of actual work.  
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BACHELOR OF APPLIED ARTS MAJOR IN VISUAL DESIGN 

 
 
Program Description:  
 
 
The Bachelor of Applied Arts in Visual Design 
is the ideal training ground for a design 
profession in the creative industries. The 
program provides students a strong 
understanding of art, design and culture so that 
they may learn how to develop creative and 
innovative design thinking strategies in 
producing effective and innovative solutions to 
visual communication design challenges using 
their aesthetic skills in multimedia platforms, 
both in classical drawing techniques and in new 
digital media formats.  
 
The course emphasizes hands-on 
experiences in the art and design studios and 
computer laboratories where students engage 
in conceptualizing and rendering 2-D and 3-D 
forms across disciplines such as advertising 
graphics, animation, branding, creative 
photography, digital apps, packaging and 
product design, typography and web design. Industry-based professionals carry out mentoring and one-on-
one supervision activities; while portfolio, thesis project exhibit, and on-the-job training (internship) provide 
collaborative opportunities for networking with various fields of expertise. At the end of the program, the 
multi-disciplinary ability of the student in putting theories into industry practice is evaluated against global 
trends and international design standards. 
 
Departmental Policy: 

1. Students must pass ALL Foundation Courses before they can enroll in any of the 3rd and 4th year courses. 
The Foundation Courses are: 

a. AAV-101 Freehand Drawing 
b. AAV-102 Digital Imaging 
c. AAV-103 Technical Drawing                        
d. AAV-104 Design History  
e. AAV-105 Design Principles                    
f. AAV-106 Rendering 
g. AAV-107 Photography                                         
h. AAV-108 Color Theory 
i. AAV-109 Animation 
j. AAV-110 Prototyping 
k. AAV-111 3D Modeling 
l. AAV-112 Video + Motion Graphics 
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2. Students must pass at least nine (9) units of the 3rd year core courses before they can enroll in 

AAV-123 Design Thesis 2. The 3rd year core courses are: 
a. AAV-113 Multimedia Production 
b. AAV-114 Web Design 
c. AAV-115 Product Design 
d. AAV-116 Brand Development 
e. AAV-117 Environmental Graphics 
f. AAV-118 Package + Print Design 

 
Program Educational Objectives 

After graduation, the Miriam College Applied Arts graduate is: 

1. A creative and productive professional in the field of the Applied Arts exhibiting competence, commitment, 
leadership, and motivation for lifelong-learning in her/his area of expertise. 

2. A local and global citizen who is value-oriented on PEACE, JUSTICE, TRUTH and INTEGRITY of 
CREATION. 

3. A life-long learner who pursues continuing education and or employment in commercial and academic 
environment. 

Program Outcomes 

Upon completion of the program, students should be: 

1. Knowledgeable about concepts, personalities, genres and movements in art and design. 

2. Sensitive to the needs and wants of people, recognizing various factors that may affect their behavior, 
reception and perception of visual communication, product innovation, and urban spaces.   

3. Adept at production processes and current technologies in the creative industries. 

Applied Arts graduates should have the skills in: 

1. Applying knowledge of both traditional and digital arts in creating production and post-production work 
related to visual communication, product design, packaging, brands/logos, design of booths, kiosks, show 
window display and other related structures in the retail environment. 

2. Visualizing concepts in both 2-dimensional and 3-dimensional forms through manual and digital processes 
using various media such as print, product or web. 

3. Working efficiently with multicultural teams in the different aspects of digital environment in doing research, 
producing concepts, creating prototypes, supervising production/setup and delivery of desired output. 
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Curriculum for SY 2018-2019 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

First Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

AAV-101 Freehand Drawing 3 AAV-104 Design History 3 
AAV-102 Digital Imaging 3 AAV-105 Design Principles 3 
AAV-103 Technical Drawing 3 AAV-106 Rendering 3 
ARTA-1.0 Art Appreciation 3 STS-1.0 Science, Technology & 

Society 
3 

PCOM-1.0 Purposive Communication 3 T-101 Biblical Foundation of 
Christian Faith 

3 

NSTP-1.1 National Service Training 
Program (NSTP I) 

3 NSTP-2.1 National Service Training 
Program (NSTP II) 

3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness I 

2 PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness II 

2 

MC-101 MC Culture, Identity, and 
Social Responsibility I 

1 MC-102 MC Culture, Identity, and 
Social Responsibility 2 

1 

 Total 21  Total 21 

Second Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

AAV-107 Photography 3 AAV-110 Prototyping 3 
AAV-108 Color Theory 3 AAV-111 3D Modeling 3 
AAV-109 Animation 3 AAV-112 Video + Motion Graphics 3 
MMW-1.0 Mathematics in the Modern 

World 
3 TCW-1.0 The Contemporary World 3 

UTS-1.0 Understanding the Self 3 RPH-1.0 Readings in Philippine History 3 
T-102.1 Theology of Mission, 

Communion and Service 
3 ETH-1.0 Ethics 3 

PATHF-3.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness III 

2 PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness IV 

2 

 Total 20  Total 20 
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Third Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

AAV-113 Multimedia Production 3 AAV-116 Brand Development 3 
AAV-114 Web Design 3 AAV-117 Environmental Graphics 3 
AAV-115 Product Design 3 AAV-118 Package + Print Design 3 
T-103 Contemporary Moral Issues 3 GEE-2 The Entrepreneurial Mindset 

and Innovative Thinking 
3 

GEE-1 Local Knowledge and 
Ethno-ecology 

3 ELEC-1 Elective 1 3 

LIT-1.0 Great Books 3 LIT-2.0 Third World Literature 3 
 Total 18  Total 18 

MIDYEAR TERM 
Course Code Course Title Units 
AAV-119 Design Internship 3 

 Total 3 

Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

AAV-120 Design Thesis 1 3 AAV-123 Design Thesis 2 3 
AAV-121 Business Design 3 AAV-124 Portfolio + Industry  3 
AAV-122 Creative Women 3 ELEC-2 Elective 2 3 
GEE-3 Gender Relations, Human 

Rights and Peace 
3 LWR-1.0 Life and Works of Rizal 3 

T-104 Theology of Social Justice & 
Peace 

3    

 Total 15  Total 12 
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COURSE DESCRIPTIONS 

 
AAV-101 FREEHAND DRAWING (3 UNITS)               Foundation Course 
 
This course begins with surveys of traditional art implements such as colored pencil, charcoal, pen and ink, watercolor 
and acrylic paints. Drawing exercises include composition, positive/negative space, figure-ground relationship, and 
multiple points of view. Subjects for drawing include objects as well as human anatomy for illustration of ergonomics. 
Perspectives include foreshortening, accurate proportion, lighting, and composition. 
 
AAV-102 DIGITAL IMAGE MAKING (3 UNITS)               Foundation Course 
 
The computer is introduced as an image-making tool across all art and design disciplines. Software such as Adobe 
Photoshop and Adobe Illustrator are applied to printing and type presentations. The course enhances student’s ability 
to address visual, compositional, and technical problems on available computer platforms. 
 
AAV-103 TECHNICAL DRAWING (3 UNITS)                 Foundation Course 
 
This course involves introduction to basics of technical drawing skills for drawing basic geometric shapes and graphical 
projection techniques (perspective and parallel projection- isometric and orthographic drawings). Students are 
introduced to reading and drafting technical drawings manually using traditional tools and equipment, and digitally 
using computer software. Emphasis will be on creating accurate, clear drawings by observing standards and 
conventions in CAD. 
 
AAV-104 DESIGN HISTORY (3 UNITS)                  Foundation Course 
 
This course provides an exploration of visual communication issues and applications involving design methodology, 
problem-solving, and relationship of visual form to meaning. It explores the evolution of 20th century design styles and 
theories from the Pre-Historic to Modernist era through Post Modernism. It also surveys Asian contemporary art and 
its quest for a dialogue between meaning in media and the social, economic, political and cultural context of the time. 
 
AAV-105 DESIGN PRINCIPLES (3 UNITS)                                                                                     Foundation Course 
 
This course presents the elements and theories of design and enhances them through practices in two-dimensional 
design in the visual arts. Basic relationships between color and compositional practices such as space, unity, emphasis, 
balance, rhythm, and proportion are explored. An appreciation of harmony in design is promoted. 
 
AAV-106 RENDERING (3 UNITS)                  Foundation Course 
 
This course introduces students to the visual language of drawing through observation and rendering a realistic image, 
both in traditional and digital processes. This course allows students to refine visual perception techniques through 
rigorous observational practices in the application of light, shade, tone, value, texture, mass and volume that lead to 
an identifiable illustration style, using various tools, media and methodologies. 
 
AAV-107 PHOTOGRAPHY (3 UNITS)                                                                                           Foundation Course 
 
This course explores the technical, conceptual and visual issues in traditional and digital photography. Photo sessions 
involving professional photographers are scheduled with on-the-spot location shoots, as well as indoor product shoots 
with lighting techniques which will be useful in advertising collateral such as product catalogues, brochures and 
signages. 
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AAV-108 COLOR THEORY (3 UNITS)                Foundation Course 
 
The principles and theories on colors are related to design. Color in both traditional and contemporary medium are 
rendered for color effects for prints and electronic production methods. The psychological and cultural aspects of color 
as they impact the viewer are included in the design process. Testing of color combinations in practical applications 
like signage and corporate emblems is involved. 
 
AAV-109 ANIMATION (3 UNITS)                 Foundation Course 
 
This course focuses on the basic principles of movement which form the foundation of both 2-D and 3-D animation. 
Students analyze motions of people and objects to constitute animation. The goal is to establish a clear understanding 
of motion dynamics and the associated practices and principles of animation. 
 
AAV-110 PROTOTYPING (3 UNITS)                Foundation Course 
 
This course teaches the student how to visualize forms through model construction and prototyping both in manual 
and digital means. Basic equipment and materials such as cutting tools and adhesives are introduced. This includes 
discussions on joineries and various concepts in making geometric solids and other 3D objects and structures that will 
be useful in product and package design. 
 
AAV-111 3D MODELING (3 UNITS)              Foundation Course 
 
This course teaches basic model making techniques using digital means: from two-dimensional ideas to three-
dimensional forms. Students use a variety of textured materials and lighting techniques to explore volume, mass, 
gravity, tension, compression, light, and color in visualizing realistic life-like images. Various software may be used to 
explore wide range of possibilities in achieving effects that are industry standard. 
 
AAV-112 VIDEO + MOTION GRAPHICS (3 UNITS)                                                                     Foundation Course 
 
This is a basic course on the techniques of producing audio-visual materials for use in various media like print, film, 
television, theater and others. Alternative media forms like comics, streamers, posters, flyers and brochures are also 
introduced. 
 

Students must pass all Foundation Courses first before they can enroll in any of these major courses: 
 
AAV-113 MULTIMEDIA PRODUCTION (3 UNITS)   
 
This course teaches the student how to create design solutions in multimedia formats and apply these in 
conceptualizing web-based products that are user-centered. This is an industry-based problem-solving approach in 
teaching students critical thinking and methodologies in testing their creativity against real-world scenarios.  
 
AAV-114 WEB DESIGN (3 UNITS) 
 
This course deals with the technical and theoretical aspects of producing artistically effective electronic media in digital 
publication and presentations that include web designs for internet use. Students analyze information and balances 
the amount of data used in multimedia based on user experiences. 
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AAV-115 PRODUCT DESIGN (3 UNITS) 

 
This course teaches the student how to create her own ideas using the design thinking approach and apply these in 
conceptualizing tangible objects that are of value to the market. This includes designing furniture, furnishings, fashion 
wearables, accessories, bags, educational games, toys and other objects for play. 
 
 
AAV-116 BRAND DEVELOPMENT (3 UNITS) 
 
This course addresses all aspects of typography including design, composition, legibility, hierarchy, and text/image 
relationships. It also provides a fundamental understanding and appreciation for visual language, and how it is used in 
communication. Emphasis is on using branding as a marketing strategy. 
 
AAV-117 ENVIRONMENTAL GRAPHICS (3 UNITS) 

 
This course teaches the student how to create spatial design solutions in retail and commercial environments, including 
exhibits and store display, visual merchandising and public spaces. Emphasis is on the functionality of the creative 
solutions and how they provide comfort and ease-of-use to people.  
 
AAV-118 PACKAGE + PRINT DESIGN (3 UNITS) 
 
This is an approach in managing and undertaking applied concepts in packaging of products. It includes generating 
and processing new concepts, designs and innovations using market research approaches. It helps concretize ideas 
on how to develop products for people’s use and engage design in promoting both economy and marketability. 
 
AAV-119 DESIGN INTERNSHIP (3 UNITS) 
 
Internships are conducted during the summer after the 3rd year level for a minimum of 160 hours of work at design 
studios, advertising or media firms approved by the Department Chair. This apprenticeship training provides a practical 
arena for students to test their skills, acquire workplace ethics, and to pick up additional knowledge for career planning. 
 
AAV-120 DESIGN THESIS 1 (3 UNITS) 
 
This is the research writing subject for the senior thesis project. Students are expected to demonstrate their skills in 
gathering information from various sources of authority, including conducting surveys and interviews, and to present 
their data before an internal jury (panel). 
 
AAV-121 BUSINESS DESIGN (3 UNITS) 
 
This course will teach the student the fundamental functions in business operations: management, finance and 
marketing. Students learn about contemporary issues involving industry champions and the companies they lead, their 
success stories, and how they sustain their profitability. 
 
AAV-122 CREATIVE WOMEN (3 UNITS) 
 
This course examines the role and representation of women in history, and their creative contributions to humankind. 
It emphasizes the examination of the construction of gender utilizing various theoretical models of analysis. It seeks to 
provide role models not only in the creative industries but also in other disciplines where ingenuity and innovativeness 
were observed. 
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AAV-123 DESIGN THESIS 2 (3 UNITS) 
 
This subject covers the culminating activities of the Visual Design student: the thesis production (prototype-making), 
jury presentation (defense) and the group exhibition in a public venue. Students are expected to integrate all the lessons 
learned from their various subjects and show evidence that they already possess the competencies of a design 
professional. 
 
 
AAV-124 PORTFOLIO+INDUSTRY (3 UNITS) 
 
This is a course that assists students in refining and assembling a body of artworks in preparation for the job interview 
process. Guides in selecting a portfolio and effectively reworking and improving it through critiquing by mentors and 
peers form part of the course.  
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BACHELOR OF ARTS IN COMMUNICATION  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Departmental Academic Standards and Policy: 

 
The Department of Communication complies with the CHED Memorandum Order no. 10, series of 2010, “Policies 
and Standards for Bachelor of Arts in Communication Program”, section 18 of the CMO which states that: “Students 
admitted into BA Communication Program must maintain a grade weighted average of at least 2.50 in all major 
subjects each semester.” 

 
 
 

Description:  
 
The BACHELOR OF ARTS IN 
COMMUNICATION program aims to develop in 
students a comprehensive understanding of the 
nature, background, and application of 
communication.  
 
The curriculum is designed to train students in 
the design and production of multi-media 
products. Knowledge and skills are imparted to 
students in a variety of channels such as print, 
radio, television, online, theater, and film.  
 
Relevant experiences are also provided on the 
dynamics of interpersonal and group 
communications, public relations, advertising, 
marketing, and information and communication 
technology (ICT). 
 
In addition, students are prepared for their entry 
into the practical world of developmental 
communication where they are expected to 
contribute meaningfully to community-building 
and social understanding through participative 
and collaborative undertakings. 
 
The degree program aims to develop students to 
become effective communicators and 
practitioners of Miriam College’s core values. 
Graduates are expected to be technically 
competent and ready for the demands of the 
field, where their skills in communication 
management, consensus-building, multi-media 
presentations, and multi-cultural and community 
organization can be put to good use.  
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Program Outcomes:  
 

Program Outcomes Performance Indicators 
Define and access information needs; 
assess and organize information and 
knowledge; produce, share and utilize 
information and knowledge 

Efficient accessing and gathering of need-based, accurate, 
authentic, and reliable information through print, broadcast, and 
online sources, research, and other investigative techniques 
 
Skillful selection, analysis, organization, and presentation of 
essential information in the development and production of print, 
broadcast, and online stories 
 
Appropriate and responsible sharing and use of information and 
knowledge generated from different sources 

Communication in different formats and 
platforms (print, broadcast, and online) 

Clear and effective writing for different formats and platforms 
 
Clear, fluent, and engaging delivery of speeches, broadcast news 
and commentaries, and other oral presentations 
 
Effective and responsible use of non-verbal cues, pictures, graphics, 
and images in oral and online communication 

Prepare communication/media plan Evidence-based situational analysis 
 
Audience-specific communication objectives and strategies 
 
Concrete monitoring and evaluations indicators 

Conduct communication and media 
research and evaluation 

Comprehensive literature review and exhaustive research 
 
Appropriate research or evaluation framework 
 
Sound research or evaluation design 

Develop and produce communication 
materials in different formats and platforms 

Creative and innovative conceptualization and design of audience-
specific communication materials 
 
Skillful and responsible use of relevant technical equipment 
software 
 
Skillful use of gender and culture-sensitive and politically-correct 
language in message development 

Demonstrate communication management 
and leadership skills 

Efficient and effective use of resources 
 
Sound design of communication programs and projects 
 
Competent use of planning, monitoring, and  evaluation (controlling) 
tools 
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Develop entrepreneurial capabilities Skillful business analysis and identification of communication-driven 
business opportunities 
 
Innovative and creative engagement in business ventures 
 
Effective use of marketing communication strategies 

Adhere to ethical standards and practices  Strong foundation in moral philosophy and ethical system 
 
Clear understanding of professional codes of conducts, standards 
and practices 
 
Ethical in making choices and decisions professionally 

Know and practice rights, responsibilities, 
and accountabilities in the communication 
profession 

Clear understanding of freedom, rights, and responsibilities  
 
Observance of communication media laws 
 
Clear understanding of the role of media in a democratic society 

Demonstrate development orientation in 
communication work 
 

Clear understanding of local, national, and global development 
issues and agenda 
 
Clear understanding of development theories and paradigms 
 
Deft integration of development issues and concerns in 
communication projects 

Apply communication theories/models, 
principles, practices, and tools in 
development work. 

Skillful use of participatory strategies in planning, implementing, and 
evaluating communication programs. 
 
Skillful use of communication strategies in mediation, negotiation, 
and resolution.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5756



57 | P a g e  
 

 
Program Goals:  
 
The Communication graduate of Miriam College will demonstrate basic knowledge and understanding of the 
following: 

a. Communication Theories – the understanding of the nature of basic communication theories and their 
application 

b. Application of production – the design and production of multimedia production 
c. Technology – the technical competency for the demands of the field 
d. Fields of Communication – the understanding of concepts in the different fields of communication: 

1. Journalism 
2. Broadcast 
3. Theater 
4. Film  
5. Communication Management and Entrepreneurship 
6. Events Management 
7. Advertising  
8. Marketing 
9. Public Relations 
10. Communication for Development 
11. Communication Research 

 
The Communication graduate should possess the following skills: 

a. Speaking – the ability to effectively communicate with the assurance that the intended message has 
reached the intended receiver and that he/she understood it 

b. Writing – the ability to write confidently using appropriate words, form and style of writing, depending on 
the demand and/or need 

c. Technology Use – the ability to be flexible with the available technology and to choose the most 
effective tools depending on the output given  

d. Integrating/Synthesizing – the ability to integrate concepts, theories, applications and to fuse different 
subject matters that may be related to each other and which may be deemed useful and necessary  

e. Reflective – the ability to go deeper and look for more meaningful areas that can be further improved or 
enhanced 

 
The Communication graduate should have the following attitudes/values: 

a. Miriam’s core values – she speaks of the truth, promotes and denounces violence, is just in words and 
deeds, and helps preserve God’s creation 

b. Empowered -  she is a leader in service for societal transformation 
c. Gender Sensitive – she believes in equal opportunities and champions her right to education                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
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Revised Curriculum for SY 2018-2019 

 

 
 

First Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

UTS-1.0 Understanding the Self  3  MMW-1.0 Mathematics in the Modern 
World  

3 

TCW-1.0 The Contemporary World  3  PCOM-1.0 Purposive Communication 3 
T-101 Biblical Foundation of 

Christian Faith 
3  ARTA-1.0 Art Appreciation  3 

NSTP-1.1 National Service Training 
Program (NSTP I) 

3  STS-1.0 Science, Technology, and 
Society  

3 

MC-101 MC Culture Identity and 
Social Responsibility I 

1  NSTP-2.1 National Service Training 
Program (NSTP II) 

3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness - I 

2  MC-102 MC Culture Identity and 
Social Responsibility II 

1 

COMM-101 Introduction to 
Communication Media  

3  PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness - II 

2 

    COMM-116 Gender and 
Communication  

3 

 Total 18    Total  21 

Second Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

FL-101 Foreign Language 1   3  FL-102 Foreign Language 2  3 
PATHF-3.0 Physical Activity 

Towards Health & 
Fitness - III 

2  LIT-1.0 Great Books 3 

T-102.1 Theology of Mission, 
Communion and 
Service 

3  PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness - IV 

2 

COMM-102 Theories of 
Communication  

3  COMM-121 Effective Presentation and 
Multimedia Techniques   

3 

COMM-103 Communication Culture 
and Society  

3  COMM-118 Advertising Principles and 
Practices  

3 

COMM-120 Theater Arts Theory 
and Appreciation  

3  COMM-119 Public Relations Principles 
and Practices  

3 
 

COMM-111 Journalism Principles 
and Practices  

3  COMM-122 Film Theory and Practices   3 

       
 Total  20    Total  20 
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MIDYEAR 
Course Code Course Title Units 
COMM-114 Internship 3 

 Total 3 

 

 

Third Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

ETH-1.0 Ethics  3  FELECT-2 Free Elective 2  3 
T-103 Contemporary Moral 

Issues 
3  GEE 2-  The Entrepreneurial Mindset 

and Innovative Thinking 
3 

GEE-1 Local Knowledge and 
Ethnoecology 

3     

FELECT-1  Free Elective 1  3  COMM-117 Integrated Marketing 
Communication  

3 

COMM-112/  
COMM 113 

Television Production/ 
Radio Production  

3  COMM-112 / 
COMM-113 

Television Production/ 
Radio Production  

3 

COMM-104 Communication 
Research  

3  COMM-115.1 Research Writing 1  3 

COMM-108 Communication for 
Development  

3  COMM-106 Communication Planning 3 

 Total  21      
     Total 18 

Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

LWR-1.0 Life and Works of 
Rizal  

3  RPH-1.0 Readings in Philippine 
History  

3 

T-104 Theology of Social 
Justice and Peace 

3  GEE-3  Gender Relations, Human 
Rights and Peace 

3 

FELECT-3 Free Elective 3 3  FELECT-4 Free Elective 4  3 
COMM-107 Communication 

Management and 
Entrepreneurship  

3  COMM-105 Communication Media 
Laws and Ethics  

3 

COMM-115.2 Research Writing 2  3  COMM-110 Knowledge Management  3 
COMM-109 Risk, Disaster, and 

Humanitarian 
Communication  

3  LIT-2.0 Third World Literature 3 

 Total  18   Total  18 
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BACHELOR OF ARTS IN COMMUNICATION MINOR IN DIGITAL MEDIA PRODUCTION 

 

 

 
 
 

First Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

UTS-1.0 Understanding the Self  3  MMW-1.0 Mathematics in the 
Modern World  

3 

TCW-1.0 The Contemporary World  3  PCOM-1.0 Purposive Communication  3 
T-101 Biblical Foundation of 

Christian Faith 
3  ARTA-1.0 Art Appreciation  3 

NSTP-1.1 National Service Training 
Program (NSTP I) 

3  STS-1.0 Science, Technology, and 
Society  

3 

MC-101 MC Culture Identity and 
Social Responsibility I 

1  NSTP-2.1 National Service Training 
Program (NSTP II) 

3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness - I 

2  MC-102 MC Culture Identity and 
Social Responsibility II 

1 

COMM-101 Introduction to 
Communication Media  

3  PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness - II 

2 

     COMM-116 Gender and 
Communication  

3 

 Total 18    Total  21 

Second Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

FL-101 Foreign Language 1   3  FL-102 Foreign Language 2  3 
PATHF-3.0 Physical Activity Towards 

Health & Fitness – III 
2  LIT-1.0 Great Books 3 

T-102.1 Theology of Mission, 
Communion and Service 

3  PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity 
Towards Health & 
Fitness – IV 

2 

COMM-102 Theories of Communication  3  COMM-121 Effective Presentation 
and Multimedia 
Techniques   

3 

COMM-103 Communication Culture and 
Society  

3  COMM-118 Advertising Principles 
and Practices  

3 

COMM-120 Theater Arts Theory and 
Appreciation  

3  COMM-119 Public Relations 
Principles and Practices 

3 
 

COMM-111 Journalism Principles and 
Practices  

3  COMM-122 Film Theory and 
Practices   

3 

 Total  20    Total  20 
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MIDYEAR 
Course Code Course Title Units 

COM 114 Internship 3 

 Total 3 
 

 
 

 

Third Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course Code Course Title Units  Course Code Course Title Units 
ETH-1.0 Ethics  3  GEE -2 The Entrepreneurial 

Mindset and Innovative 
Thinking 

3 

T-103 Contemporary Moral 
Issues 

3  COMM-117 Integrated Marketing 
Communication  

3 

COMM-112 
COM 113 

Television Production/ 
Radio Production  

3  COMM -112/ 
COMM-113 

Television Production/ 
Radio Production  

3 

COMM-104 Communication Research  3  COMM-115.1 Research Writing 1  3 
COMM-108 Communication for 

Development  
3  COMM-106 Communication Planning  3 

COMM-132/ 
133/ 134/ 135 

Digital Media Production 
Required Electives   

3  COMM-132/ 
133/ 134/ 135 

Digital Media Production 
Required Electives   

3 

GEE-1 Local Knowledge and    
Ethnoecology 

3      

 Total 21   Total 18 

Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course Code Course Title Units  Course Code Course Title Units 
LWR-1.0 Life and Works of Rizal  3  RPH-1.0 Readings in Philippine 

History  
3 

T-104 Theology of Social Justice 
and Peace 

3  COMM-105 Communication Media Laws 
and Ethics  

3 

COMM-107 Communication 
Management and 
Entrepreneurship  

3  COMM-110 Knowledge Management  3 

COMM-115.2 Research Writing 2  3  GEE-3  Gender Relations, Human 
Rights and Peace  

3 

COMM-109 Risk, Disaster, and 
Humanitarian 
Communication  

3  COMM-135 
COMM-132/ 
133/ 134/ 135 

Digital Media Production 
Required Electives   

3 

COMM-132/ 
133/ 134/ 135 

Digital Media Production 
Required Electives   

3  LIT-2.0 Third World Literature 3 

 Total  18   Total  18 
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MIDYEAR 
Course Code Course Title Units 

COM 114 Internship 3 

 Total 3 
 

 
 

 

Third Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course Code Course Title Units  Course Code Course Title Units 
ETH-1.0 Ethics  3  GEE -2 The Entrepreneurial 

Mindset and Innovative 
Thinking 

3 

T-103 Contemporary Moral 
Issues 

3  COMM-117 Integrated Marketing 
Communication  

3 

COMM-112 
COM 113 

Television Production/ 
Radio Production  

3  COMM -112/ 
COMM-113 

Television Production/ 
Radio Production  

3 

COMM-104 Communication Research  3  COMM-115.1 Research Writing 1  3 
COMM-108 Communication for 

Development  
3  COMM-106 Communication Planning  3 

COMM-132/ 
133/ 134/ 135 

Digital Media Production 
Required Electives   

3  COMM-132/ 
133/ 134/ 135 

Digital Media Production 
Required Electives   

3 

GEE-1 Local Knowledge and    
Ethnoecology 

3      

 Total 21   Total 18 

Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course Code Course Title Units  Course Code Course Title Units 
LWR-1.0 Life and Works of Rizal  3  RPH-1.0 Readings in Philippine 

History  
3 

T-104 Theology of Social Justice 
and Peace 

3  COMM-105 Communication Media Laws 
and Ethics  

3 

COMM-107 Communication 
Management and 
Entrepreneurship  

3  COMM-110 Knowledge Management  3 

COMM-115.2 Research Writing 2  3  GEE-3  Gender Relations, Human 
Rights and Peace  

3 

COMM-109 Risk, Disaster, and 
Humanitarian 
Communication  

3  COMM-135 
COMM-132/ 
133/ 134/ 135 

Digital Media Production 
Required Electives   

3 

COMM-132/ 
133/ 134/ 135 

Digital Media Production 
Required Electives   

3  LIT-2.0 Third World Literature 3 

 Total  18   Total  18 
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COURSE DESCRIPTIONS  

COMM-101 INTRODUCTION TO COMMUNICATION MEDIA (3 UNITS) 

This course is designed to provide students with knowledge of the basic processes of interpersonal, group, and mass 
communication (e.g., print, broadcast, and other specialized media). The importance and role of communication in 
present day Philippine situation, as well as the communication trends and systems in other countries, are discussed. 
The utilization of mass media in the development process is also emphasized in this course.  

COMM-102 THEORIES OF COMMUNICATION (3 UNITS)                                                  Prerequisite: COMM-101 
 
This course introduces the student to the multi-disciplinary nature of the theories of communication and their 
applications in interpersonal, group, organizational, intercultural and mass communication situations.  

COMM-103 COMMUNICATION CULTURE AND SOCIETY (3 UNITS)                               Prerequisite: COMM-101  
 
Existing and emerging global and national communication media landscape. The role of communication and culture in 
society with emphasis on the issues in the Philippine setting, including rights and responsibilities of communicators. 

COMM-104 COMMUNICATION RESEARCH (3 UNITS)                              Prerequisites: COMM-101 & COMM-102  
 
This course orients students on the principles and practical applications of various research methods in the major areas 
of communication, with special reference to Philippine communication problems.  

COMM-105 COMMUNICATION MEDIA LAWS AND ETHICS (3 UNITS)  

This course strengthens the sense of moral obligation and responsibility of students as aspiring media practitioners. It 
provides essential information about how media laws are made and applied to the professional world. This subject 
aims to guide students in discerning what is ethical, what is legal, and what is moral in the practice of their profession, 
especially in journalism, broadcasting, advertising, public relations, and corporate communication.  

COMM-106 COMMUNICATION PLANNING  

Principles and strategies on how to develop an evidence-based and results-oriented communication campaign plan. It 
covers the planning process, elements of a communication plan, and measuring effects and impacts. The campaign 
may refer to public information and education, advocacy, social mobilization, and similar communication-related 
programs.  

COMM-107 COMMUNICATION MANAGEMENT & ENTREPRENEURSHIP (3 UNITS)  

This course deals with organizational principles and practices related to the management of communication functions. 
The emphasis is on the management of human, financial, material, and information resources.  

This course will also allow the students to manage media enterprises, such as production and publishing houses, 
design studios, and other entrepreneurial fields. 
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MIDYEAR 
Course Code Course Title Units 
COMM-114 Internship 3 

 Total 3 

 

 

Third Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

ETH-1.0 Ethics  3  FELECT-2 Free Elective 2  3 
T-103 Contemporary Moral 

Issues 
3  GEE 2-  The Entrepreneurial Mindset 

and Innovative Thinking 
3 

GEE-1 Local Knowledge and 
Ethnoecology 

3     

FELECT-1  Free Elective 1  3  COMM-117 Integrated Marketing 
Communication  

3 

COMM-112/  
COMM 113 

Television Production/ 
Radio Production  

3  COMM-112 / 
COMM-113 

Television Production/ 
Radio Production  

3 

COMM-104 Communication 
Research  

3  COMM-115.1 Research Writing 1  3 

COMM-108 Communication for 
Development  

3  COMM-106 Communication Planning 3 

 Total  21      
     Total 18 

Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

LWR-1.0 Life and Works of 
Rizal  

3  RPH-1.0 Readings in Philippine 
History  

3 

T-104 Theology of Social 
Justice and Peace 

3  GEE-3  Gender Relations, Human 
Rights and Peace 

3 

FELECT-3 Free Elective 3 3  FELECT-4 Free Elective 4  3 
COMM-107 Communication 

Management and 
Entrepreneurship  

3  COMM-105 Communication Media 
Laws and Ethics  

3 

COMM-115.2 Research Writing 2  3  COMM-110 Knowledge Management  3 
COMM-109 Risk, Disaster, and 

Humanitarian 
Communication  

3  LIT-2.0 Third World Literature 3 

 Total  18   Total  18 
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COMM-108 COMMUNICATION FOR DEVELOPMENT (3 UNITS)  

An interdisciplinary course which seeks to examine the phenomenon of communication for development; the theories, 
concepts, approaches, and methodologies utilized by various agencies involved in the process of development and 
promotion of change, through communication. It seeks to study the basic communication policies and strategies related 
to the modernization and national development of Third World countries. The production of a community’s 
Communication for Development Plan is a requirement of the course.  

COMM-109 RISK, DISASTER AND HUMANITARIAN COMMUNICATION  

The process communication effectively with valuable stakeholders prior to, during, and after the onset of risk situations. 
It also seeks to familiarize students with communication strategies used in humanitarian aid operations, which 
contribute to the protection of people and property in times of disasters or emergencies.  

COMM-110 KNOWLEDGE MANAGEMENT   

Principles, process, and strategies of identifying, capturing, analyzing, storing and sharing knowledge within an 
organization. These elements are facilitated by the use of Information Communication Technology (ICT). 

COMM-111 JOURNALISM PRINCIPLES AND PRACTICES (3 UNITS)    Prerequisite: COMM-101  
 
This course focuses on the principles and practices of journalism, which involves a discussion of the functions of the 
newspaper: the sequence of news, news gathering and reporting, publication, editorial policies and standards, etc. The 
emphasis of the course is on Philippine journalism applied to print, online, and broadcast media.  

COMM-112 TELEVISION PRODUCTION (3 UNITS)      Prerequisite: COMM-101  
 
This course is concerned with the understanding of the nature of television as a medium of communication, and its 
production techniques and processes. Students are given the chance to study various program types and to produce 
these programs.  

COMM-113 RADIO PRODUCTION (3 UNITS)        Prerequisite: COMM-101 & COMM-102  
 
COMM-113 is an integration of the fundamentals of radio scriptwriting, production procedures, and techniques. 
Students are exposed to various radio program-types and are given the chance to conceptualize, plan, and produce 
these programs. 

COMM-114   INTERNSHIP (3 UNITS)        Prerequisites: All major subjects from 1st-3rd year must be completed  
 

This course is a summer training program that requires a minimum of 200 hours of work in different areas of 
communication, such as advertising, public relations, communication research, radio, television, film, theatre, 
journalism, and others. It enables the students to learn and apply communication theories and principles in actual 
supervised fieldwork.  
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COMM-115.1/COMM-115.2   RESEARCH WRITING I & II (3 UNITS EACH) 
Prerequisites for COMM-115.1: COMM-102 & COMM-104  
Prerequisite for COMM-115.2:  COMM-115.1  
 
These courses allow the students to work on an original study that deals with specific problems in communication, 
while properly guided by a research coordinator and adviser. A research paper is to be presented, defended, and 
passed before a panel of experts, prior to and as a requirement for graduation.  

COMM-116 GENDER AND COMMUNICATION (3 UNITS)  

This course provides the students with a critical examination of the state of Philippine media, specifically its discourses 
on women and men. The course helps students to critically analyze the root cause of gender inequalities, the 
persistence of concepts and ideas that perpetuate such inequalities, and the interrelationships of sex-role stereotyping 
and its translation into social institutions, like media.  

COMM-117 INTEGRATED MARKETING COMMUNICATION (3 UNITS) 
Prerequisite: COMM-101 & COMM-102  
 
The strategic blend of public relations, advertising, online marketing, promotions, personal selling and events 
management to create a unified and consistent message for products, services, and social ideas.  

COMM-118 ADVERTISING PRINCIPLES AND PRACTICES (3 UNITS)  
Prerequisite: COMM-101 & COMM-102  
 
This course is a detailed study of the theory and practice of advertising. The preparation and implementation of 
concepts to media discourse are comprehensively discussed and taught in this course. Students are given the 
opportunity to prepare workable advertising programs.  

COMM-119 PUBLIC RELATIONS: PRINCIPLES AND PRACTICE (3 UNITS)  
Prerequisite: COMM-101 & COMM-102  
 
This course is an introduction to the basic concepts, principles, and practices of public relations and its applications to 
education, government, business and industry, and other institutions. Practical applications to cases drawn from the 
context of Philippine public relations are discussed. The course also includes the application of communication theories 
to public relations, and the orientation on the role of public relations person as a change-agent. 

COMM-120 THEATER ARTS: THEORY AND APPRECIATION (3 UNITS)  

This course focuses on the fundamentals of the art of drama onstage, with emphasis on acting, directing, and 
production design. It aims to develop in the student an appreciation of the performing self and the universality of human 
experience, through the student’s actual participation in the major phases of stage production.  

COMM-121 EFFECTIVE PRESENTATION & MULTI-MEDIA TECHNIQUES (3 UNITS)  

This course is a study of speech proficiency and effective oral communication methods that would improve the student’s 
presentation skills with special emphasis on the use of various appropriate media in situations and contexts, such as 
education, government, business and industry, and civil society. It teaches the student how to use high-touch and high-
tech tools in an enabling environment.  
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COMM-130 FOUNDATIONS OF EVENTS COMMUNICATION AND EVENTS MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS)  

The course will highlight the synergy in creative conceptualization and execution of events communication and 
management with other tools of marketing communication such as advertising, public relations, among others. The 
course will cover the foundation principles and concepts of mounting and communicating an event from the planning 
stage to the post-evaluation stage. Having an event communication plan as its final requirement, the student will go 
through the rudiments of events communication and management.  

COMM-131 MUSIC IN MEDIA (5 UNITS)  

The course focuses on basic music writing methods and application of MIDI (Music Instrument Digital Interface) 
technology. It will provide the students with an opportunity to create their own music through the use of computers, 
music software, and other hardware. The course will highlight the different concepts and processes of musical 
innovation and invention. 

MINOR IN DIGITAL MEDIA PRODUCTION (12 UNITS) 

COMM -132 DIGITAL IMAGING (3 UNITS) 

The course is a detailed study of the concepts and techniques applicable to digital imaging, more specifically in the 
areas of photography and illustration. In order to expose students to the digital imaging workflow, students are to shoot 
photos using a Digital SLR Cameras and edit them using Adobe Photoshop software package. Illustration will be done 
using Adobe Illustrator. Course outputs are designed to simulate actual work for the fields of Graphic Print Production, 
Advertising, Public Relations, Internet, Film and Television, and Fine Arts.  

COMM-133 DIGITAL SOUND PRODUCTION (3 UNITS) 

This course is a complete study of Digital Sound in theory and practice. It will expose students to the fundamentals of 
sound engineering, recoding, and production utilizing multi-track digital studio workstations. By using Pro-Tools and 
other applicable audio software and hardware, students will produce various sound projects that will cater to the needs 
of music producers, advertisers, public relations practitioners, internet content creator and the broadcast media 
companies. 

COMM-134 DIGITAL FILMMAKING (3 UNITS)  

This course is a technical study of Digital Filmmaking. Students are to be exposed to the independent work flow of, 
and technologies available for filmmaking. Students are to plan, shoot and edit their films on 24 P digital video and 
Apple Final Cut or Adobe Premiere equipped workstations. 

COMM-135 WEB DESIGN (3 UNITS) 

This course is a comprehensive study of the theories and techniques for Web Design. Students are to Design websites 
featuring advanced interface design and multimedia integration using Macromedia Dreamweaver or Adobe Go Live, 
with special emphasis given on establishing a solid foundation on HTML (Hypertext Markup Language) coding. Projects 
will be suited for the process of information dissemination and e-commerce applications.  
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COMM-122 FILM THEORY AND PRACTICE (3 UNITS)  

This is an introductory course on film, in which film theories and film history are studied. The students are introduced 
to the language and grammar of film and are given the chance to apply the acquired knowledge through a final 
production output. Given the existing facilities of the school, the course provides hands-on training, where editing and 
directing techniques are taken up.  

ELECTIVES: 

COMM-123 PRINCIPLES OF COPYWRITING (3 UNITS)  

This course is a detailed study of the creative process and strategies of advertising, leading towards the preparation of 
print copy, radio commercial scripts, storyboards for television commercials, and multi-media campaigns. Students are 
taught to produce correct, effective and interesting creative materials for advertising, specifically within the Philippine 
context. 

COMM-124 PLAYWRITING (3 UNITS) 

This course is a study on the rudiments of playwriting. Conception of ideas and story-structure are emphasized. At the 
end of the semester, a dramatic reading of the one-act plays will be performed in class. 

COMM 125 WRITING FOR FILM (3 UNITS) 

This course is a study on screenwriting for films of various lengths (shorts and features), genres (such as melodrama, 
comedy, and horror) and forms (such as documentary and experimental). Students are guided step-by-step in turning 
their original ideas into screenplays. Style, story- structure, characterization, dramatization, dialogue, and other areas 
of practical screenwriting are emphasized.  

COMM-126 WRITING FOR TELEVISION (3 UNITS) 

This course is a study of the rudiments of writing for all aspects of a television production show (news, drama, comedy, 
variety and documentary). The objective of the course is to come up with scripts meant for television, from 
conceptualization to production. 

COMM-127 WRITING FOR RADIO (3 UNITS) 

This course is a study of the rudiments of writing for radio. The scripts will encompass all the aspects of radio 
production, from conceptualization to actual production. The scripts will cover all types of radio programs (talk show, 
music, drama, documentary, etc.) 

COMM-128 SEMINAR ON AUDIO AND VIDEO POST PRODUCTION (3 UNITS)  

This course is a study on the art of post-production. The language and meaning of editing for audio and video will be 
discussed. Students will be exposed to the different audio and video editing styles and techniques of different editors. 
Students will also be challenged to produce their own video projects using non-linear audio and video editing. 

COMM-129 AESTHETICS AND VISUAL COMMUNICATION (3 UNITS)  

This course is a study on visual literacy, symbol development, and evolution of meaning in symbols. The students will 
be guided through the different levels of interpretation of imagery and pictures. The students will apply these different 
theories of visual literacy in creating and developing effective and aesthetically viable communication and design.  
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COMM-130 FOUNDATIONS OF EVENTS COMMUNICATION AND EVENTS MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS)  

The course will highlight the synergy in creative conceptualization and execution of events communication and 
management with other tools of marketing communication such as advertising, public relations, among others. The 
course will cover the foundation principles and concepts of mounting and communicating an event from the planning 
stage to the post-evaluation stage. Having an event communication plan as its final requirement, the student will go 
through the rudiments of events communication and management.  

COMM-131 MUSIC IN MEDIA (5 UNITS)  

The course focuses on basic music writing methods and application of MIDI (Music Instrument Digital Interface) 
technology. It will provide the students with an opportunity to create their own music through the use of computers, 
music software, and other hardware. The course will highlight the different concepts and processes of musical 
innovation and invention. 

MINOR IN DIGITAL MEDIA PRODUCTION (12 UNITS) 

COMM -132 DIGITAL IMAGING (3 UNITS) 

The course is a detailed study of the concepts and techniques applicable to digital imaging, more specifically in the 
areas of photography and illustration. In order to expose students to the digital imaging workflow, students are to shoot 
photos using a Digital SLR Cameras and edit them using Adobe Photoshop software package. Illustration will be done 
using Adobe Illustrator. Course outputs are designed to simulate actual work for the fields of Graphic Print Production, 
Advertising, Public Relations, Internet, Film and Television, and Fine Arts.  

COMM-133 DIGITAL SOUND PRODUCTION (3 UNITS) 

This course is a complete study of Digital Sound in theory and practice. It will expose students to the fundamentals of 
sound engineering, recoding, and production utilizing multi-track digital studio workstations. By using Pro-Tools and 
other applicable audio software and hardware, students will produce various sound projects that will cater to the needs 
of music producers, advertisers, public relations practitioners, internet content creator and the broadcast media 
companies. 

COMM-134 DIGITAL FILMMAKING (3 UNITS)  

This course is a technical study of Digital Filmmaking. Students are to be exposed to the independent work flow of, 
and technologies available for filmmaking. Students are to plan, shoot and edit their films on 24 P digital video and 
Apple Final Cut or Adobe Premiere equipped workstations. 

COMM-135 WEB DESIGN (3 UNITS) 

This course is a comprehensive study of the theories and techniques for Web Design. Students are to Design websites 
featuring advanced interface design and multimedia integration using Macromedia Dreamweaver or Adobe Go Live, 
with special emphasis given on establishing a solid foundation on HTML (Hypertext Markup Language) coding. Projects 
will be suited for the process of information dissemination and e-commerce applications.  
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COMM-130 FOUNDATIONS OF EVENTS COMMUNICATION AND EVENTS MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS)  

The course will highlight the synergy in creative conceptualization and execution of events communication and 
management with other tools of marketing communication such as advertising, public relations, among others. The 
course will cover the foundation principles and concepts of mounting and communicating an event from the planning 
stage to the post-evaluation stage. Having an event communication plan as its final requirement, the student will go 
through the rudiments of events communication and management.  

COMM-131 MUSIC IN MEDIA (5 UNITS)  

The course focuses on basic music writing methods and application of MIDI (Music Instrument Digital Interface) 
technology. It will provide the students with an opportunity to create their own music through the use of computers, 
music software, and other hardware. The course will highlight the different concepts and processes of musical 
innovation and invention. 

MINOR IN DIGITAL MEDIA PRODUCTION (12 UNITS) 

COMM -132 DIGITAL IMAGING (3 UNITS) 

The course is a detailed study of the concepts and techniques applicable to digital imaging, more specifically in the 
areas of photography and illustration. In order to expose students to the digital imaging workflow, students are to shoot 
photos using a Digital SLR Cameras and edit them using Adobe Photoshop software package. Illustration will be done 
using Adobe Illustrator. Course outputs are designed to simulate actual work for the fields of Graphic Print Production, 
Advertising, Public Relations, Internet, Film and Television, and Fine Arts.  

COMM-133 DIGITAL SOUND PRODUCTION (3 UNITS) 

This course is a complete study of Digital Sound in theory and practice. It will expose students to the fundamentals of 
sound engineering, recoding, and production utilizing multi-track digital studio workstations. By using Pro-Tools and 
other applicable audio software and hardware, students will produce various sound projects that will cater to the needs 
of music producers, advertisers, public relations practitioners, internet content creator and the broadcast media 
companies. 

COMM-134 DIGITAL FILMMAKING (3 UNITS)  

This course is a technical study of Digital Filmmaking. Students are to be exposed to the independent work flow of, 
and technologies available for filmmaking. Students are to plan, shoot and edit their films on 24 P digital video and 
Apple Final Cut or Adobe Premiere equipped workstations. 

COMM-135 WEB DESIGN (3 UNITS) 

This course is a comprehensive study of the theories and techniques for Web Design. Students are to design websites 
featuring advanced interface design and multimedia integration using Macromedia Dreamweaver or Adobe Go Live, 
with special emphasis given on establishing a solid foundation on HTML (Hypertext Markup Language) coding. Projects 
will be suited for the process of information dissemination and e-commerce applications.  
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BACHELOR OF ARTS IN INTERNATIONAL STUDIES  
 

Major in International Politics and Peace Studies 
This focuses on the analysis of power dynamics and geopolitics in 
the international community as well as of the global and regional 
institutions and mechanisms arising from these. This is primarily 
concerned with a critical understanding of approaches to peace and 
human security, war and conflict, combined with perspectives on 
peace education and processes on conflict resolution and 
mediation. 
 

Major in Global Development and Gender Studies 
This focuses on the analysis of issues of poverty and unequal 
development as well as the global and regional institutions and 
mechanisms arising from these. This is primarily concerned with an 
understanding of gender equality and human well‐being, combined 
with a special focus on gender and equality as a critical practice in 
poverty studies and development processes.  
 
Description: The Bachelor of Arts in International Studies is a 
comprehensive inter‐disciplinary program that provides students 
with the global perspectives, theories and tools to understand 
historical and contemporary political, economic, social and cultural 
changes affecting the country, Asian region and the world. 
 
Program Outcomes: The Bachelor of Arts in International Studies 
is designed to develop students who are academically and 
technically competent to become catalysts of national and global 
social change.  Students possess competencies in leadership, 
investigation and integrative analysis of complex ideas, sensitivity 
to cultural and power dynamics, foreign language proficiency, negotiation and diplomacy as well as skills on advocacy, 
facilitation and coordination.   
  
Program Goals: The Bachelor of Arts in International Studies leads to professional careers in diplomatic and consular 
affairs, government, international and regional development agencies. It also allows students to pursue further studies 
in law, economics, international development and public policy. 
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Major in International Politics and Peace Studies 
Curriculum for SY 2018-2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

First Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

PCOM -1.0 Purposive Communication 3 TCW – 1.0 The Contemporary World 3 
ARTA - 1.0 Art Appreciation 3 LWR – 1.0 Life and Works of Rizal 3 
UTS – 1.0 Understanding the Self 3 BAIS-102 Philippine Society and Culture 3 

RPH – 1.0 Readings in Philippine History 3 BAIS-103 Philippine Constitution and 
Political Systems 3 

T-101 Biblical Foundation of Christian 
Faith 3 BAIS-104 World History I:  Asian 

Civilization 3 

BAIS-101 Theories and Perspectives in 
International Studies 3 FL 102 Foreign Language 2 3 

FL-101 Foreign Language 1 3 
NSTP-1.1 
 

National Service Training 
Program (NSTP I) 3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness I 2 

PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards Health 
and Fitness II 2 

MC-101 MC Culture, Identity and Social 
Responsibility 1 1 MC-102 MC Culture, Identity and Social 

Responsibility 2 1 

 Total  24   Total  24 

MIDYEAR TERM 
Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

NSTP-2.1 National Service Training Program 
(NSTP II) 

3 

 Total  3 
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Second Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

STS – 1.0 Science, Technology and 
Society 3 ETH – 1.0 Ethics 3 

MMW - 1.0 Mathematics in the Modern 
World 3 BAIS-107 Feminist Perspectives on 

Politics and Development 3 

BAIS-105 World History II:  Western 
Civilization 3 BAIS-108 Peace Studies and Social 

Movements 3 

BAIS-106 International Economics & the 
Global Economy 3 BAIS-109 Development Theories and 

Practices 3 

LIT 1.0 Great Books 3 BAIS-110 International Relations and 
Global Cooperation 3 

T-102.1 Theology of Mission,        
Communion and Service 3 BAIS-111 Comparative Social and 

Political Philosophies  3 

PATHF-3.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness III 2 FL-104 Foreign Language 4 3 

FL-103 Foreign Language 3 3 PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness IV 2 

 Total  23   Total  23 

Third Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

BAIS-112 Public International Law 3 BAIS-118 Philippine Foreign Affairs 3 
BAIS-113 Statistics for Social Scientists 3 BAIS-119 Research Methods I 3 

BAIS-114 
Seminar Course on 
International Peace, 
Development and Security 

3 IPPS – 103 Comparative Peace Processes 
and Peace Building 3 

IPPS – 101 
Theorizing Approaches to 
Violence  Prevention and 
Conflict Transformation 

3 IPPS - 104 Gender, Peace and the Law 3 

IPPS - 102 New Regionalisms 3 LIT 2.0 Third World Literature 3 

BAIS-115 Development Economics 3 GEE-1 Local Knowledge and 
Ethnoecology 3 

BAIS-116 Comparative Political Analysis  3 BAIS-120 Seminar Course on Diplomatic 
and Consular Practices 3 

BAIS-117  Global Governance and 
Leadership 3    

 Total  24   Total  21 
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MIDYEAR TERM 
Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

BAIS-121 Practicum/ International Exchange 
Program  3 

 Total  3 

Fourth Year 
 

FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 
Course  
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

BAIS-122 Research Methods II 3 T-104 Theology of Social Justice 
and Peace 3 

BAIS-123 Comparative Foreign 
Policies of Selected States 3 GEE-3 Gender Relations, Human 

Rights and Peace 3 

IPPS – 105 Ethics of Global Citizenship 3 BAIS-124 Effective Communication in 
International Studies 3 

GEE-2 The Entrepreneurial 
Mindset and Innovative 
Thinking 

3 IPPS - 107 
Colloquium on 
Contemporary Peace and 
Security Issues 

3 

IPPS - 106 Peace Advocacy & Non-
Violent Social Change 3    

T-103 Contemporary Moral 
Issues 3    

      
 Total  18  Total  12 
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Major in Global Development and Gender Studies 
Curriculum for SY 2018-2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

First Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

PCOM -1.0 Purposive Communication 3 TCW – 1.0 The Contemporary World 3 
ARTA - 1.0 Art Appreciation 3 LWR – 1.0 Life and Works of Rizal 3 
UTS – 1.0 Understanding the Self 3 BAIS-102 Philippine Society and Culture 3 

RPH – 1.0 Readings in Philippine 
History 3 BAIS-103 Philippine Constitution and 

Political Systems 3 

T-101 Biblical Foundation of 
Christian Faith 3 BAIS-104 World History I:  Asian 

Civilization 3 

BAIS-101 Theories and Perspectives 
in International Studies 3 FL-102 Foreign Language 2 3 

FL-101 Foreign Language 1 3 
NSTP-1.1 
 

National Service Training 
Program (NSTP I) 3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness I 2 

PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness II 2 

MC-101 MC Culture, Identity and 
Social Responsibility 1 1 MC-102 MC Culture, Identity and 

Social Responsibility 2 1 

 Total  24   Total  24 

MIDYEAR TERM 
Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

NSTP-2.1 National Service Training Program 
(NSTP II) 

3 

 Total  3 
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Second Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

STS – 1.0 Science, Technology and Society 3 ETH – 1.0 Ethics 3 

MMW - 1.0 Mathematics in the Modern World 3 BAIS-107 Feminist Perspectives on 
Politics and Development 3 

BAIS-105 World History II:  Western 
Civilization 3 BAIS-108 Peace Studies and Social 

Movements 3 

BAIS-106 International Economics & the 
Global Economy 3 BAIS-109 Development Theories and 

Practices 3 

LIT 1.0 Great Books 3 BAIS-110 International Relations and 
Global Cooperation 3 

T-102.1 Theology of Mission, Communion 
and Service 3 BAIS-111 Comparative Social and 

Political Philosophies  3 

PATHF-3.0 Physical Activity Towards Health 
and Fitness III 2 FL-104 Foreign Language 4 3 

FL-103 Foreign Language 3 3 PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness IV 2 

      
 Total  23   Total  23 

Third Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course  
Code 

Course Title Units 

BAIS-112 Public International Law 3 BAIS-118 Philippine Foreign Affairs 3 
BAIS-113 Statistics for Social Scientists 3 BAIS-119 Research Methods I 3 

BAIS-114 
Seminar Course on 
International Peace, 
Development and Security 

3 GDGS-103 Gender, Justice and Human 
Rights 3 

GDGS-101 Gender Analysis for 
Development 3 GDGS-104 The Politics of Financing 

Development 3 

GDGS-102 Gender, Power & Language 3 LIT 2.0 Third World Literature 3 

BAIS-115 Development Economics 3 BAIS-120 
Seminar Course on  
Diplomatic and Consular 
Practices 

3 

BAIS-116 Comparative Political Analysis  3 GEE-1  Local Knowledge and 
Ethnoecology 3 

BAIS-117  Global Governance and 
Leadership 3    

Total  
 

21 
 Total  24    
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COUSE DESCRIPTIONS  

BAIS-101 THEORIES AND PERSPECTIVES IN INTERNATIONAL STUDIES (3 UNITS)  

This course examines the analytical, conceptual and ideological foundations of international relations. It seeks to 
understand state and inter-state behavior and how it shapes global politics at the system, state, organizational, and 
individual levels.  
 

BAIS-102 PHILIPPINE SOCIETY AND CULTURE (3 UNITS)                                                  Prerequisite: RPH-1.0 

This course surveys socio-cultural theories and their application on how the Philippines is imagined and represented 
in texts and cultural practices.  It highlights the Filipinos’ construction of their national identity in the context of 
economic regionalism and globalization. 

BAIS-103 PHILIPPINE CONSTITUTION AND POLITICAL SYSTEMS (3 UNITS)  

This course is a study of the development, organization and operation of the Philippine political system, including its 
foreign affairs, and the Constitution. 

 

MIDYEAR TERM 
Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

BAIS-121 Practicum/ International Exchange 
Program 3 

 Total  3 

Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units 

BAIS-122 Research Methods II 3 T-104 Theology of Social Justice 
and Peace 3 

BAIS-123 Comparative Foreign 
Policies of Selected States 3 BAIS-124 Effective Communication in 

International Studies 3 

GDGS-105 Development Planning and 
Management 3 GEE-3 Gender Relations, Human 

Rights and Peace 3 

GDGS-106 Governance, Development 
and Civil Society 3 GDGS-107 

Colloquium on 
Contemporary Gender and 
Development Issues 

3 

GEE-2 
The Entrepreneurial 
Mindset and Innovative 
Thinking 

3    

T-103 Contemporary Moral 
Issues 

3    

 Total  18  Total  12 
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BAIS-104 WORLD HISTORY 1: ASIAN CIVILIZATION (3 UNITS)  

This course is a historical and comparative examination of knowledge systems, cultural, philosophical and political 
traditions of Asian Civilizations, including Chinese, Indian and Islamic traditions, and their intersections with Western 
and Modern philosophies. It gives particular focus on the diverse value systems that arose in this geographical area, 
its intersections while also introducing current scholarship in the field. 

BAIS-105 WORLD HISTORY II: WESTERN CIVILIZATION (3 UNITS) 

This course is a critical analysis of the historical, cultural, and philosophical foundation of western political thinking 
and value systems in relation to modern-day politics and governance, with particular emphasis on current 
scholarships relating to their intersections with eastern philosophical traditions. 

BAIS-106 INTERNATIONAL ECONOMICS AND THE GLOBAL ECONOMY (3 UNITS) 

This course provides an analysis of the economic relationships between countries, pertaining to trade and financial 
issues. It seeks to expose the students to both the theoretical foundations and policy dimensions of international 
trade and international financial flows. It also covers fundamental topics in monetary and financial economics to 
understand the role of regional and global crises in shaping the current global economic order. 

 
 BAIS -107  FEMINIST PERSPECTIVES ON POLITICS AND DEVELOPMENT (3 UNITS)  

This course critically examines gender systems and how they are intricately linked with other social factors (e.g.. 
class, ethnicity, culture) in shaping people’s lives and structuring power relations between social groups. It 
introduces students to feminist theorizations of institutions and practices crucial in the processes of governance, 
development, and social change. It will focus on the production and location of feminist knowledge within these 
institutions and practices, as well as within collective actions and strategies of change and social transformation. 

BAIS-108 PEACE STUDIES AND SOCIAL MOVEMENTS (3 UNITS) 

 This course introduces theories and philosophical foundations of peace studies and its intersection with social 
movements for global development and change. 

 BAIS-109 DEVELOPMENT THEORIES AND PRACTICES (3 UNITS)  

This course surveys competing or complementing development theories and its translations to development 
policy and programs, paying attention to how these shape the socioeconomic contours of developing/emerging 
economies and their interactions with developed/ economically advanced countries. 
 
BAIS-110 INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS AND GLOBAL COOPERATION (3 UNITS)  

This course gives students an introduction to the basic concepts, theories, and principles of international 
relations and cooperation.  It examines a range of relevant historical and contemporary topics and issues 
through which students will be able to understand the behavior of states, institutions, organizations, and other 
actors in the context of an international system or playing field. The subject also addresses ways by which 
international players move towards addressing global peace and security. 

   

BAIS-111 COMPARATIVE SOCIAL AND POLITICAL PHILOSOPHIES (3 UNITS)  Prerequisite: BAIS-105 

This course covers political philosophy and social theory from classical Western traditions and contemporary 
Asian perspectives. It examines norms and principles that justify the existence of societies, establish rights and 
responsibilities of members to each other and application to democracy, justice, equality and social change. 
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BAIS-112 PUBLIC INTERNATIONAL LAW (3 UNITS) 

This course focuses on the legal obligations, duties, and relationships among states as sovereigns and 
international bodies in the international/global system, including a survey of the core UN and non-UN 
international treaties and conventions. 

 
BAIS-113 STATISTICS FOR SOCIAL SCIENTISTS (3 UNITS) 

This course introduces students to statistics as a tool for analysis of social science data. This covers descriptive 
statistics, inference from samples, hypothesis testing and the basics of regression analysis.  

   BAIS-114 SEMINAR COURSE ON INTERNATIONAL PEACE, DEVELOPMENT AND SECURITY (3 UNITS) 

The course examines the nexus of peace, development and security and how this affects our contemporary 
discourse on peacebuilding, sustainable development, human security, conflict resolution, international security 
and global governance.   

  BAIS-115 DEVELOPMENT ECONOMICS (3 UNITS)  

This course introduces different models of growth and development from the lens of emerging and 
economically advanced economies in the context of the globalizing world. At the same time, it looks at the 
impact of economic policymaking and governance on the long-term prospects of a nation and its people.  

  

BAIS-116 COMPARATIVE POLITICAL ANALYSIS (3 UNITS)                                        Prerequisite: BAIS-111 

This course introduces the core ideas and methods of comparative politics. It focuses on the comparison of post-
communist states and the differences between the region and other parts of the world (Western Europe, Africa, 
Latin America). The course considers some key themes in social and political science such as the state, 
democracy, political institutions, political culture and participation. 

  BAIS-117 GLOBAL GOVERNANCE AND LEADERSHIP (3 UNITS)  

This course builds on the student’s understanding of the complex relations of international politics by focusing on 
key international/regional organizations and institutions. It highlights the emergence, structure and processes of 
these institutional dynamics and their contribution to a changing global politics. Within these contexts women’s 
leadership, as a strategic expression of gender equality, women’s empowerment and social change, is explored. 

 

  BAIS – 118 PHILIPPINE FOREIGN AFFAIRS (3 UNITS)           Prerequisites: BAIS-103 & BAIS-110 
 

This course examines foreign policy as a tool in international relations to address national, regional and global 
issues. Specifically, it presents a comprehensive approach to the conduct of Philippine foreign affairs and how the 
Philippine foreign policy is determined, formulated and implemented. 
 

BAIS-119 RESEARCH METHODS 1 (3 UNITS)              Prerequisite: BAIS-113 

Focused on quantitative and qualitative research methodologies, this course prepares students to successfully 
defend a thesis proposal related to International Politics and Peace Studies or Global Development and Gender 
Studies.   

BAIS-120 SEMINAR COURSE ON CONSULAR AND DIPLOMATIC PRACTICES (3 UNITS) 

This seminar course introduces students to the world and art of diplomacy. Extensive consideration is placed around 
the historical evolution of diplomatic and consular practices and the cycle of work of diplomatic and consular agents, 
such as their appointment, functions, privileges and immunities, correspondence and protocols. 
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BAIS-121 PRACTICUM/ INTERNATIONAL EXCHANGE PROGRAM (3 UNITS)   
Pre-requisites: BAIS-120 & BAIS 119 
 

This course is an on-the- job training and hands-on application of student’s learning in internship posts such Model 
United Nations Program of the Far West, embassies and consular offices in Manila, UN agencies, government 
offices, international, national and local non-governmental organizations, and the like. A critical reflection process is 
adopted as a methodological approach to link theory and practice. 

BAIS-122 – RESEARCH METHODS II (3 UNITS)                                                                   Prerequisite: BAIS-119 

As a continuation of Research Methods 1, this course requires students to carry out their approved thesis proposal, 
undertake field work and data gathering, prepare the thesis draft and successfully defend it before a panel. 

BAIS-123 COMPARATIVE FOREIGN POLICIES OF SELECTED STATES (3 UNITS)         Prerequisite: BAIS-118 

The course analyzes from a comparative perspective the foreign policy decisions and behaviour of selected states 
from emerging economies and economically advanced economies and how these are shaped by national, regional 
and global contexts.  
 

BAIS-124 EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION IN INTERNATIONAL STUDIES (3 UNITS) 

This course develops the skills of students on the use of various media, including web-based technology, in 
advocacy and shaping public opinion using gender-fair, culturally sensitive and inclusive language in all forms of 
communication and documentation. 

 
 

MAJOR COURSES FOR INTERNATIONAL POLITICS AND PEACE STUDIES 
 

IPPS-101 THEORIZING APPROACHES TO VIOLENCE PREVENTION AND CONFLICT TRANSFORMATION 
(3 UNITS) 

 
This course examines the complexities of theories on conflicts and violence. It draws lessons from actual 
experiences in conflict management and peacebuilding initiatives of states, civil society and international 
organizations.  

IPPS-102 NEW REGIONALISMS (3 UNITS) 
 
This course examines approaches to regional integration and maps out significant actors and state and non-state 
processes to address inequities and imbalances in power relations across and within states. 
 
IPPS-103 COMPARATIVE PEACE PROCESSES AND PEACE BUILDING (3 UNITS) 
 
This course examines peace processes in post-conflict and societies in transition, looking at peacebuilding 
strategies, success factors, dilemmas and contradictions.  

 
IPPS-104 GENDER, PEACE AND THE LAW (3 UNITS) 
This course critically examines national and international laws and policies and their implications to gender, 
peace and security. 
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  IPPS-105 ETHICS OF GLOBAL CITIZENSHIP (3 UNITS) 

This course interrogates the concepts of ‘global citizenship’ in a globalizing world and how these concepts  
produce new political subjects and the ethical imperatives arising from this context. 

  IPPS-106 PEACE ADVOCACY AND SOCIAL CHANGE (3 UNITS) 

The course teaches advocacy as a tool for social change. It trains students to develop skills in public speaking, 
writing, organizing, lobbying, campaigning, fundraising, mobilizing and staging public actions.  

 IPPS-107 COLLOQUIUM ON CONTEMPORARY PEACE AND SECURITY ISSUES (3 UNITS) 

This course encourages students to apply critical analyses on contemporary issues and debates in human rights 
and security issues at the national, regional and international levels by conceptualizing and organizing seminars/ 
interactive dialogues among scholars on their chosen topics. 

MAJOR COURSES FOR GLOBAL DEVELOPMENT AND GENDER STUDIES 

GDGS-101 GENDER ANALYSIS FOR DEVELOPMENT (3 UNITS) 
 
This course looks at how feminist scholars have sought to reframe dominant development theories and practices. 
It critiques the binary logic of mainstream development and the complexities of articulating a rights-based 
approach to addressing social issues shaped by sex and gender orders. In this course students are also exposed 
to gender assessment and planning tools for inclusive and relevant development practice.  

 
GDGS-102 GENDER, POWER AND LANGUAGE (3 UNITS) 
 

This course familiarizes students in identifying the presence and absence of power inherent in language, and its 
implication to meaning making and the shaping of gender as a critical social practice. 

GDGS-103 GENDER, JUSTICE AND HUMAN RIGHTS (3 UNITS) 
 
The course examines the articulation of human rights instruments within historical, structural, and interactional 
contexts and evaluates these from women’s empowerment and gender equality perspectives. 

GDGS-104 THE POLITICS OF FINANCING DEVELOPMENT (3 UNITS) 

This course focuses on the politics in the generation, distribution and use of resources in development in the context 
of the politico-economic dynamics of Official Development Assistance (ODA) provision and implementation in 
international development cooperation. 

GDGS-105 DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS) 

This course equips students with skills in analyzing development policies, programs and projects vis-a-vis the 
opportunities, resources and constraints faced by organizations within the global development contexts. It includes 
an introduction to techniques and technologies for strategic leadership and management of development projects. 

GDGS-106 GOVERNANCE, DEVELOPMENT AND CIVIL SOCIETY (3 UNITS) 

This course examines the inter-linkages and dynamics among government, civil society and private sector in the 
pursuit of development from a combined framework of politico-economic and institutional analysis. 
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GDGS-107 COLLOQUIUM ON GENDER AND DEVELOPMENT ISSUES (3 UNITS) 

 

This course encourages students to apply critical analyses on contemporary issues and debates in gender and 
development at the national, regional and international levels by conceptualizing and organizing seminars/ 
interactive dialogues among scholars on their chosen topics. 

 

ELECTIVES 
(Open to non-IS Students) 

 
BAIS-102 PHILIPPINE SOCIETY AND CULTURE (3 UNITS) 

This course surveys socio-cultural theories and their application on how the Philippines is imagined and represented 
in texts and cultural practices.  It highlights the Filipinos’ construction of their national identity in the context of 
economic regionalism and globalization. 

BAIS-103 PHILIPPINE CONSTITUTION AND POLITICAL SYSTEMS (3 UNITS) 

This course is a study of the development, organization and operation of the Philippine political system, including its 
foreign affairs, and the Constitution. 

BAIS-107 FEMINIST PERSPECTIVES ON POLITICS AND DEVELOPMENT (3 UNITS) 

This course critically examines gender systems and how they are intricately linked with other social factors (e.g. 
class, ethnicity, culture) in shaping people’s lives and structuring power relations between social groups. It introduces 
students to feminist theorizations of institutions and practices crucial in the processes of governance, development, 
and social change. It will focus on the production and location of feminist knowledge within these institutions and 
practices, as well as within collective actions and strategies of change and social transformation. 

BAIS-108 PEACE STUDIES AND SOCIAL MOVEMENT (3 UNITS) 

This course introduces theories and philosophical foundations of peace studies and its intersection with social 
movements for global development and change. 

GDGS-102 GENDER, POWER AND LANGUAGE (3 UNITS) 
This course familiarizes students in identifying the presence and absence of power inherent in language, and its 
implication to meaning making and the shaping of gender as a critical social practice. 

IPPS-106 PEACE ADVOCACY AND SOCIAL CHANGE (3 UNITS) 
 

The course teaches advocacy as a tool for social change. It trains students to develop skills in public speaking, 
writing, organizing, lobbying, campaigning, fundraising, mobilizing and staging public actions.  
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BACHELOR OF ARTS IN PSYCHOLOGY 

Program Description: 
 
Psychology is the scientific study of behavior and mental 
processes. The emphasis of this discipline is to look into 
how the person’s mental processes and behavior are 
affected by internal, relational, and societal factors. 
Psychology as a discipline and as a professional practice 
aims to respond to the needs of the society in promoting 
optimal functioning and wellbeing at the levels of 
individual, family, group, organization, and the larger 
community through basic and applied research, 
education, and interventions.  
 
Program Goals: 
 
The Bachelor of Arts in Psychology program provides a 
solid basic knowledge and skills in Psychology. It serves 
as initial training for those who will pursue teaching, 
research, and practice of psychology. It also provides 
preparation for graduate studies in psychology and in 
other disciplines.  
  
A Graduate of BA Psychology could be a licensed 
psychometrician or work in the academe, in Human 
Resource (HR), and conduct researches. She is ready to 
pursue careers in law and management, among others.  
She can also pursue graduate studies in Psychology and 
further specialize in different areas of Psychology such 
as developmental, industrial/organizational, counseling, 
clinical, educational, and social psychology. She can 
take graduate studies at Miriam College Graduate 
School. 
 
 
Program Outcomes: 
 
This program provides opportunities for personal growth and development of optimal potentials of the students. It aims 
to engage the students in lifelong learning, equip them with skills in communication orally and in writing, and empower 
them to work effectively and ethically in multidisciplinary and multicultural settings, upholding the values of truth, justice, 
peace, and integrity of creation.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BA PSYCH CURRICULUM SUMMARY 2018-2019 

Courses No. of Units 

GENERAL EDUCATION      
ARTA-1.0      MMW-1.0       STS-1.0 
ETH-1.0         PCOM-1.0       TCW-1.0 
LWR-1.0        RPH-1.0           UTS-1.0 

27 

NATIONAL SERVICE TRAINING PROGRAM 
NSTP-1.1       NSTP-2.1 

6 

PHYSICAL EDUCATION 
PATH-1.0       PATH-3.0 
PATH-2.0       PATH-4.0 

8 

GENERAL EDUCATION ELECTIVES 
GEE-1       LIT-1.1 
GEE-2 
GEE-3 

12 

MC REQUIRED COURSES 
MC-101       MC-102 
T-101           T-103 
T-102.1         

11 

CORE COURSES 
PSYCH-101 
PSYCH-103 
PSYCH-106 

11 

PROFESSIONAL MAJOR COURSES 
PSYCH-102         PSYCH-109        PSYCH-114    PSYCH-119 
PSYCH-104         PSYCH-110        PSYCH-115    PSYCH-121 
PSYCH-105         PSYCH-111        PSYCH-116    PSYCH-121 
PSYCH-107         PSYCH-112        PSYCH-117  
PSYCH-108         PSYCH-113        PSYCH-118 

62 

INTERSHIP/PRACTICUM 
PSYCH-120 

3 

PSYCHOLOGY ELECTIVES 
PELECT-1 
PELECT-2 

6 

FOREIGN LANGUAGE ELECTIVES 
FL-101             FL-102 

6 

TOTAL 152 
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Graduates are able to: (CHED CMO 2017) 
 

1. Demonstrate the capability to discuss and analyze the major theories and concepts in psychology and situate 
them with the other social sciences. 

2. Demonstrate and apply the methods of psychological researches building knowledge on local culture and 
context. 

3. Demonstrate capability for self-reflection and independent learning in various professional contexts. 
4. Demonstrate the ability to conduct psychological assessment and evaluation. 
5. Demonstrate ability in human resource management and organizational analysis (e.g., Systems, application, 

and products). 
6. Demonstrate the ability to conduct basic psychosocial services (i.e., psychological first aid, mental health 

literacy, and group processing).  
 

 
Bachelor of Arts in Psychology 

Revised Curriculum for SY 2018-2019 
First Year 

FIRST SEMESTER  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECOND SEMESTER 
Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course Code Course Title Units 

PCOM -1.0 Purposive Communication 3 UTS – 1.0 Understanding the Self 3 

ARTA - 1.0  Art Appreciation 3 TCW – 1.0 The Contemporary World 3 

MMW - 1.0 Mathematics in the Modern 
World 3 PSYCH - 104 Developmental Psychology 3 

RPH – 1.0 Readings in Philippine History 3 PSYCH - 102 Theories of Personality 3 

PSYCH -101 Introduction to Psychology 3 PSYCH - 103 Frames of Mind in Social 
Sciences 3 

NSTP-1.1 
 

National Service Training 
Program (NSTP I) 3 T-101 Biblical Foundation of 

Christian Faith 3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness I 2 MC-102 MC Culture, Identity, and 

Social Responsibility II 1 

MC-101 MC Culture, Identity, and 
Social Responsibility I 1 PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 

Health and Fitness II 2 

 Total 21  Total 21 
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MIDYEAR TERM 

Course Code Course Title Units 

NSTP-2.1 National Service Training 
Program (NSTP II) 3 

 Total 3 

   

 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

 

   

   

Second Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  

 
SECOND SEMESTER 

Course Code Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

STS – 1.0 Science, Technology and 
Society 3 LWR – 1.0 Life and Works of Rizal 3 

PSYCH - 105 Cognitive-Behavioral 
Psychology 3 PSYCH - 108 Industrial/Organizational 

Psychology 3 

PSYCH - 106 Psychological Statistics 5 PSYCH - 109 Experimental Psychology 5 

PSYCH - 107 Biological Psychology 3 PSYCH - 110 Test and Measurement 3 

PATHF-3.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness III 2 T-102.1 Theology of Mission, 

Communion and Service 3 

 Total  16 PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness IV 2 

    Total 19 
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Third Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  

 
SECOND SEMESTER 

Course Code Course Title Units  Course Code Course Title Units 

PSYCH-111 Abnormal Psychology 3 ETH – 1.0 Ethics 3 

PSYCH-113 Field Methods in Psychology 5 PSYCH-116 Research In Psychology I 3 

PSYCH-114 Social Psychology 3 PSYCH - 117 
Introduction to Counseling 
and Psychotherapeutic 
Interventions 

5 

PSYCH-115 Psychological Assessment 5 PSYCH - 119 Training and Development 3 

GEE-1  Local Knowledge and 
Ethnoecology 3 T-103 Contemporary Moral Issues 3 

 Total 19 LIT-1.0 Great Books 3 

    
PSYCH-118 

 
Strategic Human Resource 
Management In Psychology 

 
3 

    Total 23 
 
 
 

MIDYEAR TERM 
Course Code Course Title Units 

PSYCH - 120 Practicum 
(minimum of 300 hours) 3 

 Total 3 
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Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course Code Course Title Units Course Code Course Title Units 

PSYCH-121 Research in Psychology II 3 T-104 Theology of Social Justice 
and Peace 

3 

PELECT - 2 Psychology Elective 2 3 LIT-2.0 Third World Literature 3 

FL-101 Foreign Language 1 3 FL-102 Foreign Language 2 3 

GEE-2  The Entrepreneurial Mindset 
and Innovative Thinking 3 GEE-3 Gender Relations, Human 

Rights and Peace     3 

 Total 12 PSYCH-122 Seminar in Psychometrics 3 

     Total 15 
 

Aside from eligibility to take the Psychometrician licensure exam and postgraduate studies, the students can proceed 
with the following: 

Major in Early Childhood Education  

*Those who wish to have a minor in early childhood education should take 12 units of the following. These subjects 
can be taken as part of electives and can be taken from the College of Education:  
1. Facilitating Learner-Centered Teaching  
2. Assessment in Learning 1 
3. Technology for teaching and learning 1 
4. The Teacher and the school curriculum 
5. Building and enhancing new literacies across the curriculum 
6. Foundation of Early Childhood Education 
 
Major in Human Resource Management  

*Those who wish to have a minor in early childhood education should take 15 units of the following. Three of these 
subjects are already in the curriculum. The additional subjects can be taken as part of electives:  
1. Industrial/Organizational Psychology 
2. Strategic Human Resource Management in Psychology 
3. Group Dynamics and Training 
4. Employee recruitment and selection 
5. Performance and rewards management 
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Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course Code Course Title Units Course Code Course Title Units 

PSYCH-121 Research in Psychology II 3 T-104 Theology of Social Justice 
and Peace 

3 

PELECT - 2 Psychology Elective 2 3 LIT-2.0 Third World Literature 3 

FL-101 Foreign Language 1 3 FL-102 Foreign Language 2 3 

GEE-2  The Entrepreneurial Mindset 
and Innovative Thinking 3 GEE-3 Gender Relations, Human 

Rights and Peace     3 

 Total 12 PSYCH-122 Seminar in Psychometrics 3 

     Total 15 
 

Aside from eligibility to take the Psychometrician licensure exam and postgraduate studies, the students can proceed 
with the following: 

Major in Early Childhood Education  

*Those who wish to have a minor in early childhood education should take 12 units of the following. These subjects 
can be taken as part of electives and can be taken from the College of Education:  
1. Facilitating Learner-Centered Teaching  
2. Assessment in Learning 1 
3. Technology for teaching and learning 1 
4. The Teacher and the school curriculum 
5. Building and enhancing new literacies across the curriculum 
6. Foundation of Early Childhood Education 
 
Major in Human Resource Management  

*Those who wish to have a minor in early childhood education should take 15 units of the following. Three of these 
subjects are already in the curriculum. The additional subjects can be taken as part of electives:  
1. Industrial/Organizational Psychology 
2. Strategic Human Resource Management in Psychology 
3. Group Dynamics and Training 
4. Employee recruitment and selection 
5. Performance and rewards management 
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Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course Code Course Title Units Course Code Course Title Units 

PSYCH-121 Research in Psychology II 3 T-104 Theology of Social Justice 
and Peace 

3 

PELECT - 2 Psychology Elective 2 3 LIT-2.0 Third World Literature 3 

FL-101 Foreign Language 1 3 FL-102 Foreign Language 2 3 

GEE-2  The Entrepreneurial Mindset 
and Innovative Thinking 3 GEE-3 Gender Relations, Human 

Rights and Peace     3 

 Total 12 PSYCH-122 Seminar in Psychometrics 3 

     Total 15 
 

Aside from eligibility to take the Psychometrician licensure exam and postgraduate studies, the students can proceed 
with the following: 

Minor in Early Childhood Education  

Those who wish to have a minor in early childhood education should take the following courses (12 units): 
1. Inclusive Education in ECE  
2. Play and Developmentally Appropriate Practices in ECE 
3. Foundation of Special and Inclusive Education  
4. Early Learning Environment 

 
Major in Human Resource Management  

Those who wish to have a major in Human Resource Development should take 21 units of the following. Nine 
units of these subjects are already in the curriculum. The subjects beyond the required for BA Psychology 
will be taken in place of the Psychology Electives:  
1. Industrial/Organizational Psychology 
2. Strategic Human Resource Management in Psychology 
3. Training and Development 
4. Employee recruitment and selection 
5. Performance management 
6.  Organizational Development and change 
7.  Labour Law and legislation 
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Major in Human Resource Development 
Revised Curriculum for SY 2018-2019 

 

First Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECOND SEMESTER 
Course 
Code Course Title Units Course 

Code Course Title Units 

PCOM-1.0 Purposive Communication 3 UTS-1.0 Understanding the Self 3 

ARTA-1.0  Art Appreciation 3 TCW-1.0 Contemporary World 3 

MMW-1.0 Mathematics in the Modern 
World 3 PSYCH-102 Theories of Personality 3 

RPH-1.0 Readings in Philippine History 3 PSYCH-103 Frames of Mind in Social 
Sciences 3 

PSYCH-101 Introduction to Psychology 3 PSYCH-104 Developmental Psychology 3 

NSTP-1.1 
 

National Service Training 
Program (NSTP I) 3 T-101 Biblical Foundations of 

Christian Faith 3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness I 2 MC-102 MC Culture, Identity, and 

Social Responsibility II 1 

MC-101 MC Culture, Identity, and 
Social Responsibility I 1 PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 

Health and Fitness II 2 

 Total 21  Total 21 
 

MIDYEAR TERM 

Course Code Course Title Units 

NSTP-2.1 National Service Training Program (NSTP II) 3 

 Total 3 
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Second Year 
FIRST SEMESTER 

 
 

SECOND SEMESTER 
Course 
Code Course Title Units Course 

Code Course Title Units 

STS-1.0 Science, Technology and Society 3 LWR-1.0 Life and Works of Rizal 3 

PSYCH-105 Cognitive-Behavioral Psychology 3 PSYCH-108 Industrial/Organizational 
Psychology 3 

PSYCH-106 Psychological Statistics 5 PSYCH-109 Experimental Psychology 5 

PSYCH-107 Biological Psychology 3 PSYCH-110 Test and Measurement 3 

PATHF-3.0 Physical Activity Towards Health 
and Fitness III 2 T-102.1 Theology of Mission, 

Communion and Service 3 

                                              
Total 

 
16 PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity Towards 

Health and Fitness IV 2 

                                                 
Total 

 
19 

 
 
 

Third Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code Course Title Units 

 

Course 
Code Course Title Units 

PSYCH-111 Abnormal Psychology 3 ETH-1.0 Ethics 3 

PSYCH-113 Field Methods in Psychology 5 PSYCH-116 Research in Psychology I 3 

PSYCH-114 Social Psychology 3 PSYCH-117 Introduction to Counseling and 
Psychotherapeutic Interventions 5 

PSYCH-115 Psychological Assessment 5 PSYCH-119 Training and Development 3 

PSYCH-118  Strategic Human Resource 
Management in Psychology 3 PSYCH-129 Performance Management 

(Psychology Elective 2) 3 

PSYCH-128 Employee Recruitment and 
Selection (Psychology Elective 1) 3 T-103 Contemporary Moral Issues 3 

GEE-1 Local Knowledge and 
Ethnoecology 3 LIT-1.0 Great Books 3 

 Total 25  Total 23 
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MIDYEAR TERM 
Course 
Code Course Title Units 

PSYCH-120 Practicum 
(minimum of 300 hours) 3 

 Total 3 
 
 
 
 

Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER 

 

SECOND SEMESTER 
Course 
Code Course Title Units Course 

Code Course Title Units 

PSYCH-121 Research in Psychology II 3 HRM-102 Labour Law and Legislation 3 

HRM-110 Organizational Development 
and Change 3 T-104 Theology of Social Justice and 

Peace 3 

FL-101 Foreign Language I 3 LIT-2.0 Third World Literature 3 

GEE-2 The Entrepreneurial Mindset 
and Innovative Thinking 3 FL-102 Foreign Language 2 3 

 Total 15 GEE-3 Gender Relations, Human 
Rights and Peace 3 

   PSYCH-122 Seminar in Psychometrics 3 

    Total 18 
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COURSE DESCRIPTIONS 

PSYCH-101 INTRODUCTION TO PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS) 

This course gives an introduction to the study of the basic principles underlying human behavior, cognition and affect.  
It aims to provide the student with a general overview of the field of psychology and focuses on the different          
perspectives in analyzing human development, namely: biological, behavioral, cognitive, humanistic, psychoanalytic 
and socio-cultural with emphasis on the scientific approach to understanding human behavior and mental processes.  
The course aims to facilitate personal awareness and development in the student. It is hoped that at the end of the 
course, the student will gain knowledge and skills, which will ultimately add to the competencies she will need later on 
in life. 

PSYCH-102 THEORIES OF PERSONALITY (3 UNITS)               Prerequisite: PSYCH-101 

This course allows the students to examine the five main paradigms in the study of one’s personality. These topics 
include (a) psychodynamic theories, (b) humanistic/existential theories, (c) dispositional theories,                                          
(d) biological/evolutionary theories, and (e) learning-cognitive theories. It integrates theory and current research 
evidence on personality. The course also includes a discussion on the theories of Filipino personhood. 

PSYCH-103 FRAMES OF MIND IN SOCIAL SCIENCES (3 UNITS)                               Prerequisite: PSYCH-101 

This course examines the various schools of thought in Social Sciences across socio-historical milieu that influence 
the paradigms in and development of Psychological inquiries. This serves as a foundation on how to critically analyze 
existing realities within the lens of Psychology.   

PSYCH-104 DEVELOPMENTAL PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS)              Prerequisite: PSYCH-101 

This course employs a multidisciplinary approach in the study of developmental changes across the life span of an                 
individual. It likewise examines the various factors that contribute to those changes in each stage of the life cycle and 
how these changes affect human behavior. 

PSYCH-105- COGNITIVE-BEHAVIORAL STUDIES (3 UNITS)             Prerequisite: PSYCH-101 

This course examines the concepts and theories in cognitive and behavioral psychology, particularly the key       
frameworks in understanding mental processes and learning. This course will tackle the foundations of cognitive   
psychology, mainly, cognitive neuroscience, sensation and perception, attention and consciousness, memory, 
knowledge and human intelligence, problem solving and creativity. Highlighting the fundamental history and landmark 
studies, this course will then present an appreciation of the foundations of learning: classical conditioning, instrumental 
conditioning, and the cognitive and motivational approaches to learning. From these bases, the course will explore 
themes on recent and groundbreaking researches in and applications of cognitive and behavioral psychology. 
 
PSYCH-106 PSYCHOLOGICAL STATISTICS (5 UNITS) 
 
This course introduces the student to the basic concepts and methods of inferential statistics and their use in the 
design, analysis, and interpretation of psychological studies. 
 
PYSCH-107 BIOLOGICAL PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS)                 Prerequisite: PSYCH-104 
 
This course is designed to provide students with the relevant frameworks on the biological bases of human behavior 
(biopsychology). It is an introductory course on the various biological systems involved in behavior through a 
consideration of the physiological causes of behavior, appreciating its foundations from neuroanatomy and neural 
communication. It will then detail its breadth to the various sensory and motor systems, and specific topics on brain 
plasticity, the biopsychology of motivation, and the various disorders of cognition and psychiatric disorders. 
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PSYCH-108 INDUSTRIAL/ ORGANIZATIONAL PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS)   
 

The course is designed to introduce the students to the growing field of Industrial Psychology: its development and 
application of principles governing the different facets of human resources.  It describes work organization, the workers, 
and their distinct and common goals. This course also aims to explain the interplay between these primary components. 
Special emphasis is given to both the science and the practice of the discipline relating this to the Philippine setting. 
 
PSYCH-109 EXPERIMENTAL PSYCHOLOGY (5 UNITS)         Prerequisite: PSY-106 
 
This course aims to introduce the students to the theoretical and methodological bases of scientific research, 
particularly the psychological experiments. Students will be trained to design, conduct, analyze, and evaluate 
experiments. They will also be taught to write psychological experiment reports. 
 
PSYCH-110 TEST AND MEASUREMENT (3 UNITS)                       Prerequisite: PSY-106 
 
This course is designed to get the students acquainted with the basic principles of testing and measurement. They will 
learn the process of designing and developing tests, and constructing scales for use in education, research, and 
psychological assessment. The students will also learn and experience evaluating tests and scales based on their 
psychometric properties—reliability and validity—and utility for various purposes. 

 
PSYCH-111 ABNORMAL PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS)                 Prerequisite: PSYCH-102 
 

This course is a study of psychopathology and behavioral disturbance in the context of Clinical Psychology and updated 
diagnostic 5 classification systems. It includes each of the disorders’ diagnostic category, emphasizing its definition, 
etiology, maintenance, assessment by symptom recognition, and preferred treatment. This course integrates local and 
cross-cultural contexts of mental health as well as health psychology. 

 

PSYCH-112 CULTURAL PSYCHOLOGY AND SIKOLOHIYANG PILIPINO (3 UNITS)   Prerequisite: PSYCH-102 

This course provides a comprehensive survey of the foundations and major topics related to culture and psychology. 
During the first half of the semester, the course will introduce the theoretical foundations as well as orient students with 
the research methods in cultural psychology. It will then present various topics and contemporary issues in the subfield: 
from the self as the cultural mode of representation, to identities and social relations, cognition, emotion and motivation, 
and the systems approach in understanding culture.  
 

In connection to disciplinal underpinnings of cultural and indigenous psychology, Sikolohiyang Pilipino (Filipino 
Psychology) is studied in greater detail as the exemplar of Cultural and Indigenous Psychology in the Philippines and 
in Asia. 

 

PSYCH-113 FIELD METHODS OF PSYCHOLOGY (5 UNITS)                Prerequisites: PSYCH-102 & PSYCH-104 

This course involves the design and implementation of field research, including observational methods, ethnographies, 
focus group discussions, grounded theory methods, phenomenological, interpretive phenomenological analysis, 
multiple case studies. and program evaluation. Students will be trained in how to collect and analyze observational 
data, interview data and survey data.  In addition to readings in the theory of field research methodology, the solutions 
to specific, commonly occurring design and statistical problems are emphasized. 
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PSYCH-114 SOCIAL PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS)                              Prerequisite: PSYCH-102  

Social Psychology is the scientific study of human social behavior: how and why we think and feel about, behave and 
relate to one another in social situations. This course is designed to introduce the student to the basic theories, 
concepts, and empirical findings, which guide social psychologists in studying and understanding social behavior. The 
course intends to ground the students in the Filipino context by focusing on pertinent issues that confront them in their 
daily lives. Moreover, it aims to equip the students with a social psychological perspective in the analysis of current 
social issues and phenomena with an end to stimulating their interest in further studying these issues and phenomena, 
thus becoming generative in terms of research and advocacy. 

 

PSYCH-115 PSYCHOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT (5 UNITS)    Prerequisites: PSYCH-102, PSYCH-104 PSYCH-106 

This course is designed to introduce students to the field of psychological assessment, wherein they will learn the basic 
assumptions of psychological assessment and the ethical considerations in the field. They will also be familiarized with 
the application of psychological assessment to various contexts, including, but not limited to the following: clinical, 
industrial, career/vocational, medical/health care, and forensic/legal. The course is also meant to prepare the students 
in their practice as future psychometricians as they become acquainted with the various processes involved in 
conducting psychological assessment—test administration, scoring, interpretation, psychological report-writing, and 
feedbacking. 

 

PSYCH-116 RESEARCH IN PSYCHOLOGY I (3 UNITS)     Prerequisites: PSYCH-109, PSYCH-113, PSYCH-115  

 
This course is a study of the scientific methods of psychological investigation, focusing on the techniques of problem              
identification, hypothesis formulation, and the construction of a research design and data-gathering instruments. The        
preparation of a research proposal is integral to the course, and this must be orally defended before a panel. 
 
 
PSYCH-117 INTRODUCTION TO COUNSELING AND PSYCHOTHERAPEUTIC INTERVENTIONS (5 UNITS)  
Prerequisite: PSYCH-115 

This course gives an overview on the study and practice of the principles and interventions used in psychotherapy. It 
also focuses on the theoretical approaches, an understanding of the psychotherapeutic process, application of basic 
skills and techniques to different situations and an awareness of the different issues that may affect the                 
psychotherapeutic process. 

 
PSYCH-118 STRATEGIC HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT IN PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS) 
Prerequisite: PSYCH-108 
 

This course focuses on demonstrating and applying the nature of SHRM and competency-based HR systems. Students 
are expected to be able to: identify and write competencies and apply these in talent acquisition, learning, and 
development, performance and rewards management, employee relations and organization development. Students 
are also expected to learn skills in recruitment and selection, training administration, and rewards management. (Lifted 
from CHED memo) 
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PSYCH-119 GROUP DYNAMICS AND TRAINING (3 UNITS)                                           Prerequisite: PSYCH-108  

This course introduces students to the theories, concepts, empirical studies, processes, and models pertinent to 
groups. Students’ understanding of how individuals interact in groups is facilitated through a variety of methodologies 
that enhance their understanding and building their sensitivity to group processes and behavior. Through this course, 
students develop skills in group facilitation, process observation and analysis, which are essential to their future 
professions as researchers, trainers, group counselors and/or therapists, organizational development executives, or 
other related careers. 

 

PSYCH-120 PRACTICUM (3 UNITS) 

Prerequisites: PSYCH-108; PSYCH-111; PSYCH-115; PSYCH-117; PSYCH-118 

This course aims to introduce the students to the practice of theoretical and methodological bases of psychology in 
work situations in either an industrial, organizational, community or clinical setting.  This exposure will allow them to 
integrate learning from their major courses and see its application, preferably in their field of expertise.  It will also allow 
them to hone their interpersonal and professional disposition.   

The Practicum gives them a view of the systems and procedures in the different work settings.  It also gives them the 
advantage of practice in the application process for their future employment as psychometricians. The students are 
usually required to be in a setting that gives them the opportunity to pursue their field of interest, or for some students, 
to explore other career options before they engage in their area of concentration. 

 

PSYCH-121 RESEARCH IN PSYCHOLOGY II (3 UNITS)                 Prerequisite: PSYCH-116 

This course is a continuation of Research in Psychology I. Students are required to implement a research project 
conceptualized and designed during the preceding semester. Focus of the course is on the gathering, analysis, and 
interpretation of data. A required output is a write-up of the thesis in APA format that is orally defended before a panel. 

 

PSYCH-122 SEMINAR IN PSYCHOMETRICS (3 UNITS)                                                Prerequisite: PSYCH-116 

This course is designed to recapitulate and integrate everything that the students have learned from the psychology 
subjects they have taken over the course of the four (4) years, as preparation for their future career as                   
psychometricians. This also serves as a synthesis of knowledge they have acquired in class together with learnings 
gathered from their real life and practicum experiences. At the end of the course, the students have further enhanced 
their abilities and skills, making them ready for life after graduation. Areas of focus include the following: a) Theories of 
Personality, b) Abnormal Psychology, c) Psychological Assessment, d) Industrial/ Organizational Psychology. 
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ELECTIVES  
 

PSYCH-123 FAMILY PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS) 
 

This course uses a psychological approach to the study of family behavior and its varied dimensions, such as 
psychological, social and cultural dimensions in contemporary Philippine setting. Emphasis is on the dynamics of family 
relations, parenting, interpersonal relationships, love and marriage. Service Learning is an option that will better 
immerse students in the dynamics that take place within local families and their communities and allow them to respond 
with psychological interventions that will address immediate concerns.  

 
PSYCH-124 POSITIVE PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS) 

 
This course introduces the students to the different concepts, frameworks, and scientific studies on happiness and 
flourishing. It examines specifically the positive, adaptive, creative, and the emotionally fulfilling characteristics of 
optimally functioning human persons, groups, and institutions. The core values of Miriam College, namely, truth, peace, 
justice, and integrity of creation will also be discussed. 

 
PSYCH-125 HEALTH PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS) 

 
This course examines the relationship of the social, biological, psychological, spiritual and cognitive variables to 
disease prevention and health promotion. Risk factors for health-compromising behaviors among adolescents and the 
various strategies for their modification are also discussed.  

 
PSYCH-126 EDUCATIONAL PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS) 

 
This is an overview of the field of educational psychology including research in the field. Theories in educational                
psychology and their application in the classroom are discussed. The analysis of classroom problems and the design 
of teaching-learning interventions are tackled using the practitioner-researcher approach. (Lifted from the CHED 
memo)  

 
PSYCH-127 ENVIRONMENTAL PSYCHOLGY (3 UNITS) 

 
The world faces an ecological crisis, a crisis brought about by maladaptive human behavior. This course introduces 
some of the most pressing environmental issues, with special emphasis on the context and state of the environment. 
This course will provide an overview of the theoretical and practice tools in psychology that can be applied to 
understand the causes of the environment problems, and to formulate potential solutions. This course will underscore 
reciprocal relationship of human beings with the specific objective of promoting sustainability. It is hoped that at the 
end of the course, students will acquire the knowledge and skills to become effective agents and communicators of 
change for the environment.  
   
PSYCH-128 EMPLOYEE RECRUITMENT SELECTION (3 UNITS)                                    Prerequisite: PSYCH 118  

 
In this course, students will learn about workforce planning and various recruitment and selection methods.       Students 
will also be equipped with the skills in conducting job analysis, constructing interview questions for a given set of 
competencies and display effective interviewing skills.  
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PSYCH-129 PERFORMANCE AND REWARDS MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS) 
 
The course in Performance and Rewards Management is designed to provide students with a basic                      
understanding of employee performance and theories regarding performance and rewards management. The students 
will go through discussions on compensation strategies and the use of the Systems, Applications and Products in Data 
Processing (SAP) HR program in compensation. Students will also learn useful measures for evaluating Performance 
and Rewards Management (PRM) for different levels of an organization as well as measures to promote continuous 
improvement.   
 
 
HRM-110 ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND CHANGE (3 units)   Prerequisite: PSYCH 118 
 
This course introduces the students to the theoretical models, processes and perspectives of Organizational 
Development at the individual, group and organizational levels of analysis.  Moreover, the course familiarizes students 
on the various framework on leadership management and the understanding and application of diverse approaches to 
leadership in organizations. The course is focused on building a sound grasp of good practices and on developing the 
ability to apply such knowledge to actual problems in the industry. 

 
HRM-102 LABOUR LAW AND LEGISLATION (3 units)    Prerequisite: PSYCH 118 
 
The course presents students with significant laws and regulations that affect the practice of Human Resource 
Management in the Philippines. Topics include an overview of labor and employment; mandatory benefits; 
labor/employee relations; and, safety laws and rules.  Through this course, students develop deeper understanding 
and analysis of the rules governing employment through case studies, published materials, and legal decisions in local 
and international current events. 
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BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN PSYCHOLOGY  
 
Program Description: Psychology is the scientific study 
of behavior and mental   processes. The emphasis of this 
discipline is to look into how the person’s mental 
processes and behavior are affected by internal, relational, 
and societal factors.  Psychology as a discipline and as a 
professional practice aims to respond to the needs of the 
society in promoting optimal   functioning and wellbeing at 
the levels of  individual, family, group, organization, and 
the larger community through basic and applied  research, 
education, and interventions.  
 
Program Goals: The Bachelor of Science in Psychology 
program provides a solid basic knowledge and skills in  
Psychology and additional preparation in the natural 
sciences. It serves as initial training for those who will 
pursue teaching, research, and practice of psychology. It 
also provides preparation for graduate studies in 
psychology and in other disciplines. 
 
A Graduate of BS Psychology could be a licensed 
psychometrician or work in the academe, in Human 
Resource (HR), and conduct researches. She is ready to 
pursue careers in medicine, law, management, among 
others.  She can also pursue graduate studies in 
Psychology and further specialize in different areas of         
Psychology such as developmental,              
industrial/organizational, counseling, clinical, educational, 
and social psychology. She can take graduate studies at 
Miriam College Graduate School.  
 
Program Outcomes: This program provides opportunities 
for personal growth and development of optimal potentials 
of the students. It aims to engage the students in              
lifelong learning, equip them with skills in             
communication orally and in writing, and empower them to 
work effectively and ethically in multidisciplinary and 
multicultural settings, upholding the values of truth, justice, 
peace, and integrity of creation.   
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Graduates are able to (CHED CMO): 
 

1. Demonstrate the capability to discuss and analyze the major theories and concepts in psychology and situate 
them with the other social sciences; 

2. Demonstrate and apply the methods of psychological researches building knowledge on local culture and 
context; 

3. Demonstrate capability for self-reflection and independent learning in various professional contexts; 
4. Demonstrate the ability to conduct psychological assessment and evaluation; 
5. Demonstrate ability in human resource management and organizational analysis (e.g., Systems, application, 

and products); and 
6. Demonstrate the ability to conduct basic psychosocial services (i.e., psychological first aid, mental health 

literacy, and group processing).  
 

Revised Curriculum for SY 2018-2019 
 

First Year 

FIRST SEMESTER  
 
 

SECOND SEMESTER 

Course   
Code 

Course Title Units Course Code Course Title Units 

PCOM -1.0 Purposive Communication 3 UTS – 1.0 Understanding the Self 3 

ARTA - 1.0 Art Appreciation 3 TCW – 1.0 The Contemporary World 3 

MMW - 1.0 Mathematics in the Modern 
World 3 PSYCH - 104 Developmental Psychology 3 

RPH – 1.0 Readings in Philippine      
History 3 PSYCH - 102 Theories of Personality 3 

PSYCH -101 Introduction to Psychology 3 PSYCH - 103 Frames of Mind in Social 
Sciences 3 

NSTP-1.1 
 

National Service Training 
Program (NSTP I) 3 T-101 Biblical Foundation of 

Christian Faith 3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness I 2 MC-102 MC Culture, Identity, and 

Social Responsibility 2 1 

MC-101 MC Culture, Identity, and 
Social Responsibility 1 1 PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 

Health and Fitness II 2 

 Total 21  Total 21 
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MIDYEAR TERM 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

NSTP-2.1 National Service Training Program 
(NSTP II) 3 

 Total 3 

 
 

Second Year 

FIRST SEMESTER  
 
 

SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

STS – 1.0 Science, Technology, and  
Society 3 LWR – 1.0 Life and Works of Rizal 3 

PSYCH - 105 Cognitive-Behavioral          
Psychology 3 PSYCH - 108 Industrial/Organizational     

Psychology 3 

PSYCH - 106 Psychological Statistics 5 PSYCH - 109 Experimental Psychology 5 

PSYCH - 107 Biological Psychology 3 PSYCH - 110 Test and Measurement 3 

PATHF-3.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness III 2 T-102.1 Theology of Mission, 

Communion and Service 3 

S-103 LEC 
S-103 LAB 

General Zoology Lecture 
General Zoology Laboratory 

3 
2 

PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness IV 2 

   S-102 LEC 
S-102 LAB 

General Botany Lecture 
General Botany Laboratory 

3 
2 

 Total 21  Total 24 

       
 
 

MIDYEAR TERM 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

S-109 LEC 
S-109 LAB 

Organic Chemistry Lecture 
Organic Chemistry Laboratory 

2 
1 

 Total 3 
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Third Year 

FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

PSYCH - 111 Abnormal Psychology 3  ETH – 1.0 Ethics 3 

PSYCH - 112 Cultural Psychology and     
Sikolohiyang Pilipino 3 PSYCH - 116 Research in Psychology I 3 

PSYCH - 113 Field Methods in Psychology 5 PSYCH - 117 
Introduction to Counseling 
and Psychotherapeutic 
Interventions 

5 

PSYCH - 114 Social Psychology 3 PSYCH - 118 Strategic Human Resource   
Management in Psychology 3 

PSYCH - 115 Psychological Assessment 5 S-149 LAB 
S-149 LEC 

Biophysics Lecture 
Biophysics Laboratory 

2 
2 

 Total 19 T-103 Contemporary Moral Issues 3 

   GEE-1 Local Knowledge and 
Ethnoecology 

3 

    Total 24 
 
 
 
 

MIDYEAR TERM 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

PSYCH - 120 Practicum 
(minimum of 300 hours) 3 

 Total 3 
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Fourth Year 

FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Subject 
Code 

Course Title Units 

PSYCH - 
121 Research in Psychology II 3 PSYCH - 122 Seminar in Psychometrics 3 

PSYCH - 
119 Training and Development 3 T-104 Theology of Social Justice and 

Peace 3 

FL-101 Foreign Language Elective 1 3 PELECT 2 Free Elective 2 3 

GEE-2 The Entrepreneurial Mindset 
and Innovative Thinking 3 GEE-3 Gender Relations, Human Rights 

and Peace 3 

S-127 LEC 
S-127 LAB 

Cell and Molecular Biology 
Lecture 
Cell and Molecular Biology 
Laboratory 

    2 
    1 

LIT- 2.0 Third World Literature 
3 

LIT -1.0 Great Books 3 FL-102 Foreign Language Elective 2 3 

PELECT 1 Free Elective I 3    

 Total 21  Total 18 
 
Aside from eligibility to take the Psychometrician licensure exam and postgraduate studies, the students can proceed 
with the following: 
 
Pre-Medicine Track 
*Those who wish to proceed to Medicine may exceed the number of minimum required Natural Sciences. Additional 
Sciences can be taken by 3rd Year, 2nd semester.  These additional sciences can be taken as part of the electives. 
Among the suggested Sciences are the following: 

1. Human Anatomy and Physiology  
2. Biochemistry 
3. General Microbiology  

 

Minor in Early Childhood Education  

Those who wish to have a minor in early childhood education should take 12 units of the following. These subjects 
can be taken as part of electives and can be taken from the College of Education:  
1. Facilitating Learner-Centered Teaching  
2. Assessment in Learning 1 
3. Technology for teaching and learning 1 
4. The Teacher and the school curriculum 
5. Building and enhancing new literacies across the curriculum 
6. Foundation of Early Childhood Education 
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Pre-Medicine Track Option 

Revised Curriculum for SY 2018-2019 
 

First Year 

FIRST SEMESTER 

 
 
 

SECOND SEMESTER 

Course   
Code Course Title Units Course 

Code Course Title Units 

PCOM-1.0 Purposive Communication 3 UTS-1.0 Understanding the Self 3 

ARTA-1.0 Art Appreciation 3 TCW-1.0 The Contemporary World 3 

MMW-1.0 Mathematics in the Modern World 3 PSYCH-102 Theories of Personality 3 

RPH-1.0 Readings in Philippine History 3 PSYCH-103 Frames of Mind in Social 
Sciences 3 

PSYCH-101 Introduction to Psychology 3 PSYCH-104 Developmental Psychology 3 

NSTP-1.1 National Service Training Program 
(NSTP I) 3 T-101 Biblical Foundation of 

Christian Faith 3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity Towards Health 
and Fitness I 2 MC-102 MC Culture, Identity, and 

Social Responsibility 2 1 

MC-101 MC Culture, Identity, and Social 
Responsibility 1 1 PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 

Health and Fitness II 2 

 Total 21  Total 21 
 

MIDYEAR TERM 

Course 
Code Course Title Units 

NSTP-2.1 National Service Training Program 
(NSTP II) 3 

 Total 3 
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Second Year 

FIRST SEMESTER 

 
 
 

SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code Course Title Units Course 

Code Course Title Units 

STS-1.0 Science, Technology, and  
Society 3 LWR-1.0 Life and Works of Rizal 3 

PSYCH-105 Cognitive-Behavioral          
Psychology 3 PSYCH-108 Industrial/Organizational     

Psychology 3 

PSYCH-106 Psychological Statistics 5 PSYCH-109 Experimental Psychology 5 

PSYCH-107 Biological Psychology 3 PSYCH-110 Test and Measurement 3 

PATHF-3.0 Physical Activity Towards Health 
and Fitness III 2 T-102.1 Theology of Mission, 

Communion and Service 3 

S-103 Lec 
S-103 Lab 

General Zoology Lecture 
General Zoology Laboratory 

3 
2 PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity Towards 

Health and Fitness IV 2 

   S-102 Lec 
S-102 Lab 

General Botany Lecture 
General Botany Laboratory 

3 
2 

 Total 21  Total 24 
 

MIDYEAR TERM 

Course 
Code Course Title Units 

S-109 Lec 
S-109 Lab 

Organic Chemistry Lecture 
Organic Chemistry Laboratory 

2 
1 
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Third Year 

FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code Course Title Units  Course 

Code Course Title Units 

PSYCH-111 Abnormal Psychology 3  ETH-1.0 Ethics 3 

PSYCH-112 Cultural Psychology and     
Sikolohiyang Pilipino 3 PSYCH-116 Research in Psychology I 3 

PSYCH-113 Field Methods in Psychology 5 PSYCH-117 
Introduction to Counseling and 
Psychotherapeutic 
Interventions 

5 

PSYCH-114 Social Psychology 3 PSYCH-118 Strategic Human Resource   
Management in Psychology 3 

PSYCH-115 Psychological Assessment 5 GEE-1 Local Knowledge and 
Ethnoecology 3 

S-110 Lec 
S-110 Lab 

Biochemistry 
Biochemistry 

2 
1 

S-149 Lec 
S-149 Lab 

Biophysics Lecture 
Biophysics Laboratory 

2 
2 

S-115 Lec 
S-115 Lab 

General Microbiology Lecture 
General Microbiology Laboratory 

2 
 

1 
T-103 Contemporary Moral Issues 3 

 Total 25  Total 24 
 

MIDYEAR TERM 

Course 
Code Course Title Units 

PSYCH-120 Practicum 
(minimum of 300 hours) 3 

 Total 3 
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Fourth Year 

FIRST SEMESTER 

 

SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code Course Title Units Course 

Code Course Title Units 

PSYCH-121 Research in Psychology II 3 PSYCH-122 Seminar in Psychometrics 3 

PSYCH-119 Training and Development 3 T-104 Theology of Social Justice and 
Peace 3 

FL-101 Foreign Language Elective 1 3 FL-102 Foreign Language Elective 2 3 

GEE-2 The Entrepreneurial Mindset 
and Innovative Thinking 3 GEE-3 Gender Relations, Human Rights 

and Peace 3 

S-127 Lec 
S-127 Lab 

Cell and Molecular Biology 
Lecture 
Cell and Molecular Biology 
Laboratory 

2 
 
1 

LIT-2.0 Third World Literature 3 

S-143 Lec 
S-143 Lab 

Human Anatomy and 
Physiology Lecture 
Human Anatomy and 
Physiology Laboratory 

2 
 
1 

   

LIT-1.0 Great Books 3    

 Total 21  Total 15 
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COURSE DESCRIPTIONS 

PSYCH-101 INTRODUCTION TO PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS) 

This course gives an introduction to the study of the basic principles underlying human behavior, cognition and affect.  
It aims to provide the student with a general overview of the field of psychology and focuses on the different          
perspectives in analyzing human development, namely: biological, behavioral, cognitive, humanistic, psychoanalytic 
and socio-cultural with emphasis on the scientific approach to understanding human behavior and mental processes.  
The course aims to facilitate personal awareness and development in the student. It is hoped that at the end of the 
course, the student will gain in knowledge and skills, which will ultimately add to the competencies she will need later 
on in life. 

PSYCH-102 THEORIES OF PERSONALITY (3 UNITS)                Prerequisite: PSYCH-101 

This course allows the students to examine the five main paradigms in the study of one’s personality. These topics 
include (a) psychodynamic theories, (b) humanistic/existential theories, (c) dispositional theories,                                          
(d) biological/evolutionary theories, and (e) learning- cognitive theories. It integrates theory and current research 
evidence on personality. The course also includes a discussion on the theories of Filipino personhood. 

PSYCH-103 FRAMES OF MIND IN SOCIAL SCIENCES (3 UNITS)              Prerequisite: PSYCH-101 

This course examines the various schools of thought in Social Sciences across socio-historical milieu that influence 
the paradigms in and development of Psychological inquiries. This serves as a foundation on how to critically analyze 
existing realities within the lens of Psychology.   

PSYCH-104 DEVELOPMENTAL PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS)              Prerequisite: PSYCH-101 

This course employs a multidisciplinary approach in the study of developmental changes across the life span of an                 
individual. It likewise examines the various factors that contribute to those changes in each stage of the life cycle and 
how these changes affect human behavior. 

PSYCH-105- COGNITIVE BEHAVIORAL STUDIES (3 UNITS)                     Prerequisite: PSYCH-101 

This course examines the concepts and theories in cognitive and behavioral psychology, particularly the key       
frameworks in understanding mental processes and learning. This course will tackle the foundations of cognitive   
psychology, mainly, cognitive neuroscience, sensation and perception, attention and consciousness, memory, 
knowledge and human intelligence, problem solving and creativity. Highlighting the fundamental history and landmark 
studies, this course will then present an appreciation of the foundations of learning: classical conditioning, instrumental 
conditioning, and the cognitive and motivational approaches to learning. From these bases, the course will explore 
themes on recent and groundbreaking researches in and applications of cognitive and behavioral psychology. 
 
 
PSYCH-106 PSYCHOLOGICAL STATISTICS (5 UNITS) 
 
This course introduces the student to the basic concepts and methods of inferential statistics and their use in the 
design, analysis, and interpretation of psychological studies. 
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PYSCH-107 BIOLOGICAL PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS)                    Prerequisite: PSYCH-104 
 
This course is designed to provide students with the relevant frameworks on the biological bases of human          
behavior (biopsychology). It is an introductory course on the various biological systems involved in behavior through a 
consideration of the physiological causes of behavior, appreciating its foundations from neuroanatomical and neural 
communication. It will then detail its breadth to the various sensory and motor systems, and specific topics on brain 
plasticity, the biopsychology of motivation, and the various disorders of cognition and psychiatric disorders. 
 
PSYCH-108 INDUSTRIAL/ ORGANIZATIONAL PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS)   

 
The course is designed to introduce the students to the growing field of Industrial Psychology: its development and 
application of principles governing the different facets of human resources.  It describes work organization, the workers, 
and their distinct and common goals. This course also aims to explain the interplay between these primary components. 
Special emphasis is given to both the science and the practice of the discipline relating this to the Philippine setting. 
 
PSYCH-109 EXPERIMENTAL PSYCHOLOGY (5 UNITS)         Prerequisite: PSY-106 
 
This course aims to introduce the students to the theoretical and methodological bases of scientific research, 
particularly the psychological experiments. Students will be trained to design, conduct, analyze, and evaluate       
experiments. They will also be taught to write psychological experiment reports. 
 
PSYCH-110 TEST AND MEASUREMENT (3 UNITS)                       Prerequisite: PSY-106 
 
This course is designed to get the students acquainted with the basic principles of testing and measurement. They will 
learn the process of designing and developing tests, and constructing scales for use in education, research, and 
psychological assessment. The students will also get to learn and experience evaluating tests and scales based on 
their psychometric properties—reliability and validity—and utility for various purposes. 

PSYCH-111 ABNORMAL PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS)                 Prerequisite: PSYCH-102 
 
This course is a study of psychopathology and behavioral disturbance in the context of Clinical Psychology and    
updated diagnostic 5 classification systems. It includes each of the disorders’ diagnostic category, emphasizing its 
definition, etiology, maintenance, assessment by symptom recognition, and preferred treatment. This course        
integrates local and cross-cultural contexts of mental health as well as health psychology. 
 
PSYCH-112 CULTURAL PSYCHOLOGY AND SIKOLOHIYANG PILIPINO (3 UNITS)   Prerequisite: PSYCH-102 
 
This course provides a comprehensive survey of the foundations and major topics related to culture and psychology. 
During the first half of the semester, the course will introduce the theoretical foundations as well as orient students with 
the research methods in cultural psychology. It will then present various topics and contemporary issues in the subfield: 
from the self as the cultural mode of representation, to identities, and social relations, cognition, emotion and motivation, 
and the systems approach in understanding culture.  
 
In connection to the disciplinal underpinnings of cultural and indigenous psychology, Sikolohiyang Pilipino (Filipino 
Psychology) is thus studied in greater detail as the exemplar of Cultural and Indigenous Psychology in the            
Philippines and in Asia. 
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PSYCH-113 FIELD METHODS OF PSYCHOLOGY (5 UNITS)                 Prerequisites: PSYCH-102 & PSYCH-104 
 
This course involves the design and implementation of field research, including observational methods, ethnographies, 
focus group discussions, grounded theory methods, phenomenological, interpretive phenomenological analysis, 
multiple case studies and program evaluation. Students will be trained on how to collect and analyze observational 
data, interview data and survey data.  In addition to readings in the theory on field research methodology, the solutions 
to specific, commonly occurring design and statistical problems are emphasized.  

PSYCH-114 SOCIAL PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS)                              Prerequisite: PSYCH-102  
 
Social Psychology is the scientific study of human social behavior: how and why we think and feel about, behave and 
relate to one another in social situations. This course is designed to introduce the student to the basic theories, 
concepts, and empirical findings, which guide social psychologists in studying and understanding social behavior. The 
course intends to ground the students in the Filipino context by focusing on pertinent issues that confront them in their 
daily lives. Moreover, it aims to equip the students with a social psychological perspective in the analysis of current 
social issues and phenomena with an end to stimulating their interest in further studying these issues and phenomena, 
thus becoming generative in terms of research and advocacy. 
 
PSYCH-115 PSYCHOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT (3 UNITS) 
Prerequisites: PSYCH-102, PSYCH-104 PSYCH-106 
 
This course is designed to introduce students to the field of psychological assessment, wherein they will learn the basic 
assumptions of psychological assessment and the ethical considerations in the field. They will also be               
familiarized with the application of psychological assessment to various contexts, including, but not limited to the    
following: clinical, industrial, career/vocational, medical/health care, and forensic/legal. The course is also meant to 
prepare the students in their practice as future psychometricians as they become acquainted with the various        
processes involved in conducting psychological assessment—test administration, scoring, interpretation, psychological 
report-writing, and feedbacking. 
 
PSYCH-116 RESEARCH IN PSYCHOLOGY I (3 UNITS) 
Prerequisites: PSYCH-109, PSYCH-113, PSYCH-115  

 
This course is a study of the scientific methods of psychological investigation, focusing on the techniques of problem              
identification, hypothesis formulation, and the construction of a research design and data-gathering instruments. The        
preparation of a research proposal is integral to the course, and this must be orally defended before a panel. 
 
PSYCH-117 INTRODUCTION TO COUNSELING AND PSYCHOTHERAPEUTIC INTERVENTIONS (5 UNITS)  
Prerequisite: PSYCH-115 

This course gives an overview on the study and practice of the principles and interventions used in psychotherapy. It 
also focuses on the theoretical approaches, an understanding of the psychotherapeutic process, application of basic 
skills and techniques to different situations and an awareness of the different issues that may affect the                 
psychotherapeutic process. 
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PSYCH-118 STRATEGIC HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT IN PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS) 
Prerequisite: PSYCH-108 
 
This course focuses on demonstrating and applying the nature of SHRM and competency-based HR systems.           
Students are expected to be able to: identify and write competencies and apply these in talent acquisition, learning and 
development, performance and rewards management, employee relations and organization development.             
Students are also expected to learn skills in recruitment and selection, training administration, and rewards 
management. (Lifted from CHED memo) 
 
 
PSYCH-119 GROUP DYNAMICS AND TRAINING (3 UNITS)                                            Prerequisite: PSYCH-108  
 
This course introduces students to the theories, concepts, empirical studies, processes, and models pertinent to 
groups. Students’ understanding of how individuals interact in groups is facilitated through a variety of methodologies 
that enhance their understanding and build their sensitivity to group processes and behavior. Through this course, 
students develop skills in group facilitation, process observation and analysis, which are essential to their future 
professions as researchers, trainers, group counselors and/or therapists, organizational development executives, or 
other related careers. 
 
PSYCH-120 PRACTICUM (3 UNITS)  
Prerequisites: PSYCH-108, PSYCH-111, PSYCH-115, PSYCH-117, PSYCH-118  
 
This course aims to introduce the students to the practice of theoretical and methodological bases of psychology in 
work situations in either an industrial, organizational, community or clinical setting.  This exposure will allow them to 
integrate learning from their major courses and see its application, preferably in their field of expertise.  It will also allow 
them to hone their interpersonal and professional disposition.   

The Practicum allows them a view of the systems and procedures in the different work settings.  It also gives them the 
advantage of practice in the application process for their future employment as psychometrician. The students are 
usually required to be in a setting that gives the opportunity to pursue their field of interest, or for some students, to 
explore other career options before they engage in their area of concentration. 
 
PSYCH-121 RESEARCH IN PSYCHOLOGY II (3 UNITS)                Prerequisite- PSYCH-116 
 
This course is a continuation of Research in Psychology I. Students are required to implement a research project 
conceptualized and designed during the preceding semester. Focus of the course is on the gathering, analysis, and 
interpretation of data. A required output is a write-up of the thesis in APA format that is orally defended before a panel. 
 
PSYCH-122 SEMINAR IN PSYCHOMETRICS (3 UNITS)                                                   Pre-requisite: PSYCH-116 

 
This course is designed to recapitulate and integrate everything that the students have learned from the psychology 
subjects they have taken over the course of the four (4) years, as preparation for their future career as                   
psychometricians. This also serves as a synthesis of knowledge they have acquired in-class together with learnings 
gathered from their real life and practicum experiences. At the end of the course, the students have further enhanced 
their abilities and skills, making them ready for life after graduation. Areas of focus include the following: a) Theories of 
Personality, b) Abnormal Psychology, c) Psychological Assessment, and d) Industrial/Organizational Psychology. 
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S-109 LEC Organic Chemistry (Lecture) (3 units) 
Prerequisite:  S-101 LEC (General Chemistry) 
 
A one semester lecture course covering basic concepts in organic chemistry. Topics include hybridization, isomerism, 
organic structures, reactions and mechanisms. The concept that organic structures determine chemical reactivity and 
physical properties is given emphasis. It also includes a brief study of the structure and properties of lipids, 
carbohydrates and proteins. 
 
S-109 LAB Organic Chemistry (Laboratory) (2 units) 
Prerequisite:  S-101 LAB (General Chemistry) 
 
A laboratory course covering experiments on separation and purification of organic compounds, basic organic chemical 
reactions, organic synthesis, and qualitative organic analysis. Experiments dealing with the properties of lipids, 
carbohydrates and proteins are also included. 
 
S-109.1 LEC Organic Chemistry (Lecture) (2 units) 
Prerequisite:  S-101 LEC (General Chemistry) 
 
A one semester lecture course covering basic concepts in organic chemistry. Topics include hybridization, isomerism, 
organic structures, reactions and mechanisms. The concept that organic structures determine chemical reactivity and 
physical properties is given emphasis. It also includes a brief study of the structure and properties of lipids, 
carbohydrates and proteins. 
 
 
S-109.1 LAB Organic Chemistry (Laboratory) (1 unit) 
Prerequisite:  S-101 LAB (General Chemistry) 
 
A laboratory course covering experiments on separation and purification of organic compounds, basic organic chemical 
reactions, organic synthesis, and qualitative organic analysis. Experiments dealing with the properties of lipids, 
carbohydrates and proteins are also included. 
 
 
S-115 LEC General Microbiology (Lecture) (3 units) 
Prerequisites:  
For Biology: S-111 LEC (General Biology II) 
For Psychology: (S-102 Lec Botany and S-103 Lec Zoology) 
 
This course provides basic concepts in the study of the morphology, classification, taxonomy, metabolism, genetics, 
and control of the microorganisms that include archaebacteria, bacteria, cyanobacteria, protozoa, fungi, algae, and 
viruses. These studies emphasize the contribution of microbiology to the basic understanding of fundamental 
processes and provide insight into how microbiology impacts our everyday life. 
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ELECTIVES 
 

PSYCH-123 FAMILY PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS) 
 

This course uses a psychological approach to the study of family behavior and its varied dimensions, such as 
psychological, social and cultural dimensions in contemporary Philippine setting. Emphasis is on the dynamics of family 
relations, parenting, interpersonal relationships, love and marriage. Service Learning is an option that will better 
immerse students in the dynamics that take place within local families and their communities and allow them to respond 
with psychological interventions that will address immediate concerns.  

 
PSYCH-124 POSITIVE PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS) 

 
This course introduces the students to the different concepts, frameworks, and scientific studies on happiness and 
flourishing. It examines specifically the positive, adaptive, creative, and the emotionally fulfilling characteristics of 
optimally functioning human persons, groups, and institutions. The core values of Miriam College, namely, truth, peace, 
justice, and integrity of creation will also be discussed. 

 
PSYCH-125 HEALTH PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS) 

 
This course examines the relationship of the social, biological, psychological, spiritual and cognitive variables to 
disease prevention and health promotion. Risk factors for health-compromising behaviours among adolescents and 
the various strategies for their modification are also discussed.  

 
PSYCH-126 EDUCATIONAL PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS) 

 
An overview of the field of educational psychology including research in the field. Theories in educational                
psychology and their application in the classroom are discussed. The analysis of classroom problems and the design 
of teaching-learning interventions are tackled using the practitioner-researcher approach. (Lifted from the CHED 
memo)  

 
PSYCH-127 ENVIRONMENTAL PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS) 

 
The world faces an ecological crisis, a crisis brought about by maladaptive human behavior. This course introduces 
some of the most pressing environmental issues, with special emphasis on the context and state of the environment. 
This course will provide an overview of the theoretical and practice tools in psychology that can be applied to 
understand the causes of the environment problems, and to formulate potential solutions. This course will underscore 
reciprocal relationship of human beings with the natural, with the specific objective of promoting sustainability. At the 
end of the course, student would have acquired the knowledge and skills to become effective agents and 
communicators of change for the environment.  
   
PSYCH-128 EMPLOYEE RECRUITMENT SELECTION (3 UNITS)                                   Prerequisite: PSYCH 118  

 
In this course, students will learn about workforce planning and various recruitment and selection methods.       Students 
will also be equipped with the skills in conducting job analysis, constructing interview questions for a given set of 
competencies and display effective interviewing skills.  
 
PSYCH-129 PERFORMANCE AND REWARDS MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS) 
 
The course in Performance and Rewards Management is designed to provide students with a basic                      
understanding of employee performance and theories regarding performance and rewards management. The students 
will go through discussions on compensation strategies and the use of the SAP HR program in compensation. Students 
will also learn useful measures for evaluating PRM for different levels of an organization as well as measures to promote 
continuous improvement. 
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S-115 LAB General Microbiology (Laboratory) (2 units) 
Prerequisites:  
For Biology: S-111 LEC (General Biology II) 
For Psychology: ((S-102 Lab Botany and S-103 Lab Zoology) 
 
The lab introduces to students the methods used for safely handling microorganisms.  It covers cultivation, enumeration 
and purification of bacteria, media preparation, staining techniques, biochemical tests, use of the spectrophotometer 
to determine microbial growth rate, and fermentation.   It also includes the classification and identification of 
microorganisms, physiology (nutrition and metabolism, growth, viability) and microbiology of air, water, soil, food, 
industrial and medical microbiology. Proper laboratory techniques and methods in handling microorganisms under 
aseptic conditions will be emphasized. 
 
S-110 Biochemistry (3 units) 
Prerequisites: S-109 LEC and S109 Lab (Organic Chemistry) 
For Psychology: ((S-102 Lab Botany and S-103 Lab Zoology) 
 
S-110 is an introductory 3-unit course in Biochemistry for science major students who want to pursue a profession in 
medicine, and other health or allied sciences. Biochemistry is the study of the chemistry of living species. It deals with 
the “molecular logic of the living state” – the set of ground rules that govern the nature, function, and interaction of 
specific types of molecules called “biomolecules” found in living organisms to maintain and perpetuate the living state. 
Part 1 of the course includes topics on the structures and functions of proteins, carbohydrates, nucleic acids and lipids 
and basic concepts of catalysis and enzyme action. 
Part 2 explores cellular pathways for the interconversion of different forms of energy, and the generation of adenosine 
triphosphate (ATP) and other energy storing molecules. Part 3 covers major evolutionary challenges in molecular 
reproduction and the adaption of cells and organism to changing environment. 
 
 
S-143 LEC Human Anatomy and Physiology (Lecture) (2 units) 
Prerequisite:   
S-104  LAB (General Biology I) for BS Biology 
S-103  LAB (General Zoology) for BS Psychology 
 
This is an introductory course to human anatomy and physiology for pre-medical students and those interested in 
gaining a deeper knowledge of the human body. The course will deal with topics on the structure of the human body, 
and its relationship to function. This course runs in close conjunction with the laboratory class. When possible and 
appropriate, references to common or unique human diseases will also be used as a means to further show how both 
structure and function affect human health. 
 
S-143 LAB Human Anatomy and Physiology (Laboratory) (1 unit) 
Prerequisite:   
S-104  LAB (General Biology I) for BS Biology 
S-103  LAB (General Zoology) for BS Psychology 
 
The laboratory course will deal with topics on the structure of the human body, and its relationship to function. The 
laboratory activities aim to demonstrate this correlation. When possible and appropriate, references to common or 
unique human diseases will also be used as a means to further show how both structure and function affect human 
health. 
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ELECTIVES 
 

PSYCH-123 FAMILY PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS) 
 

This course uses a psychological approach to the study of family behavior and its varied dimensions, such as 
psychological, social and cultural dimensions in contemporary Philippine setting. Emphasis is on the dynamics of family 
relations, parenting, interpersonal relationships, love and marriage. Service Learning is an option that will better 
immerse students in the dynamics that take place within local families and their communities and allow them to respond 
with psychological interventions that will address immediate concerns.  

 
PSYCH-124 POSITIVE PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS) 

 
This course introduces the students to the different concepts, frameworks, and scientific studies on happiness and 
flourishing. It examines specifically the positive, adaptive, creative, and the emotionally fulfilling characteristics of 
optimally functioning human persons, groups, and institutions. The core values of Miriam College, namely, truth, peace, 
justice, and integrity of creation will also be discussed. 

 
PSYCH-125 HEALTH PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS) 

 
This course examines the relationship of the social, biological, psychological, spiritual and cognitive variables to 
disease prevention and health promotion. Risk factors for health-compromising behaviours among adolescents and 
the various strategies for their modification are also discussed.  

 
PSYCH-126 EDUCATIONAL PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS) 

 
An overview of the field of educational psychology including research in the field. Theories in educational                
psychology and their application in the classroom are discussed. The analysis of classroom problems and the design 
of teaching-learning interventions are tackled using the practitioner-researcher approach. (Lifted from the CHED 
memo)  

 
PSYCH-127 ENVIRONMENTAL PSYCHOLOGY (3 UNITS) 

 
The world faces an ecological crisis, a crisis brought about by maladaptive human behavior. This course introduces 
some of the most pressing environmental issues, with special emphasis on the context and state of the environment. 
This course will provide an overview of the theoretical and practice tools in psychology that can be applied to 
understand the causes of the environment problems, and to formulate potential solutions. This course will underscore 
reciprocal relationship of human beings with the natural, with the specific objective of promoting sustainability. At the 
end of the course, student would have acquired the knowledge and skills to become effective agents and 
communicators of change for the environment.  
   
PSYCH-128 EMPLOYEE RECRUITMENT SELECTION (3 UNITS)                                   Prerequisite: PSYCH 118  

 
In this course, students will learn about workforce planning and various recruitment and selection methods.       Students 
will also be equipped with the skills in conducting job analysis, constructing interview questions for a given set of 
competencies and display effective interviewing skills.  
 
PSYCH-129 PERFORMANCE AND REWARDS MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS) 
 
The course in Performance and Rewards Management is designed to provide students with a basic                      
understanding of employee performance and theories regarding performance and rewards management. The students 
will go through discussions on compensation strategies and the use of the SAP HR program in compensation. Students 
will also learn useful measures for evaluating PRM for different levels of an organization as well as measures to promote 
continuous improvement. 
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In this course, students will learn about workforce planning and various recruitment and selection methods.       Students 
will also be equipped with the skills in conducting job analysis, constructing interview questions for a given set of 
competencies and display effective interviewing skills.  
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will also learn useful measures for evaluating PRM for different levels of an organization as well as measures to promote 
continuous improvement. 
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HRM-110 ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND CHANGE (3 units)   Prerequisite: PSYCH 118 
 
This course introduces the students to the theoretical models, processes and perspectives of organizational 
development at the individual, group and organizational levels of analysis.  Moreover, the course familiarizes students 
on the various framework on leadership management and the understanding and application of diverse approaches to 
leadership in organizations. The course emphasizes on the students’ building sound grasp of good practices and on 
developing the ability to apply such knowledge to actual problems in the industry. 

 
 
HRM-102 LABOUR LAW AND LEGISLATION (3 units)    Prerequisite: PSYCH 118 
 
The course presents students with significant laws and regulations that affect the practice of Human Resource 
Management in the Philippines. Topics include an overview of labour and employment; mandatory benefits; labour/ 
employee relations; and safety laws and rules.  Through this course, students develop deeper understanding and 
analysis of the rules governing employment through case studies, published materials, and legal decisions in local and 
international current events. 
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BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 

 
 
 
 
Program Description: As defined by R.A. 10587, 
Environmental Planning, also known as urban and 
regional planning, town and country planning, and or 
human settlements planning is the multi-disciplinary art 
and science of analysing, specifying, classifying, 
harmonizing, managing and regulating the use and 
development of land and water resources, in relation to 
their environs, for the development of sustainable 
communities and ecosystems. It also refers to activities 
concerned with the management and development of 
land, as well as the preservation, conservation and 
rehabilitation of the human environment.  
 
Program Goals: 
• To provide students with theoretical knowledge and 
systematic study of the principles and methods of 
environmental planning 

• To prepare students in improving the welfare of people 
and their communities by creating a convenient, 
equitable, healthful, efficient, attractive, and 
ecologically sustainable environment that contributes to 
economic prosperity of the present and future 
generations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BS EPM CURRICULUM SUMMARY 2018-2019 
Course No. of Units 
GENERAL EDUCATION      
ARTA-1.0      MMW-1.0       STS-1.0 
ETH-1.0         PCOM-1.0       TCW-1.0 
LWR-1.0        RPH-1.0           UTS-1.0 

27 

ECONOMICS 
ECON-101 

3 

NATIONAL SERVICE TRAINING PROGRAM 
NSTP-1.1       NSTP-2.1 

6 

PHYSICAL EDUCATION 
PATH-1.0       PATH-3.0 
PATH-2.0       PATH-4.0 

8 

MC REQUIRED COURSES 
MC-101       MC-102 
T-101           T-103 
T-102.1        T-104 

14 

GENERAL EDUCATION ELECTIVES/LITERATURE 
GEE-1       LIT.1.0 
GEE-2 
GEE-3 

12 

PROFESSIONAL/REQUIRED SUBJECTS 
ENV-100     ENV-108     ENV-115     ENV-125 
ENV-101     ENV-109     ENV-116     ENV-126 
ENV-102     ENV-110     ENV-118     ENV-127 
ENV-103     ENV-111     ENV120      ENV-128 
ENV-105     ENV-112     ENV-122     ENV-129 
ENV-106     ENV-113     ENV-123     ENV-131 
ENV-107     ENV-114     ENV-124      

88 

ELECTIVES 
ENV-104   ENV-117   ENV-119     ENV-121   ENV-130 

16 

SPECIAL TOPIC/THESIS/PRACTICUM 
TSLA-1   TSLA-2    TSLA-3    TSLA-4 

11 

TOTAL NUMBER OF UNITS 185 
FIFTH YEAR 37 
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Curriculum for SY 2018-2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

First Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

UTS-1.0 Understanding the Self 3 ARTA-1.0 Art Appreciation 3 
TCW-1.0 The Contemporary World 3 PCOM-1.0 Purposive Communication 3 
ENV-101 Technical Writing (including 

Practice & Business 
Documents, CLUP, and 
other Planning Documents) 

3 ENV-104 Earth Science (including 
Geology, Geography, 
Ecology, Hydrology) 

4 

ENV-102 Research Methods 1 3 ENV-103 Research Methods II 4 

T-101 Biblical Foundation of 
Christian Faith 

3 ENV-105 Statistics for EP 3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness I 

2 PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness II 

2 

NSTP-1.1 
 

National Service Training 
Program (NSTP I) 

3 
NSTP-2.1 National Service Training 

Program (NSTP II) 
3 

MC-101 MC Culture Identity and 
Social Responsibility I 

1 MC-102 MC Culture Identity and 
Social Responsibility II 

1 

      

 Total  21  Total  23 
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Second Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Subject Title Units Course 
Code 

Subject Title Units 

LWR-1.0 Life & Works of Rizal 3 STS -1.0 Science and Technology 
Society 

3 

LIT- 1.0 Great Books 3 MMW– 1.0 Mathematics in the Modern 
World 

3 

ENV-106 Human Ecology (including 
Natural Resources & 
Ecosystems, Sustainability, 
Heritage Conservation, 
Ancestral Domains, and the 
Natural & Built 
Environments) 

4 RPH – 1.0 Readings in Philippine History 3 

ENV-107 Introduction to Planning (with 
History) 

3 ENV-109 Introduction to National 
Planning Policy (Law and 
Regulation on Environmental 
Planning, Building Code, 
Local Government Code, 
Water & Sanitation Codes, 
Land Use Act, Climate 
Change Adaption & Disaster 
Risk Reduction, etc.) 

3 

ENV-108 Cartography/ Mapping/ 
Surveying/ Mapping 
Software 

3 ENV-110 Geographic Information 
System (including Remote 
Sensing, Satellite Imagery 
and Navigation/ Global 
Positioning System) 

5 

PATHF-3.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness III 

2 ENV-111 Planning Principles and 
Processes (including 
Analytical Tools) 

3 

T-102.1 Theology of Mission, 
Communion and Service 

3 ENV-112 Applied Meteorology & 
Climate Change 

3 

   PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness IV 

2 

 Total  21   Total  25 
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Third Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Subject Title Units Course 
Code 

Subject Title Units 

ETH-1.0 Ethics 3 ENV-117 Project Development & 
Management 

3 

ENV -113 Land Use & Transportation 
Planning I 

3 ENV-118 Land Use & Transportation 
Planning II 

3 

ENV-114 Local & International 
Planning Practice (including 
Ethics) 

3 ENV-119 Computer-aided Design 
(CAD) (Rendering & 
presentation techniques) 

3 

ENV-115 Public Administration & 
Administrative Planning 
(including Conduct of 
Stakeholder Meetings, etc.) 

4 ENV-120 Economic Development 
Planning & Policy 

3 

ENV-116 Housing & Settlements 
Planning 

3 ENV-121 Urban Design 3 

T-103 Contemporary Moral Issues 3 ENV-122 Infrastructure Planning 4 
GEE-1  Local Knowledge and 

Ethnoecology 
3 GEE-2 The Entrepreneurial Mindset 

and Innovative Thinking 
3 

ECON-1.0 Economics (Macro and 
Micro) 

3    

 Total  25  Total  22 
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Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course  
Code 

Subject Title Units Course 
Code 

Subject Title Units 

ENV-123 Social Planning & 
Development (Demography, 
Social System, Public 
Acceptability, Gender & 
Development, Vulnerability 
Analysis) 

4 ENV-128 Plan Implementation 
Strategies 

3 

ENV-124 Physical Planning and 
Building Regulation (Special 
Laws & Other Development 
Controls, Zoning 
Ordinances) 

3 ENV-129 Plan Opportunities/ 
Specializations 
(Government, NGOs, 
Developers, Think Tank, 
Policy Law, Lobby Groups) 

3 

ENV-125 Financial/ Fiscal Planning/ 
Investment Programming 

3 ENV-130 Planning Office Operation 
(Entrepreneurship) 

3 

ENV-126 Environmental Investigation 
I (IEE/EIA & Waste 
Management) 

4 ENV-131 Environmental Investigation 
II (Strategic Environmental 
Assessment & 
Global/Regional/ Trans-
boundary Issues) 

4 

ENV-127 Risk Reduction and 
Management (DRRM), and 
Climate Change Action 
(CCA) Planning 

3 TSLA-3 Thesis/SLA (Individual) 4 

TSLA-1 Pre-Thesis/SLA (Individual) 2 TSLA-4 Thesis/Service Learning 
Arrangement/ SLA (Group 
Work) 

3 

TSLA-2 Pre-Thesis/Service Learning 
Arrangement/ SLA 
(Groupwork) 

2 ENV-100 Rizal 1 

GEE-3 Gender Relations, Human 
Rights and Peace 

3 T-104 Theology of Social Justice 
and Peace 

3 

 Total  24  Total  24 
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Fifth Year SPECIALIZATION (37 units) 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Subject Title Units Course 
Code 

Subject Title Units 

ENV-S201 Physical Planning 
Archetypes, Site Planning 
and Environmental Design 

4 ENV-S207 CLUP-CDP Formulation 3 

ENV-S202 International Planning and 
Environmental Policy 

3 ENV-S208 Crafting of the Zoning 
Ordinance (ZO) and Other 
Planning Policies 

3 

ENV-S203 Natural Resources Planning 3 ENV-S209 Thesis 3 (Group): CLUP-
CDP Output for a 4th or 5th 
Class Municipality (requires 
official mentorship by a 
registered/ licensed 
Environmental Planner) 

5 

ENV-S204 Environmental Economics 3 ENV-S210 Thesis 4 (Group): Zoning 
Ordinance (ZO) Output for 
4th or 5th Class Municipality 
(requires official mentorship 
by a registered/ licensed 
Environmental Planner) 

4 

ENV-S205 Professional Ethics 3 ENV-S211 Pre-Feasibility Study (PFS) 3 
ENV-S206 Plan Critique 3    
 Total  19  Total  18 
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COURSE DESCRIPTIONS 
 

ENV-101 TECHNICAL WRITING (3 UNITS) 
(including Practice & Business Documents, CLUP, and other Planning Documents)  
  
This course hones the writing skills of the student in communicating information about environmental planning. It 
includes drafting practice & business documents, Comprehensive Land Use Plan and other planning documents.  
 
ENV-102 RESEARCH METHODS 1 (3 UNITS)  
 
This course covers an overview of the research and information requirements of plans, programs and projects; data 
collection and analytical tools and presenting research findings. 
 
ENV-103 RESEARCH METHODS 2 (4 UNITS) (Quantitative and Spatial Methods)      Prerequisite: ENV-102 
 
This course covers an overview of the map requirements and research tools of plans, programs and projects and these 
include descriptive, predictive and decision tools and presenting research findings.  
 
ENV-104 EARTH SCIENCE (4 UNITS) 
(including Geology, Geography, Ecology, Hydrology)  
 
This course provides an integrative perspective on exploring and understanding earth systems. It introduces the 
fundamental principles and concepts of earth science through a core module that allows students to investigate and 
explore the major components of the earth system including geography, geology, ecology and hydrology. It also 
includes dynamics of earth science in relation to social and cultural interactions that affect the ecosystems.  
 
ENV-105 STATISTICS FOR EP (3 UNITS)  
 
Statistics for Environmental Planning is designed to provide the students, primarily those in the field of environmental 
planning, a conceptual introduction to the field of statistics and its applications. Applications of data analysis and 
statistical methodology are an integral part of the course enhanced through computer-aided instructions. Topics include 
probability distributions, normal distribution, sampling and sampling distributions, estimations, hypothesis tests, and 
correlation and regression analyses.  
 
ENV-106 HUMAN ECOLOGY (4 UNITS)  
(including Natural Resources & Ecosystems, Sustainability, Heritage Conservation, Ancestral Domains, and 
the Natural & Built Environments)  
 
The course introduces the fundamental concepts of ecology and how humans affect and are affected by ecosystems. 
Principles and current issues in natural resources management, sustainability, heritage conservation and ancestral 
domains are discussed. The relationship of humans with natural and built environment is explored. 
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ENV-107 INTRODUCTION TO PLANNING (with History) (3 UNITS)                                      Prerequisite: ENV-104  
 
This lecture is a 3-unit introductory course on understanding planning/ environmental planning; the foundation/ history, 
general concepts/ theories/ principles of environmental planning; types/ categories/ roles/ functions/ training of 
environmental planners (EnPs); cities and their foundation/ growth/ development/ planning; and regions and regional 
planning / concepts and policies/ approaches and strategies.  
 
ENV-108 CARTOGRAPHY/ MAPPING/ SURVEYING/ MAPPING SOFTWARE (3 UNITS) 
 
The course provides fundamental knowledge on the nature of spatial data and the utility of the Geographic Information 
Systems (GIS) in visualizing and analyzing spatial patterns and processes. It focuses on the techniques of gathering, 
consolidating, and visualizing data from primary and secondary sources, with emphasis on ways of validating 
information and assessing data quality. The course incorporates the use of analog and digital maps and takes into 
account both the qualitative and quantitative aspects of spatial data in exploring and interpreting the spatial 
characteristics of natural and cultural phenomena. Students are trained in generating thematic and analytical maps 
and geo-tagged information for use of diverse audience in various settings.  
 
ENV-109 INTRODUCTION TO NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY (3 UNITS)                Prerequisite: ENV-101  
 
This lecture is a 3-unit introductory course on the general appreciation of State policy (law and regulatory regime) as 
the same relates to the practice of environmental planning, to the development/ redevelopment of settlements, to the 
protection and conservation of the natural and built environments of ancestral domains and of the public domain, to 
the stream of regulations that emanate from enabling laws and to the process of creating laws and regulations at all 
levels of governance. The course shall essentially focus on the pertinent portions of general laws (International 
Treaties, United Nations Conventions, including those on the law of the sea), 1987 Philippine Constitution, 1949 New 
Civil Code, 1991 Local Government Code, Water Code, Forestry Code, 1987 Administrative Code, laws on land use, 
settlements, open spaces, legal easements, the ancestral and public domains, conservation, agriculture, fishery, 
mining, and the like; Environmental Laws including the recent ones on Climate Change Adaptation & Disaster Risk 
Reduction, Professional Regulation, Laws on Dispute/ Conflict Resolution and on Alternative Dispute Resolution 
(ADR); Laws on Governance including Procurement Laws such as the 2003 Government Procurement Reform Act 
(GPRA), the Anti-Corrupt and Practices Act, Ombudsman & Sandiganbayan Acts, Code of Conduct of Government 
Officials & Employees, Anti-Red Tape Act, etc.  
 
ENV-110 GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (5 UNITS)  
(including Remote Sensing, Satellite Imagery and Navigation/ Global Positioning System)  
 
The course introduces the students to the theories and principles of spatial analysis using modern tools of geographic 
data handling and the Geographic Information Systems (GIS). Students are closely supervised in developing their 
analytical skills through a learning module that incorporates a broad selection of geographic problems relating to site 
suitability analysis, urban and rural spatial development, environmental hazards, and site vulnerability assessment.  
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ENV-111 PLANNING PRINCIPLES AND PROCESSES (3 UNITS)         Prerequisite: ENV-107, ENV-102, ENV-103 
 
This lecture is a 3-unit introductory course on planning principles and processes including planning 
information/management; tools/techniques in data analysis; plan preparation/content; and planning of various 
sectors/areas.  
 
ENV-112 APPLIED METEOROLOGY AND CLIMATE CHANGE (3 UNITS)        Prerequisite: ENV-104 
 
This lecture is a 3-unit course to discuss the differences between climate and weather and how these affect 
environmental planning of policies, plans, programs and projects. The course will analyze the factors affecting weather 
patterns, siting and establishment of weather stations, the common terminologies used in weather forecasting, 
interpreting weather maps, forecasting weather events, site visit to PAGASA for demonstration on the models and 
weather forecasting techniques, international cooperation in monitoring weather patterns, forecasting and disaster 
preparedness. The course will also discuss the factors affecting climate, the natural change, studies on past climates 
patterns, human effects on climate, and current debates on climate change. The course will include an analysis of 
climate change forecasting models, monitoring of climate change and failures of models. The course will discuss the 
impact of climates on human history (growth, location and decline of important cultures and cities), human migration 
and adaptation, and in the planning of new settlements, urban renewal and protection of vulnerable communities. The 
course will close with a discussion on international agreements and action plans to mitigate and adapt to human 
induced climate change.  
 
ENV-113 LAND USE PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION PLANNING I LECTURE (3 UNITS)  
Prerequisite: ENV-104, ENV-107 
 
This is a 3-unit course basically concerned with location, intensity, and amount of land development required for various 
space-using functions of city life (industry, wholesaling, business, housing, recreation, education, religious/cultural 
activities of the people). Land use planning is studied/analyzed as one of the most important elements of 
comprehensive planning. Transportation is analyzed essentially as service which enables people/firms/goods/various 
other entities to carry on activities at sites selected for those purposes in separate locations.  
 
ENV-114 LOCAL AND INTERNATIONAL PLANNING PRACTICE (3 UNITS) (including Ethics)  
 
This course orients the students on the framework of planning in the context of globalization. It seeks to provide 
understanding of the relationship between the conditions in the Philippines and global forces, particularly the 
importance and impacts of globalization in local politics and economy. The course also develops analytical and critical 
skills in understanding the ethical issues involved in globalization. Discussions also familiarize students with 
approaches and role of concerned stakeholders including international organizations.  
 
ENV-115 PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE PLANNING (4 UNITS)  
(Good Governance and Development Administration and Management)  
Prerequisite: ENV-109 
  
This course describes qualities of good governance and effective development administration and management for 
planning and implementing area and sector plans, programs and projects focusing on organizations and institutions. 
Sectors are defined here as public, private, community -based peoples organizations and multi-partite arrangements.  
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ENV-116 HOUSING AND SETTLEMENTS PLANNING (3 UNITS)        Prerequisite: ENV-109  
  
This lecture is a 3-unit introductory course on the general appreciation of policies and practice to Housing and 
Settlements Planning as a core subject to the theory and practice of environmental planning, 
development/redevelopment of settlements, to the stream of regulations that emanate from enabling laws, the State 
organization or agencies mandated to plan and implement socialized housing, the "housing backlog", level of 
performance in meeting socialized housing needs, socialized housing for rental and for ownership, costs and standards, 
affordability, the market for socialized housing, etc.. While the subject of "economic" or "affordable" housing will be 
touched upon, this course will focus on "socialized housing" as this is the area that addresses the needs of "low-cost", 
"low-income" segment of the housing market. Vital to the discussion is the implementation of B.P. 220 (Socialized 
Housing Act) and P.D 957 (Condominium Act) as they set standards and minimum costs for socialized housing. The 
basic thesis of this course is the answer to the question: "Why is housing for the lower-income segments not being 
met?” As a matter of history, the transition (in 1986) from the Human Settlements Commission to the HUDCC will be 
discussed.  
 
ENV-117 PROJECT DEVELOPMENT AND MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS)    Prerequisite: ENV-115, ENV-109 
 
The course traces project development and management processes in various sectors. It describes qualities of good 
governance and effective development administration and management for the development, planning, implementation 
and monitoring of sector plans, programs and projects focusing on key sub-sectors, sectors, organizations and 
institutions. Sectors are defined here as public, private, community -based, peoples organizations and multi-partite 
arrangements. 
 
ENV-118 LAND USE AND TRANSPORTATION PLANNING II (3 UNITS) (Lecture and Workshop)  
Prerequisite: ENV-113 
 
This is a 3-unit course essentially concerned with application of the concepts, theories, and principles of land use 
planning, focusing on site planning and comprehensive land use planning; analysis/ planning for various forms/systems 
of transportation.  
 
ENV-119 COMPUTER-AIDED DESIGN (CAD) (3 UNITS) (Rendering & presentation techniques)  
 
The course provides students with skills on technical drafting using AutoCAD & Sketch-UP software; The students will 
learn to navigate with these software, develop their ability to visualize and generate 2D and 3D images, and create 
orthographic, and isometric drawings presentations using basic draw, modify & annotation commands. They will learn 
how to determine scale and incorporate measurement units in technical drafting in AutoCAD & Sketch-UP.  
 
 
ENV-120 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AND POLICY (3 UNITS)     Prerequisite: ENV-107, ENV-111 
 
This course provides an introduction to the context, theory, process and practice of local economic development 
planning and policy.  
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ENV-121 URBAN DESIGN (ELEC) (3 UNITS)  
 
This lecture is a 3-unit elective course on the introduction to Urban Design as the process of designing and shaping 
cities, municipalities and barangays. It introduces the Elements of Urban Design including the design of buildings, 
public spaces, transport systems and forms of mobility and landscape; and the general concepts, theories and 
principles which define the articulation of space; and the Process of Urban Design.  
 
ENV-122 INFRASTRUCTURE PLANNING (4 UNITS) 
 
The course enables the students to learn the basic principles and fundamental methods in the planning and conceptual 
design of utilities and infrastructure including but not limited to water, power/electricity, sewerage, drainage, and 
transport systems that are needed for the sustainable development of properties/estates, communities, towns and 
cities.  
 
ENV-123 SOCIAL PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT (4 UNITS)          Prerequisites: ENV-102, ENV-103, ENV-105  
 
Identify social development issues and concerns, define vulnerable groups, formulate social development policies, 
programs and projects, and assess social impacts of programs and projects on vulnerable groups.  
 
ENV-124 PHYSICAL PLANNING AND BUILDING REGULATION (LEC) (3 UNITS)  
Prerequisite: ENV-109  
 
This lecture is a 3-unit introductory course on the specific appreciation of applicable law and regulations as the same 
relates to the practice of environmental planning, to the development/ redevelopment of settlements and both the built 
and natural environments, and to the stream of regulations that emanate from enabling laws; the course shall 
essentially focus on the interpretations, appreciation and application of pertinent portions of key special laws, 
particularly those dealing with international, national and local level development controls/ DCs e.g. national DCs urban 
development & housing act (UDHA), PD. No. 957 (on subdivisions and condominiums), National Building Code of the 
Ph (NBCP), 2015 Green Building Referral Code (GBRC), PEZA and TIEZA charters, B.P. Blg. 220 (socialized housing), 
Sanitation Code, The Water Code, Fire Code of the Ph (FCP) as a referral code (RC) of the NBCP, environmental 
laws, laws on climate change adaptation (CCA) and disaster risk reduction (DRR), heritage conservation, HUDCC and 
HLURB/ NHA charters and executive issuances, the Environmental Planning Act of 2013 and the Intellectual Property 
Law, indigenous peoples, gender and development (GAD), and their derivative regulations (DRS), and the like; and 
local DCs including zoning ordinances (ZOS) , special ordinances (SOs) , and the like.  
 
ENV-125 FINANCIAL/ FISCAL PLANNING/ INVESTMENT PROGRAMMING (3 UNITS)  
Prerequisite: ECON 1.0, ENV-120  
 
Formulation of financial management plan and fiscal policy for a local government unit.  
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ENV-126 ENVIRONMENTAL INVESTIGATION I (4 UNITS)  
 
IEE/ EIA & Waste Management Prerequisite: Earth Sciences, Research Methods 1 and 2, Introduction to National 
Planning Policy, Planning Principles and Processes, Economics, Kinetics/Human Ecology, Housing and Settlements 
Planning, Physical Planning and Building Regulation. This lecture is a 4-unit course in environmental investigation on 
the impacts, development of alternatives, selection of alternatives, screening process to determine if the action is 
covered by the Philippine environmental impact assessment (EIA) laws, scoping of significant impacts, data gathering 
and analysis, differentiating forecast from projections, quantification of impacts, developing the environment 
management plan (EMP), preparing the EIA or initial environmental examination (IEE) report, comparative analysis of 
the EIA process and implementation in other countries and the Philippines. The course will also investigate the reason 
for failure to reduce the environmental impacts of projects in the Philippines.  
 
ENV-127 RISK REDUCTION AND MANAGEMENT (DRRM), AND CLIMATE CHANGE ACTION (CCA), PLANNING 
(3 UNITS)  
 
This course provides students with knowledge and understanding of the causes and effects of climate change and how 
communities and the economy can effectively adapt to such changes. It will also orient students on the various disaster 
risks that communities are confronted with as a result of natural hazards, e.g. flooding, storm surge, landslide, and 
earthquake. The students are introduced into the various structural and non-structural measures that can be carried 
out in a particular locality to mitigate and manage disaster risks.  
 
ENV-128 PLAN IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES (3 UNITS)  
Prerequisite: ENV-113, ENV-118 
Co-Requisites: ENV-122, ENV-107/ECON 1.0, ENV-109, ENV-124  
 
Plan implementation strategies include plan approval, legislation, project development and investment programming 
and financing, information dissemination, human resource and organization and development.  
 
ENV-129 PLAN OPPORTUNITIES/ SPECIALIZATIONS (GOVERNMENT, NGOs, DEVELOPERS, THINK TANK, 
POLICY LAW, LOBBY GROUPS (3 UNITS)  
 
This course guides the student in developing plans for special groups involved in environmental work e.g. government, 
NGOs, developers, think tank, policy and law, lobby groups.  
 
ENV-130 PLANNING OFFICE OPERATION (ENTREPRENEURSHIP) (3 UNITS)  
 
This course orients the student to the principles and practice of planning the operations program of an office focusing 
on policy and procedure development, budgeting, plan implementation, monitoring and evaluation.  
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ENV-131 ENVIRONMENTAL INVESTIGATION II STRATEGIC ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND GLOBAL/ 
REGIONAL/ TRANS-BOUNDARY ISSUES (4 UNITS) 
 
Prerequisite: ENV-126 
 
This is a 4-unit course in continuation of the course on Environmental Investigation I. The previous course focused on 
identification of actions with significant impacts under Philippine EIA laws and comparing it to international practice. In 
this course, the environmental examination is focused on the wider and "upstream" planning functions covered by 
strategic environmental assessment (SEA). SEA investigates the environmental impacts of policies, master plans, and 
programs. Some of the policies, such as monetary policy, at first glance may have no environmental impacts at all but 
on deeper analysis could have significant environmental impacts at the national, regional and even international level. 
SEA could be similar to the project driven EIA discussed in Environmental Investigation I. It could be sustainable driven, 
regional, sectoral and programmatic type. In the development of policies, master plans and programs, the decision 
makers’ vision is not limited to the local conditions but also affects and is affected by regional and international issues. 
The course will examine regional and international environmental issues, programs and initiatives as those factors are 
integrated into the national and local environmental planning exercise. International issues such as climate change that 
are covered in more detail in other courses will not be considered in this course. 
 
ENV-100 RIZAL (1 UNIT)  
This course discusses Rizal as an environmental planner. During his exile in Dapitan, Rizal carried out some town 
projects that improved the living conditions in the area.  
 
ECON-1.0 ECONOMICS (MACRO AND MICRO) (3 UNITS) 
Prerequisite: ENV-111 
 
Introduction to basic macro and micro economics concepts, theories and policy issues and instruments and their 
applications. 
 
TSLA 1 (Service Learning in Community) – This subject involves Individual immersion in a community e.g. 
indigenous peoples, urban poor, fisherfolk, farmers, etc.  Groups may be deployed in an area, but output is 
individually graded. Requirements include project and individual reflection papers. The process follows the Service 
Learning guidelines of Miriam College. 

TSLA 2 (Pre-Thesis) - This course develops the research topic, Review of Related Literature, and Methodology of 
the thesis. The topic must be in a chosen field in environmental planning. The thesis can be done in groups of two or 
three students. 

TSLA 3 (Practicum) – The course involves the immersion of students with industry partners, requiring 240 hours of 
service. The partner could be a national government agency, LGU, private organizations, consultancies, or NGO that 
are involved in various aspects of environmental planning and management. The partnership for practicum is 
covered by a MOA. This class is preferably conducted in the midyear of the Third Year. 

TSLA 4 (Thesis defense) – This stage involved the implementation of data gathering and analysis, and conclusion 
of the thesis. The paper will be orally presented with a panel of experts. 
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BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN ACCOUNTANCY  
 
Description:  

 
The BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN 
ACCOUNTANCY program principally aims to 
prepare students for the Certified Public Accountant 
Licensure Examination (CPALE) and for a career in 
the field of accountancy and finance. 

 
It is also designed to focus on organizational 
development, problem solving, objective and 
analytical thinking, business and corporate 
communications and information technology (IT), 
and decision-making. 

 
Inclusive in the program is 18 units of integrated 
accounting courses taken on the last semester of the 
student as preparation to the CPALE. 
 
Program Outcomes: 
Miriam College, expects its BS Accountancy 
graduates to: 
 
1. Demonstrate working knowledge in resolving 

business issues and problems, with a global and 
strategic perspective in the areas of financial 
accounting and reporting, cost accounting and 
management, management accounting, 
finance, auditing, taxation, accounting 
information systems and accounting research; 
 

2. Prepare for the CPA licensure examinations and 
other certification examinations and for 
employment in commerce and industry, public 
practice, government and education sectors;  

 
3. Acquire professional knowledge, professional skills, and professional values, ethics and attitudes that enable them 

to continue to learn and adapt to change throughout their professional lives; 
 

4. Employ technology as a business tool in acquiring financial and non-financial information, preparing reports and 
making decisions; 

 
5.    Develop responsible professionals who are multi-disciplinary and conversant in concepts in business, sciences, 
and other fields.  The graduates are not only competent accountants, but also financial analysts and business advisors 
who uphold the ethics and the principles of transparency and accountability; and 
 
6.    Demonstrate personal pride in addressing issues applying Miriam College Core Values of truth, justice, peace and 
integrity of creation. 

 

 

COLLEGE OF BUSINESS, 
ENTREPRENEURSHIP & ACCOUNTANCY 

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN ACCOUNTANCY 

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN ACCOUNTING INFORMATION SYSTEM 

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION  

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN ENTREPRENEURSHIP 

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN LEISURE AND TOURISM MANAGEMENT 
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Program Goals:  
A graduate of Bachelor of Accountancy should be able, within 3 to 5 years to:  

• Assume supervisory/managerial position as competent and ethical professional accountant. 
• Practice her profession as licensed Certified Public Accountant. 
• Operate her own accountancy/auditing consultancy firm. 

 
Departmental Policy: 
All incoming first year and transferee students starting SY 2018-2019 who wish to obtain a degree in BSA/ BSAIS will 
enter Miriam College through a common program under the BSA/ BSAIS program. All students who wish to pursue the 
BSA program on their 3rd year must obtain a grade of at least 3.0 in all their Accounting, Business Law, Taxation, and 
Finance subjects and pass the departmental examination to be given periodically.  
 
Qualifying Grade and Requirements for BSA Program: 
At the end of the 2nd semester of the 2nd year level, only students with a CQPA and MCQPA of at least 3.00 with no 
grade lower than 3.0 or failure (F or FA) in all Accounting, Business Law, Taxation and Finance subjects are qualified 
to proceed to the BSA Program.  

a. A student who wishes to proceed to the BSA program should submit a completed application form.  
b. All applicants will be evaluated by the Chairperson of the Department of Accountancy to determine 

the eligibility of the student to take the qualifying examination for the BSA program. 
i. The applicant must pass the qualifying examination for Accounting, Law, Taxation and 

Finance subjects.  
ii. The applicant should have taken and passed all the Accounting, Business Law, Taxation 

and Finance subjects offered from first year to second year level in the curriculum. A student 
is not allowed to re-enroll a subject with grade lower than 3.0.  
 

CQPA and MCQPA Requirement: 
1. A 1st Year or 2nd year student is required to maintain a MCQPA of at least 3.0 to qualify in the BSA program 

and to meet the required 2.40 CQPA to proceed to 4th year. Failure to meet these requirements will mean 
disqualification from the BSA program and disqualification from retention in Miriam College. 

2. A BSA student (from 3rd year to 4th year) is required to maintain a MCQPA of at least 3.0. In case the MCQPA 
of the BSA student is below 3.0, the student will revert back to the BSAIS program.  

a. A BSA student must obtain a term mark of at least 3.0 in all Accounting and Business Law subjects 
before she will be allowed to take higher Accounting, Business Law and later Taxation subjects;  

 
3rd year and 4th year BSA students will only be allowed to re-enroll once for a subject with grade lower than 3.0. In no 
case will a student be allowed to re-enroll for a second time for the same or other accounting board subjects. However, 
she can be allowed to re-enroll on the condition that an additional Major Accounting subject will be taken and passed 
with a grade of at least 3.0. Students with an F or FA grade in any Accounting, Law, Taxation and Finance subject is 
automatically disqualified to continue in the BSA and BSAIS program.  
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Departmental Examinations: 
 

1. Departmental Examinations are given only to 1st year and 2nd year BSA/ BSAIS students.  
2. Departmental Examinations are given at the final period of the semester to Accounting, Business Law, 

Taxation and Finance subjects. Departmental examinations shall form part of the final grade of the BSA/ 
BSAIS student.  

3. Departmental examination shall be given in the following subjects: 
a. Financial Accounting and Reporting 
b. Conceptual Framework and Accounting Standards 
c. Law on Obligations and Contracts 
d. Business Laws and Regulations 
e. Intermediate Accounting I 
f. Financial Management 
g. Cost Accounting and Control 
h. Strategic Cost Management  
i. Regulatory Framework and Legal Issues in Business 
j. Governance, Business Ethics, Risk Management, and Internal Control 
k. Intermediate Accounting II 
l. Financial Markets 

4. 3rd year and 4th year BSA students have no departmental examination. Instead, a diagnostic examination is 
given and shall form part of the final grade of the student.  

5. Intervention program is provided to 3rd year and 4th year BSA students to enhance the students’ knowledge 
in areas for improvement and concentration.  
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Second Year   
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMSTER  

Subject 
Code 

 
 

Units  Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units 

T-102.1 Theology of Mission, 
Communion and Service 

3  STS-1.0 Science, Technology and 
Society 

3 

ACC-108 Statistical Analysis with 
Software Application 

3  ACC-115 Strategic Cost 
Management 

3 

ACC-109 Business Laws and Regulations 3  ACC-116 Regulatory Framework and 
Legal Issues In Business 

3 

ACC-110 Intermediate Accounting 1 3  ACC-117 Governance, Business 
Ethics, Risk Management, 
and Internal Control 

3 

ACC-111 Financial Management 3  ACC-118 IT Application Tools in 
Business 

3 

ACC-112 Accounting Information System 3  ACC-119 Intermediate Accounting 2 3 
ACC-113 Cost Accounting and Control 3  ACC-120 Financial Markets 3 
TCW – 1.0 The Contemporary World 3  PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity Towards 

Health and Fitness IV 
2 

PATHF-3.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness III 

2   GEE-1 Local Knowledge and 
Ethnoecology 

3 

 Total  26   Total 26 

MIDYEAR TERM 
 
Subject 
Code 

 
Subject Title 

 
Units 

 
GEE-2  

 
The Entrepreneurial 
Mindset and Innovative 
Thinking 

 
3 

ETH-1.0 Ethics 3 
ACC-
145 

Principles and Methods of 
Teaching Accounting 

3 

                                  Total  9 
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Revised Curriculum Summary SY 2018 – 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 

MIDYEAR TERM 
Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units 

UTS-1.0 Understanding the Self 3 
PCOM-1.0 Purposive Communication 3 
ARTA-1.0 Art Appreciation 3 
 Total  9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

First Year  
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units  Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units 

MMW-1.0 Mathematics in the Modern World 3  BME-102 Operations Management and 
TQM 

3 

RPH-1.0 Readings in Philippine History 3  ACC-103 Partnership and Corporation 3 
BME-101 Introduction to Business 

Functions 
3  ACC-104 Management Science  3 

ACC-101 Managerial Economics 3  ACC-105 Economic Development 3 
ACC-102 Financial Accounting and 

Reporting 
3  ACC-106 Conceptual Framework and 

Accounting Standards 
3 

T-101 Biblical Foundation of Christian 
Faith 

3  ACC-107 Law on Obligations and 
Contracts 

3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activities Towards Health 
and Fitness I 

2  PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness II 

2 

NSTP 1.1 National Service Training 
Program-(NSTP 1) 

3  NSTP 2.1 National Service Training 
Program-NSTP II 

3 

MC-101 MC Culture, Identity and Social 
Responsibility 1 

1  MC-102 MC Culture, Identity and 
Social Responsibility 2 

1 

 Total  24   Total  24 
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MIDYEAR TERM 

Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units 

LWR-1.0 Life and Works of Rizal 3 
HU 102 Arts and Design 3 
ACC-148 Updates in Financial Reporting 

Standards 
3 

 Total  9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Third Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units  Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units 

ACC-124 Strategic Business Analysis 3  ACC-134 Accounting for Special 
Transactions 

3 

ACC-130 Auditing and Assurance: 
Specialized Industries 

3  ACC-146 Operations Auditing 
 

3 

BME-103 Strategic Management 3  ACC-147 Valuation Concepts and 
Methods 

3 

ACC-131 Accounting for Government and 
Non-profit Organizations 

3  ACC-123 Accounting Research Methods 3 

ACC-132 Auditing and Assurance: Concepts 
and Applications 1 

3  ACC-135 Auditing in a CIS Environment 3 

ACC-133 Auditing and Assurance Principles 3  ACC-136 Auditing and Assurance: 
Concepts and Applications 2 

3 

ACC-122 Intermediate Accounting 3 3  ACC-137 Accounting for Business 
Combinations 

3 

T-103 Contemporary Moral Issues 3  ACC-125 International Business and 
Trade 

3 

ACC-114 Income Taxation 3  ACC 121 Business Taxation 3 

 Total  27    Total  27 

130 | P a g e  

 

 
 
 

 
 

COURSE DESCRIPTIONS 
 
COMMON BUSINESS AND MANAGEMENT EDUCATION COURSE: 

 
BME-101 INTRODUCTION TO BUSINESS FUNCTIONS (3 UNITS) 
 
This course aims to provide students an understanding of the activities carried out by a business organization. These 
are Management and Organization; Finance and Accounting; Operations and Systems; Marketing and Sales and 
Humans Resource Administration. These functions are necessary to achieve the objectives of a business and vital in 
designing strategies, executing plans and decision making. Topics include theories, principles and their application to 
a business set up.  
 
BME-102 OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT AND TQM (3 UNITS) 
 
Operations transform resources to produce goods or deliver services; and operations managers plan, design, control 
and improve needed systems and processes. While considering interactive marketing and finance and operations 
strategies, students apply problem solving and decision-making tools for increased quality, productivity, value and 
competitiveness. It also covers total quality management and supply chain management, just-in-time and lean 
manufacturing systems in response to more global, technology-driven and environmentally conscious markets.  
 
BME-103 STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS) 
 
This course is about running the total business enterprise. It introduces theoretical concepts and frameworks useful in 
understanding the challenges and the environment which the business operates, the direction the management intends 
to take, the strategic plans in getting the enterprise moving in the intended direction, and the tasks of implementing the 
chosen strategy successfully.  
 
 
 
 

Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units  Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units 

ACC-126 Accounting Internship 6     
ACC-127 Accountancy Research 3  ACC-138 Integrated Accounting 1 3 
T-104 Theology of Social Justice and 

Peace 
3  ACC-139 Integrated Accounting 2 3 

GEE-3 Gender Relations, Human Rights 
and Peace 

    3  ACC-140 Integrated Accounting 3  3 

    ACC-141 Integrated Accounting 4 3 
    ACC-142 Integrated Accounting 5 2 
    ACC-143 Integrated Accounting 6 2 
    ACC-144 Integrated Accounting 7 2 
 Total  15   Total  18 
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ACC-105 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (3 UNITS) 
 
This course emphasizes dynamic models of growth and development. It covers the meaning and measurement of 
economic development, growth theories, poverty and income distribution, the role of geography and institutions, fertility 
and population growth, the role of credit markets and microfinance, health and nutrition, education and female 
empowerment. Topics covered include: migration, modernization, and technological change; static and 
dynamic models of political economy; the dynamics of income distribution and institutional change; firm structure 
in developing countries; development, transparency, and functioning of financial markets; privatization; and banks 
and credit market institutions in emerging markets. Macroeconomics deals primarily with the study and 
determination of economic activity. More specifically, topics for discussion include national income theory, monetary 
policy, fiscal policy, taxation, employment, price level, international trade, economic development and agrarian reform. 

ACC-106 CONCEPTUAL FRAMEWORK AND ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (3 UNITS) 

This course is a study of the accounting function, its role in society, and the theory that provides the foundation for 
modern financial accounting. It deals with the conceptual framework for financial reporting, the Philippine Financial 
Reporting Standards, the Philippine Accounting Standards, and how these standards affect financial accounting 
and reporting for business entities. This course explains the standard-setting process, the authority attached to the 
standards, and the body authorized to promulgate them. It is also designed to discuss the recognition, measurement 
and derecognition principles as well as the pertinent disclosure requirements of the standards. The discussion focuses 
on the currently effective pronouncements by Financial Reporting Standards Council, Accounting Standards Council, 
and Philippine Interpretations Committee. 

ACC-107 LAW ON OBLIGATION AND CONTRACTS (3 UNITS) 
 
This course gives the student an understanding of the legal concepts and rules governing the law of obligations and 
contracts and application of these concepts to practical problems. It involves a discussion of the nature, sources, kinds, 
and extinguishments of contracts including defective contracts and other miscellaneous topics relevant to the course.  
 
ACC-108 STATISTICAL ANALYSIS WITH SOFTWARE APPLICATION (3 UNITS) 
 
This course provides a fundamental understanding of the concepts of statistical interference necessary to effectively 
employ statistical methods in contemporary business situations. It is designed to use the appropriate statistical 
techniques and any available software application that will facilitate a data-driven decision making process in the field 
of accounting and other related areas. In addition to the more complex software for data analysis, it requires the 
students to be highly proficient with the use of MS Excel for statistical analysis. 
 
ACC-109 BUSINESS LAWS AND REGULATIONS (3 UNITS) 
 
This course is intended to give the students a broad knowledge of legal provisions governing business associations- 
limited liability, company, partnership, and corporations. Topics include the nature of partnerships and elements and 
kinds of partnerships. It will discuss rules of management in the distribution of profits and sharing of losses and liabilities 
as well as modes of dissolution, limited partnership, nature and classes of corporations, requirements for incorporation; 
powers of corporation (expressed, implied and incidental), Board of Directors, classes of stock, powers and obligations 
of stockholders, majority and minority controls, corporate reorganization (mergers, consolidations, and other business 
combinations), modes of dissolution and liquidation, and statutory books, records, and returns required for a 
corporation.   
 

131 | P a g e  

 

 
 
 
 

CORE ACCOUNTING AND EDUCATION COURSES: 
 
ACC-101 MANAGERIAL ECONOMICS (3 UNITS) 
 
This course presents concepts and principles from the perspective of managerial economics. Emphasis is 
placed upon the importance of critical evaluation of different choices in coming up with managerial decisions in 
business. The course is designed such that students may understand microeconomics in a multidisciplinary manner, 
taking into consideration the legal, political, and social environments, among others. Learners are expected to 
grasp the underlying concepts, understand their relationships, analyze their effects on firms and markets, and 
ultimately be able to apply them in real-world situations. Topics include key measures of a business operation, 
demand and pricing, production and its related costs, economics of organization, market equilibrium, market 
structure, and market regulations. 

ACC-102  FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING (3 UNITS) 

This course provides a reinforcement of basic accounting, within the context of business and business decisions. Students 
obtain additional knowledge of the principles and concepts of accounting as well as their application that will enable them 
to appreciate the production of accounting data. Emphasis is placed on understanding the reasons underlying basic accounting 
concepts and providing students with an adequate background on the recording of transactions, their classifications and reporting 
function and trading concerns through the preparation of Statement of Financial Position, Income Statement, Statement of 
Changes in Equity, and Cash Flow Statement. Exposure through the use of practice sets, either manual or computerized system 
(MS Excel, Quickbooks) in recording and reporting transactions for service or trading firm is a requirement in this course.  

ACC-103 PARTNERSHIP AND CORPORATION (3 UNITS) 

This is a continuation of the first course in accounting. It deals with transactions, financial statements, and problems 
peculiar to the operations of partnerships and corporations as distinguished from sole proprietorships. It also 
covers the preparation of financial statements for internal and external purposes, accounting information systems, 
manual and computerized special journals; understanding the statement of financial position, statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and statement of changes in equity; financial statements of 
companies in the service, manufacturing and trading industries; analysis of accounting information and decision 
making; and introduction to basic cost accounting. 

 
ACC-104 MANAGEMENT SCIENCE (3 UNITS) 
 
This is a course on the use of Management Science in solving management decision problems and is meant to assist 
students in acquiring a special competence in the scientific management approach to problem solving. It aims to 
provide students with an awareness of standard tools in Management Science/ Operations Research (MS/QR), and 
an appreciation of relevant techniques in mathematical model building, mathematical programming and decision 
analysis. The course also seeks to develop within the student the ability to recognize the potential application areas in 
their future jobs, as well as the meaningful utilization of the Management Science tools and techniques in the 
government, the local industry, and in business, particularly in the areas of finance, marketing, production, and human 
resource management.  
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CORE ACCOUNTING AND EDUCATION COURSES: 
 
ACC-101 MANAGERIAL ECONOMICS (3 UNITS) 
 
This course presents concepts and principles from the perspective of managerial economics. Emphasis is 
placed upon the importance of critical evaluation of different choices in coming up with managerial decisions in 
business. The course is designed such that students may understand microeconomics in a multidisciplinary manner, 
taking into consideration the legal, political, and social environments, among others. Learners are expected to 
grasp the underlying concepts, understand their relationships, analyze their effects on firms and markets, and 
ultimately be able to apply them in real-world situations. Topics include key measures of a business operation, 
demand and pricing, production and its related costs, economics of organization, market equilibrium, market 
structure, and market regulations. 

ACC-102  FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING (3 UNITS) 

This course provides a reinforcement of basic accounting, within the context of business and business decisions. Students 
obtain additional knowledge of the principles and concepts of accounting as well as their application that will enable them 
to appreciate the production of accounting data. Emphasis is placed on understanding the reasons underlying basic accounting 
concepts and providing students with an adequate background on the recording of transactions, their classifications and reporting 
function and trading concerns through the preparation of Statement of Financial Position, Income Statement, Statement of 
Changes in Equity, and Cash Flow Statement. Exposure through the use of practice sets, either manual or computerized system 
(MS Excel, Quickbooks) in recording and reporting transactions for service or trading firm is a requirement in this course.  

ACC-103 PARTNERSHIP AND CORPORATION (3 UNITS) 

This is a continuation of the first course in accounting. It deals with transactions, financial statements, and problems 
peculiar to the operations of partnerships and corporations as distinguished from sole proprietorships. It also 
covers the preparation of financial statements for internal and external purposes, accounting information systems, 
manual and computerized special journals; understanding the statement of financial position, statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and statement of changes in equity; financial statements of 
companies in the service, manufacturing and trading industries; analysis of accounting information and decision 
making; and introduction to basic cost accounting. 

 
ACC-104 MANAGEMENT SCIENCE (3 UNITS) 
 
This is a course on the use of Management Science in solving management decision problems and is meant to assist 
students in acquiring a special competence in the scientific management approach to problem solving. It aims to 
provide students with an awareness of standard tools in Management Science/ Operations Research (MS/QR), and 
an appreciation of relevant techniques in mathematical model building, mathematical programming and decision 
analysis. The course also seeks to develop within the student the ability to recognize the potential application areas in 
their future jobs, as well as the meaningful utilization of the Management Science tools and techniques in the 
government, the local industry, and in business, particularly in the areas of finance, marketing, production, and human 
resource management.  
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CORE ACCOUNTING AND EDUCATION COURSES: 
 
ACC-101 MANAGERIAL ECONOMICS (3 UNITS) 
 
This course presents concepts and principles from the perspective of managerial economics. Emphasis is 
placed upon the importance of critical evaluation of different choices in coming up with managerial decisions in 
business. The course is designed such that students may understand microeconomics in a multidisciplinary manner, 
taking into consideration the legal, political, and social environments, among others. Learners are expected to 
grasp the underlying concepts, understand their relationships, analyze their effects on firms and markets, and 
ultimately be able to apply them in real-world situations. Topics include key measures of a business operation, 
demand and pricing, production and its related costs, economics of organization, market equilibrium, market 
structure, and market regulations. 

ACC-102  FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING (3 UNITS) 

This course provides a reinforcement of basic accounting, within the context of business and business decisions. Students 
obtain additional knowledge of the principles and concepts of accounting as well as their application that will enable them 
to appreciate the production of accounting data. Emphasis is placed on understanding the reasons underlying basic accounting 
concepts and providing students with an adequate background on the recording of transactions, their classifications and reporting 
function and trading concerns through the preparation of Statement of Financial Position, Income Statement, Statement of 
Changes in Equity, and Cash Flow Statement. Exposure through the use of practice sets, either manual or computerized system 
(MS Excel, Quickbooks) in recording and reporting transactions for service or trading firm is a requirement in this course.  

ACC-103 PARTNERSHIP AND CORPORATION (3 UNITS) 

This is a continuation of the first course in accounting. It deals with transactions, financial statements, and problems 
peculiar to the operations of partnerships and corporations as distinguished from sole proprietorships. It also 
covers the preparation of financial statements for internal and external purposes, accounting information systems, 
manual and computerized special journals; understanding the statement of financial position, statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and statement of changes in equity; financial statements of 
companies in the service, manufacturing and trading industries; analysis of accounting information and decision 
making; and introduction to basic cost accounting. 

 
ACC-104 MANAGEMENT SCIENCE (3 UNITS) 
 
This is a course on the use of Management Science in solving management decision problems and is meant to assist 
students in acquiring a special competence in the scientific management approach to problem solving. It aims to 
provide students with an awareness of standard tools in Management Science/ Operations Research (MS/QR), and 
an appreciation of relevant techniques in mathematical model building, mathematical programming and decision 
analysis. The course also seeks to develop within the students the ability to recognize the potential application areas 
in their future jobs, as well as the meaningful utilization of the Management Science tools and techniques in the 
government, the local industry, and in business, particularly in the areas of finance, marketing, production, and human 
resource management.  
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ACC-110 INTERMEDIATE ACCOUNTING 1 (3 UNITS) 
 
This course covers the detailed discussion, appreciation, and application of the Philippine Financial Reporting 
Standards (PFRS) on the assets, financial and non-financial of a business enterprise. Emphasis is given on the 
interpretation and application of the accounting standards on Financial Assets and their required disclosures. The 
related internal control, ethical issues and management of assets are also covered. Exposure to computerized 
system in receivables, inventory and lapsing schedules is a requirement in this course.  
 
ACC-111 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS) 
 
This is a three-unit course which exposes the students to the accounting aspects of finance in order to develop 
appropriate financial strategies. It also includes various ways on how to interpret the figures presented in the financial 
statements. The students are expected to prepare financial statements and make a corresponding analysis of these 
prepared financial statements. It covers different ways on how to manage the current assets and current liabilities 
of the business. It further includes the optimal level of cash, different policies over receivables management, optimal 
level of inventory and management of discounts taken over accounts payable settlement. It takes into account the 
proper valuation of bonds and stocks together with the appropriate risks that come with it. It encompasses the 
corresponding costs of different capital which may come from various sources, namely; (1) long-term debt,                 
(2) preference shares, (3) ordinary shares and (4) retained earnings. It emphasizes the computation of costs of equity 
capital which may be done under Gordon growth model or capital asset pricing model. It incorporates different 
techniques used to analyze investment decisions, namely; (1) accounting rate of return, (2) payback period, (3) bailout 
period, (4) break-even time, (5) net present value, (6) profitability index and (7) internal rate of return. The students 
should be able to prepare a report regarding investment decisions over mutually exclusive projects and mutually 
independent projects. 

ACC- 112 ACCOUNTING INFORMATION SYSTEM (3 UNITS) 

This course is designed to provide Accountancy students with basic knowledge of the design, operations, risks, and 
controls of accounting information systems (AIS). Emphasis is placed on financial transaction cycles and core 
business processes vis-à-vis risks and controls involved in the processing of accounting information in a computerized 
environment. This course also covers analysis of the current issues in accounting information systems that have 
business implications and ethical considerations. The students learn about the development standards and practices 
for accounting information systems and gain hands-on experience in the use of electronic spreadsheet software for 
advanced business analysis, and to gain hands-on experience with a commercial accounting software package. The 
course familiarizes students with the overall data flow systems emphasizing financial information and computerized 
systems for accounting. It covers discussion on basic client server technology and security for electronic transactions, 
general and application processing controls, and various types of electronic systems used for transaction processing. 
It will develop in the students the ability to identify active and passive threats to information systems and an understanding 
of the risks associated with the various transaction cycles and recognize the controls that reduce risks. 
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ACC-113 COST ACCOUNTING AND CONTROL (3 UNITS) 

This course is designed to orient the students to cost accounting and control framework of business. It  exposes the 
students to different product costing procedures. It includes accounting procedures for main products and incidental 
products that are manufactured simultaneously in a common process. It encompasses the costing techniques 
and procedures for companies that use standard costs as a benchmark for costing the products. The students must be 
able to assemble financial statements prepared under standard costing procedures. While its emphasis particularly 
dwells on the manufacturing concern, it also highlights the elements and features applicable to the non-manufacturing 
concerns. The course aims to help the student understand the factors and aspects necessary to come up with an 
effective cost system. It explores on the details of the key components of manufacturing from one department to the 
next, specifically materials, labor, and overhead and transcends into the understanding of the flow of costs during 
the work in process stage until the completion of goods. It will aid them in the production of the necessary deliverables 
and reports pertinent to the cost system. It will enhance the analyzing and problem-solving skills of students whilst 
teaching them the requisites of assessing the role of cost accounting as an indispensable tool for management in planning 
and control for decision-making. It will also discuss the impact of environmental concerns on cost. 

ACC-114 INCOME TAXATION (3 UNITS) 

This introductory taxation course is primarily concerned with income taxation. Topics include the basic principles and rules 
of the income tax system as these apply to individuals, partnerships and corporations. Likewise, topics also cover 
the income taxation of employees and unincorporated and incorporated businesses, capital gains tax, final tax on 
certain passive income and the year-end tax. The course also includes special topics like the minimum corporate 
income tax, fringe benefits tax, improperly accumulated earnings tax and withholding taxes. 

This course is an in-depth study of income taxation where student will have their initial exposure to the Philippine 
income tax system. The course is divided into five main topics: General Principles of Taxation, Income tax patterns, 
Taxes on Partnerships and Trusts, Gross Income, Fringe Benefits, and Allowable Deductions. This introductory taxation 
course is primarily concerned with income taxation. The objective is to develop a working knowledge on basic principles 
and rules of the income tax system in the Philippines as they apply to individuals, partnerships and corporations. It 
covers an overview of national tax system, and the income taxation of employees and unincorporated business 
and incorporated businesses. It provides the student with knowledge of capital gains tax, final tax on certain passive 
income and the year-end tax including minimum corporate income tax, improperly accumulated earnings tax 
and normal income tax of corporations and withholding taxes. 
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ACC-115 STRATEGIC COST MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS) 

Cost Accounting information is necessary in formulating and evaluating strategies.  Strategic management serves as 
a supporting tool for decision makers involved in planning and implementing organizational strategies. 

This course equips the learners with a thorough understanding of variable and absorption costing; cost, volume and 
profit analysis; short-term decision making; operational budgeting; capital budgeting; responsibility accounting and 
transfer pricing. 

Learners are expected to prepare an operational and capital budget and formulate informed short-term and long-term 
decisions. 

 
ACC-116 REGULATORY FRAMEWORK AND LEGAL ISSUES IN BUSINESS (3 UNITS) 
 
This course is the third in the series of three courses that cover the topic on regulatory framework governing business 
transactions and business organizations/ associations, and of business laws including their legal implications. The 
courses provide the students an understanding of the pertinent legal provisions, general principles, concepts and 
underlying philosophy of the laws applicable to commerce and business. The students are given working knowledge 
to apply the various regulatory framework measures and the pertinent provisions of the law relative to particular 
business scenarios. They are also familiarized with clients’ rights and remedies, with the handling of disputes on 
regulatory issues. The various regulatory offices that they will be interacting with are discussed including basic 
regulations that they will derive benefit from.  
 
ACC-117 GOVERNANCE, BUSINESS ETHICS, RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (3 UNITS)  
 
This course is designed to prepare students for a high standard of responsibility as they enter the corporate world which 
continues to change in dramatic ways, where demand for competency and professionalism is always present. It aims to 
prepare them to be future business leaders who will play a central part in the management and resolution of critical issues 
involving businesses and people. They will also be equipped with basic knowledge and skills to thrive in difficult situations 
like economic volatility and geo-politics, among other timely issues. Topics covered include leadership as it relates to 
the professional accountant, the recognition and management of risks concerning an enterprise, and the application of 
internal control concepts and standards so as to contribute to organizational stability and growth. Also discussed in detail 
are the Professional Code of Ethics and the Revised Accountancy Law. 

ACC-118 IT APPLICATION TOOLS IN BUSINESS (3 UNITS) 

The course provides an introduction to information technology and applications. The course addresses the computer 
proficiency requirement for future accounting professionals. Topics to be covered include word processing, spreadsheet 
analysis and data management, business graphics, and presentation techniques. The course provides hands-on 
training using the Microsoft Office (MS Word, Excel, PowerPoint) to expose students to different business applications 
of computers and software and how they are applied to business environment. It also seeks to expose students in 
understanding the business processes of a business enterprise from the start of the business transaction down to the 
end process where they are exposed to a multi-tiered level of user, application processing and data management. 
Students will be exposed to how data is collected, stored and used to understand the appetite of the business enterprise 
on the level of information system it would like to adapt. 
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ACC-119 INTERMEDIATE ACCOUNTING II (3 UNITS) 

This course is a continuation of Intermediate Accounting 1. It is designed to cover the discussion, appreciation 
and application of the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) on the liabilities, financial and non-financial, 
and shareholders' equity including disclosure requirements. It also deals with contemporary issues such as leases, 
employee benefits, and income taxes. Financial liabilities shall include accounts and other trade payable, loans payable, 
commercial paper, derivative financial liabilities, accrued expense payable, returnable deposits and current of maturities 
of long-term debt, bonds payable, long-term notes payable while Non-financial liabilities shall include advances / 
deposits from customers, agency liabilities (VAT, SSS, Withholding tax, Income tax, Property tax), and warrants. 
Accounting for shareholders' equity shall cover contributed capital, retained earnings and other shareholders' 
equity accounts such as revaluation surplus, unrealized losses in FA & FVTOCI, Foreign currency translation 
adjustment. The related internal control, ethical issues and management of liabilities and shareholders' equity are 
also covered. It also deals with contemporary issues such as borrowing costs, leases, employees retirement benefits, 
deferred income tax, other provisions and contingencies. 

ACC-120 FINANCIAL MARKETS (3 UNITS) 

This course gives fundamental knowledge on the structure, function and role of the financial system in light of the 
complex web of links and interconnections with the banking sector. The course will cover financial intermediaries, 
financial instruments and the different markets where credit institutions are active players. Students will learn how the 
money market provides debt claims for short-term money management; how the equity and bond markets provide 
issuers with long-term financing; how newly created financial assets are introduced through the primary market; and 
how electronic and floor-based equity markets differ. The course also presents an overview of the financial system 
and its various financial markets, instruments and institutions. You will investigate the nature and role of the main 
financial markets within the domestic and global environment. It also helps students to develop a series of applications 
of principles from finance and economics that explore the connection between financial markets, financial institutions and 
the economy. 

This course is intended to help students understand the role financial institutions and markets play in the business 
environment that students will face in the future. It will also help students develop a series of applications of principles 
from finance and economics that explore the connection between financial markets, financial institutions, and the 
economy. Students will learn commercial banks, investment banks, insurance companies, mutual funds, the Bangko 
Sentral ng Pilipinas, and their role in the economy. 

 

ACC-121 BUSINESS TAXATION (3 UNITS) 

This course involves an intensive study of the Bureau of Internal Revenue rulings of business and transfer taxes 
systems, including preferential taxes. The relationship between the three taxation system: business taxes, transfer taxes 
and the income tax are emphasized. The policy underpinnings of wealth transfer taxation, and the reasons for the recent 
erosion in its political support, will be explored. The taxation under the government, tariffs and codes are also 
discussed. Topics include excise tax, Value Added Tax, Percentage Tax, Estate Tax and Donor's Tax. 
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ACC-119 INTERMEDIATE ACCOUNTING II (3 UNITS) 

This course is a continuation of Intermediate Accounting 1. It is designed to cover the discussion, appreciation 
and application of the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) on the liabilities, financial and non-financial, 
and shareholders' equity including disclosure requirements. It also deals with contemporary issues such as leases, 
employee benefits, and income taxes. Financial liabilities shall include accounts and other trade payable, loans payable, 
commercial paper, derivative financial liabilities, accrued expense payable, returnable deposits and current of maturities 
of long-term debt, bonds payable, long-term notes payable while non-financial liabilities shall include advances / 
deposits from customers, agency liabilities (VAT, SSS, Withholding tax, Income tax, Property tax), and warrants. 
Accounting for shareholders' equity shall cover contributed capital, retained earnings and other shareholders' 
equity accounts such as revaluation surplus, unrealized losses in FA & FVTOCI, Foreign currency translation 
adjustment. The related internal control, ethical issues and management of liabilities and shareholders' equity are 
also covered. It also deals with contemporary issues such as borrowing costs, leases, employees retirement benefits, 
deferred income tax, other provisions and contingencies. 

ACC-120 FINANCIAL MARKETS (3 UNITS) 

This course gives fundamental knowledge on the structure, function and role of the financial system in light of the 
complex web of links and interconnections with the banking sector. The course will cover financial intermediaries, 
financial instruments and the different markets where credit institutions are active players. Students will learn how the 
money market provides debt claims for short-term money management; how the equity and bond markets provide 
issuers with long-term financing; how newly created financial assets are introduced through the primary market; and 
how electronic and floor-based equity markets differ. The course also presents an overview of the financial system 
and its various financial markets, instruments and institutions. You will investigate the nature and role of the main 
financial markets within the domestic and global environment. It also helps students to develop a series of applications 
of principles from finance and economics that explore the connection between financial markets, financial institutions and 
the economy. 

This course is intended to help students understand the role financial institutions and markets play in the business 
environment that students will face in the future. It will also help students develop a series of applications of principles 
from finance and economics that explore the connection between financial markets, financial institutions, and the 
economy. Students will learn commercial banks, investment banks, insurance companies, mutual funds, the Bangko 
Sentral ng Pilipinas, and their role in the economy. 

 

ACC-121 BUSINESS TAXATION (3 UNITS) 

This course involves an intensive study of the Bureau of Internal Revenue rulings of business and transfer taxes 
systems, including preferential taxes. The relationship between the three taxation system: business taxes, transfer taxes 
and the income tax are emphasized. The policy underpinnings of wealth transfer taxation, and the reasons for the recent 
erosion in its political support, will be explored. The taxation under the government, tariffs and codes are also 
discussed. Topics include excise tax, Value Added Tax, Percentage Tax, Estate Tax and Donor's Tax. 
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ACC-122 INTERMEDIATE ACCOUNTING III (3 UNITS) 

This course is the culmination of Intermediate Financial Accounting cluster. It deals with the presentation of general-
purpose financial statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS, PASs) including 
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Owners' Equity, and 
Statement of Cash Flows, including the required disclosures and notes to the financial statements. It also covers 
reconstruction of accounts from incomplete records, cash basis to accrual accounting, single-entry system, accounting 
change, correction of errors, interim reporting, segment reporting, discontinued operation, book value per share, earnings 
per share, accounting for changing prices and application of PFRS for SMEs. 

ACC-123: ACCOUNTING RESEARCH METHODS (3 UNITS) 
 
This course is intended to provide the learners a strong foundation in the conceptualization and operationalization of 
research, how to design a research project; and hands-on skills in the utilization of the wide range of research methods. 
These concepts are fundamental to designing a successful research project. The objective of the course is to prepare 
the learners to conduct quality research using various approaches including qualitative, mixed methods, action 
research, and outcome-based research.  
 
It acquaints the learners about the sequence of the research process as applied to the preparation of a discipline-
based research project. The steps include defining the research problem, clarifying the research questions, literature 
search, acquiring participants, ethical treatment of the participants, sampling design, instrument development and pilot 
testing. Learners are familiarized on how to cite their sources according to standard scholarly formats.  
 
Upon completing the course, learners will be able to locate, understand, evaluate, and interpret qualitative as well as 
quantitative discipline-based research and use these skills to identify possible thesis or project topics. The final segment 
of the course consists of constructing a research proposal that will serve as the launching point for the study that learner 
conducts in the next research course.  
 
ACC-124 STRATEGIC BUSINESS ANALYSIS (3 UNITS) 
 
This course deals with identifying the different needs of businesses, with a thorough analysis of its internal and 
external environments, and developing innovative solutions which are aligned to the enterprise strategy, 
expectations and needs of the business. It includes analysis and interpretation of accounting data as aids in managerial 
decision-making process, balanced scorecard, performance evaluation, and responsibility accounting. This will equip 
the students the knowledge and techniques in understanding the organization and industry, assessing risks, develop 
alternative solutions and choosing the most feasible one, and preparing a business case. 

This course provides an advanced study of the interface between modern managerial accounting and the business 
functions of strategic planning, marketing, manufacturing and human resource management. The accountant's 
role in the marketing decision areas are specifically considered. This course aims to identify the basic conventions 
and doctrines of managerial and cost accounting and other generally accepted principles which may be strategically 
applied across the various functions of a business organization; discuss a number of cost and management 
accounting issues relating to the design and implementation of strategic, marketing, value analysis and other 
management models in modern firms; and identify major contemporary issues that have emerged in business 
accounting. 
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ACC-125 INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS AND TRADE (3 UNITS) 
 
This course focuses on the core concepts and techniques for entering the international marketplace. Emphasis is on 
the effect of sociocultural, demographic, economic, technological, and political-legal factors in the foreign trade 
environment. The course illustrates the unique nature of international business including the patterns of world trade, 
currency exchange, and international finance, globalization of the firm, international marketing, and operating 
procedures of the multinational enterprise. It demonstrates how international business variables affect the trade 
process. It highlights the realities of international business; some of its advantages and its problems that come when 
business is conducted on the international stage. Finally, the course studies the world trading system, including the 
World Trade Organization (WTO) and international trade agreements.  
 
ACC-126: ACCOUNTING INTERNSHIP (6 UNITS) 
 
This field-based course is intended for the learners in their final semester in the Accountancy Program. This On-the-
Job Training course provides an industry-based placement to undergraduate Accounting students with the opportunity 
to undertake fully coordinated and supervised work experience that assist them in the refinement of their accounting 
skills including enhancement of discipline-based competencies and selected functional areas, as they continue to 
develop their professional portfolio and become more responsive to the demands of the Accounting profession.  
 
This course exposes the learners to the first-hand experience in an actual working environment related to their chosen 
field of specialization. This cooperative work experience in the field of accounting allows them an opportunity to 
operationalize the knowledge, skills and abilities gained in the four corners of the classroom. This competency- based 
progression culminates in the learners who take an active role within their placement site, as they prepare to enter the 
workforce.  
 
ACC-127: ACCOUNTANCY RESEARCH (3 UNITS) 
 
This is the continuation of the course Accounting Research Method. This is the second of two courses concerning 
conducting empirical research relevant to the diverse areas of Accounting. This course intended to serve as an 
integrative capstone to a professional Accounting degree program. It is designed to enable the learners to produce a 
thesis of general relevance to the professional practice of Accountancy. Research reporting includes developing and 
summarizing the findings, drawing conclusions, and making recommendations. Also, as part of this course, learners 
will also be exposed to the peculiar features and distinct format of thesis, dissertation and publishable research. Finally, 
in this course, the learners are not only expected to pass the final oral defense of their undergraduate thesis but also 
equip themselves with basic analytical techniques.  
 
This course is a capstone course where students are required to use all the relevant knowledge they obtained from 
previous accounting and finance courses including the research skills learned in this course to solve accounting and 
finance problems. It introduces students to research of current issues in accounting and finance using various online 
databases. The students learn applied research for solving complex accounting and reporting issues including both 
financial and tax accounting cases. Formal defense of results of research will be conducted at the end of the course.   
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COGNATE/ MAJOR/ PROFESSIONAL COURSES: 

ACC-130 AUDITING AND ASSURANCE: SPECIALIZED INDUSTRIES (3 UNITS) 

This course is designed to orient the students in the application of the audit standards techniques and procedures 
in the risk-based audit process in specialized industries. Specialized industries include government agencies 
(GOCC's & LGU's), banking, insurance, real estate, not for profit entities, BPOs, broadcasting companies, hospitals, 
cooperative, academe, telecommunications, and construction companies.  The course will cover the stages of 
the risk-based audit process, namely risk assessment (preliminary engagement activities, planning the audit and 
performance of the risk assessment procedures) and risk response (designing and tests of controls and substantive 
test of transactions in the revenue and collection cycle, expenditure cycle and financing and investing cycle). The 
application of audit procedures in performing substantive tests of transactions and account balances will also be 
discussed. 

ACC-131 ACCOUNTING FOR GOVERNMENT AND NON- PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS (3 UNITS) 

This course involves accounting and reporting of the government transactions using the Philippine 
Government Accounting Standards (PGAS) and the New Government Accounting System (NGAS) prescribed by 
the Commission on Audit and International Public-Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). It also covers accounting 
and reporting of the financial and operating results of not-for-profit organizations such as NGOs, charitable institutions 
as well as specialized industries such as universities and hospitals, Voluntary Health and Welfare Organizations 
(VHWOs), banks, insurance and extractive industries. 

ACC-132 AUDITING AND ASSURANCE: CONCEPTS AND APPLICATIONS 1 (3 UNITS) 

This course is designed to orient the students on the application of the audit standards techniques and procedures 
in the risk-based audit process. The course will cover the stages of the risk-based audit process, namely risk assessment 
(preliminary engagement activities, planning the audit and performance of the risk assessment procedures) and risk 
response (designing and tests of controls and substantive test of transactions in the revenue and collection cycle, 
expenditure cycle and financing and investing cycle). The application of audit procedures in performing substantive tests of 
transactions and account balances of cash, receivables and sales will also be included. 

This course covers the detailed approaches on problems and situations ordinarily encountered in the independent 
examination of cash receivables, inventories, biological assets and agricultural produce investments (including 
hedging instruments), and property, plant, and equipment. It deals specifically with the application of auditing 
standards, techniques and procedures, the evaluation of internal control, the preparation of audit working papers with 
computer application, and the preparation of audit adjustments pertaining to a manufacturing, trading, and service 
concern. 
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ACC-133 AUDITING AND ASSURANCE PRINCIPLES (3 UNITS) 

This course is designed to provide students with the conceptual knowledge and understanding of the fundamental 
theory of auditing and assurance services, and the philosophy underlying  audits with emphasis on external 
auditing as performed by independent Certified Public Accountants and the management of public accounting 
practice. The course covers Generally Accepted Auditing Standards [specifically, Philippine Standards on Auditing 
(PSA)], the Philippine Accountancy Law, internal and external auditing, internal controls, manual records, audit  
objectives, audit techniques, audit programs and procedures, and audit reports. Ethical standards affecting the 
accountancy profession are also taken up. 

ACC-134 ACCOUNTING FOR SPECIAL TRANSACTIONS (3 UNITS) 

This course deals with specialized accounting problems likely to be encountered by accountants. It exposes the 
learners to accounting for transactions and activities that relate to business organizations other than the corporate form. 
The study of the various topics in this course is based upon fundamental valuation accounting and accounting 
theory as applied to special income and expense recognition methods and expanded business operations. 

ACC-135 AUDITING IN A CIS ENVIRONMENT (3 UNITS) 

This course complements the course in auditing. It discusses information technology (IT) — related risks, security 
and control mechanisms and techniques that may be employed to address the risks, and the impact of computer use 
on the audit. It also introduces computer assisted audit techniques and tools. In this course, students gain an 
appreciation of the particular features and understanding of the risks involved in auditing in a CIS environment, the CIS 
controls they would expect to find in this particular area and how auditors use CAATs (Computer Assisted Audit 
Techniques) in this area. The students gain hands-on experience in the use of computers in performing audits. 

ACC-136 AUDITING AND ASSURANCE: CONCEPTS AND APPLICATIONS 2 (3 UNITS)  

This is a continuation of Auditing and Assurance: Concepts and Application I, focusing on financial statements 
audit. It deals specifically with the application of auditing standards techniques, and substantive tests of balances and 
analytical procedures to inventories and costs of sales, property and equipment, investments, intangible assets, 
deferred charges, liabilities (current and non-current), owners' equity accounts and income statements accounts. 
The course culminates in the discussion of completing the audit, audit report and audited financial statements 
preparation. 

ACC-137 ACCOUNTING FOR BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (3 UNITS) 

This course deals mainly with consolidation and mergers, parent -subsidiary relationships, and consolidated 
statements, including foreign subsidiaries. The other topics deal with accounting for the effects of changes in foreign 
exchange rates and other similar current issues. Also discussed are debt restructuring, accounting for financially-
distressed corporations, accounting for the winding up of a business entity and accounting variations among 
countries. This includes PAS 27, 28, PFRS 10, 11 and 12 in addition to IFRS 3. 
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ACC-138 INTEGRATED ACCOUNTING I (PRACTICAL ACCOUNTING I) (3 UNITS) 

This subject tests the candidate's proficiency in applying financial accounting techniques and methodology to problems 
likely to be encountered in practice. The problems involve recognition, measurement valuation, classification, disposition 
and disclosure of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and net income of a business enterprise, preparation 
of financial statements, and contemporary accounting issues in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting 
Standards in effect at the time of examination. 

ACC-139: INTEGRATED ACCOUNTING II (PRACTICAL ACCOUNTING II) (3 UNITS) 

This course enhances the students' proficiency in applying accounting concepts, techniques and methodology 
to problems likely to be encountered in practice. Candidates should know and understand problems involving 
accounting of special transactions and their effects and presentation in the financial statements. 

ACC-140 INTEGRATED ACCOUNTING 3 (AUDITING PROBLEMS) (3 UNITS) 

This course enhances the student's proficiency in applying audit standards, techniques, and procedures to a typical 
independent audit of a medium-sized service, trading or manufacturing concern. Candidate shall be able to plan and 
perform an audit, analyze data for possible errors and irregularities, formulate adjusting entries, resolve audit issues, 
prepare audit working papers and complete the audit including the preparation of the audit report. In all the areas, the 
candidate shall apply the Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA) and other regulatory laws and regulations in effect at 
the time of examination. 

ACC-141 INTEGRATED ACCOUNTING 4 (MANAGEMENT SERVICES) (3 UNITS) 

This course is designed to enable the students to be acquainted with the knowledge of, and proficiency in the 
concepts, standards, techniques, and methodology applicable to management services / consultancy practice by 
CPAs; management accounting; financial management—related services; capital budgeting concepts and 
techniques; and project feasibility studies. 

ACC-142 INTEGRATED ACCOUNTING 5 (AUDITING THEORY) (2 UNITS) 

This course enhances the student's conceptual knowledge and understanding of assurance and related services 
performed by professional accountants. Candidates should know and understand the nature of assurance and related 
services particularly independent audits of financial statements, the responsibilities of professional accountants; the 
audit process; audit objectives, evidence, procedures, auditing standards, and the elements of the independent 
auditors' report. In all the areas included, the candidate shall apply the Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA) and other 
regulatory laws and regulations in effect at the time of examination. 

ACC-143 INTEGRATED ACCOUNTING 6 (BUSINESS LAW AND TAXATION ) (2 UNITS) 

This course enhances the student's knowledge of the laws relating to obligations and contracts, business associations, 
negotiable instruments, particularly as it relates to accounting and auditing situations. The students should know and 
understand the pertinent legal provisions, general principles, concepts, and underlying philosophy of the law. 
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TAXATION 

This course enhances the students’ conceptual knowledge and proficiency in the practical application of the basic 
principles of taxation as they relate to accounting practice. The emphasis is on the application of the theory and 
principles in solving tax problems. The students are expected to know, understand and be able to apply the laws on 
income tax, business taxes (value-added and percentage taxes), estate tax, donors tax, as well as Revenue 
Regulations and Court of Tax Appeals and Supreme Court decisions. 

ACC-144: INTEGRATED ACCOUNTING 7 (THEORY OF ACCOUNTS) (2 UNITS) 

This course enhances the student's conceptual knowledge of financial accounting for business enterprises and 
understanding of the objectives, basic concepts, principles, and terminology of financial accounting and financial 
statements, including related issues and topics. The student will also gain familiarity of the basic accounting concepts 
and practices. 

PROFESSIONAL ELECTIVES: 

ACC-145 PRINCIPLES AND METHODS OF TEACHING ACCOUNTING (3 UNITS)  

This 3-unit course allows the students to develop knowledge and skills in teaching strategies, classroom management 
preparation of instructional materials, and assessment of learning. The students are exposed to Outcome Based 
Education (OBE) in Accountancy and teaching in the 21st century classroom. 

ACC-146 OPERATIONS AUDIT (3 UNITS) 

This course is designed to expose students both to the demand for and the supply of one of the profession's 
flagship service — internal or operational audits — and to the nature of the value-added assurance services which 
decision-makers demand in the information age. Topics include: nature of operational auditing, approaches to 
operational auditing, risk-based approach as audit methodology; process-based approach as audit methodology, 
audit planning and evaluation, assessing internal controls, and tests of controls including internal controls in 
computer-based business systems; performance of an audit; evidence collection, analysis of evidences, 
performance evaluation, reporting and completing the audit including communications with board of directors and 
management concerning internal control weaknesses and forwarding recommendations for improvement.  

ACC-147 VALUATION CONCEPTS AND METHODS (3 UNITS) 

This course will provide the students with practical tools and methods to value a broad range of assets within a business 
entity. It covers business valuation, equity valuation, fixed income valuation, and option valuation. Students should 
be able to utilize various capital and investment management and techniques in making long-term business decisions 
such as the time value concept of money; capital investment decision factors; non-discounted and discounted capital 
budgeting techniques; project screening, project ranking, and capital rationing; and sensitivity analysis. Students 
should also be able to differentiate the different types and measurement of risks and apply their relationships with 
the rate of returns. 
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ACC-148 UPDATES IN FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (3 UNITS) 

In the era of globalization and knowledge-based economy, business models have become dynamic and continually 
changing. Accounting standards and practices must adapt to this dynamism to become relevant. The 
implementation of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), locally adopted as the Philippine 
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), is key to increasing the transparency and reliability of financial information 
and further enhancing the efficiency of the value chain of the enterprises. This course provides students with updates 
on accounting standards and practices before graduating from the program. Because the standards are principles-
based, they require an in-depth knowledge of the underlying concepts, as well as the application of professional 
judgment.  
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BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN ACCOUNTING INFORMATION SYSTEM  
 

     Program Description:  
 
The program provides general accounting education 
to students wanting to pursue a professional career 
in Accounting Information System. The program 
also complies with the latest competency framework 
for professional accountants issued by the 
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC). 
Thus, graduates of this program are qualified to take 
assessments leading to certifications in Accounting 
Information System given by global professional 
Accounting Information System organization.  

 
    Program Outcomes: 

 
The Bachelor of Science in Accounting Information 
System program principally aims to prepare students 
to:  
1. Provide foundation of knowledge, skills, values, 

ethics and attitudes that enable students to 
continue to learn and adapt to change 
throughout their lives; 

2. Resolve business issues and problems, with a 
global and strategic perspective using their 
knowledge and technical proficiency in the areas 
of financial accounting, and reporting, cost 
accounting, taxation and accounting information 
system;  

3. Influence the decisions, actions and behaviors of the stakeholders upon presentment of the necessary 
accounting information relevant to the circumstance;  

4. Employ technology as a business tool in capturing financial and non-financial information, generating 
reports and making decisions; and    

5. Pursue lifelong learning, and continuous professional development; and 
6. Demonstrate personal pride in addressing issues applying Miriam College Core Values of truth, justice, 

peace and integrity of creation.  
 
Program Goals: 
 
A graduate of Bachelor of Science in Accounting Information System should be able, within 3 to 5 years to:  

1. Assume supervisory/ managerial position in the field of Accounting and Auditing and other related positions in the 
field of Computer and Information Systems 

2. Practice in the corporate or government organizations 
3. Pursue graduate studies in business or other related management degree 
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Bachelor of Science in Accounting Information System 
Curriculum SY 2018 – 2019 

 
MIDYEAR TERM 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

UTS-1.0 Understanding the Self 3 
PCOM-1.0 Purposive Communication 3 
ARTA-1.0 Art Appreciation 3 
 Total  9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

First Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course  
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

MMW-1.0 Mathematics in the Modern 
World 

3  BME-102 Operations Management 
w/ TQM 

3 

RPH-1.0 Philippine History 3  ACC-103 Partnership and 
Corporation 

3 

BME-101 Introduction to Business 
Operations 

3  ACC-104 Management Science 3 

ACC-101 Managerial Economics 3  ACC-105 Economic Development 3 
ACC-102 Financial Accounting and 

Reporting  
3  ACC-106 Conceptual Framework 

and Accounting Standards 
3 

T-101 Biblical Foundation of 
Christian Faith 

3  ACC-107 Law on Obligations and 
Contracts 

3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activities Towards 
Health & Fitness-I 

2  PATHF-2.0 Physical Activities Towards 
Health & Fitness-II 

2 

NSTP 1.1 National Service Training 
Program-NSTP 1 

3  NSTP 2.1 National Service Training 
Program (NSTP II) 

3 

MC-101 MC Culture, Identity and 
Social Responsibility 1 

1  MC-102 MC Culture, Identity and 
Social Responsibility 2 

1 

 Total  24    Total  24 
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Second Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title 
 

Units  Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

T-102.1 Theology of Mission, Communion 
and Service 

3  STS-1.0 Science, Technology, and 
Society 

3 

ACC-108 Statistical Analysis with Software 
Application 

3  ACC-115 Strategic Cost Management 3 

ACC-109 Business Laws and Regulations 3  ACC-116 Regulatory Framework and 
Legal Issues In Business 

3 

ACC-110 Intermediate Accounting 1 3  ACC-117 Governance, Business 
Ethics, Risk Management 
and Internal Control 

3 

ACC-111 Financial Management 3  ACC-118 IT Application Tools in 
Business 

3 

ACC-112 Accounting Information System 3  ACC-119 Intermediate Accounting 2 3 
ACC-113 Cost Accounting and Control 3  ACC-120 Financial Markets 3 
TCW-1.0 The Contemporary World 3  PATHF-4.0 Physical Activities Towards 

Health & Fitness-IV 
2 

PATHF-
3.0 

Physical Activities Towards Health 
& Fitness-III 

2  GEE-1 Local Knowledge and 
Ethnoecology 

3 

 Total  26   Total 26 

MIDYEAR TERM 
Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

GEE-2 The Entrepreneurial Mindset and 
Innovative Thinking 

3 

HU-102 Arts and Design 3 
ETH- 1.0 Ethics 3 
 Total  9 
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Third Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

AIS-107 Project Management 3 ACC-121 Business Taxation 3 
AIS-108 Information Systems Analysis 

and Design 
3 AIS-109 Managing Information and 

Technology 
3 

AIS-101 Intermediate Accounting 3 3 AIS-110 Information Systems 
Operations and 
Maintenance 

3 

AIS-102 Strategic Business Analysis 3 AIS-111 Information Security and 
Management 

3 

GEE-3 Gender, Human Rights and 
Peace 

3 AIS-103 International Business and 
Trade 

3 

ACC-114 Income Taxation 3 B.ANA-
101 

Business Analytics 3 

T-103 Contemporary Moral Issues 3 AIS-104 Accounting Research 
Methods 

3 

LWR 1.0 Life and Works of Rizal 3  Total 21 

 Total 24     

Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

T-104 Theology of Social Justice and 
Peace 

3  AIS-105 Accounting Information System 
Internship 

6 

AIS-112 Enterprise Resource Planning and 
Management 

3  AIS-106 Accounting Information System 
Research 

3 

AIS-113 Data Warehousing and 
Management 

3     

AIS-114 Management Information System 3     
AIS-116 Financial Modelling 3     
BME-103 Strategic Management 3     
 Total  18   Total  9 
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COURSE DESCRIPTIONS – ACCOUNTING INFORMATION SYSTEM 

AIS-101   INTERMEDIATE ACCOUNTING III  

This course is the culmination of Intermediate Financial Accounting cluster. It deals with the presentation of general-
purpose financial statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS, PASs) including 
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Owners’ Equity and 
Statement of Cash Flows, including the required disclosures and notes to the financial statements. It also covers 
reconstruction of accounts from incomplete records, cash basis to accrual accounting, single-entry system, accounting 
change, correction of errors, interim reporting, segment reporting, discontinued operation, book value per share, 
earnings per share, accounting for changing prices and application of PFRS for SMEs. 

AIS-102      STRATEGIC BUSINESS ANALYSIS   

This course deals with identifying the different needs of businesses, with a thorough analysis of its internal and 
external environments and developing innovative solutions which are aligned to the enterprise strategy, expectations 
and needs of the business. It includes analysis and interpretation of accounting data as aids in managerial decision-
making process, balanced scorecard, performance evaluation, and responsibility accounting. This will equip the 
students the knowledge and techniques in understanding the organization and industry, assessing risks, develop 
alternative solutions and choosing the most feasible one, and preparing a business case. 

This course provides an advanced study of the interface between modern managerial accounting and the business 
functions of strategic planning, marketing, manufacturing and human resource management. The accountant’s role in 
the marketing decision areas is specifically considered. This course aims to identify the basic conventions and 
doctrines of managerial and cost accounting and other generally accepted principles which may be strategically 
applied across the various functions of a business organization; discuss a number of cost and management 
accounting issues relating to the design and implementation of strategic, marketing, value analysis and other 
management models in modern firms; and identify major contemporary issues that have emerged in business 
accounting.  

AIS-103  INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS AND TRADE   

This course focuses on the core concepts and techniques for entering the international marketplace. Emphasis is on 
the effect of sociocultural, demographic, economic, technological, and political-legal factors in the foreign trade 
environment. The course illustrates the unique nature of international business including the patterns of world trade, 
currency exchange, and international finance, globalization of the firm, international marketing, and operating 
procedures of the multinational enterprise. It demonstrates how international business variables affect the trade 
process. It highlights the realities of international business; some of its advantages and its problems that come when 
business is conducted on the international stage. Finally, the course studies the world trading system, including the 
World Trade Organization (WTO) and international trade agreements. 
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AIS-104   ACCOUNTING RESEARCH METHODS   

This course is intended to provide the learners a strong foundation in the conceptualization and operationalization of 
research, how to design a research project, hands-on skills in the utilization of the wide range of research methods. 
These concepts are fundamental to designing a successful research project. The objective of the course is to prepare 
the learners to conduct quality research using various approaches including, qualitative, mixed methods, action 
research, and outcome-based research. 

It acquaints the learners about the sequence of the research process as applied to the preparation of a discipline-
based research project. The steps include defining the research problem, clarifying the research questions, literature 
research, acquiring participants, ethical treatment of the participants, and sampling design, instrument development 
and pilot testing. Learners are familiarized on how to cite their sources according to standard scholarly formats.  

Upon completing the course, learners will be able to locate, understand, evaluate, and interpret qualitative as well as 
quantitative discipline-based research and use these skills to identify possible thesis or project topics. The final 
segment of the course consists of constructing a research proposal that will serve as the launching point for the study 
that learner conducts in the next research course. 

AIS-105   ACCOUNTING INFORMATION SYSTEMS INTERNSHIP 

This course aims to provide the student with experiential learning by having a hands-on, relevant immersion in the 
field of accounting information systems that will give them opportunities to apply the skills learned to actual work 
settings; identify what they still need to learn; and build business and professional networks. 

AIS-106   ACCOUNTING INFORMATION SYSTEMS RESEARCH   

This course aims to develop the student’s critical thinking skill by applying systematic investigation to gather and 
process data relevant to the field of accounting using current and potential technology with emphasis on the designs, 
operations, risk and control of accounting information systems. The course also aims to enhance creativity of 
students to discover innovative solutions to a problem. 

AIS-112    ENTERPRISE RESOURCE PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT   

This course will introduce you to enterprise systems; and show how organizations use enterprise systems to run their 
operations more efficiently and effectively. Students learn about the critical success factors and implementation 
strategies that lead to enterprise system success. It also discusses the informational, knowledge, and decision-
making opportunities afforded by enterprise systems. The course will examine typical Enterprise Systems modules: 
materials management (MM), supply chain management (SCM), customer relationship management (CRM), 
financials, projects, human resource management (HRM) etc. Enterprise systems use a single database to integrate 
business transactions along and between processes, leading to benefits such as efficient and error-free workflows 
plus accounting, management reporting and improved decision-making.  
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AIS-113     DATA WAREHOUSING AND MANAGEMENT  

This course provides students with the basic principles and topics of data warehousing and management. The 
students learn the theoretical topics on database, database design, and design methodologies. The topics include 
introduction to database, data warehousing, relational database, commercial relational languages, relational 
database management systems (RDBMS), indexing and hashing, query, processing and optimization. The practical 
training may include the following: MS Access, SQL and other commercial RDBMS. 

AIS-107   PROJECT MANAGEMENT  

This course introduces project management from the standpoint of a manager who must organize, plan, implement, 
and control tasks to achieve an organization’s schedule, budget, and performance objectives. 

Tools and concepts such as project charter, scope statement, work breakdown structure, project estimating, and 
scheduling methodologies will be discussed.  Microsoft Project software will also be applied to be able to manage a 
project from start to deployment. 

AIS-108    INFORMATION SYSTEMS ANALYSIS AND DESIGN  

This course deals with the concepts, skills, methodologies, techniques, tools, and perspectives essential for systems 
analysts.  System analysis and design deals with planning the development of information systems through 
understanding and specifying in detail what a system should do and how the components of the system should be 
implemented and work together. 

Systems analysts solve business problems through analyzing the requirements of information systems and designing 
such systems by applying analysis and design techniques.   

AIS-109       MANAGING INFORMATION AND TECHNOLOGY  

This course evaluates various inter-disciplinary management concepts and issues related to information systems and 
technologies.  Emphasis is on management decisions involving single and multi-user systems, network architecture, 
database management systems, and the software development process.  Learners survey types of information 
systems used by modern organizations: transaction processing, decision support, executive information, functional 
area support, strategic, and expert systems. 

AIS-110      INFORMATION SYSTEMS OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE  

This course deals with operation and maintenance management of information systems.  Basic theory, maintenance 
strategies, relevant standards, as well as tools, methods and maintenance strategies will be discussed.  It will 
describe central factors and methods used to optimize activities in various life cycle phases (e.g. design and 
development, installation and commissioning, operations and maintenance, removal and recycling), with respect to 
costs, profits, and acceptable risk level for health, safety and environment, as well as investments. 
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AIS-104   ACCOUNTING RESEARCH METHODS   

This course is intended to provide the learners a strong foundation in the conceptualization and operationalization of 
research, how to design a research project, hands-on skills in the utilization of the wide range of research methods. 
These concepts are fundamental to designing a successful research project. The objective of the course is to prepare 
the learners to conduct quality research using various approaches including qualitative, mixed methods, action 
research, and outcome-based research. 

It acquaints the learners about the sequence of the research process as applied to the preparation of a discipline-
based research project. The steps include defining the research problem, clarifying the research questions, literature 
research, acquiring participants, ethical treatment of the participants, and sampling design, instrument development 
and pilot testing. Learners are familiarized on how to cite their sources according to standard scholarly formats.  

Upon completing the course, learners will be able to locate, understand, evaluate, and interpret qualitative as well as 
quantitative discipline-based research and use these skills to identify possible thesis or project topics. The final 
segment of the course consists of constructing a research proposal that will serve as the launching point for the study 
that learner conducts in the next research course. 

AIS-105   ACCOUNTING INFORMATION SYSTEMS INTERNSHIP 

This course aims to provide the student with experiential learning by having a hands-on, relevant immersion in the 
field of accounting information systems that will give them opportunities to apply the skills learned to actual work 
settings; identify what they still need to learn; and build business and professional networks. 

AIS-106   ACCOUNTING INFORMATION SYSTEMS RESEARCH   

This course aims to develop the student’s critical thinking skill by applying systematic investigation to gather and 
process data relevant to the field of accounting using current and potential technology with emphasis on the designs, 
operations, risk and control of accounting information systems. The course also aims to enhance creativity of 
students to discover innovative solutions to a problem. 

AIS-112    ENTERPRISE RESOURCE PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT   

This course will introduce you to enterprise systems; and show how organizations use enterprise systems to run their 
operations more efficiently and effectively. Students learn about the critical success factors and implementation 
strategies that lead to enterprise system success. It also discusses the informational, knowledge, and decision-
making opportunities afforded by enterprise systems. The course will examine typical Enterprise Systems modules: 
materials management (MM), supply chain management (SCM), customer relationship management (CRM), 
financials, projects, human resource management (HRM) etc. Enterprise systems use a single database to integrate 
business transactions along and between processes, leading to benefits such as efficient and error-free workflows 
plus accounting, management reporting and improved decision-making.  
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AIS-111    INFORMATION SECURITY AND MANAGEMENT  

This course prepares the learners to employ the theoretical and conceptual underpinnings to improve information 
security behavior and develop skills in a work-related context in private, public or government enterprises.  The 
course is designed to assess decisions and policies to improve information security management.  The academic 
engagement will cover the following topics:  policy development, risk analysis and management, security information 
dissemination, education and awareness training, legal compliance, and ethical and legal conduct. 

AIS-114    MANAGEMENT  INFORMATION SYSTEM  

This course explains the basic concepts in information systems management and the impact it has on business 
organizations.  It also discusses organizational, business and strategic issues surrounding information system.  It 
helps the learners see the connection between information systems and business performance.   

The aim of the course is to enable the learners to assess the opportunities and problems that managers in a wide 
range of organizations face as they attempt to use these information system applications to add value to their 
businesses.  It also helps to understand transformational changes within and across industries. 

AIS-116     FINANCIAL MODELLING  

This course explains the tool that is built in Excel to forecast a business’ financial performance into the future 
normally used by company executives.  The forecast is typically based on the company’s historical performance, 
assumptions about the future, and requires preparing statement of comprehensive income, statement of financial 
position, statement of cash flows, and supporting schedules. 

The different types of financial models will be discussed in this course such as the discounted cash flow (DCF) 
model; three statement model; merger (M & A) model; initial public offering (IPO) model; leveraged buyout (LBO) 
model; sum of the parts model; consolidation model; budget model; option pricing model; and forecasting model. 
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BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 
Program Description:                                                                 

Bachelor of Science in Business Administration is 
designed to prepare its graduates for a productive career 
in business management — whether as members of large 
business organizations or as small business entrepreneurs. 
The emphasis is on developing the graduates’ analytical 
abilities to enable them to make sound decisions under new 
and varied conditions. Business, social and environmental 
responsibilities are given special thrusts. 

The Bachelor of Science in Business Administration has 
three (3) major areas: Marketing Management, Financial & 
Investments Management and Human Resource 
Management 

Marketing Management 
The Marketing Management focuses on the challenges 
of marketing management in manufacturing and service 
industries: analyzing marketing environments, evaluating 
strategic alternatives and designing and implementing 
marketing programs. 
 
It covers marketing management along with related 
subjects in brand management, digital marketing, service 
marketing, integrated marketing communications, 
marketing research and international marketing strategy. 
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Financial and Investments Management  
 
The Financial and Investments Management focuses on the development of graduates with excellent decision-
making, problem solving and analytical abilities to meet the demand for specialists and leaders in the financial 
sector. It touches on all areas of finance, including the valuation of real and financial assets, risk 
management, the trade-off between risk and expected return, and corporate financing policy. While 
primarily developing specialized financial skills, our students consider and evaluate different factors in 
making informed decisions for continued financial growth in an organization. 
 

Human Resource Management 
 
Human Resource Management focuses on understanding of industry-relevant knowledge, skills and experience 
needed for a successful career in Human Resource.  It broadens the knowledge of students on the types of strategic 
and operational issues that are likely to be encountered by HR professionals. It provides students with knowledge 
and abilities in workforce organization, job analysis, recruitment, compensation, training development, diversity and 
inclusion, legal provisions, and other labor concerns. 
 
Program Outcomes: 
 
A graduate of Science in Business Administration Graduates should be able to: 

• Communicate effectively in a var iety of organizational settings; 

• Develop critical thinking, quantitative reasoning, written, and oral communication; 

• Use creative, critical and reflective thinking to address organizational opportunities and challenges; 

• Work independently and collaboratively in inter and/or multi-disciplinary and diverse environments; 

• Apply problem solving and decision-making frameworks that propose defensible solutions 
to organizational opportunities, challenges, change and risk; 

• Evaluate the dynamic of the ASEAN and global business environment from a competitive and economic 
perspective; 

• Apply social responsibility in the execution of any business plan or action adhering to high personal moral and 
ethical standards; and 

• Demonstrate the Miriam College Core Values of truth, peace, justice and integrity of creation in the 
planning, implementing and controlling/evaluating of business actions, projects, programs and in dealing with 
people and its ecosystem. 
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Financial and Investments Management  

A graduate of BSBA Financial & Investments Management should be able to: 
• Apply financial management concepts and tools in investment decisions; 

• Synthesize complex financial data into meaningful business perspectives that facilitates actionable solutions; 

• Develop an investment research by evaluating the firm's financial performance over a period of time, identify the 
company's risks and earnings potential, provide a valuation of its common stock and come up with an 
investment recommendation; and 

• Be a Certified Financial Markets Professional equipped with capital market theories, investment strategies, 
valuation techniques, risks analysis, portfolio management, ethics and regulations, and market dynamics. 

Marketing Management 

A graduate of BSBA Marketing Management should be able to: 
• Analyze the impact of changing global, political, economic, competitive, environmental, cultural and social 

systems on marketing strategy development; 

• Examine the role of consumers as purchasers and users of goods and services using various theories and 
models of consumer behavior; and 

• Develop a strategically focused marketing plan based on research and analysis of a brand, its competition, 
and consumer behavior, using appropriate communications strategies. 

Human Resource Management 

A graduate of BSBA Human Resource Management should be able to: 
• Apply problem solving and decision-making frameworks that propose defensible solutions to organizational 

opportunities, challenges, change and risk; 

• Evaluate effectiveness of HRM practices in supporting the strategic and operational needs of the 
organization in a global economy; 

• Develop processes and policies to ensure that organizations effectively encourage desired strategic 
performance; and 

• Recommend processes supporting organizational change and leadership development allowing 
organizations to react effectively in the dynamic global environment. 
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Program Goals: 

FINANCIAL AND INVESTMENTS MANAGEMENT MAJOR  
• Assume supervisory/ managerial position in a Financial or Banking institution 
• Establish an investment house or organization 
• Handles technical/ consultancy work in financial institutions 

MARKETING MANAGEMENT MAJOR  
• Assume supervisory/ managerial position in Brand or Product Division 
• Establish an advertising / marketing research agency 
• Render consultancy work in the field of marketing  
• Pursue a Master 's degree 

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT MAJOR  
• Assume supervisory/managerial position in Human Resource Department 
• Establish a recruitment or training agency 
• Pursue a Master’s degree  

 
 
 
 

Curriculum Summary SY 2018 – 2019 
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration Major in Financial and Investments Management  

                              First Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Subject Title Units 

MMW-1.0 Mathematics in the Modern 
World 

   3  PCOM-1.0 Purposive 
Communication 

3 

RPH-1.0 Readings in Philippine History 3  ARTA-1.0 Art Appreciation 3 
UTS-1.0 Understanding the Self 3  TCW-1.0 The Contemporary World 3 
STS-1.0 Science, Technology & Society 3 

 
BAC-102 Business Communication 3 

T-101 Biblical Foundation of 
Christian Faith 

3  BAFM-101 Financial Management 3 

NSTP 1.1 National Service Training 
Program 1 

3  BAC-101 Microeconomics 3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity 
Towards Health & Fitness 
- 

2  NSTP 2.1 National Service Training 
Program 2 

3 

MC-101 MC Culture Identity and 
Social Responsibility 1 

1  PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness - II 

2 

BME-101 Introduction to Business 
Functions 

3  MC-102 MC Culture Identity and Social 
responsibility 2 

1 

                                    Total 24                                          Total 24 
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Second Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

T-102.1 Theology of Mission, 
Communion and Service 

     3  LWR-1.0 Life and Works of Rizal 3 

BAC-103 Business Law 3  ETH-1.0 Ethics 3 

HU-102 Arts & Design 3  BAC-105 Business Taxation 3 

BAFM-102 Banking and Financial 
Institutions 

3 
 

BAC-106 Human Behavior in Organization 3 

BAFM-103 Advanced Finance 3    BAFM-105  Financial Analysis and  
 Reporting 

3 

BAFM-104  Capital and Debt Market 3  BAFM-106  Monetary Policy and Central 
 Banking 

3 

BAC-104 Human Resource 
Management 

3  B.ANA-101  Business Analytics I 3 

PATHF-3.0  Physical Activity 
Towards Health and 
Fitness- III 

2  PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness - IV 

2 

                                  Total 23                                       Total 23 
 
 

Third Year 

FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 
Course  
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

        Course Title  Units 

BAFM-108 Treasury Management 3  BAC-107 Business Research 
Methods 

3 

BAFM-109 Investment and Portfolio 
Management 

3  BAC-108 International Business 
and Trade 

  3 

BAFM-114 Mergers & Acquisitions 
(ELECT-1) 

  3  BAFM-110 International Finance  3 

BAFM-115 
  Public Finance (ELECT-2) 

  3  BAFM-117 Risk Management 
(ELECT-5) 

 3 

BAFM-116 Security Analysis 
(ELECT-3) 

 3  GEE-2 The Entrepreneurial Mindset 
and Innovative Thinking 

 3 

BAFM-107 Credit and Collection  3  T103 Contemporary Moral Issues  3 

GEE-1 Local Knowledge and 
Ethnoecology 

 3  BME-102 Operations Management with 
TQM 

3 

B.ANA-
102 

 Business Analytics II  
(ELECT-4)  

3                                       Total 21 

                                     Total 24     
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Program Goals: 

FINANCIAL AND INVESTMENTS MANAGEMENT MAJOR  
• Assume supervisory/ managerial position in a Financial or Banking institution 
• Establish an investment house or organization 
• Handle technical/ consultancy work in financial institutions 

MARKETING MANAGEMENT MAJOR  
• Assume supervisory/ managerial position in Brand or Product Division 
• Establish an advertising / marketing research agency 
• Render consultancy work in the field of marketing  
• Pursue a Master's degree 

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT MAJOR  
• Assume supervisory/managerial position in Human Resource Department 
• Establish a recruitment or training agency 
• Pursue a Master’s degree  

 
 
 
 

Curriculum Summary SY 2018 – 2019 
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration Major in Financial and Investments Management  

                              First Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Subject Title Units 

MMW-1.0 Mathematics in the Modern 
World 

   3  PCOM-1.0 Purposive 
Communication 

3 

RPH-1.0 Readings in Philippine History 3  ARTA-1.0 Art Appreciation 3 
UTS-1.0 Understanding the Self 3  TCW-1.0 The Contemporary World 3 
STS-1.0 Science, Technology & Society 3 

 
BAC-102 Business Communication 3 

T-101 Biblical Foundation of 
Christian Faith 

3  BAFM-101 Financial Management 3 

NSTP 1.1 National Service Training 
Program 1 

3  BAC-101 Microeconomics 3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity 
Towards Health & Fitness 
- 

2  NSTP 2.1 National Service Training 
Program 2 

3 

MC-101 MC Culture Identity and 
Social Responsibility 1 

1  PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness - II 

2 

BME-101 Introduction to Business 
Functions 

3  MC-102 MC Culture Identity and Social 
responsibility 2 

1 

                                    Total 24                                          Total 24 
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Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

 

Course 
Code 

            Course Title Units 

BAFM-113 Thesis: Investment Research 3  BAC-112 Practicum 6 

BAFM-111 Strategic Financial 
Management 

3  BME-103 Strategic Management 3 

BAFM-112 Financial Controllership 3  BAC-111 Thesis II: Defense 3 
BAC-110 Corporate Governance, 

Business Ethics and  
Social Responsibility 

3     

T-104 Theology of Social 
Justice and Peace 

3 

 

   

GEE-3 Gender, Human Rights and 
Peace  3 

 
  

                            Total 18                                     Total 12 
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                     Bachelor of Science in Business Administration Major in Marketing Management 

First Year 
FIRST SEMESTER 

 

SECOND SEMESTER 
Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

MMW-1.0 Mathematics in the 
Modern World 

3 PCOM-1.0 Purposive Communication 3 

RPH-1.0 Readings in Philippine 
History 

3 ARTA-1.0 Art Appreciation 3 

UTS-1.0 Understanding the Self 3 TCW-1.0  The Contemporary World 3 
STS-1.0 Science, Technology & 

Society 
3 BAC 102 Business Communications 3 

T-101 Biblical Foundation of 
Christian Faith 

3 BAMM-101 Marketing Management 3 

NSTP-1.1 National Service 
Training Program 1 

3 BAC-101 Microeconomics 3 

PATHF-1. 0 Physical Activity 
Towards Health & 
Fitness - I 

2 NSTP-2.1 National Service Training 
Program 2 

3 

MC-101 MC Culture Identity 
and Social 
Responsibility 1 

1 PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness - II 

2 

BME-101 Introduction to 
Business Functions 

3 MC-102 MC Culture Identity and 
Social Responsibility 2 

1 

                               Total 24                                      Total 24 
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Second Year 

FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 
Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

T-102.1 Theology of Mission, 
Communion and Service 

     3  LWR-1.0 Life and Works 
of Rizal 

3 

BAC-103 Business Law 3 
 ETH-1.0 Ethics 3 

BAC-104 Human Resource 
Management 

     3  BAC-105 Business Taxation 3 

BAMM-102 Marketing Research 3  BAC-106 Human Behavior in 
Organization  

   3 

BAMM-114 Consumer Behavior 
(ELECT-1) 

3 
 

BAMM-104   Product Management 3 

BAMM-103 Business Statistics 3  BAMM-116 Digital Marketing 
(ELECT-2) 

3 

HU - 102 Arts & Design 3  PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity 
Towards Health and 
Fitness - IV 

2 

PATHF-3.0  Physical Activity 
Towards Health and 
Fitness- III 

2  B.ANA-101 Business Analytics I 3 

                                         
Total 

 
23 

                                  Total 23     
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Third Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course  
Code 

            Course Title  Units 

BAMM-106 Retail 
Management 

3  BAC-107 Business Research 
Methods 

3 

BAMM-107 Pricing Strategy   3  BAC-108 International Business and 
Trade 

   3 

BAMM-117 Services Marketing  
(ELECT-4) 

 3  BAMM-109 Professional Sales 
Management 

   3 

BAMM-108 Distribution Management 3  BAMM-116 Digital Marketing (ELECT-2)    3 

BAMM-105 Advertising and 
Promotions 
Management 

3  BAMM-118 International Marketing 
(ELECT-5) 

   3 

BME-102 Operations Management w/ 
TQM 

 3  T-103 Contemporary Moral Issues   3 

GEE-1 Local Knowledge and 
Ethnoecology 

3  GEE-2 The Entrepreneurial Mindset 
and Innovative Thinking 

  3 

B.ANA-102 Business Analytics II 
(ELECT-3) 

3     

                               Total 24                                      Total 21 
 
 

Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

BAMM-112 Strategic Marketing 
Management 

3 BAC-112 Practicum   6 

BAC-110 Corporate Governance, 
Business Ethics and Social 
Responsibility 

3  BME-103 Strategic Management   3 

T-104 
 

Theology of Social 
Justice and Peace 

3 BAC-111  Thesis II: Defense                   3 

GEE-3 Gender, Human Rights and 
Peace 

3    

                    Total 12               Total 12 
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Bachelor of Science in Business Administration Major in Human Resource Management 
Revised Curriculum SY 2018 – 2019 

 

 

First Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code Course Title Units  Course 

Code Course Title Units 

MMW-1.0 Mathematics in the Modern  
World 3  PCOM-1.0 Purposive Communication 3 

RPH-1.0 Readings in Philippine History 3  ARTA-1.0 Art Appreciation 3 

UTS-1.0 Understanding the Self 3  TCW-1.0 The Contemporary World 3 
STS-1.0 Science, Technology & Society 3  BAC-101 Microeconomics 3 

T-101 Biblical Foundation of Christian  
Faith 3  BAC-102 Business Communication 3 

NSTP 1.1 National Service Training  
Program 1 3 

 
BAC-104 Human Resource Management 3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness 2  NSTP 2.1 National Service Training  

Program 2 3 

MC-101 MC Culture Identity and  Social 
Responsibility 1 1 

 
PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards  

Health & Fitness  II 2 

BME-101 Introduction to Business  
Functions 3  MC-102 MC Culture Identity and Social  

Responsibility 2 1 

 Total  24   Total  24 

Second Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code Course Title Units  Course 

Code Course Title Units 

HRM-101 Administrative and Office 
Management (Prof 1) 3  HRM-104 Compensation and Total 

Rewards Management (Prof 4) 3 

HRM-102 Labor Law and Legislation  
(Prof 2) 3  HRM-105 Organizational Theory and 

Behaviors (Elective 1) 3 

HRM-103 Recruitment and Selection 
(Prof 3) 3  BAC-105 Business Taxation 3 

BAC-103 Business Law 3  BAC-106 Human Behavior in 
Organization 3 

GEE-1 Local Knowledge and 
Ethnoecology 3  GEE- 2 The Entrepreneurial Mindset 

and Innovative Thinking 3 

T-102.1 Theology of Mission,  
Communion and Service 3  LWR-1.0 Life and Works of Rizal 3 

HU-102 Arts & Design 3  ETH-1.0 Ethics 3 

PATHF-3.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness III 2 

 
PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity Towards 

Health and Fitness IV 2 

 Total  23   Total  23 
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Third Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code Course Title Units  Course Code Course Title Units 

HRM-106 Training and Development 
(Prof 5) 3 

 
HRM-110 Organizational Development 

and Change (Prof 7) 3 

HRM-107 Employee Relations and 
Engagement (Prof 6) 3 

 
HRM-111 Performance Management  

(Prof 8) 3 

HRM-108 Project Management 
(Elective 2) 3 

 
HRM-112 Succession Management and 

Leader Development (Prof 9) 3 

HRM-109 Corporate Culture 
(Elective 3) 3 

 
HRM-113 

Career Transition 
Management and 
Development (Prof 10) 

3 

B.ANA-101 Business Analytics I 3 
 

HRM-114 Conflict Management  
(Elective 4) 3 

BME-102 Operations Management with 
TQM 3 

 
BAC-107 

Business Research Methods 
with Business Analytics 
Application 

3 

T-103 Contemporary Moral Issues 3  BAC-108 International Business and 
Trade 3 

GEE-3 Gender, Human Rights and 
Peace 3     

 Total  24   Total  21 

Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code Course Title Units  Course 

Code Course Title Units 

HRM-115 Employee Services and 
Wellness Programs (Prof 11) 3  BME-103 Strategic Management 3 

HRM-116 Managing HR in an 
International Business (Prof 12) 3  BAC-111 Thesis II: Defense 3 

HRM-117 Thesis I: Human Resource 
Transformation Plan (Prof 13) 3  BAC-112 Practicum 6 

HRM-118 Diversity and Inclusion  
(Elective 5) 3     

BAC-110 
Corporate Governance, 
Business Ethics and Social 
Responsibility 

3 
 

   

T-104 Theology of Social Justice and 
Peace 3     

 Total  18   Total  12 
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COURSE DESCRIPTIONS 

BAC-101 MICROECONOMICS (3 UNITS) 
 
This course provides the introductory framework of the business environment through the study of the market 
behavior of the consumer and the firm and their interactions in the market. It discusses the mechanisms by which 
resources are allocated, prices determined and income distributed. It concentrates on the explanation and evaluation of 
the operation of the price policy system as it regulates production, distribution and consumption. Some topics to be 
discussed are demand analysis and equilibrium determination in various types of markets. 

BAC-102 BUSINESS COMMUNICATIONS (3 UNITS) 
 
This course is designed to improve the oral and writing abilities of students in order to communicate more 
effectively in the business setting as well as train students in the preparation of both internal and external 
corporate communications. 

BAC-103 BUSINESS LAW (3 UNITS) 
 
This course covers the basic concepts of obligations and contracts which a business person will normally encounter. Case 
situations are studied and analyzed in relation to legal concepts. 
 
BAC-104 HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS) 
 
This course aims to familiarize the students with the various aspects of Human Resources Management, including its 
functions, responsibilities, and the role it plays in contributing to the success of the organization. The course will also 
identify the current challenges that HR faces as a result of fast-paced technological changes and globalization, as 
well as increasing organizational competitiveness. It will try to see employees and organizations on the micro and macro 
levels, to enable the students to have a wider perspective of the HR system. 
 
BAC-105 BUSINESS TAXATION (3 UNITS) 
 
This course deals with the internal revenue taxes applied to business enterprises. It includes Value Added Tax, 
Percentage Tax and Documentary Taxes. It will likewise cover the administrative provisions, basic concepts 
and practical provisions of law on individual income and business taxation, as embodied in the National Internal 
Revenue Code. 
 
BAC-106 HUMAN BEHAVIOR IN ORGANIZATIONS (3 UNITS) 
 
This course examines group and individual performance, and activity within an organization. It focuses on the factors that 
affect job performance, employee interaction, job commitment, leadership and managerial styles. In addition, topics on 
employee empowerment, motivation, communication, conflict management, management of change, as well as managing 
stress are included to equip students with an understanding of organizational concepts and practical techniques for 
managing effectively in challenging environments. 
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BAC-107 BUSINESS RESEARCH METHODS  
This course evaluates the process of conducting research for improving decision making within an organization. It will 
bring together students' theoretical and practical appreciation of how to identify and investigate business opportunities 
or problems as well as analyze data and conclude on the relevance of research findings. 

BAC-108 INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS AND TRADE  
 
This course assesses potential export and 'product fit' and the importance of products meeting the standards and 
cultural requirements of target countries. It deals with marketing concepts and tools, and explains effective marketing 
concepts and strategies to use to enter target markets. It examines pricing, transport and logistics, currency, 
documentation and insurance, and international law regarding contracts; and it gives a practical, helpful and 
comprehensive foundation into the requirements of successful import and export. 

BAC-110 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, BUSINESS ETHICS AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 
The course aims to develop an understanding of the concepts of Corporate Governance, business ethics and 
social responsibility which are relevant to the contemporary business environment. It is designed to foster an 
understanding of the ethical influences on economic, financial, managerial and environmental aspects of business. 
The course further aims to develop the ability to critically analyze ethical issues in business. 
 
BAC-111 THESIS II: DEFENSE 

This course involves the final completion of thesis requirement and oral defense of the thesis work to a panel. 

BAC-112 PRACTICUM (6 UNITS) 
Prerequisites: Completion of at least 60% of courses in the entire curriculum 
 
This is a 6-unit course which requires actual hours of work in a public or private organization for the student to gain work 
experience, and enhanced with seminar/workshops conducted by the college for the purpose of providing additional 
competencies and certifications relevant to the industry. 

BAFM-101 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS)                                                       Prerequisite: BME-101  
 
This course provides the synthesis of financial policy into a grand strategy which integrates organizational purpose and 
goals. The focus of the course is on current thinking regarding valuation of the firm, investment decision processes, 
financing, and dividend policy, asset management and financial strategies and portfolio theory. 
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BAFM-102 BANKING AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS                                              Prerequisite: BAFM-101  
 
This course is designed to develop an understanding of the financial institutions and financial markets and their 
relationship to public and management policies. It helps the students to be familiar with the structures, functions and 
mechanisms by which the different financial institutions operate. The subject covers commercial banks, investment 
houses, insurance companies, finance companies, and savings banks. 
 
BAFM-103 ADVANCED FINANCE (3 UNITS)                                                                      Prerequisites: BAFM-101  
 
An advanced course in business finance which covers the more complex aspects of long-term financing and 
investment decisions, capital structure, capital budgeting, capital budgeting under uncertainty, cost of capital, 
dividend decisions, bonds and stock valuation, and alternative sources of long term financing. 

BAFM-104 CAPITAL AND DEBT MARKETS (3 UNITS)            Prerequisites: BAFM-101  
 
This course focuses on Capital Market Theory, its efficiency and implications. It examines the interrelationships among 
equity and fixed income markets. Topics covered include the different types of market, functions of the financial 
intermediaries, investment opportunities in the capital and debt markets, the cost of money in bond markets, pricing of 
stocks and bonds, and other factors that influence decision-making. 
 
BAFM-105 FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND REPORTING 
 
This course deals with solving common financial problems. The focus is on valuation approach to financial analysis 
with some attention given to credit analysis and valuation of debt. The methods of fundamental analysis will be explained 
in detail and applied in cases and projects involving listed companies. Topics include models of shareholder value and a 
comparison of accounting and discounted cash flow techniques, methods of financial statement analysis, testing the 
quality of financial reports, designing value-added metrics, forecasting earnings and cash flows, pro forma analysis for 
strategy and planning, and the determination of price to earnings and market to book value ratios. 

BAFM-106 MONETARY POLICY AND CENTRAL BANKING 
 
This course introduces the students to the history of monetary system; money, inflation, and interest rates; Intermediation 
and the financial system; markets and institutions. Other topics include monetary policy and the role and functions of the 
monetary authority, money creation, tools used by central banks to control money and credit, and the role and functions of 
the monetary board. 
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BAFM-107 CREDIT AND COLLECTION 
 
This course covers techniques of establishing the credit, obtaining and checking information, servicing the loan, billing and 
collecting the amount due. Each of bank's installment credit operation is carefully scrutinized. After successfully completing 
this course, the student should have a working knowledge of collection policies and procedure; principles of credit 
evaluation; open-end credit; direct lending; leasing of consumer goods; indirect lending; legal aspects of installment credit; 
organizing and managing an installment loan department. 
 
BAFM-108 TREASURY MANAGEMENT  
 
The course aims to introduce the students to a more intensive discussion of the various domestic and international 
treasury functions, concepts and products of a financial institution. The topics include international trading, securities 
leadership, reserves and money position management, funds management, tax position management, pricing of 
treasury products, FCDU management, foreign exchange exposure management and risks and controls in treasury 
operations. 

 

BAFM-109 INVESTMENT AND PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT 
 
This course deals primarily with the nature of securities markets and techniques for security and portfolio analysis. 
Topics include short-term and long-term investments, the structures of rates in the financial markets, the problem of 
investment timing and selection, the principles of financial analysis of individual security issues, risk and return trade-off, 
and capital market. 

BAFM-110 INTERNATIONAL FINANCE (3 UNITS) 
 
This course focuses on the tools, instruments, and techniques of international trade finance, including issues in 
managing and hedging exchange rate risk, export credit guarantees, and commodity financing. It will also examine 
valuation techniques for foreign investments, international financial instruments and contracts, and cross border 
financing decisions. 

BAFM-111 STRATEGIC FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

The course introduces the students to the multifaceted aspects of strategic financial management. Focus is 
on learning and developing strategic thinking and decision-making skills in corporate and financial institutional settings 
using different strategic analysis techniques like SWOT and balanced scorecard. Course also introduces strategic 
capital expenditure and investment planning and valuation and decision-making process. 
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BAFM-112 FINANCIAL CONTROLLERSHIP 
 
A course in the controllership function in a business organization with focus on financial institutions (banks, 
investment houses, finance companies, stock brokerages, and insurance companies). It covers the management of data 
and information, the systems of control through operating and capital budgets, tax administration, protecting of assets, 
and general internal control systems and procedures. 

 

BAFM-113 INVESTMENT RESEARCH  

Prerequisites: BAC 107 (Business Research Methods; BAFM-104 (Capital and Debt Markets; BAFM-109 
(Investment and Portfolio Management). 

This research course is an integrative approach that enables students to apply the principles, concepts, and techniques 
in finance through an investment research undertaking. The students are tasked to identify a publicly-listed firm, 
evaluate its performance over a period of three to five years, identify the growth, earnings, and risk potential, determine 
the intrinsic value of its common stock and come up with an investment recommendation on whether to buy, sell, or 
hold the stock. The students are required to defend their recommendation to a panel of experts. 
 
BAFM-114 MERGERS AND ACQUISITION (3 UNITS) -ELECTIVE 
 
This deals with the integration of tile implementation of fiscal policies in public finance, fiscal administration and 
revenue management with special attention to taxation and revenue administration, governmental budgeting, 
theoretical considerations on the design of tax system, and the determination of the size of the public sector. 
 
BAFM-115 PUBLIC FINANCE (3 UNITS) - ELECTIVE 
 
This course deals with how a government finances its operations, particularly, sourcing of funds including the budget 
process. 
 
BAFM-116 SECURITY ANALYSIS - ELECTIVE 
 
The course introduces the students to the multifaceted aspects of security analysis. Focus is on asset valuation of 
equity and fixed income securities. Students are expected to develop superior market, industry and security 
valuation and analytical skills in both equity and fixed income securities. 
 
BAFM-117 RISK MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS)- ELECTIVE  
 
This course introduces the student to the multifaceted aspects of risk management. The focus is on the different types 
of risks faced by corporate financial institutions and the institutional investors and how they manage, mitigate and 
hedge those risks. It also covers measurement of risks and global derivatives. 
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BAFM-118 PERSONAL FINANCE (3 UNITS) - ELECTIVE 
 
This course is an introduction to the field of personal financial planning. It surveys the market for personal financial 
planning services (or wealth management); the development of personal financial planning as an independent financial 
services profession; and the ethics of the profession and career opportunities. 
 
BME-101 INTRODUCTION TO BUSINESS FUNCTIONS  
 
This course aims to provide students an understanding of the activities carried out by a business organization. 
These are Management and Organization, Finance and Accounting, Operations and Systems, Marketing and Sales, and 
Human Resource and Administration. These functions are necessary to achieve the objectives of a business and vital in 
designing strategies, executing plans and decision making. Topics include theories, principles and their application to a 
business set up. 
 
BME-102 OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT WITH TQM  
 
Operations transform resources to produce goods or deliver services; and operations managers plan, design, control and 
improve needed systems and processes. While considering interactive marketing, finance and operations strategies, 
students apply problem solving and decision-making tools for increased quality, productivity, value and 
competitiveness. It also covers total quality management and supply chain management, just-in-time and lean 
manufacturing systems in response to more global, technology-driven and environmentally conscious markets. 
 
BME-103: STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT                                                             Prerequisites: BME-102  
 
This course is about running the total business enterprise. It introduces theoretical concepts and frameworks useful 
in understanding the challenges and the environment in which the business operates, the direction the management 
intends to head, the strategic plans in getting the enterprise moving in the intended direction and the tasks of 
implementing the chosen strategy successfully. 
 
BAMM-101 MARKETING MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS) 
 
This course provides a working knowledge of the various elements of marketing-consumer behavior, competition, 
product management, pricing, channels of distribution, advertising and marketing research. It develops the standard 
ability to synthesize these elements into marketing strategies based on a thorough grasp of the business 
environment. Social responsibility in marketing management is discussed. Students are introduced to the case 
method. 
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BAMM-102 MARKETING RESEARCH (3 UNITS)                                                  Prerequisite: BAMM-101 

This course familiarizes the students with the different market research approaches and techniques to help 
identify key research questions that underlie strategic marketing decisions. Data are collected and analyzed to develop 
the strategic implications of the research findings. 

 
BAMM-103 BUSINESS STATISTICS (3 UNITS) 
 
This course provides the student with the fundamental understanding of the concepts of probability theory and 
statistical inference necessary to effectively employ statistical methods in contemporary business situations. Topics 
covered are: probability concepts, probability distributions, sampling and sampling distributions, statistical estimation, 
hypothesis testing, regression, correlation and time series. 

 
BAMM-104 PRODUCT MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS)                        Prerequisite: BAMM-102 
 
This course focuses on the organizational lifecycle function within a company dealing with the planning, forecasting, and 
production, or marketing of a product or products at all stages of the product lifecycle. It also involves product 
elimination decisions such as identification of elimination candidates, remedial actions, a projection of the impact 
on the business as a whole if a candidate product is eventually eliminated, and the implementation stage. 
 
BAMM-105 ADVERTISING AND PROMOTIONS MANAGEMENT                       Prerequisite: BAMM-104  
 
This course deals with the issues regarding the competition for the consumers' attention. Advertising penetrates 
almost all aspects of daily life, hence, effective techniques in acquiring the consumers' attention is a key 
requirement. This subject examines the role and use of advertising and promotion within the marketing function. 
An overview and evaluation of different advertising products, such as: tri-media (print/radio/television), mail (mass 
mailing and directed mailing), and electronic media will be covered. Public relations, publicity and sales promotion will also 
be examined. 

BAMM-106 RETAIL MANAGEMENT 
 
This course introduces the student to the world of retailing from a managerial viewpoint. It will provide students with an 
understanding of the principles and practices of retail management. It also aims at sharing the excitement and 
challenges in the retail industry, in particular the new retail formats and channels such as the Internet. 
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BAMM-107 PRICE STRATEGY (3 UNITS) 
This course examines within the marketing framework, the strategic and tactical aspects of pricing decisions, using 
both qualitative (consumer behavior and psychology) and quantitative (economics, statistics, and financial forecasting) 
analyses. 

BAMM-108 DISTRIBUTION MANAGEMENT  

This course discusses the theories, principles, systems, and practices that are related to the movement of goods and 
services from producing companies to final users. It explains the processes of designing and managing distribution 
channels in industrial, consumer, and service markets. The course examines the economic and behavioral problems 
emanating between producers and intermediaries. It also studies the methods and techniques of the physical 
distribution of goods. 

BAMM-109 PROFESSIONAL SALES MANAGEMENT 

This course deals with the fundamentals of trust-based personal selling. The areas specifically studied include 
understanding the sales industry and selling occupations; promoting self-leadership, building trust, and conducting 
sales dialogue; prospecting, qualifying, communicating, and relationship building; buyer motivation; creating 
value; handling resistance; earning commitment; customer concerns; and sales management. 

BAMM-110 BRAND MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS) 
 
This course deals with the explorat ion of brands, brand equity and strategic brand  management. 
Students will learn how to conceptualize, design, and measure brand image, and through case studies will gain 
experience in making strategic and tactical decisions in managing brands. Students will gain competency in concepts 
that can be used in careers in brand management, but also used in other business functions that require interface 
with brands. 
 
BAMM-112 STRATEGIC MARKETING MANAGEMENT 

This course provides a comprehensive coverage of major topics in developing and implementing a market-driven 
approach to business and marketing strategy. It requires the student to understand how a business creates, delivers 
and captures value and how to align the various activities and deliver the right proposition to the right customers. 

BAMM-114 CONSUMER BEHAVIOR (3 UNITS) - ELECTIVE 
This course focuses on the study of individuals, groups, or organizations and the processes they use to select, secure, 
use, and dispose of products, services, experiences, or ideas to satisfy needs and the impacts that these processes 
have on the consumer and society. It involves the psychological processes that consumers go through in recognizing 
needs, finding ways to solve these needs, making purchase decisions, interpret information, make plans, and 
implement these plans. 
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BAMM-116 DIGITAL MARKETING (3 UNITS) – ELECTIVE 
In this course, the students will study the use of digital technology (such as the internet, mobile and other interactive 
channels) and processes in the development, distribution, and promotion of products and services. 
 
 
BAMM-118 INTERNATIONAL MARKETING (3 UNITS)- ELECTIVE 
This course discusses the problems and policies of international marketing with emphasis on foreign marketing analysis 
and export feasibility, foreign trade promotion, export-import procedures and requirements, which are all considered 
from the Philippine perspective. 

BAMM-117 SERVICES MARKETING (3 UNITS)- ELECTIVE  
This course deals with managing the service value chain such as developing service concepts and managing the 
customer interface. 
 
HRM-101  ADMINISTRATIVE AND OFFICE MANAGEMENT 
 
The course is designed to study the principles of office management in the areas of recruitment and orientation  
of office staff, supervision and promotion of office personnel, problem solving and communication processes to 
cover the telephone etiquette  and office productivity. 
 
HRM-102   LABOR LAW AND LEGISLATION 
 
The course deals with the basic concepts related to labor law, particularly with labor standards, labor relations 
and social legislations. It contains the laws governing collective bargaining unions and employers. 
 
HRM-103 RECRUITMENT SELECTION  
 
This course presents recruitment and selection as an essential component in recruitment planning. The role of 
recruitment and selection is examined in relation to the total business objectives. Students are introduced to the 
issues, principles, practices and trends in recruitment selection. 
 
HRM-104 COMPENSATION AND TOTAL REWARDS MANAGEMENT 
 
This course aims to deepen student’s understanding of the different rewards systems available to employers to 
attract, motivate and retain qualified employees. It includes impact of rewards on retention and performance 
management; framework for compensation strategy; rewards and compensation strategies formulation; job 
evaluation; evaluation of the labor market and individuals. 
 
 
HRM-105 ORGANIZATIONAL THEORY AND BEHAVIORS 
 
An overview of the fundamental concepts of organizational theory and organizational behavior in the context of 
an increasingly global society. It includes the impact of technological and workforce changes on society, 
organizational ethics and social responsibility, organizational communication, leadership and decision-making 
skills in intercultural environments, relevance of the management thoughts to managers today and the 
challenges of managing in today’s complex and rapidly changing environment. 
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HRM-106   TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT  
 
The course will examine the role of human resource development in maintaining an organization’s competitive 
position in today’s environment. It aims to identify assessment techniques that will assist the manager in 
determining the general training of the employees and it wi ll introduce practices that help managers to 
successfully transfer training to the workplace so that organizational efficiency and effectiveness improve. 
 
HRM-107 EMPLOYEE RELATIONS AND ENGAGEMENT  
 
This course investigates various facets of employee engagement from a variety of different perspectives. 
Employee engagement is examined through the lens of its antecedents, including investigation of the concept 
of trust, the impacts of partnership and collaboration, as well as employee voice, communication and 
involvement. The impact of organizational change on employee engagement is also explored. 
 
HRM-108   PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
 
The course covers key components of project management including project integration, p roject scope 
management, project time and cost management, quality management, human resource considerations, 
communications, risk management and procurement management. 
 
HRM-109 CORPORATE CULTURE 

 
The course examines the development, nature, classifications and characteristics of organizational culture. It 
covers the investigation of behaviors and their relationship to organizational culture. The interaction of the 
individual, groups, the organization and environment are explored. Theories, models and methods for aligning 
culture to the organizational vision and mission is emphasized.  

 
 

HRM-110   ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND CHANGE  
 
The course examines theories and applications associated with organization development and change with 
specific focus on improving organizational effectiveness. This course covers the phases of consulting, 
strategies, intervention decisions and actions, multiple roles, skills and phases of internal and external 
consultants, ethical dilemmas and guidelines, and the implementation of action research.  
 

 
HRM-111 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT  
 
The course examines the designs of performance management systems that aim to transform organizational 
objectives and performance outcomes and identifies the knowledge and skills needed for effec tive performance 
review processes that are fair, ethical and improve people performance in modern organizations.  
 
 
HRM-112   SUCCESSION MANAGEMENT AND LEADER DEVELOPMENT  
 
The course provides a framework for aligning leadership readiness strategies with business goals.  It involves 
formal leadership development program that lessens the struggle of finding successors to critical roles.  
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HRM-113    CAREER TRANSITION MANAGEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT  
 
The course provides an opportunity to learn and develop the necessary skills to engage in life/career planning. 
It introduces the career development process to students that includes self-awareness, career awareness, 
career exploration, career preparation, job seeking and advancement, and career satisfaction and transition.  
 
 
HRM-114    CONFLICT MANAGEMENT   
 
The course aims to integrate the field of conflict in organizations and to consolidate the view that effective 
conflict resolution is an essential element for effective administration. Students will learn to apply an interest-
based conflict management approach. They will be provided with tools that assist in managing conflict and 
challenges more effectively.  
 
HRM-115    EMPLOYEE SERVICES AND WELLNESS PROGRAM  
 
This course will focus on health promotion concepts, program management strategies, interventions and 
perspectives of health promotions in the workplace. It will explain why health promotions make sense as a 
return on investment for employers and provide insight into the process of designing, managing, and evaluating 
a program.  
 
Strategies that impact health promotions and identify the types of programs used to operationalize a health 
promotions program will be explored. 
 
HRM-117   THESIS 1:  HUMAN RESOURCE TRANSFORMATION PLAN  
 
The course examines the impact of corporate and business strategy on human resources management. It 
stresses the importance of aligning human resources management policies and practices with organizational 
strategy. A strategic human resources planning model is introduced and includes the following elements: 
organizational strategy, HRM strategy, environmental influences on HRM, job analysis, HR management 
systems and forecasting supply and demand. Students are required to analyze and create an HR 
transformation plan for a company. 
 
HRM-118    DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION  
 
The course provides a thorough understanding of the creation and promotion of a safe and welcoming work 
environment for colleagues and customers. Ensuring that a corporate organizat ion is aware of cultural and 
organizational bias and that it can provide the foundation for a diverse and inclusive workplace.  
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BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN ENTREPRENEURSHIP 
 
Program Description:  
 
The BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN ENTREPRENEURSHIP is a 
college degree program that prepares and develops young women 
to become competent and well-balanced young entrepreneur-
women leaders.  Emphasis is on developing their entrepreneurial 
mindset, idea and opportunity seeking skills, local and global 
perspectives, values and behavior, key competencies and lifelong 
skills. Students establish, operate and manage their own small 
business start up ventures or projects as they experientially learn 
and hone their employer-ability, entrepreneurial leadership, 
strategic management, innovative and solution mindedness, good 
governance skills and global competitiveness. 
 
The Department of Entrepreneurship as CHED designated 
Centers of Excellence has aligned its program with the new CHED 
CMO 18 series of 2017 (a departure from CMO 17 series of 2005) 
and now offers the 2 major programs in:   
•  Culinary Arts, and  
•  Creative Design and Product Development 

 
Program Outcomes:   
 
The Bachelor of Science in Entrepreneurship Graduate will be able 
to: 

• Conduct self-assessment on aptitudes, competencies 
and skills set; 

• Recognize, identify, seek or create opportunity; 
• Identify, plan and manage business risk; 
• Adapt and effectuate plans or operations;  
• Understand and manage mistakes, failures and successes as part of venture development, creation, 

growth and its sustainability; 
• Exhibit confidence in the exercise of ones' expertise or industry mastery; 
• Exhibit a good grounding on social and cultural skills for balanced human and social relations, 

connections, and spirit of service, in general; 
• Uphold dignity of work, personal integrity and professionalism that are learned, practiced and earned; 

and 
• Demonstrate personal pride in addressing issues applying Miriam College Core Values of truth, justice, 

peace and integrity of creation. 
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Program Goals:  
Graduate should be able to: 

•  Establish a small or medium scale business 

•  Manage and operate a business, responsibly and ethically  

• Assume Managerial/leadership position with skills, competencies, values (readiness for the 4th Industrial 
Revolution1) in the field of Business Development, Corporate   Planning and other related positions in the 
corporate or public organizations or non-government organizations 

• Advocate Entrepreneurship Education as a Life Long Learning skill  
 
All major courses are highly competitive and unique.  It is a holistic program that optimizes and combines the learning 
and practice of science and the art of their chosen specialization (in Culinary Arts or Creative Design and Product 
Development). Likewise, the program synergizes the rich cultural heritage and modern trends for meaningful learning 
as students engage in communities. 
 
Major in Culinary Arts  
 
Focuses on forming effective Chef, Restaurateurs, or Entrepreneurs in Food Business Management and Operations 
in various areas of specialization. This experience-outcomes based program is an application of theoretical, technical 
and scientific knowledge in various areas of specialization in culinary arts (e.g. local and global history, food heritage 
and cultures, food business models and operations, practices, standard, innovations and trends), and its business-
related fields. Students firm up their entrepreneurial or career path as they experience establishing and operating 
their own business start ups or venture projects. The Culinary Arts is undertaken in partnership with prestigious 
institutions both local and international for global training, experience and competitiveness.  
 
Major in Creative Design and Product Development  
 
Focuses on forming future innovative, creative design and product development Entrepreneurs, Crafts-women, 
Fashion Stylists, Designers, Business Service/Supplier providers/owners.    
 
The program derived its inspiration from design concepts, aesthetic features, sensible functionality and commercial 
appeal of venture products meet and creatively fused.  This experience and outcomes-based course (like the culinary 
arts) is an application of arts and design theories and its elements into a new form: product innovation or aesthetic 
piece.  Generally, this is solution-action market driven- output that marries aesthetics, technology applications, 
function and commercial appeal that is sustainable and inclusive.  The program specifically rallies Philippine 
craftsmanship at its best, as it prepares the new generation of globally competitive and creative ASEAN/Asia Pacific 
youth, with distinct Filipino imprint. Students firm up their entrepreneurial or career path as they experience 
establishing and operating their own business start ups or venture projects. This is undertaken in partnership with 
prestigious institutions both local and international for global training, experience and competitiveness. 
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Major in Culinary Arts 
Revised Curriculum for SY 2018-2019 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

First Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

MMW-1.0 Mathematics in the Modern 
World 3 

 

ARTA-1.0 Art Appreciation 3 

RPH-1.0 Readings in Philippine History 3 PCOM-1.0 Purposive Communication 3 
UTS-1.0 Understanding the Self 3 TCW-1.0 The Contemporary World 3 

ETPM-101 Entrepreneurial Behavior 3 BME-101  Introduction to Business 
Functions 3 

NSTP-1.1 National Service Training 
Program (NSTP I) 3 NSTP-2.1 National Service Training 

Program (NSTP II) 3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness - I  2 PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 

Health & Fitness - II 2 

T-101 Biblical Foundation of 
Christian Faith 3 T-102.1 Theology of Mission, 

Communion, and Service 3 

MC-101 MC Culture, Identity, and 
Social Responsibility I 1 MC-102 MC Culture, Identity, and Social 

Responsibility II 1 

   EPTM-104 Microeconomics 3 
 Total 21  Total 24 
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Second Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

ETPM-102 Opportunity Seeking 1 
(ET 102: Enterprise 
Planning 1) 

3 ETPM-103 
Opportunity Seeking 2 
(ET 103: Enterprise  
Planning 2) 

3 

ETPM-105 Market Research and 
Consumer Behavior 3 ETPM-106 Costing and Pricing 3 

ECA-101 
Foundation of Food 
Science, Nutrition, and 
Industry w/ Lab 

5 ETPM-107 

Financial Management for 
Decision Makers (w/ 
Accounting for 
Entrepreneurs/Non-
Accountant) 

3 

ECA-102 Culinary 1 w/ Lab: Basic 
Techniques 3 ETPM-108 

Human Resource 
Management (with Human 
Behavior in Organizations) 

3 

ETPM-121 Business Models  
(Elective 1) 3 ECA-103 Culinary 2 w/ Lab Protein 

 
 
3 
 

PATHF-3.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness – III 2 ECA-104 Culinary 3 w/ Lab Regional 

Cuisine 3 

HU-102 Art and Design 3 PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness - IV 2 

   STS-1.0 Science, Technology and 
Society 3 

 Total 22  Total 23 
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Third Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

LWR-1.0 Life and Works of Rizal 3 ETPM-109 

Business Law and 
Taxation with focus on 
laws affecting micro, small 
and medium enterprises 

3 

ETPM-110 Innovation Management 3 ETPM- 113 Business Plan 
Preparation  3 

B.ANA-101 Business Analytics I 3 ETPM-122 Venture Finance (Elec 2) 3 

ECA-105 Culinary 4 w/Lab Western 
(American/European) 3  

ETPM-112 
International Business 
and T rade 3 

GEE-1 Local Knowledge and 
Ethnoecology 3 ECA-106 

Food and Beverage 
Operations Management 
w/ Lab 

3 

T-103 Contemporary Moral 
Issues 3 

GEE-2 The Entrepreneurial 
Mindset and Innovative 
Thinking 

3 

ETH-1.0 Ethics 3 ETPM-123 Events Management 
(Elective -3) 3 

BME-102 Operations Management 
with TQM 3 ETPM-111 Social Entrepreneurship 3 

 Total 24  Total 24 
       

Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

ETPM-114 Business Plan 
Implementation 1 5 ETPM-116 Program Policies on 

Enterprise Development 3 

ETPM-124 

Small Business 
Management Consulting / 
Business Development 
Services (Elective-4) 

3 

ECA-107 Course Integration w/ Lab 
(Culinary Arts) 

5 

T-104 Theology of Social Justice 
and Peace 3 ETPM-115 Business Plan 

Implementation 2 5 

BME-103 Strategic Management  3    

GEE-3 Gender, Human Rights and 
Peace 3    

 Total 17  Total 13 
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Major in Creative Design and Product Development 
Curriculum for SY 2018-2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

First Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

MMW-1.0  Mathematics in the Modern 
World 3 ARTA-1.0 Art Appreciation 3 

RPH-1.0 Readings in Philippine 
History 3 PCOM-1.0 Purposive Communication 3 

UTS-1.0 Understanding the Self 3 TCW-1.0 The Contemporary World 3 

ETPM-101 Entrepreneurial Behavior 3 BME-101 Introduction to Business 
Functions 3 

NSTP-1.1 National Service Training 
Program (NSTP I) 3 NSTP-2.1 National Service Training 

Program (NSTP II) 3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness – I 2 PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 

Health & Fitness - II 2 

T-101 Biblical Foundation of 
Christian Faith 3 T-102.1 Theology of Mission, 

Communion, and Service 3 

MC-101 MC Culture, Identity, and 
Social Responsibility I 1 MC-102 MC Culture, Identity, and 

Social Responsibility II 1 

   ETPM-104 Microeconomics  3 

 Total 21  Total 24 
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Second Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

ETPM-102 Opportunity Seeking 1 3 ETPM-103 Opportunity Seeking 2 3 

ETPM-105 Market Research and 
Consumer Behavior 3 ETPM-106 Costing and Pricing 3 

ECD-101 Design Fundamentals 1 w/ 
Lab 5 ETPM-107 

Financial Management for 
Decision Makers (w/ 
Accounting for 
Entrepreneurs/Non-
Accountant) 

3 

ECD-102 Materials, Research, and 
Manipulation 1 w/Lab 3 ETPM-108 

Human Resource 
Management (with Human 
Behavior in Organizations) 

3 

ETPM-121 Business Models (Elective-1) 3 STS-1.0 Science, Technology and 
Society 3 

PATHF-3.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness – III 2 ECD-103  Materials, Research, 

Manipulation 2 w/ Lab 3 

HU-102 Arts and Design 3 ECD-104 Artisanal Crafts 1 w/Lab 
(Specialized Craft/Industry 1) 3 

   PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness - IV 2 

 Total 22  Total 23 
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Third Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course  
Code 

Course Title Units  Course  
Code 

Course  Title Units 

B.ANA-101 Business Analytics I 3 

 

ETPM-113 Business Plan Preparation 3 

ETH-1.0 Ethics 3 ETPM-109 Business Law and Taxation 3 

ETPM-110 Innovation Management 3 
 
ETPM-122 Venture Finance (Elec 2) 3 

ECD-105 
Artisanal Crafts 2 w/ Lab 
(Specialized 
Crafts/Industry 2) 

3 ETPM-112 International Business and 
Trade 3 

T-103 Contemporary Moral 
Issues 3 ECD-106 

Creative Design Industry 
Management and Operations 
w/ Lab 

3 

LWR-1.0 Life and Works of Rizal 3 GEE-2 The Entrepreneurial Mindset 
and Innovative Thinking 3 

BME-102 Operations Management 
with TQM 3 ETPM-123 Events Management 

(Elective-3) 3 

GEE-1 Local Knowledge and 
Ethnoecology 

3 ETPM-111 Social Entrepreneurship 3 

 Total 24  Total 24 
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Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course  
Code 

Course Title Units  Course  
Code 

Course Title Units 

ETPM-114 Business Plan 
Implementation 1 5 

 

ETPM-116 Program Policies on 
Enterprise Development 3 

ETPM-124 

Small Business 
Management 
Consulting / Business 
Development Services 
(Elective-4) 

3 

 
ECD-107 Course Integration w/ Lab 

(Creative Design and Product 
Development) 

5 

T-104 Theology of Social 
Justice and Peace 3 ETPM-115 Business Plan Implementation 

2 5 

BME-103 Strategic Management 3    
GEE-3 Gender, Human Rights 

and Peace 
 
3 

   

 Total 17  Total 13 
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COURSE DESCRIPTIONS 
 

COMMON BUSINESS MANAGEMENT EDUCATION COURSE (9 UNITS) 
 
BME-101: INTRODUCTION TO BUSINESS FUNCTIONS (3 UNITS) 
 
This course aims to provide students the understanding of the activities carried out by a business organization. 
These are Management and Organization, Finance and Accounting, Operations and Systems, Marketing and Sales, 
and Human Resource and Administration. These functions are necessary to achieve the objectives of a business and 
vital in designing strategies, executing plans and decision-making. Topics include theories, principles and their 
application to a business set up. 
 
For the entrepreneurship program, the students will render 50 practicum hours in business centers or equivalent for 
the semester following the Student Merit System (SMS) guidelines of the department. 
 
BME-102: OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT WITH TQM (3 UNITS) 
 
Operations transform resources to produce goods or deliver services; and operations managers plan, design, control 
and improve needed systems and processes. While considering interactive marketing, finance and operations 
strategies, students apply problem solving and decision-making tools for increased quality, productivity, value and 
competitiveness. The course also covers total quality management and supply chain management, just-in-time and 
lean manufacturing systems in response to more global, technology-driven and environmentally conscious markets. 
 
For the entrepreneurship program, the students will render 50 practicum hours in business centers or equivalent for 
the semester following the Student Merit System (SMS) guidelines of the department. 
 
BME-103: STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS)     Prerequisite: BME-102 
 
This course is about running the total business enterprise. It introduces theoretical concepts and frameworks useful 
in understanding the challenges and the environment in which the business operates, the direction the management 
intends to head, the strategic plans in getting the enterprise moving in the intended direction and the tasks of 
implementing the chosen strategy successfully. 
 
For the entrepreneurship program, the students will render 50 practicum hours in business centers or equivalent for 
the semester following the Student Merit System (SMS) guidelines of the department. 
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MAJOR IN CULINARY ARTS (25 UNITS) 
 
FOUNDATION OF FOOD SCIENCE, INDUSTRY AND NUTRITION (5 UNITS)  
 
ECA-101: FOUNDATION OF FOOD SCIENCE, NUTRITION AND INDUSTRY W/LAB (5 units) 
 
This course discusses the food industry, restaurant service, food safety, and sanitation. This is the foundation course 
presented in the modular program with research and deals with the: 

o theories, chemical and physical scientific principles associated with the study of foods; (e.g.food 
composition and nutrition, food additives and regulations, food safety and toxicology, food processing, food 
engineering, food biotechnology, product development and sensory evaluation). This course considers the 
legal, regulatory, ethical, and scientific considerations involved in developing a new product or improving 
existing ones with due regard for regulatory issues, control, and safety*; 

o application of food science to human nutritional needs; 
o food industry including issues, policies and concerns related to food production, supply chain and 

sustainability; 
o ethical role and impact of food industry, in general, and 
o important role of culinary students and their future professional contribution and impact in the food chain 

industry. 

The basics of research is introduced to students in foundation programs as they are required to independently 
propose a research topic of interest or food business project that will impact on their professional and career 
development. This particularly aims to develop their inquiring minds and creative thinking skills as they move to 
higher levels in the program. 
 
 *  Review and take the Food Safety Certification Exam (FoodSHAP Exam) 
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FOUNDATIONS OF CULINARY ARTS (6 UNITS) 
 
ECA-102: CULINARY 1 W/ LAB: BASIC TECHNIQUES (3 units)    
 
This course presents the principles and industry standards involved in the preparation of stocks, soups, and starches, 
and provides students with hands-on experience in the kitchen laboratory. This course provides basic knowledge on 
knife skills, butchery and fishmongery. The course also includes the fundamentals of mathematics as applied in food 
preparation, conversion of measurements and the business side of it. The course contents on basic techniques are: 

o Kitchen Brigade, Culinary terms, Kitchen measurements, Basic Kitchen Equipment and how to operate and 
use such equipment 

o Chef Knife and Knife Skills – Basic Cutting 
o Egg Cookery 
o Vegetable Cookery, Salads and Dressings 
o Stocks, Soups and Sauces 

ECA-103: CULINARY 2 W/ LAB: PROTEIN (3 UNITS)    Prerequisite: ECA-102 
 
Meat Fabrication, Butchery, Marination, Curing and Cooking, Bottling/Canning 
 
The course focuses on the industry standard techniques and efficient practices on how to select raw ingredients, 
fabrication (as related to the common aspects) of: 

o Beef and Lamb 
o Poultry – Chicken, Duck and other birds 
o Pork and Variety Meals 
o Fish and Seafood 

Prepare and cook them in ways that preserve their nutrients, enhance their flavors and show them at their best. 
 
*NC 2 Exam No Credits; taken as a globally recognized certification to increase the student over-all professional 
competitiveness 
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ADVANCED CULINARY COURSES (6 UNITS) 
 

ECA-104: CULINARY 3 W/ LAB: REGIONAL CUISINE (ASIAN, FILIPINO) (3 UNITS)          Prerequisite: ECA-102 
 
This course introduces fundamental food preparation terms, concepts, and methods from the use and care of 
equipment, safety and sanitation, and preparation of Asian cuisine and its standards. Topics include: Asian culinary 
ingredients, techniques, concepts, knife skills, methods of food preparation, and recipe utilization. These are: 

o Chinese Cuisine 
o Japanese, Korean 
o Thai, Viet, Malay 
o Indian, Middle Eastern Cuisine 
o Homage to Filipino Cuisine 

Students will gain valuable experience through training at Café Entrep and the end of course simulations. 
 
ECA-105: CULINARY 4 W/ LAB – WESTERN (AMERICAN, EUROPEAN) (3 UNITS)            Prerequisite: ECA-102 
 
The course introduces the cuisines of Americas and Europe, its cultural, geographic and influences, ingredients 
used, techniques and cooking method. This course will also include breakfast cookery and garde manger the basic 
skills in different cuisines will give them a wide variety of options which they can use to operate effectively and 
efficiently according to international industry standards and apply it in setting up their food ventures. These are the 
country cuisines of: 

o Classical French 
o Italian 
o Spanish 
o Mediterranean 
o North American 
o South American 

Students will gain valuable experience through training at Café Entrep and the end of course simulations. 
 
*Take at least NC 2 Exams No Credits; taken as a globally recognized certification to increase the student over-all 
professional competitiveness 
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FOOD INDUSTRY, MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS INTEGRATION (8 UNITS) 
 
ECA-106: FOOD AND BEVERAGE OPERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT W/ LAB (3 UNITS)  
Prerequisite: ECA 102 
 
The idea of owning a restaurant can be very rewarding, and yet so many restaurants with excellent food fail on its first 
year. This program prepares the student on the how of operating a successful and profitable food and beverage system. 
The course is an overview of food and beverage operations and management. The emphasis is on the management 
aspects, including running the business, use and application of industry technologies, managing clients/market, 
operations, revenue models, cost efficiencies and building profits for its sustainability. 
 
Students will gain valuable experience and operations through a series of simulations and training at Café Entrep. This 
will also allow them to apply their learning and experience in their own venture. 
 
 
 
ECA-107: COURSE INTEGRATION WITH LAB (CULINARY ARTS) (5 UNITS)    
Prerequisites: ETPM 116/ETPM 123/ECA 106 
 
This course integration is a continuation of their venture operations/ or café or food service (e.g. Café Entrep; or other 
food service operation) and its assessment.  It includes participation in professional development programs as students 
are prepared to take the National Certification Exam/s* as well as study trips with international partner institutions 
abroad with the aim of leveling up their entrepreneurial competencies, increasing their leadership readiness and over-
all competitiveness to organize and execute Buklod as the final entrepreneurship course integration show. This form 
of exposure and exhibition will feature their skills and curated/ creative work/ portfolio to the public.  It will also discuss 
service learning action for increased social and ethical responsiveness to the industry or community it serves as the 
final test of their holistic entrepreneurial competencies and skills acquired from the program.  
 
*Take at least NC 3 and 4 Exams No Credits; taken as a globally recognized certification to increase the student 
over-all professional competitiveness 
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FOOD INDUSTRY, MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS INTEGRATION (8 UNITS) 
 
ECA-106: FOOD AND BEVERAGE OPERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT W/ LAB (3 UNITS)  
Prerequisite: ECA 102 
 
The idea of owning a restaurant can be very rewarding, and yet so many restaurants with excellent food fail on its 
first year. This program prepares the student on the how of operating a successful and profitable food and beverage 
system. The course is an overview of food and beverage operations and management. The emphasis is on the 
management aspects, including running the business, use and application of industry technologies, managing 
clients/market, operations, revenue models, cost efficiencies and building profits for its sustainability. 
 
Students will gain valuable experience and operations through a series of simulations and training at Café Entrep. 
This will also allow them to apply their learning and experience in their own venture. 
 
 
 
ECA-107: COURSE INTEGRATION WITH LAB (CULINARY ARTS) (5 UNITS)    
Prerequisites: ETPM 116/ETPM 123/ECA 106 
 
This course integration is a continuation of their venture operations/ or café or foodservice (e.g. Café Entrep; or other 
food service operation) and its assessment.  It includes participation in professional development programs as 
students are prepared to take the National Certification Exam/s* as well as study trips with international partner 
institutions abroad with the aim of leveling up their entrepreneurial competencies, increasing their leadership 
readiness and over-all competitiveness to organize and execute Buklod as the final entrepreneurship course 
integration show. This form of exposure and exhibition will feature their skills and curated/ creative work/ portfolio to 
the public.  It will also discuss service learning action for increased social and ethical responsiveness to the industry 
or community it serves as the final test of their holistic entrepreneurial competencies and skills acquired from the 
program.  
 
*Take at least NC 3 and 4 Exams No Credits; taken as a globally recognized certification to increase the student 
over-all professional competitiveness 
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FOOD INDUSTRY, MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS INTEGRATION (8 UNITS) 
 
ECA-106: FOOD AND BEVERAGE OPERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT W/ LAB (3 UNITS)  
Prerequisite: ECA 102 
 
The idea of owning a restaurant can be very rewarding, and yet so many restaurants with excellent food fail on its 
first year. This program prepares the student on the how of operating a successful and profitable food and beverage 
system. The course is an overview of food and beverage operations and management. The emphasis is on the 
management aspects, including running the business, use and application of industry technologies, managing 
clients/market, operations, revenue models, cost efficiencies and building profits for its sustainability. 
 
Students will gain valuable experience and operations through a series of simulations and training at Café Entrep. 
This will also allow them to apply their learning and experience in their own venture. 
 
 
 
ECA-107: COURSE INTEGRATION WITH LAB (CULINARY ARTS) (5 UNITS)    
Prerequisites: ETPM 116/ETPM 123/ECA 106 
 
This course integration is a continuation of their venture operations/ or café or foodservice (e.g. Café Entrep; or other 
food service operation) and its assessment.  It includes participation in professional development programs as 
students are prepared to take the National Certification Exam/s* as well as study trips with international partner 
institutions abroad with the aim of leveling up their entrepreneurial competencies, increasing their leadership 
readiness and over-all competitiveness to organize and execute Buklod as the final entrepreneurship course 
integration show. This form of exposure and exhibition will feature their skills and curated/ creative work/ portfolio to 
the public.  It will also discuss service learning action for increased social and ethical responsiveness to the industry 
or community it serves as the final test of their holistic entrepreneurial competencies and skills acquired from the 
program.  
 
*Take at least NC 3 and 4 Exams No Credits; taken as a globally recognized certification to increase the student 
over-all professional competitiveness 
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MAJOR IN CREATIVE DESIGN AND PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT (25 UNITS) 
 
 
FOUNDATION COURSE IN DESIGN, HISTORY & CULTURE (5 UNITS) 
 
ECD-101: DESIGN FUNDAMENTALS 1 W/ LAB* (5 UNITS) 
 
This is the foundation course in the creative design and product development presented in modules with varying 
sessions of study and research. This journey includes discussions on elements, concepts, and principles of the rich 
history, transition and inspirations; historical periods from tradition to contemporary, as well as the merging 
technology innovation and creative trends shaping the fourth Industrial Revolution designs and product development. 
It also introduces the students with the basic skills in free hand drawing techniques in various media for presenting 
objects. 
 
Visits and cultural exposure trips to museums, exhibitions, towns and communities are done to further develop 
students’ visual and artistic sensitivities thus, helping them better understand the world around them and rediscover 
artistry in their choice of craft as solution to opportunities, needs or problems to operate a viable business or social 
venture. 
 
The basics of research are introduced to students in foundation program as they are required to independently 
propose a research topic/ or material of interest or creative design/ product project that will impact on their 
professional and career development. This particularly aims to develop their inquiring minds and creative thinking 
skills as they move to higher levels in the program. 
 
*Use of HSSIC of MC-HSSIC Innovation Center/iHub  

 
 
FOUNDATION COURSES IN MATERIALS, RESEARCH, MANIPULATION (6 UNITS) 
 
ECD-102: MATERIALS, RESEARCH AND MANIPULATION 1 W/ LAB (3 UNITS)                 
 
This course introduces the students to the basics of structural, perceptual and spatial properties of well-ordered 
forms in the process of design. Emphasis is on the analyses and manipulation of the nature and possibilities of both 
common organic and non-organic or manufactured industrial materials. It advances the students’ knowledge about 
their core characteristics, handling and construction (from sourcing, cutting, and finishing techniques) for creating 
product prototypes. 
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CREATIVE DESIGN INDUSTRY MANAGEMENT & OPERATION INTEGRATION (8 UNITS) 
 

ECD-106: CREATIVE DESIGN INDUSTRY MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS W/LAB (3 UNITS)         
Prerequisites: ECD- 105 
 
This advanced course prepares the students a) To know the creative industry trade and revenue models, standards, 
systems and practices, issues and development trends (ethical and green environment, fast fashion, sustainability 
concern, supply chain, technology applications, changing lifestyles, buying seasons, marketing shifts and related 
matters); and b) on the how or use and application of the management and technologies, merchandising and 
communication models; managing clients/market, operations, revenue models, cost efficiencies and building profits 
for the going concern and sustainability of their venture (such as their own atelier, gallery or design shop, or 
manufacturing system; on-line digital platform and social media).  They are expected to build their own venture, 
merchandising systems, operations and communications model. 
 
ECD-107: COURSE INTEGRATION W/LAB (5 UNITS) (CREATIVE DESIGN AND PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT) 
Prerequisites: ECD-106/ ETPM-114 
 
This course is a continuation of students’ venture within campus and/or in a commercial/ noncommercial set-up (e.g. 
Creative Design Shop, or independent Atelier, Studio or Gallery. It will allow students to participate in Professional 
Development programs to include study trips with international partner institutions abroad with the aim of increasing 
their entrepreneurial competencies, leadership readiness and over-all competitiveness. The course will  help them 
organize and execute Buklod as the final entrepreneurship course integration show (trunk or buyers fair/fashion 
show). This form of exposure and exhibition will feature their skills and curated/ creative work/portfolio to the public. 
Service learning action for increased social and ethical responsiveness to the industry or community is the final test 
of their holistic entrepreneurial competencies and skills acquired from the program. 
 

ENTREPRENEURSHIP PROFESSIONAL MANAGEMENT CORE COURSES (55 UNITS) 
 
ETPM-101: ENTREPRENEURIAL BEHAVIOR (3 UNITS) 
 
This course introduces the fundamentals of entrepreneurship, principles and theories and its role in economic 
development. Topics include the: historical development of Filipino entrepreneurial economy in relation to other 
societies or countries both developed and developing; the entrepreneurial mindset, character and values, attitudes 
and motivation; the 21st century skills and entrepreneurial competencies; success factors; risk, challenges and 
rewards; the supportive ecosystem to include government assistance and programs for entrepreneurship 
development; introduction to innovation and creative thinking skills and models; as well as trends, development and 
emerging models in social and techno-preneurship, among others. 
*All Entrepreneurship students shall take the Myers Briggs Entrepreneurial Personality Assessment through the MC 
Guidance Office. 
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ECD-103: MATERIALS, RESEARCH, AND MANIPULATION 2 W/ LAB (3 UNITS)                 
 
This module will allow students to carry out in depth investigation of a particular issue or topic that must be relevant 
to them as designers/innovators using their knowledge of various design and theoretical disciplines. The course 
includes discussions on developing research skills in producing creative solutions to given problems on materials 
related to society’s needs, trends, global competitiveness and sustainability goals. The experience revolves around 
critical thinking, use of imagination and making innovation through the use of materials for their product design. 
 
Students learn to acquire the mechanical and technical drawing techniques in various mediums including digital or 
3D presentation to render student product design. The course learning is supported with laboratory work and 
technology application (e.g. use of software may include AutoCAD, 3D Max, Adobe, Illustrator or Solid Works and 
other updated technology applications among others). At the end of the course, the student/ or teams will have 
identified their areas of interests for further research and specialization.  
 

 
ADVANCE DESIGN COURSES (SPECIALTY CREATIVE DESIGN, LIFESTYLE, & HOME PRODUCTS & 

RELATED ARTS (6 UNITS) 
 
ECD-104: ARTISANAL CRAFTS 1 WITH LAB (3 UNITS)                                             Specialized Crafts/Industry 1 
 
This course puts emphasis on developing creative ability by allowing the students or teams to choose their own 
creative product design or product line and the materials they intend to specialize in the Lifestyle and Home 
Accessories: (e.g. Home and lifestyle accessories e.g. Bamboo/wood/paper/craft; Woodcraft/Bamboo craft; Home 
décor, accessories and entertainment products; Toys and gifts; Furniture and Joinery etc.) or Jewelry and Fashion 
Design or Accessories: Millenary; Minaudiere, Footwear, Fabric Weaving and Embroidery, Cosmetic Arts and related 
arts). Major areas of design and functionality are analyzed in terms of materials, construction, presentation and 
commercial viability. Students learn technical and creatives skills needed for the craft in all development phases. 
Product prototyping or rendering always considers the market, production and industry standard requirements, 
technology, the supply chain, sustainability and inclusivity. The line is presented for critiquing or Preview 1 to test its 
viability. 
 
ECD-105: ARTISANAL CRAFTS 2 WITH LAB (3 UNITS)  Specialized Crafts/Industry 2/ Prerequisite: ECD-104 
 
This is the continuation of ECD 104 where product undergoes further research, analysis and improvement to create a 
range of line. Based on the market and product/technology research, the output is presented in a full-scale model 
complete with execution details in a curated portfolio for exhibition or Preview 2 to test its commercial appeal and 
market readiness. 
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CREATIVE DESIGN INDUSTRY MANAGEMENT & OPERATION INTEGRATION (8 UNITS) 
 

ECD-106: CREATIVE DESIGN INDUSTRY MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS W/LAB (3 UNITS)         
Prerequisites: ECD- 105 
 
This advanced course prepares the students a) To know the creative industry trade and revenue models, standards, 
systems and practices, issues and development trends (ethical and green environment, fast fashion, sustainability 
concern, supply chain, technology applications, changing lifestyles, buying seasons, marketing shifts and related 
matters); and b) on the how or use and application of the management and technologies, merchandising and 
communication models; managing clients/market, operations, revenue models, cost efficiencies and building profits 
for the going concern and sustainability of their venture (such as their own atelier, gallery or design shop, or 
manufacturing system; on-line digital platform and social media).  They are expected to build their own venture, 
merchandising systems, operations and communications model. 
 
ECD-107: COURSE INTEGRATION W/LAB (5 UNITS) (CREATIVE DESIGN AND PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT) 
Prerequisites: ECD-106/ ETPM-114 
 
This course is a continuation of students’ venture within campus and/or in a commercial/ noncommercial set-up (e.g. 
Creative Design Shop, or independent Atelier, Studio or Gallery. It will allow students to participate in Professional 
Development programs to include study trips with international partner institutions abroad with the aim of increasing 
their entrepreneurial competencies, leadership readiness and over-all competitiveness. The course will  help them 
organize and execute Buklod as the final entrepreneurship course integration show (trunk or buyers fair/fashion 
show). This form of exposure and exhibition will feature their skills and curated/ creative work/portfolio to the public. 
Service learning action for increased social and ethical responsiveness to the industry or community is the final test 
of their holistic entrepreneurial competencies and skills acquired from the program. 
 

ENTREPRENEURSHIP PROFESSIONAL MANAGEMENT CORE COURSES (55 UNITS) 
 
ETPM-101: ENTREPRENEURIAL BEHAVIOR (3 UNITS) 
 
This course introduces the fundamentals of entrepreneurship, principles and theories and its role in economic 
development. Topics include the: historical development of Filipino entrepreneurial economy in relation to other 
societies or countries both developed and developing; the entrepreneurial mindset, character and values, attitudes 
and motivation; the 21st century skills and entrepreneurial competencies; success factors; risk, challenges and 
rewards; the supportive ecosystem to include government assistance and programs for entrepreneurship 
development; introduction to innovation and creative thinking skills and models; as well as trends, development and 
emerging models in social and techno-preneurship, among others. 
*All Entrepreneurship students shall take the Myers Briggs Entrepreneurial Personality Assessment through the MC 
Guidance Office. 
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CREATIVE DESIGN INDUSTRY MANAGEMENT & OPERATION INTEGRATION (8 UNITS) 
 

ECD-106: CREATIVE DESIGN INDUSTRY MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS W/LAB (3 UNITS)         
Prerequisites: ECD- 105 
 
This advanced course prepares the students a) To know the creative industry trade and revenue models, standards, 
systems and practices, issues and development trends (ethical and green environment, fast fashion, sustainability 
concern, supply chain, technology applications, changing lifestyles, buying seasons, marketing shifts and related 
matters); and b) on the how or use and application of the management and technologies, merchandising and 
communication models; managing clients/market, operations, revenue models, cost efficiencies and building profits for 
the going concern and sustainability of their venture (such as their own atelier, gallery or design shop, or manufacturing 
system; on-line digital platform and social media).  They are expected to build their own venture, merchandising 
systems, operations and communications model. 
 
ECD-107: COURSE INTEGRATION W/LAB (5 UNITS) (CREATIVE DESIGN AND PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT) 
Prerequisites: ECD-106/ ETPM-114 
 
This course is a continuation of students’ venture within campus and/or in a commercial/ noncommercial set-up (e.g. 
Creative Design Shop, or independent Atelier, Studio or Gallery. It will allow students to participate in Professional 
Development programs to include study trips with international partner institutions abroad with the aim of increasing 
their entrepreneurial competencies, leadership readiness and over-all competitiveness. The course will  help them 
organize and execute Buklod as the final entrepreneurship course integration show (trunk or buyers fair/fashion show). 
This form of exposure and exhibition will feature their skills and curated/ creative work/portfolio to the public. Service 
learning action for increased social and ethical responsiveness to the industry or community is the final test of their 
holistic entrepreneurial competencies and skills acquired from the program. 
 

ENTREPRENEURSHIP PROFESSIONAL MANAGEMENT CORE COURSES (55 UNITS) 
 
ETPM-101: ENTREPRENEURIAL BEHAVIOR (3 UNITS) 
 
This course introduces the fundamentals of entrepreneurship, principles and theories and its role in economic 
development. Topics include the: historical development of Filipino entrepreneurial economy in relation to other 
societies or countries both developed and developing; the entrepreneurial mindset, character and values, attitudes and 
motivation; the 21st century skills and entrepreneurial competencies; success factors; risk, challenges and rewards; the 
supportive ecosystem to include government assistance and programs for entrepreneurship development; introduction 
to innovation and creative thinking skills and models; as well as trends, development and emerging models in social 
and techno-preneurship, among others. 
*All Entrepreneurship students shall take the Myers Briggs Entrepreneurial Personality Assessment through the MC 
Guidance and Counseling Office. 
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ETPM-102: OPPORTUNITY SEEKING 1 (3 UNITS)                                   Prerequisite: ETPM-101 
 
The course is a presentation of various theories and approaches to provide a holistic picture of the venture formation 
process. It provides the knowledge and tools in identifying business opportunities, challenges, risks or threats as part 
of their enterprise planning. The course is an application of various creative and innovation thinking tools, models and 
techniques in a series of opportunity and ideation processes, research, exploration, prototyping and goal setting. 
These shall equip them to come up with creative solutions to problems; challenges to disrupt convention; or new 
products and services; and/ or social development ventures that address the society’s problems or needs; identified 
trends and opportunities that consider its global competitiveness and sustainability. This whole learning process is 
documented in a business model canvass and plan brief. At the end of the course, students present their idea and/ or 
product pitch to a panel of judges or experts for critiquing and evaluation and in Preview 1 for product and market 
tests. 
 
 
ETPM-103: OPPORTUNITY SEEKING 2 (3 UNITS)                                Prerequisites: ETPM-102 
 
This is a continuation of opportunity seeking ventures 1 (ET 102: Enterprise Planning 1) as well as the practical 
aspects of starting a new business. The experience of undergoing the process provides an honest insight into the 
realities of entrepreneurial activity and the understanding of the role small and medium sized businesses play in a 
modern economy. Specifically, this is the venue on which the models and prototypes of their business projects/ plans 
identified in the previous semester will be put up in a series of research and prototype development from Preview 2. 
The project models/ prototypes are further studied, documented and critically analyzed to test its market and product 
acceptability within the parameters of a sound enterprise plan. At the end of the course students present their own 
venture pitch and exhibit in an attempt to create investment opportunity awareness for their products in the annual 
Competitive Excellence competition.  
 
ETPM-104: MICROECONOMICS (3 UNITS) 
 
This course provides the introductory framework of the business environment through the study of the market 
behavior of the consumer and the firm and their interactions in the market. It discusses the mechanisms by which 
resources are allocated, prices determined and income distributed. It focuses on the explanation and evaluation of 
the operation of the price policy system as it regulates production, distribution and consumption.  
 
ETPM-105: MARKET RESEARCH AND CONSUMER BEHAVIOR (3 UNITS)                   Prerequisite: BME-101 
 
This course provides a working knowledge of the various elements of marketing in general and marketing for start-
ups, in particular. It discusses the basics of marketing management including consumer behavior and marketing 
research as well as the social and ethical concerns related to start-up ventures. The course develops the student's 
ability to synthesize these elements into their own marketing plan and strategies for the venture start-ups based on a) 
A thorough grasp of the business environment through the use of appropriate marketing/or consumer research tools; 
and b) Analysis of actual start-up marketing cases and practices in various settings in relation to their own market 
needs and product offering; and c) Realistic goals.  
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ETPM-106: COSTING AND PRICING (3 UNITS)                                                                    Prerequisite: ETPM-102  
 
This course introduces the primary concepts of cost and pricing with emphasis on the cost of products and services 
as well as the structure of job-order cost systems and budgeting. It covers the basics of cost and price system and 
their application to the managerial functions of planning and controlling. It incorporates detailed costing of business 
start-up and sales projection. The application is specific to relevant industry and cases in the entrepreneurship 
program tracks.  
 
ETPM-107: FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT FOR DECISION MAKERS (3 UNITS)  
(With Accounting for Entrepreneurs/ Non-Accountants) Prerequisite: BME- 101  
 
This course starts with an appreciation of the nature, functions, scope and limitations of the accounting discipline as 
applied to service concerns and merchandising enterprises of single proprietorship or start-up ventures. It provides 
students with knowledge on the usefulness of accounting records as techniques/methodologies that are important for 
decision making from the perspective of an entrepreneur/employer/owner. 
 
It then segues to the basic finance principles such as: money, credit, the financial statement, cash management, 
forecasting, and financial wellness needed for startup ventures. Students learn to make sense of financial statement 
and its analysis, meaning of financial ratios, working capital, cash flow and forecasting which are essential to 
managing the finances of their start-up ventures. Students will also learn financial planning, sourcing, acquisition of 
start-up funds and its efficient utilization. Students are required to prepare their venture financial plan as input to their 
course enterprise development or business plan.  
 
ETPM-108: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT (WITH HBO) (3 UNITS)                          Prerequisite: BME-101  
 
This course is the study of the psychology of human behavior in the workplace and the current challenges the start 
up or small business organization face; the advancement in technologies; and the changing staff competency 
requirements in this globalized world. It will attempt to analyze employees and organizations at various stages of 
growth and development in relation to the do-it-all and multi roles of entrepreneurs. This provides a deeper 
understanding on how entrepreneurs can manage human resources and their roles as leaders in contributing to the 
success of their organization. Students undergo leadership skills training/workshop to equip them with people 
management and problem solving skills.  
 
Students are required to prepare their Human Resource Organization and Management Plan and Policies brief as 
input to their business plan 1.  
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ETPM-102: OPPORTUNITY SEEKING 1 (3 UNITS)                                   Prerequisite: ETPM-101 
 
The course is a presentation of various theories and approaches to provide a holistic picture of the venture formation 
process. It provides the knowledge and tools in identifying business opportunities, challenges, risks or threats as part 
of their enterprise planning. The course is an application of various creative and innovation thinking tools, models and 
techniques in a series of opportunity and ideation processes, research, exploration, prototyping and goal setting. These 
shall equip them to come up with creative solutions to problems; challenges to disrupt convention; or new products and 
services; and/ or social development ventures that address the society’s problems or needs; identify trends and 
opportunities that consider global competitiveness and sustainability. This whole learning process is documented in a 
business model canvass and plan brief. At the end of the course, students present their idea and/ or product pitch to a 
panel of judges or experts for critiquing and evaluation and in Preview 1 for product and market tests. 
 
 
ETPM-103: OPPORTUNITY SEEKING 2 (3 UNITS)                                Prerequisites: ETPM-102 
 
This is a continuation of opportunity seeking ventures 1 (ET 102: Enterprise Planning 1) as well as the practical aspects 
of starting a new business. The experience of undergoing the process provides an honest insight into the realities of 
entrepreneurial activity and the understanding of the role small and medium sized businesses play in a modern 
economy. Specifically, this is the venue on which the models and prototypes of their business projects/ plans identified 
in the previous semester will be put up in a series of research and prototype development from Preview 2. The project 
models/ prototypes are further studied, documented and critically analyzed to test its market and product acceptability 
within the parameters of a sound enterprise plan. At the end of the course students present their own venture pitch and 
exhibit in an attempt to create investment opportunity awareness for their products in the annual Competitive 
Excellence competition.  
 
ETPM-104: MICROECONOMICS (3 UNITS) 
 
This course provides the introductory framework of the business environment through the study of the market behavior 
of the consumer and the firm and their interactions in the market. It discusses the mechanisms by which resources are 
allocated, prices determined and income distributed. It focuses on the explanation and evaluation of the operation of 
the price policy system as it regulates production, distribution and consumption.  
 
ETPM-105: MARKET RESEARCH AND CONSUMER BEHAVIOR (3 UNITS)                   Prerequisite: BME-101 
 
This course provides a working knowledge of the various elements of marketing in general and marketing for start-ups, 
in particular. It discusses the basics of marketing management including consumer behavior and marketing research 
as well as the social and ethical concerns related to start-up ventures. The course develops the student's ability to 
synthesize these elements into their own marketing plan and strategies for the venture start-ups based on a) A thorough 
grasp of the business environment through the use of appropriate marketing/or consumer research tools; and b) 
Analysis of actual start-up marketing cases and practices in various settings in relation to their own market needs and 
product offering; and c) Realistic goals.  
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ETPM-109: BUSINESS LAW AND TAXATION WITH FOCUS ON LAWS AFFECTING MICRO, SMALL AND 
MEDIUM ENTERPRISES (3 UNITS)                                                                                       Prerequisite: BME-101  
 
This course covers the legal requirements and laws specific to micro, small and medium enterprises for compliance. 
It also covers the basic concepts of obligations and contracts, which an entrepreneur will normally encounter. Case 
situations are studied and analyzed in relation to legal concepts. This course deals with the internal revenue taxes 
applied to the business enterprises. It includes Value Added Tax, Percentage Tax and Documentary Taxes. It will 
likewise cover the administrative provisions, basic concepts and practical provisions of law on individual income and 
business taxation, as embodied in the National Internal Revenue Code.  
 
ETPM-110 INNOVATION MANAGEMENT I (3 UNITS)                                                         Prerequisite: ETPM-103  
 
The course explores the innovation and technological advancements and processes in both start-up and established 
firms. It explores the critical issues pertaining to the products and new discoveries through development and diffusion 
and how these are managed effectively and sustainably. It also reviews the frameworks for assessing and analyzing 
new technological and business opportunities. The course aims to develop students' analytical skills to enable them 
to respond to the challenges of making innovative management decisions. Cases and research on innovations under 
the major track of BS Entrepreneurship and its related industries will be studied. Students will be able to apply 
lessons learned in their venture start up plans or projects. Final output is their innovation and strategic development 
and action plan for their prototypes. 
 
ETPM-111: SOCIAL ENTREPRENEURSHIP (3 UNITS)  
 
The course explores emerging hybrids and the many dimensions of new venture creation, business coat- and 
entrepreneurship models.  Students will be able to bridge gaps or provide innovative and sustainable solutions with 
strong social impact.  Various forms and business models of social entrepreneurship will be discussed such as:        
a) community (ethnic/indigenous) entrepreneurship; b) women entrepreneurship; c) green entrepreneurship; d) 
agricultural entrepreneurship; e) corporate social entrepreneurship, and so on. The course will discuss what it takes 
to be a social entrepreneur and hopes to inspire them to be effective business leaders in service.  
 
ETPM-112: International Business and Trade (3 UNITS)   
 
The course explores how it is to navigate the complex global marketplace which includes: a) Basic Import/Export 
Laws, Business Practices, Process and Trends (e.g. problems and policies on global marketing and finance of export 
and import activities; procedures and requirements; global sourcing and the dynamics of supply management and 
present practices in resource development and production; and the demand side or resource procurement and 
management). b) Commercial and trade relations of the Philippines with other countries, their different international 
trade patterns and how the Internet is rapidly changing this field. Focus is placed on international trade as an 
industry, professional opportunities, project management, intercultural skills, and technical trends in logistics and 
online research) c) Leading issues on international trade and finance besetting the various trade organizations or 
associations.  
Selected cases focusing on industry such, as culinary and creative design shall be used as activities. This also 
includes program participation in international conferences, seminars, and foreign study observation and trade trips. 
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ETPM -113: BUSINESS PLAN PREPARATION  (3 UNITS)   
Prerequisites: ETPM 103;105;106;107;108 / BME-101, BME-102  
 
This course is part of the holistic process of venture formation and start up creation. Business Plan Preparation is 
taken in 2 series that should allow the student to undergo the rigors of preparation, presentation, and defense of their 
business plan for investment and resource generation. BPP 1 is taken to firm up the student venture start up, 
business or project into a thorough business plan that tackles its essential elements as used by the industry (e.g. 
BtDA format). The final output is a business plan for presentation to a panel of mentors/judges for assessment and 
evaluation. 
 
ETPM-114: BUSINESS PLAN IMPLEMENTATION 1 (5 UNITS)                                            Prerequisite: ETPM-113  
     
This course, consisting of 2 phases is taken in two succeeding terms. Students will have the opportunity to implement 
their business plans. The students learn business through the actual setting-up of a business that is fully and duly 
registered. It will also include soft launch of their ventures. Its performance is evaluated to gain insights from the start 
up learning curve.  
 
ETPM-115: BUSINESS PLAN IMPLEMENTATION 2 (5 UNITS)                                          Prerequisites: ETPM-114  
 
The 2nd phase or Business Implementation 2 is the continuation of the business’ full operation. Students set sales 
quota to meet acceptable industry standards of performance. Performance is evaluated based on the set goals, 
operational strategies and the soundness of decisions made. Students or companies prepare their decision tree 
analysis of the operation and its transition decision to the next level of the business operation cycle. 
 
ETPM-116: PROGRAM POLICIES ON ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT (3 UNITS)             
 
This course is designed to equip students with the necessary knowledge on industry assessment tools (e.g. modified 
Baldridge or PQC etc.). The emphasis is geared towards policymaking using their own venture start up as a live and 
running case. The assessment results and analysis of their practicum operations are taken up as important input in 
their business transition plan according to the students' respective area of specialization or program. The Business 
Operations Assessment, Transition and Strategic Plan (e.g. Schoolroom to Boardroom) beyond graduation is the 
final output to complete the course in entrepreneurship.  
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BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN LEISURE AND TOURISM MANAGEMENT  
 
 

 
 
Program Description:  
   
The BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN LEISURE AND 
TOURISM MANAGEMENT program is designed to 
prepare its graduates to become career specialists 
and decision makers in the leisure and tourism 
industries in the Philippines and globally. It aims to 
provide a viable and continuous pool of competent 
and talented individuals trained and 
knowledgeable in all aspects of the leisure and 
tourism industries, ready to take on management 
tasks anytime and anywhere in the world.  
 
The program, aligned with the industry and ASEAN 
Common Competency Standards for Professionals 
(ACCSTP) in the Tourism Industry provides the 
skills and knowledge required for graduates on 
areas of responsible travel and accommodation 
services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BS LTM CURRICULUM SUMMARY 2018-2019 

Courses No. of Units 

GENERAL EDUCATION      
ARTA-1.0      MMW-1.0       STS-1.0 
ETH-1.0         PCOM-1.0       TCW-1.0 
LWR-1.0        RPH-1.0           UTS-1.0 

27 

GENERAL EDUCATION ELECTIVES 
GEE-1        
GEE-2 
GEE-3 

9 

NATIONAL SERVICE TRAINING PROGRAM 
NSTP-1.1       NSTP-2.1 

6 

HUMANITIES 
HU-102 

3 

PHYSICAL EDUCATION 
PATH-1.0       PATH-3.0 
PATH-2.0       PATH-4.0 

8 

MC REQUIRED COURSES 
MC-101       MC-102 
T-101           T-103 
T-102.1        T-104 

14 

LTM AND HOSPITALITY CORE COURSES      
LT-113     LT-117     LT-121 
LT-114     LT-118     LT-122 
LT-115     LT-119     LT-123 
LT-116     LT120  

33 

COMMON BUSINESS AND MANAGEMENT COURSES 
BME 101     BME 102     BME 103 

9 

PROFESSIONAL CORE COURSES 
FL 101     LT-102     LT-105     LT-108     LT-111 
FL-102     LT-103     LT-106     LT-109     LT-130 
LT-101     LT-104     LT-107     LT-110 

42 

PROFESSIONAL ELECTIVES 
LT-125     LT-127     L-129 
LT-126     LT-128 

15 

INTERNSHIP/PRACTICUM 
LT-124 

6 

TOTAL 172 
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ELECTIVES 12 units 

 
ETPM-121: ELEC 1 I BUSINESS MODELS (3 UNITS)                                                           Prerequisites: BME-101  
 
The course introduces various revenue models of business life cycles from start-ups to diversification. Students learn 
to map and design a business model map appropriate for their own venture and strategize approaches in entering 
into business and in building it to be operational. This is presented in modules and conducted in project-based-
learning (PB1.), workshops; and related methods (e.g. e-commerce/digital-on line business; wholesale and retail; 
sales management; direct marketing; franchising; supply chain management; manufacturing and service 
manufacturing business management mergers and acquisition. etc.).  
 
ETPM-122 I ELEC 2 I VENTURE FINANCE (3 UNITS)                                                         Prerequisites: BME-101  
 
The course is divided into modules starting from the basics of financial wellness, ethical perspective about wealth 
acquisition and responsible management, investments and portfolio models for microfinance and start —ups, and 
related fields. Final output is the student venture finance plan.  
 
ETPM 123 I ELEC 3 I EVENTS MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS)                               Prerequisites: BME-101; ETPM-103  
 
This course is designed to address the needs of entrepreneurs and corporate staff regarding major trends and 
business practices in handling and managing events. It covers techniques for managing trade exhibits, sales 
promotion events, staff meetings and corporate events. It also includes topics on management of event finances with 
a creative flair and control mechanisms. Final output is the events plan for the student bazaars, special events and   
Buklod or the course integration show.  
 
 
ETPM 124 I ELEC 4 I SMALL BUSINESS MANAGEMENT CONSULTING /BUSINESS  
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES                                                                                                  Prerequisites: BME-101 
 
The course is about developing leaders/managers in small business management consulting /business development 
services. Students are trained in information research, training, industry study and related quality services; 
networking, leadership and coaching, liaison assistance to match needs or provide solutions and related 
business/finance/investment matters to assist Micro and Small Enterprises clients to jumpstart their business or to 
spread advocacy on entrepreneurship education. Programs may be in collaboration with local and international 
affiliated agencies of the department (e.g. UNESCO EE Net; CHED-IAS; Enactus/MC; GEW/YES; ENEDA-YES; 
British Council Social Active Citizens; ADB Youth; SERDEF; UP ISSI or DTI-Go Negosyo; or LGU's and/ or MC 
partner communities, etc.) 
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Program Goals: 
 
Graduates of Bachelor of Science in Leisure and Tourism Management are expected within 3 to 5 years to:  

 
1. Assume supervisory or managerial responsibility within a tourism organization on any of these segments:  

accommodation, food and beverage, travel agency, tour services, transportation, government and non-
government organizations 

2. Pursue graduate studies in tourism management, business management or travel services 
3. Operate own tourism related business 

 

Curriculum for SY 2018–2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

First Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

MMW-1.0 Mathematics in the Modern 
World 

3  STS-1.0 Science, Technology and 
Society 

3 

RPH-1.0 Readings in Philippine 
History 

3  ARTA-1.0 Art Appreciation 3 

UTS-1.0 Understanding the Self 3  PCOM-1.0 Purposive Communication 3 
T-101 Biblical Foundation of 

Christian Faith 
3  TCW-1.0 The Contemporary World 3 

MC 101 MC Culture, Identity, and 
Social Responsibility I 

1  MC 102 MC Culture, Identity, and 
Social Responsibility II 

1 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness - I 

2  PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness - II 

2 

NSTP-1.1 National Service Training 
Program (NSTP I) 

3  NSTP- 2.1 National Service Training 
Program (NSTP II) 

3 

LT-101 Introduction to Tourism and 
Leisure 

3  BME-101 Introduction to Business 
Functions 

3 

FL- 101 Foreign Language-1 3  FL-102 Foreign Language-2 3 
 Total 24    Total  24 
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Program Outcomes: 
 
Program Outcomes and Performance Indicators Subjects that will rationalize the program outcomes: 

1. Identify and apply decision making 
strategies, particularly in managing customer 
concerns, attending to details, safety and 
security procedure on travel and tours 

• Global Communication Program and Leadership 
Development 

• Risk Management as Applied to Safety, Security 
and Sanitation 

• Recreational and Leisure Management 
• Accommodation Operations and Management 
• Professional Development and Applied Ethics 
• Quality Service Management in Tourism 
• Legal Aspects in Tourism and Hospitality 
 

2. Manage business unit by proper utilization 
of office equipment, software and 
preparation of technical reports for 
presentation to clients 

 

• Applied Business Tools and Technologies in 
Tourism 

• Tour and Travel Agency Operations and 
Management 

• Entrepreneurship in Tourism and Hospitality 
• Business Finance 

3. Communicate effectively with tourism 
stakeholders and demonstrate customized 
service according to guests or clients’ 
needs 

 

• Foreign Language 1 and 2 
• Philippine Culture and Tourism Geography 
• Global Culture and Tourism Geography 
• Micro/Macro Perspective of Tourism and 

Hospitality 
• Multicultural Diversity in Workplace for the Tourism 

Professionals 
• Culinary Arts and Sciences 
• Food and Beverage Service Management 

4. Plan, implement monitor tours and sales 
activities; and conduct various tour guiding 
activities 

• Tourism and Hospitality Marketing 
• Tour Guiding 
• Tourism Planning and Development 
• Transportation Management 

5. Develop tourism marketing programs and 
arrange the required travel services 

 

• Applied Business Tools and Technologies in 
Tourism 

• Tourism Research 
• Tourism and Hospitality Marketing 
• Tour Guiding 

6. Plan, develop and evaluate tourism sites 
and attractions, integrating service learning 
on tourism plans 

 

• Tourism Planning and Development 
• Eco-Tourism and Regional Planning 
• Tourism Impact and Sustainability 

7. Demonstrate personal pride in addressing 
sustainable ecotourism concern applying 
Miriam College core values of truth, justice, 
peace and integrity of creation 

• Tourism Impact and Sustainability 
• Eco-Tourism and Regional Planning 
• Introduction to Tourism and Leisure 
• Philippine Culture and Tourism Geography 
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Program Goals: 
 
Graduates of Bachelor of Science in Leisure and Tourism Management are expected within 3 to 5 years to:  

 
1. Assume supervisory or managerial responsibility within a tourism organization on any of these segments:  

accommodation, food and beverage, travel agency, tour services, transportation, government and non-
government organizations 

2. Pursue graduate studies in tourism management, business management or travel services 
3. Operate own tourism related business 

 

Curriculum for SY 2018–2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

First Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

MMW-1.0 Mathematics in the Modern 
World 

3  STS-1.0 Science, Technology and 
Society 

3 

RPH-1.0 Readings in Philippine 
History 

3  ARTA-1.0 Art Appreciation 3 

UTS-1.0 Understanding the Self 3  PCOM-1.0 Purposive Communication 3 
T-101 Biblical Foundation of 

Christian Faith 
3  TCW-1.0 The Contemporary World 3 

MC 101 MC Culture, Identity, and 
Social Responsibility I 

1  MC 102 MC Culture, Identity, and 
Social Responsibility II 

1 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness - I 

2  PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness - II 

2 

NSTP-1.1 National Service Training 
Program (NSTP I) 

3  NSTP- 2.1 National Service Training 
Program (NSTP II) 

3 

LT-101 Introduction to Tourism and 
Leisure 

3  BME-101 Introduction to Business 
Functions 

3 

FL- 101 Foreign Language-1 3  FL-102 Foreign Language-2 3 
 Total 24    Total  24 
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Graduates of Bachelor of Science in Leisure and Tourism Management are expected within 3 to 5 years to:  
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2  PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 
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Second Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course 
Title 

Units  Course 
Code 

Course 
Title 

Units 

HU-102 Arts and Design 3  T-102.1 Theology of Mission, 
Communion and Service 

3 

LT-121 Legal Aspects in Tourism & 
Hospitality 

3  LWR-1.0 Life and Works of Rizal 3 

LT-122 Multicultural Diversity in 
Workplaces for the Tourism 
Professionals 

3  ETH-1.0 Ethics 3 

LT-113 Basic Finance 3  PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness - IV 

2 

PATHF-3.0 
 

Physical Activity Towards 
Health & Fitness - III 

2  LT-116 Tourism and Hospitality 
Marketing 

3 

LT-114 Philippine Culture and 
Tourism Geography 

3  LT-103 Applied Business Tools 
and Technologies in 
Tourism 

3 

LT-115 Micro Perspective of 
Tourism and Hospitality 

3  LT-117 Macro Perspective of 
Tourism and Hospitality 

3 

LT-125  Elective 1: Recreational and 
Leisure Management* 

 

3  LT-126 Elective2: Accommodation 
Operations and 
Management* 

3 

 Total  23    Total  23 
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Third Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units  Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

LT-118 Entrepreneurship in Tourism 
and Hospitality 
 

3  LT-107 Tourism Impact and 
Sustainability 

3 

LT-104 Transportation Management 
 

3  LT-108 Tour and Travel Agency 
Operations and 
Management 

3 

LT-105 Tourism Planning and 
Development* 
 

3  LT-109 Global Culture and Tourism 
Geography 

3 

LT-127 Elective 3: Tour Guiding 
 

3  LT-119 Professional Development 
and Applied Ethics 

3 

LT-128 Elective 4: Culinary Arts and 
Sciences 1 

3  LT-129 Elective 5: Food and 
Beverage Service 
Operations 

3 

LT-106 Tourism Research 3  LT-120 Quality Service 
Management in Tourism 

3 

T-103 Contemporary Moral Issues 3  BME-102 Operations Management 
w/ Total Quality 
Management 

3 

GEE-1 Local Knowledge and 
Ethnoecology 

3  GEE-2 The Entrepreneurial 
Mindset and Innovative 
Thinking 

3 

 Total 24    Total  24 
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Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units  Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Unit
s 

LT-123 Risk Management as 
Applied to Safety, Security 
and Sanitation 

3  LT-124 Practicum (600 hours) 6 

LT-110  Meetings, Incentives, 
Conventions and Events 
Management 
 

3  LT-130 Applied Tools in Front 
Office Procedures and 
Property Management 
System (with Business 
Analytics) 

3 

BME-103 Strategic Management  3     
LT-111 Eco-Tourism and Regional 

Planning 
 

3     

T -104 Theology of Social Justice 
and Peace 

3     

LT-102 Global Communication 
Program and Leadership 
Development 

3     

GEE-3 Gender, Human Rights and 
Peace 

3     

 Total  21   Total  9 
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COURSE DESCRIPTIONS 
LT-113: BASIC FINANCE (3 UNITS) 

This course is a study of functions of business finance.  It covers basic financial principles such as money, credit and 
banking.  Discussed in detail are the nature of money, financial intermediaries, money creation, central banking, 
demand for money, fiscal policies, interest rate and investment.  Also discussed are basic concepts in international 
business and role of global financing, investing and operating activities and their impact on business and trade.  The 
main purpose of the course is to provide students with the financial background necessary to understand the 
corporate segment of leisure and tourism industry. 

LT-114: PHILIPPINE CULTURE AND TOURISM GEOGRAPHY (3 UNITS) 

This course presents comprehensive coverage of the major tourism destinations in the country.  Discussion will be on 
political, geographical, gastronomical, socio-cultural structures of the various regions of the country emphasizing 
tourism potentials of the destinations.  Comprehensive knowledge on mechanisms, logistics, operations and 
management of the industry, including physical and cultural resources as seen in the destination will also be 
discussed. 

LT-115: MICRO PERSPECTIVE OF TOURISM AND HOSPITALITY (3 UNITS) 

This course provides students knowledge on managing and marketing a service-oriented business organization.  An 
in-depth study of the nature and distinctive characteristics of each market segment of the tourism industry, client 
profiling including travel motivations and influences as it relates to aligning strategic and tactical solutions to the 
business will be made. Further, the course identifies employment opportunities available to each segment of the 
tourism industry and the corresponding qualifications for the jobs. 

LT-116: TOURISM AND HOSPITALITY MARKETING (3 UNITS) 

This course equips students with the necessary skills to develop actual marketing campaigns, using both the 
traditional and social media platforms.  Market and competitive analysis, financial budget preparation, short-range 
and long –range strategies formulation are integrated in the discussion of integrated marketing plans and marketing 
mix elements. 

LT-117: MACRO PERSPECTIVE OF TOURISM AND HOSPITALITY (3 UNITS) 

This course introduces tourism and hospitality as an ecosystem.  It intends to develop, update and maintain local 
knowledge and tourism industry knowledge, evaluating the effects of convergence with other industries in relation to 
society and world economy.  Students learn to appreciate the key global organizations and roles they play in 
influencing and monitoring tourism trends. 

LT-118: ENTREPRENEURSHIP IN TOURISM AND HOSPITALITY (3 UNITS)  

This course describes the skills, knowledge and performance outcomes required to plan and develop a feasible 
Business Plan, including Marketing, Finance, Human Resources, and other departments necessary to effectively 
manage a service-oriented business. It will also put emphasis on assessing the possible characteristics and mindset 
of tourism entrepreneurs, identifying typical venture challenges, and designing effective strategic marketing and 
management for tourism products and services.  Further, environmentally sustainable product and service 
development concepts, social entrepreneurship and intellectual property management are highly encouraged. 
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LT-119: PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND APPLIED ETHICS (3 UNITS) 

This course describes the skills, knowledge and performance outcomes required to become professionals in the 
tourism industry.  Discussions on handling professional meetings, networking, interviews, proposals presentation, 
and professional ethics are included.  Further, students learn to develop writing skills, verbal communication and 
pitch and bids of proposal, as they gain confidence in building a strong and effective career pathway. 

LT-120: QUALITY SERVICE MANAGEMENT IN TOURISM (3 UNITS) 

This course presents total quality management concepts, including definition of common terminologies; practicing 
constructive and personal reflection on service management concerns; personal feedback on quality assessment, 
self-assessment and peer assessment.  Further, the course guides students in developing personal management 
philosophy and development plan for continuous professional improvement.  

LT-121: LEGAL ASPECTS IN TOURISM AND HOSPITALITY (3 UNITS) 

This course examines the legal framework that covers the key principles of law application to tourism, hospitality and 
related industries.  Discussions include national and international regulation of the travel and hospitality industry, 
including the issuance of visa and travel documentation, laws on consumer contract, carriers and inns, duties of 
travel operators and agents, travel insurance, bailment, hotel management, liquor licensing, catering, gaming, 
consumer rights, payments, and criminal and civil liability of tourism stakeholders. 

LT-122: MULTICULTURAL DIVERSITY IN WORKPLACE FOR THE TOURISM PROFESSIONALS (3 UNITS) 

This course discusses the skills, knowledge and performance outcomes required to manage multicultural diversity in 
the work setting.  Students’ appreciation of diverse workforce, upholding diversity policy and understanding of socio-
cultural groups with respect to sensitivity, and to address cross-cultural misunderstandings will be enhanced.  This 
will develop students’ social awareness and diverse understanding of diverse customers and colleagues. 

LT-123: RISK MANAGEMENT AS APPLIED TO SAFETY, SECURITY AND SANITATION (3 UNITS) 

This course guides students in developing knowledge, skills and values on the basic principles of personal hygiene, 
food safety and sanitation as applied to tourism industry.  Discussions will include compliance with workplace 
hygiene procedures, establishment and maintenance of a safe and secure workplace, occupational health and safety 
procedures, and basic knowledge and application of first aid procedures. 

 

PROFESSIONAL CORE COURSES 

FL 101: FOREIGN LANGUAGE 1 (3 UNITS) 

This course familiarizes the students with conversational skills on their chosen foreign language.  

FL 102: FOREIGN LANGUGE 2 (3 UNITS) 

This is an extension of Foreign Language 1.  On the same language chosen, students must learn to express their 
ideas, develop intermediate conversational skills, write short compositions and understand common technical terms 
in the tourism industry. 
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LT-101: INTRODUCTION TO TOURISM AND LEISURE (3 UNITS) 

This course provides a foundation for the concept of tourism and leisure management as a system.  It is an 
introductory study of the various interrelated components of the industry, such as international and domestic travel 
and tourism, destination planning and development, tour and travel distribution systems, attraction and entertainment 
systems and the hospitality industry. 

LT-102: GLOBAL COMMUNICATION PROGRAM AND LEADERSHIP DEVELOPMENT (3 UNITS) 

This course is aimed at beginning workers in the tourism industry who would like to succeed in their chosen career.  
Attitude is more important than skills, as focal point of the course.  Development of necessary skills and proper 
attitudes towards employers, co-workers, and the job itself are areas of discussions to enhance tourism student 
personality.  Focus on professional appearance and decorum in the service industries, including enhancement of 
communication skills and confidence are strengthened. 

LT-103: APPLIED BUSINESS TOOLS AND TECHNOLOGIES IN TOURISM (3 UNITS) 

This course provides an overview of the elements of Management Information System in general and tourism and 
leisure in particular.  Students shall be familiar with software, hardware, communication technology, data and base 
concepts and computer configurations applied in the tourism industry.  Real time bookings and reservations, hands-
on activities, and validation examinations are provided, using the global distribution system software installed in the 
computer laboratory and business center. 

LT-104: TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS) 

This course discusses the general knowledge of the transportation industry, its role in tourism planning, and the legal 
aspects relating to local and international travel.  Discussions on transportation modes, operations, infrastructure, 
geographical factors are integrated.  Also, discussions of surface, air, water transportation, organization, operations, 
regulatory policies and marketing aspects are explored. 

LT-105: TOURISM PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT (3 UNITS) 

This will enable students to understand tourism planning as a process and technique for sustainable tourism 
development giving importance to the physical environment, socio-cultural and political forces affecting planning and 
policy making.  Practical planning tools and strategies, collaboration with industry, government, and tourism sectors 
is encouraged to develop an understanding of tourism policy making processes, gain skills in development and 
assessment of tourism plans.  Philippine Tourism Master Plan, for defined period, is also a point of discussion to 
engage students in evaluating actual accomplishments of the government on tourism programs. 

LT-106: TOURISM RESEARCH (3 UNITS)  

This course familiarizes students in the essential research tools and skills, as future tourism practitioners and 
executives.  Students should be familiar with the research process from research design, data collection, 
interpretation and presentation of research findings.  Students shall develop research topics related to tourism 
industry. 
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205 | P a g e  

 

 

 

LT-107: TOURISM IMPACT AND SUSTAINABILITY (3 UNITS) 

This course is an understanding of environmental issues and their impact on the tourism industry, including pollution, 
waste management and biodiversity.  The natural and cultural environments of communities and global destinations 
are discussed to enable students to critically interpret tourism interdependency, and the changes and development of 
domestic and international tourism policy.  Further, the course examines tourism planning as a process and 
technique for sustainable tourism development and policy making. 

LT-108: TOUR AND TRAVEL AGENCY OPERATIONS AND MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS) 

This course discusses the basic and advanced travel and tour operations and management principles and practices.  
Students are made to understand the role of Travel Agency and Travel Operation in the tourism industry.  
Discussions also include tour packages and marketing.  To further enhance operation and management skills of 
students, the Travel Bureau shall serve as the incubation center, an in-campus travel agency managed by students 
in partnership with an accredited travel agency.  Students are required to render duty hours, as a requirement before 
their on-the-job training.  

LT-109: GLOBAL CULTURE AND TOURISM GEOGRAPHY (3 UNITS) 

This course analyzes and familiarizes students with specific world travel destinations, emphasizing geographic 
features, culture, demographic information, visitor attractions, language and cultural differences.  Students are 
encouraged to identify international travel patterns, historic sites, and natural wonders, as they develop an 
understanding and a sense of appreciation for cultural values and traditions, which may be exceptional on a 
destination. 
 
LT-110: MEETINGS, INCENTIVES, CONVENTIONS AND EVENTS MANAGEMENT (3 UNITS) 

This course examines the principles of conceptualizing, planning, managing and evaluating meetings, events and 
festivals.  Topics include the significance of conventions and events in tourism, event design, project management, 
methods and evaluation, physical requirements, organizing, promotion and sponsorship.   Students must gain skills 
and knowledge in developing business strategies to MICE segment, understand the challenges of collective supplier 
management and engagement. 

LT-111: ECO-TOURISM AND REGIONAL PLANNING (3 UNITS) 

This course focuses on the sustainable utilization of the natural environment as a component of tourism 
development, including the identification, development, and operation of eco-tourism products and programs. 

 

PROFESSIONAL ELECTIVES  

LT-124: Practicum (Minimum of 600 hours)  

This course provides actual exposure and hands on application of knowledge in accredited tourism and leisure 
establishments of the Department of Tourism.  An on-the-job training with sustainable eco-tourism venues, or green 
providers for 600 hours (50 hours at MC Community; 550 hours at OJT Provider). 
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LT-125: RECREATIONAL AND LEISURE MANAGEMENT (ELECTIVE 1) 

This course focuses on the study, analysis and practice of management processes as they are applied to recreation 
organizations.  Students are expected to acquire professional management skills that can be applied to a wide 
variety of facilities and events for diverse populations around the world through an emphasis on the application of 
theories, practices and case studies in specific recreation setting. 

LT-126: ACCOMMODATION OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT (ELECTIVE 2) 

This course focuses on the technical aspects of hotel operations and management, with particular emphasis on 
quality standards, and cost controls.  Students are exposed to hands-on training with partner provider, for exposure 
on these areas:  front office operations and housekeeping. 

LT-127: TOUR GUIDING (ELECTIVE 3) 

This course shall familiarize students on planning and implementing tour itineraries and escort groups in different 
local and regional destinations.  Students must gain the competencies on retaining facts, figures and folklore and 
present the information to a group on a mock tour demonstration in an entertaining and interesting way.  The course 
shall explain the roles and responsibilities of the tourist guide, structures of the tourism industry and its role in the 
economy.  They should be able to identify notable features of a range of regions and localities and key features of 
sustainable tourism.  They should be able to demonstrate effective group management, appropriate communication, 
social, decision-making, problem-solving and conflict resolution skills to enhance the tour experience. 

LT-128: CULINARY ARTS AND SCIENCES (ELECTIVE 4) 

This course introduces the fundamental concepts, skills and techniques in basic cookery.  Emphasis is placed on 
recipe conversion, measurements, terminology, safe food and equipment handling.  A laboratory experience for 
enhancing skills on cookery is required.  Upon completion of the course, students should be able to demonstrate 
competency in the basic cooking skills used in the food service industry. 

LT-129: FOOD AND BEVERAGE SERVICE OPERATIONS (ELECTIVE 5) 

This course is designed to cover the practical skills and knowledge necessary for effective food and beverage service 
in a variety of setting.   Topics include greeting/service of guests, dining set-up, profitability, menu sales and 
merchandising, service styles and reservations.  Further, the course analyzes the principal operating problems facing 
managers in the food and beverage service industry.  Students are exposed to a hands-on training or laboratory 
experience with industry provider for exposure on food and beverage program.  Upon completion, students should be 
able to demonstrate competence in human relations and the skills required in the service of food and beverages.  

LT-130: Applied Tools in Front Office Procedures and Property Management System  

A suit courseware for Front Office Procedures installed in the computer laboratory, where students will gain mastery 
through one-to-one hands on usage of the hospitality and tourism industry software. This will provide flexibility in 
implementing the property management system for the course. Along with this is the introduction to analytics as 
applied to tourism industry for students to understand key concepts, perform managerial judgement, and ability to 
apply tourism core concepts to real problems in the industry. The analytics will guide students to use the technology 
for exploration and investigation of past industry performance to gain insights and use for tourism planning.  
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BACHELOR OF EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION 
 
Description:  
 
The BACHELOR OF EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION is a four-year program. Specifically, this program provides 
students with fundamental understanding and application of the principles of early childhood care and education, as 
well as experience in the application of these principles. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Program Outcomes and Performance Indicators 
common to all programs in all types of school 

• Articulate and discuss the latest developments 
in the specific field of practice.  (Philippine 
Qualifications Framework (PQF) level 6 
descriptor) 

• Effectively communicate orally and in writing 
using both Mother Tongue, Filipino and English 

• Work effectively and independently in multi-
disciplinary and multi-cultural teams. (PQF 
level 6 descriptor) 

• Act in recognition of professional, social, and 
ethical responsibility. 

• Preserve and promote “Filipino historical and 
cultural heritage” (based on RA 7722) 
 
 

Program Outcomes and Performance Indicators 
common to the discipline (Teacher Education) 

• Articulate the rootedness of education in 
philosophical, socio-cultural, historical, 
psychological, and political contexts.  

• Demonstrate mastery of subject 
matter/discipline. 

• Facilitate learning using a wide range of 
teaching methodologies and delivery modes 
appropriate to specific learners and their 
environments. 

• Develop innovative curricula, instructional 
plans, teaching approaches, and resources 
for diverse learners. 

• Apply skills in the development and 
utilization of ICT to promote quality, relevant, 
and sustainable educational practices. 

• Pursue lifelong learning. 
 
 
 

 

 

COLLEGE OF EDUCATION 

 

BACHELOR OF EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION 
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Program Outcomes and Performance Indicators specific to Early Childhood Education 
• Demonstrate high level of content and pedagogical knowledge 
• Demonstrate appreciation for diversity 
• Manifest collaborative skills  
• Demonstrate innovative thinking  
• Possess critical and problem solving skills 
• Advocate for children’s rights, equity, community, nationalism, and democratic ideas 
• Pursue lifelong learning 

 
 
Program Outcomes and Performance Indicators common to a horizontal type as defined in CMO 46, 2012 

• Graduates of professional institutions demonstrate a service orientation in one’s profession. 
• Graduates of colleges participate in various types of employment, development activities, and public 

discourses, particularly in response to the needs of the communities one serves. 
• Graduates of universities participate in the generation of new knowledge or in research and development 

projects. 
 
Program Goals: This program aims to educate individuals to be competent early childhood practitioners working 
with children from 0-8 years old in various early childhood settings (home, community, school, and workplace). It is 
aligned with the National Early Learning Framework (NELF), the Philippine Professional Standard for Teaching 
(PPST 2018) and the first key stage which is K to 3. 
 
Specific Professions/Careers for graduates: The BECEd program is designed to prepare students for teaching 
and supporting young children’s development.  A broad range of employment opportunities are available by fulfilling 
the degree requirements. Completion of the appropriate program will qualify graduates for employment in 
government or private institutions.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

•  Demonstrate a variety of thinking skills in planning, monitoring, assessing, and reporting learning 
processes and outcomes.  

• Practice professional and ethical teaching standards sensitive to the changing local, national, and 
global realities. 
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Curriculum for SY 2018-2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

First Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course Code Course Title Units 

PCOM-1.0 Purposive Communication 3 MMW-1.0 Mathematics in the Modern 
World 

3 

ARTA-1.0 Art Appreciation 3 ECED-115 Building and Enhancing 
New Literacies Across the 
Curriculum 

3 

UTS-1.0 Understanding the Self 3 TCW-1.0 The Contemporary World 3 
ECED-101 The Child and Adolescent 

Learner and Learning 
Principles 

3 ECED-104 Facilitating Learner 
Centered Teaching 

3 

ECED-102 The Teaching Profession 3 ECED-105 Assessment of Learning 1 3 
ECED-103 Foundation of Early 

Childhood Education 
3 ECED-106 Child Development 3 

PATHF-1.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness I 

2 PATHF-2.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness II 

2 

NSTP-1.1 
 

National Service Training 
Program (NSTP I) 

3 ECED-109 Foundation of Special and 
Inclusive Education 

3 

MC-101 MC Culture, Identity, and 
Social Responsibility 1 

1 MC-102 MC Culture, Identity, and 
Social Responsibility 2 

1 

                         Total 24                            Total 24 

MIDYEAR TERM 
Course 
Code 

Course Title Units 

NSTP-2.1 National Service Training 
Program (NSTP II) 3 

ECED-107 Assessment of Learning 2 3 
                         Total 6 
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Second Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Course 
Code 

Course Title Units Course Code Course Title Units 

STS-1.0 Science, Technology and 
Society 3 LWR-1.0 Life and Works of Rizal 3 

ECED-108 Play and Developmentally 
Appropriate Practices in 
Early Childhood Education 

3 
ETH-1.0 Ethics 

3 

ECED-110 Technology for Teaching 
and Learning I 3 ECED-114 Children’s Literature 3 

ECED-111 Content and Pedagogy in 
the Mother Tongue-Based 
Multilingual Education 

3 
ECED-116 Assessment of Children’s 

Development and 
Learning 

3 

ECED-112 Creative Arts, Music, and 
Movement in Early 
Childhood Education  

3 
ECED-126 Infant and Toddler 

Programs 3 

T-101 Biblical Foundation of 
Christian Faith 3 

RPH-1.0 Readings in Philippine 
History 3 

PATHF-3.0 Physical Activity Towards 
Health and Fitness III 2 

T-102.1 Theology of Mission, 
Communion and Service 3 

ECED-113 Inclusive Education in Early 
Childhood Settings 3 PATHF-4.0 Physical Activity Towards 

Health and Fitness IV 2 

   ECED-117 Literacy Development 3 
                           Total 26 
                             Total 23    
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Third Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units 

ECED-118 Social Studies for Early 
Childhood Education 3 

ECED-132 Family, School and 
Community Partnership 3 

ECED- 123 The Teacher and the 
School Curriculum 3 

ECED-119 Technology for Teaching and 
Learning 2-Utilization of 
Instructional Technology 
ECED  

3 

ECED-122 Numeracy Development 
3 

ECED-128 Field Study 1: Observations 
of Teaching-Learning in 
Actual School Environment  

3 

ECED-121 The Teacher and the 
Community, School Culture 
and Organizational 
Leadership 

3 
GEE-2 The Entrepreneurial Mindset 

and Innovative Thinking 3 

T-103 Contemporary Moral 
Issues 3 ECED-125 Guiding Children’s Behaviour 

and Moral Development 
3 

ECED-124 Health, Nutrition and 
Safety 3 

ECED-127 Early Learning Environment 3 

ECED-120 Science in Early Childhood 
Education 

3 ECED-130 Special Topic: Integrated 
Curriculum 3 

3 

GEE-1 Local Knowledge and 
Ethnoecology 

3                                      Total 21 

      
                                   Total 24    

Fourth Year 
FIRST SEMESTER  SECOND SEMESTER 

Subject 
Code 

Subject Title Units Subject Code Subject Title Units 

ECED-129 Field Study 2:  Participation 
and Teaching Assistantship 3 

 
ECED-135 Teaching Internship    6 

ECED-131 Management of Early 
Childhood Education 
Program 

3 
  

 

ECED-133 Early Childhood Education 
Curriculum Models 3    

ECED-134 Research in Early Childhood 
Education 3    

T-104 Theology of Social Justice 
and Peace  

3 
    

GEE-4 Peace and Conflict 
Resolution Education 3    

                         Total 18    
                         Total 6 
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COURSE DESCRIPTIONS 
 

ECED-101 THE CHILD AND ADOLESCENT LEARNERS AND LEARNING PRINCIPLES (3 UNITS) 

This course focuses on early, middle and adolescent development with emphasis on current research and theory on 
biological, linguistic, cognitive, social and emotional dimensions of development. Moreover, this course will determine 
factors that affect the progress of development of the learners and shall include appropriate pedagogical principles 
applicable for each developmental level.  
 

ECED-102 THE TEACHING PROFESSION (3 UNITS) 

This course deals with the teacher as a person and as a professional within the context of national and global 
teachers’ standards and educational philosophies.  It will include professional ethics, core values, awareness of 
professional rights, privileges and responsibilities as well as the teachers’ roles in the society as a transformative 
agent of change. 
 

ECED-103: FOUNDATIONS OF EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION (3 UNITS)   

This course is an introduction to the field of early childhood education: its fundamental concepts, historical, 
philosophical, theoretical roots and legal frameworks with focus on contemporary early childhood education programs 
in the Philippines. It highlights the importance of early childhood education and the role of early childhood 
professionals. 
 

ECED-104 FACILITATING LEARNER CENTERED TEACHING (3 UNITS)  

This course explores the fundamental principles, processes and practices anchored on learner-centeredness and 
other educational psychologies as these apply to facilitate various teaching-learning delivery modes to enhance 
learning. Furthermore, this course will give extensive attention to the needs, interests and skills of learners in 
designing a learning experience.  
 
ECED-105 ASSESSMENT IN LEARNING 1 (3 UNITS)  

This is a course that focuses on the principles, development and utilization of conventional assessment tools to 
improve the teaching-learning process. It emphasizes on the use of assessment of, as, and for, in measuring 
knowledge, comprehension and other thinking skills in the cognitive, psychomotor or affective domains. It allows 
students to go through the standard steps in test construction and development and the application in grading 
systems. Special emphasis will be placed on developmental screenings.  
 
ECED-106: CHILD DEVELOPMENT (3 UNITS)                                                                    Prerequisite: ECED-101 

This course will focus on the major theories and research findings in the physical, cognitive, language and social/ 
emotional domains of development of young children from conception through age 8 and how these relate to 
teaching and learning. Student will use various tools to observe and record the development of young children in 
early childhood settings as they explore domains and theories. Emphasis will be placed on understanding children’s 
development in the moment and the power of observation.  
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ECED-107 ASSESSMENT IN LEARNING 2 (3 UNITS)                     Prerequisite: ECED-105 

This is a course that focuses on the principles, development and utilization of alternative forms of assessment in 
measuring authentic learning. It emphasizes on how to assess process- and product-oriented learning outcomes as 
well as affective learning. Students will experience how to develop rubrics and other assessment tools for 
performance-based and product-based assessment. 
 

ECED-108: PLAY AND DEVELOPMENTALLY APPROPRIATE PRACTICES IN EARLY CHILDHOOD 
EDUCATION (3 UNITS)                                                                                                           Prerequisite: ECED-101 

The course focuses on the importance of play and other developmentally appropriate practices and methods that will 
address the physical, social, emotional, and cognitive needs of the young learners. It will also focus on how to 
provide a nurturing and stimulating environment for young learners.  An application of the knowledge of theories will 
be demonstrated through designing appropriate play-based learning activities. 
 
 
ECED-109 FOUNDATION OF SPECIAL AND INCLUSIVE EDUCATION (3 UNITS)  

This course shall deal with philosophies, theories and legal bases of special needs and inclusive education, typical 
and atypical development of children, learning characteristics of students with special educational needs (gifted and 
talented, learners with difficulty seeing, learners with difficulty hearing, learners with difficulty communicating, 
learners with difficulty walking/moving, learners with difficulty remembering and focusing, learners with difficulty with 
self-care) and strategies in teaching and managing these learners in the regular class.  
 
 
ECED-110 TECHNOLOGY FOR TEACHING AND LEARNING 1 (3 UNITS)  

This is an introductory course that explores basic knowledge, skills and values in the use of technology for teaching 
and learning. It includes ICT policies and safety issues, media and technology in various content areas, learning 
theories and principles in the use and design of learning lessons, teaching-learning experiences and assessment 
tasks that utilize appropriate traditional and innovative technologies with social, ethical and legal responsibility in the 
use of technology tools and resources. 
 
ECED-111 CONTENT AND PEDAGOGY IN THE MOTHER TONGUE (3 UNITS)                 Prerequisite: ECED-101 

The course focuses on the comprehensive understanding of elements of mother tongue, appreciation of local 
literature, and utilization of developmentally appropriate language teaching strategies for the mother tongue.  

ECED-112 CREATIVE ARTS, MUSIC AND MOVEMENT IN EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION (3 UNITS)  

The course focuses on play based art and music experiences that are integrated throughout the curriculum. Focus 
will be placed on understanding creativity and the development of skills to assist and encourage young children to 
express themselves through art, music and movement during one-on-one, choice time, and large group experiences.  
 
ECED-113 INCLUSIVE EDUCATION IN EARLY CHILDHOOD SETTINGS (3 UNITS)         Prerequisite: ECED-109 

This course focuses on children with diverse abilities and is based on a philosophy of inclusion in early childhood 
settings. The course is anchored on the principles of social justice, human and children’s rights and anti-
discrimination. An inclusive educational setting provides for all the children in the community. The course examines 
the potential of the regular setting to provide relevant and high quality learning experiences for children.  
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ECED-114 CHILDREN’S LITERATURE (3 UNITS) 
 
The course focuses on the importance of children's literature for promoting lifelong love of reading among the young 
learners and its use as springboard for developing literacy skills. Strategies and approaches for using children's 
literature in the classroom will be discussed. Furthermore, students will be equipped with skills to conduct storytelling 
activities and select books and stories appropriate for children.  
 

ECED-115 BUILDING AND ENHANCING NEW LITERACIES ACROSS THE CURRICULUM (3 UNITS)   

This course introduces the concepts of new literacies in the 21st century as an evolving social phenomena and 
shared cultural practices across learning areas. The 21st century literacies shall include (a) globalization and multi-
cultural literacy, (b) peace and social literacy, (c) truth and media literacy, (d) financial literacy, (e) cyber 
literacy/digital literacy, (f) integrity of creation and eco-literacy (g) arts and creativity literacy. Furthermore, the 
students will be exposed to the major content, skills and value orientations of four transformative and relevant 
educational thrusts: peace education, truth, gender-fair/non-sexist education and environmental education. Field 
based- interdisciplinary explorations and other teaching strategies shall be used in this course. 
 
EXPERIENTIAL LEARNING (Field Studies and Teaching Internship)                                

This course is a year-long engagement that supports authentic experiential learning from field study and actual 
classroom immersion of the prospective teachers. It begins with field study experiences through observation and 
participation and will progress to teaching assistantship and guided/ mentored classroom teaching. The PPST 
domains shall be used as guideposts in developing the content, pedagogy and implementation scheme of this 
course.  
 
ECED-116 ASSESSMENT OF CHILDREN’S DEVELOPMENT AND LEARNING (3 UNITS)  

Prerequisite: ECED-105 
 
This course focuses on the various aspects of assessment of young children’s development and learning.  It likewise 
involves an understanding and application of the different types and uses of quantitative and qualitative assessment 
methods for determining children’s development and learning.  Students will experience how to develop rubrics for 
different forms of assessment. 
 
ECED-117 LITERACY DEVELOPMENT (3 UNITS)  

Pre-requisites: ECED-111 and ECED-115 

The course focuses on the discussion of literacy competencies and skills that should be developed among beginning 
readers as well as the approaches and strategies for developing a multilingual and multiliterate learner. Preparation 
of appropriate lessons and instructional materials and microteachings activities are included. 
 
ECED-118 SOCIAL STUDIES IN EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION (3 UNITS)  

The course focuses on the discussion of the concepts in Social Studies as well as the developmentally appropriate 
strategies in teaching these concepts to young learners.   
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ECED-119 TECHNOLOGY FOR TEACHING AND LEARNING 2-UTILIZATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL 
TECHNOLOGY IN EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION (3 UNITS)                                        Prerequisite: ECED-110 

This course focuses on the knowledge and experiences that are necessary for utilizing appropriate educational 
technology in the classroom. Through the use of hands-on experiences that will examine educational software and 
web sites, along with technology intended for young learners, students will develop appropriate classroom 
applications and instructional materials.  
 
 
ECED-120 SCIENCE IN EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION (3 UNITS)  

The course focuses on the discussion of science concepts and experiences that are relevant to different childhood 
ages and levels. Emphasis will be on the creation of science experiences, selection of appropriate materials, learning 
specific scientific techniques for working with young children, and knowing how to integrate science in other subject 
areas.  
 

ECED-121 THE TEACHER AND THE COMMUNITY, SCHOOL CULTURE AND ORGANIZATIONAL LEADERSHIP 
(3 UNITS) 

This course focuses on society as a context upon which the schools have been established. Educational 
philosophies that are related to the society as a foundation of schools and schooling shall be emphasized. Further, 
principles and theories on school culture, and organizational leadership shall be included to prepare prospective 
teachers to become school leaders and managers. 
 

ECED-122 NUMERACY DEVELOPMENT (3 UNITS)   

This course is designed to develop knowledge and skills in teaching numeracy in early childhood (birth to 8 years of 
age). Strong emphasis will be made on extending students’ knowledge and confidence in mathematics. The course 
equips students with the ability to design mathematical activities that enhance learning in numeracy. These activities 
include open ended questions, use of manipulatives, games, problem solving and other hands-on experiences.  
 

ECED-123 THE TEACHER AND THE SCHOOL CURRICULUM (3 UNITS)  

This course includes the fundamental concepts and principles in curriculum and curriculum development as a 
foundation to engage prospective teachers as curricularists. The more active role of the teacher in planning, 
implementing and evaluating school-curriculum as well as in managing school curriculum change vis-à-vis various 
context of teaching-learning and curricular reforms shall be given emphasis.  
 
ECED-124 HEALTH, NUTRITION AND SAFETY (3 UNITS) 

This course is designed to provide an overview of the health, safety and nutritional needs of children ages 0 to 8 
years.  Content covers:  relevant policies and regulations, basic concepts, principles and practices of child health, 
food and nutrition, and child safety including ECCD in emergencies and child protection. Designing learning 
environment and opportunities that are responsive to the health, safety and nutritional needs of children from birth 
through grade three will be explored. Emphasis will be given on the importance of partnering with health 
professionals, families and communities to help young children establish healthy lifestyles and achieve their learning 
potential. 
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ECED-125 GUIDING CHILDREN’S BEHAVIOR AND MORAL DEVELOPMENT (3 UNITS)   

Prerequisite: ECED-101 

The course focuses on the importance of fostering social, emotional and moral development in the early years. It 
presents an overview of the developmental, environmental and cultural factors that impact the behavior of young 
children.  The developmentally appropriate strategies for cultivating moral values and guiding children’s behavior in 
positive ways are highlighted. 
 
ECED-126 INFANT AND TODDLER PROGRAMS (3 UNITS) 

The course focuses on the fundamentals of infant and toddler development. It emphasizes on planning programs, 
quality routines, appropriate environments, materials and activities, strategies for teaching infants and toddlers.  
 
ECED-127 EARLY LEARNING ENVIRONMENT (3 UNITS)                                                   Prerequisite: ECED-101 

The course focuses on the planning, setting up and evaluating developmentally-appropriate and child-centered 
physical, interpersonal and temporal learning environments in diverse early childhood settings. 
 
ECED-128 FIELD STUDY 1- OBSERVATIONS OF TEACHING-LEARNING IN ACTUAL SCHOOL ENVIRONMENT  

This is the first experiential course, which will immerse a future teacher to actual classroom situation and learning 
environment where direct observation of teaching learning episodes that focuses on the application of educational 
theories learned in content and pedagogy courses will be made. Observations on learners’ behavior, motivation, 
teacher’s strategies of teaching, classroom management, assessment in learning among others shall be given 
emphasis. A portfolio shall be required in the course. 
  
ECED-129 FIELD STUDY 2- PARTICIPATION AND TEACHING ASSISTANTSHIP  

This course is a continuation of Field Study 1. It is school based and allows a pre-service student to participate and 
assist in limited actual teaching-learning activities that relate to assessment of learning, preparation of instructional 
materials, preparation of the bulletin boards, and other routines in the classroom. A portfolio which will contain 
sample lesson or learning plans and demonstration teaching of at least one subject content area will be required. An 
action research shall be encouraged to start in this course and conclude during the Internship. 
  
ECED- 130 SPECIAL TOPIC: INTEGRATED CURRICULUM (3 UNITS)                              Prerequisite: ECED-123 

This course will equip students to develop skills on how to integrate multiple subjects into a single curriculum design. 
Furthermore, the students will be taught how to balance and combine aspects of one curriculum area with another 
and to design assessment and learning activities to suit a primary unit of work which combines two or more discipline 
areas.  

ECED-131 MANAGEMENT OF EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION PROGRAMS (3 UNITS) 

The course focuses on the organization and management of early childhood education programs. Students will be 
exposed to planning, organizing, managing and evaluating programs and facilities for children, record keeping, 
budgeting and licensing, accreditation procedures by the Department of Education and the Early Childhood Care and 
Development Council.  
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ECED-132 FAMILY, SCHOOL AND COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP (3 UNITS)                     Prerequisite: ECED-123 

The course focuses on the diverse needs of the young child within the context of family, school and community 
anchored on Urie Bronfenbrenner’s ecological framework. It examines the nature and scope of family-community 
partnerships including interdisciplinary relations and their impact on learning and development of young children. It 
includes a review of principles, strategies, initiatives and programs to engage parents, families and communities. The 
role of early childhood educators in planning, implementing, assessing collaborative family, school and community 
partnerships is given emphasis.  

ECED-133 EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION CURRICULUM MODELS (3 UNITS)  

Prerequisite: ECED-123 

This course focuses on the principles in planning and developing developmentally-appropriate and child-centered 
curriculum.  The course includes a thorough discussion of different curriculum models and program approaches for 
early childhood education. 
 
ECED-134 RESEARCH IN EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION (3 UNITS) 
 
This course focuses on conducting action research through an investigation of a significant question or issue relating 
to teaching early childhood settings.  
 
ECED-135 TEACHING INTERNSHIP (6 UNITS) 

Prerequisite: ECED-128 and ECED-129 

This course is a one semester full time teaching internship in basic education schools using a clinical approach under 
the mentorship of a cooperating teacher. Teaching internship shall be done in-campus and off-campus if possible. No 
academic courses shall be taken together with Teaching Internship. A teaching portfolio shall be required and the 
completion of the Action Research.  
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ACADEMIC AREAS 
• General Education  
• Languages and Literature 
• Theology 
• Physical Education 
• National Service Training Program 
• Miriam Culture, Identity and Social Responsibility 

 
GENERAL EDUCATION  
 
The General Education curriculum is comprised of CHED-mandated courses which all undergraduate students are 
required to take. The curriculum exposes the students to various domains of knowledge and ways of comprehending 
social and natural realities which in the process develops in the students (1) intellectual competencies such as 
critical, analytical, and creative thinking, and multiple forms of expression and (2) civic capacities demanded of 
membership in the community, country, and the world. The General Education program lays the groundwork for the 
development of well-rounded and open-minded individuals who are professionally and morally competent and 
humane. It also prepares the students for the demands of the 21st century life and the requisite abilities to anticipate 
and adapt to swiftly changing situations, to think innovatively, and create solutions to problems.   
 
 
COURSE DESCRIPTIONS 
 
ARTA-1.0 | 3 UNITS       ART APPRECIATION  

 
This course aims to give the students an appreciation of the arts. It covers the fields of visual arts, music, and several 
forms of literature and the performing arts and the principles underlying these arts, laying emphasis on art’s 
relevance to people and society. This course is a general study of art and design, their various forms and structures, 
personal and cultural functions, and the roles of artists in society. It also includes basic theory and practice in art 
production, applied arts, aesthetics, art criticism and art history in relation to daily life, culture, careers and other 
learning areas. 
 
ETH-1.0 | 3 UNITS        ETHICS 
 
The course introduces students to the ethical dimension of human existence at various levels – personal, societal, 
environmental and cultural. Through the discussion of various ethical frameworks, the course provides the students 
with the tools by which to recognize and articulate ethical questions, analyze the different elements of moral 
problems and make rational judgments and decisions on moral matters. Ethical issues on various fields are 
examined and deliberated upon as avenues for students to reflect on and apply the principles, theories and 
frameworks of moral reasoning and decision-making. The end goal is to develop in the students a personal, rational 
and critical perspective on the moral issues affecting their lives.    
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LWR-1.0 | 3 UNITS         LIFE AND WORKS OF RIZAL 
 
The study of the life (le quotidean/life-world) and works/deeds of Dr. Jose P. Rizal and their influence and 
significance to contemporary Philippine society.  In giving importance to the Filipino people, its aim is to enhance 
their nationalism (even in a globalized world and post-modern times). 
 
MMW-1.0 | 3 UNITS         MATHEMATICS IN THE MODERN WORLD  
 
This course deals with the nature of mathematics, appreciation of its practical, intellectual, and aesthetic dimensions, 
and application of mathematical tools in daily life. 
 
The course begins with an introduction to the nature of mathematics as an exploration of patterns (in nature and the 
environment) and as an application of inductive and deductive reasoning. By exploring these topics, students are 
encouraged to go beyond the typical understanding of mathematics as merely a set of formulas but as a source of 
aesthetics in patterns of nature, and a rich language in itself governed by logic and reasoning. 
 
The course then proceeds to survey ways in which mathematics provides a tool for understanding and telling with 
various aspects of present-day living, such as managing personal finances, making social choices, appreciating 
geometric designs, understanding codes used in data transmission and security, and dividing limited resources fairly. 
These aspects will provide opportunities for actually doing mathematics in a broad range of exercises that bring out 
the various dimensions of mathematics as a way of knowing and testing the students’ understanding and capacity. 
 
PCOM-1.0 | 3 UNITS        PURPOSIVE COMMUNICATION 
 
This three-unit course develops the students’ communicative competence and enhances their cultural and 
intercultural awareness through multimodal tasks that provide them opportunities for communicating effectively and 
appropriately to a multicultural audience in a local or global context. It equips students with tools for critical evaluation 
of a variety of texts and focuses on the power of language and the impact of images to emphasize the importance of 
conveying messages responsibly. The knowledge, skills, and insights that students gain from this course may be 
used in their other academic endeavors, their chosen disciplines, and their future careers as they compose and 
produce relevant oral, written, audio-visual and/or web-based output for various purposes. Furthermore, this course 
infuses local knowledge in the context of Philippine culture and language. It provides students with an avenue to 
promote local knowledge through a meaningful and authentic performance task. 
 
RPH-1.0 | 3 UNITS       READINGS IN PHILIPPINE HISTORY 
 
This course examines primary sources on Philippine history from a multiple perspective.  It covers political, social, 
economic, and cultural history as documented in diaries, letters, newspaper reports, photographs, videos, and films. 
By studying these sources, students will acquire the experience of reading and thinking like a historian. 
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STS-1.0 | 3 UNITS        SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY, AND SOCIETY 
 
Science, Technology, and Society discusses the impact and continuing influence of Science and Technology on 
human life. Science and technology has changed the way we lived, from our physical health, culture, the way we 
communicate, to how we do business. It has also given us tremendous power over what we can do with our bodies 
and our environment and has forced us to confront issues that were not causes of concern for our ancestors who had 
no access to the technologies we have today. Society, culture, and norms also influence the development of science 
and technology. This course seeks to make students reflect on all these to make them aware and ready for the 
changes science and technology can bring, as well as make them act in ways that will give them a good and happy 
life in this world dominated by science and technology. 
 
TCW-1.0 | 3 UNITS       THE CONTEMPORARY WORLD 
 
This course introduces students to globalization’s transformative impact on the contemporary world. It examines the 
social, political, and technological progress that have intensified people’s sense of global connection.  It not only 
exposes students to a world outside the Philippines, but also seeks to inculcate a sense of global citizenship and 
responsibility that is anchored on global governance, development and sustainability.  
 
UTS-1.0 | 3 UNITS         UNDERSTANDING THE SELF 

  
Understanding the Self is a transdisciplinary approach to promote the students’ self-understanding and capacity       
in managing themselves to attain a better quality of life.  
 
The course is intended to facilitate the exploration of the issues and concerns regarding self and identity by 
combining the perspectives of Philosophy, Psychology, Sociology, Anthropology, Political Science, Philippine 
and Cross-Cultural Psychology, Health and Wellness with the student’s actual experiences. It seeks to develop 
a more critical and reflective attitude while honing their skills in managing themselves to attain a better quality of 
life.  
 
The course will cover the following:  
1. Self as personally experienced  
2. Managing and caring for the self  
3. Self as a construct  
    a. Understanding the self from various disciplinal perspectives, as well as Eastern and Western world views  
    b. Contexts, layers and aspects of the self  
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LANGUAGES AND LITERATURE  
 
LITERATURE 
 
LIT-1.0 | 3 UNITS      GREAT BOOKS 
 
This course emphasizes appreciation and analyses of selected masterpieces which are considered as the foundation 
of western literature and culture.  
 
LIT-2.0 | 3 UNITS      THIRD WORLD LITERATURE 
 
This course focuses on the close reading of literary texts written by authors from Asia, Africa, and Latin America. The 
course intends to nurture a growing awareness that non-canonical writings are powerful and cognitively stimulating 
literary texts. 
 
 
FOREIGN LANGUAGE 
 
The Foreign Language Program aims to provide opportunities to speak, read, and write some foreign languages 
intelligently and with enjoyment to enhance appreciation of the culture of nations where these languages are used as 
the media of communication.  
 
FRENCH AS A MINOR PROGRAM 
 
The French language is widely spoken in five continents and in many countries as a native language, language of 
instruction, language of government, and lingua franca of business. It is among the principal languages of diplomacy 
and of important international organizations. It is the language of culture that opens doors to art, music, dance, 
fashion, cuisine, and cinema.  
 
FR-101 | FL-101 | 3 UNITS       ELEMENTARY FRENCH 
 
This course provides the students with the basic elements of the French language. Special emphasis is on 
conversation; students are trained to recognize and use all patterns of expression that are frequently encountered in 
the syntax of talk.  
 
FR-102 | FL-102 |3 UNITS       INTERMEDIATE FRENCH                             Prerequisite: FR-101 Elementary French 
 
Comprehension of written text and correct use of the language are the main objectives of this course. Students learn 
to express their ideas and feelings in written and spoken forms and short compositions. Knowledge and love of 
French history, culture and civilization will also be provided. 
 
FR-103 | FL-103 | 3 UNITS       ADVANCED FRENCH                                Prerequisite: FR-102 Intermediate French 
 
The course emphasizes the use of the French language for active communication. It helps students develop the 
ability to understand the language in various contexts (i.e. acquire a French vocabulary sufficient for reading 
newspaper and magazine articles, literary texts, and other non-technical writings without dependence on a dictionary) 
and the ability to express themselves coherently, resourcefully, and with reasonable fluency and accuracy in both 
written and spoken French.  
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FR-104 | FL-104 | 3 UNITS       FRENCH FOR BUSINESS                            Prerequisite: FR-103 Advanced French  
 
The course intends to prepare students to use the target language in the context of real life and job purposes. The 
actual situations provided to students cover a wide range of business interactions. Students will engage in role-
playing exercises and construct dialogues along similar lines. Discussions regarding French history, culture, and 
civilization will be provided. 
 
 
JAPANESE AS A MINOR PROGRAM 
 
Nihongo is a language of business of refinement. Japan’s long-standing ties with the Philippines makes competence 
in Japanese useful and relevant. Japanese people have long been known to be truly nationalistic and this is evident 
in their exclusive use of Japanese for business inside and outside Japan despite learning English since their 
elementary years. Those who wish to deal with the Japanese as clients or guests must learn their language to make 
strides in any dealings.  
 
JAP-101 | FL-101 | 3 UNITS       ELEMENTARY JAPANESE 1 
 
This course introduces the students to Japanese syllabary. Focus is on learning basic grammar patterns to be able to 
speak while giving close attention to pronunciation and intonation. Although learning the characters is not a priority in 
this course, students are introduced to the katakana or alphabet for foreign words. By the end of the course, the 
student should have the ability to engage in simple conversations with an acquired vocabulary of 300 words. 
 
JAP-102 | FL-102 | 3 UNITS       ELEMENTARY JAPANESE 2            Prerequisite: JAP-101 Elementary Japanese 1 
 
With the introduction of the basic alphabets Hiragana and Katakana in Japanese 101, this course promotes mastery 
of these characters. Use of Japanese is maximized to improve listening and comprehension skills. By the end of the 
course, students should be able to converse in Japanese, and read and write simple sentences with acquired 
vocabulary of 500 words and 100 Kanji characters.  
 
JAP-103 | FL-103 | 3 UNITS       INTERMEDIATE JAPANESE 1        Prerequisite: JAP-102 Elementary Japanese 2 
 
This is the beginning of the minor program wherein students have already developed a deep interest in the language. 
Honing of the students’ listening, speaking, and writing competencies in the target language is given continuous 
attention. By the end of this course, the students can engage in more complex conversations, write short 
compositions, and use a total of 700 words. 
 
JAP-104 | FL-104 | 3 UNITS       INTERMEDIATE JAPANESE 2      Prerequisite: JAP-103 Intermediate Japanese 1 
 
This course prepares the students to take the Japanese Language Proficiency Exam Level 4 which is administered 
by the Association of International Education, Japan and the Japan Foundation.  
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MANDARIN AS A MINOR PROGRAM 
 
The minor program in Mandarin Chinese is designed to equip students with the ability to communicate within a 
Mandarin language workplace. Students achieve functional literacy and limited working proficiency to fulfill social 
demands and routine work requirements by the end of the program. With a focus on a contextual communicative 
approach to learning and the use of innovative language transmission techniques, the program enhances the 
learners’ competitiveness in today's fast-changing world. 
 
 
MAN-101 | FL-101 | 3 UNITS       ELEMENTARY MANDARIN 
 
Spoken Mandarin Chinese is the emphasis of this course. This course aims to equip students with the proper 
linguistic skills to effectively learn Mandarin Chinese in the shortest possible time. As students progress through this 
course, they will develop their listening, comprehension, and speaking skills through exposure to multimedia and 
real-life situations. 
 
MAN-102 | FL-102 | 3 UNITS       INTERMEDIATE MANDARIN             Prerequisite: MAN-101 Elementary Mandarin 
 
This course deals with the reading and writing of Chinese characters. Students learn to recognize and write over 500 
words in character form, building upon previous knowledge of Mandarin Chinese acquired in the form of Pinyin. 
Students also familiarize themselves with practical situations where character knowledge is requisite.  
 
MAN-103 | FL-103 | 3 UNITS       ADVANCED MANDARIN                 Prerequisite: MAN-102 Intermediate Mandarin 
 
This course deals with the use of Mandarin Chinese in various fields of occupation, with an emphasis on spoken 
Chinese in situational contexts. Students gain familiarity with the language patterns found and used in language 
environments commonly encountered in the workplace. Students learn approximately 300 words in Pinyin form and 
30 Chinese characters to broaden their core vocabulary. 
 
MAN-104 | FL-104 | 3 UNITS       BUSINESS MANDARIN                      Prerequisite: MAN-103 Advanced Mandarin 
 
This course deals with the usage of Mandarin Chinese in formal and informal business settings. At this point the 
students are already equipped with approximately 1,500 words in their vocabulary, with 1000 words in Pinyin form 
and 500 in character form. Students are familiarized with situations that may arise in a business environment, and the 
vocabulary they require in such settings. 
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SPANISH AS A MINOR PROGRAM 
 
This program provides a foundational knowledge of linguistic, literary, and cultural aspects of the study of Spanish. It 
gives students an advantage in the ever growing bilingual global job market. Thus, it leads the students to gain global 
perspectives, a deeper understanding of the cultures and value systems and to enhance their general knowledge of 
world development. 
  
SP-101| FL-101| 3 UNITS       ELEMENTARY SPANISH 
 
Spanish 101 is a beginner’s course with emphasis on oral communication using topics for simple conversations or 
dialogues within the basic level. This course provides an introduction to the Spanish language through the 
development of listening, speaking (aural-oral), reading, and writing skills.  Likewise, it aims to introduce various 
cultural aspects of the language (spoken in several countries comprising the Hispanic world) which are incorporated 
in topics intended for the communicative activities of the course.       
 
SP-102| FL-102 | 3 UNITS       INTERMEDIATE SPANISH                          Prerequisite: SP-101 Elementary Spanish  
 
Spanish 102 is an intensive study of the fundamentals of Spanish grammar with special attention given to 
pronunciation and oral expression. There is careful attention to grammar as well as emphasis on the oral aspects of 
the language based on everyday situations. At the end of the course, the students are able to express themselves 
using the simple tenses of the target language.  
 
SP-103 | FL-103 | 3 UNITS       ADVANCED SPANISH 1                          Prerequisite: SP-102 Intermediate Spanish 
  
Spanish 103 is an intensive study of advanced Spanish grammar through the continuation of linguistic skills 
development and review of Spanish syntax learned in the previous courses. It is designed to equip the students with 
more advanced linguistic and lexical tools to further enhance their communicative skills in Spanish. There is 
consistent emphasis on the oral aspects of the language based on everyday situations. At the end of the course, the 
students are expected to express themselves in the target language with greater fluency, utilizing more advanced 
grammatical structures. Moreover, this course aims to introduce a few literary works in Spanish by Filipino authors 
who contributed to the development of Filipino-Literature in Spanish in the Philippines. 
 
SP-104 | FL-104 | 3 UNITS       ADVANCED SPANISH 2                            Prerequisite: SP-103 Advanced Spanish 1 
 
Spanish 104 is a continuation of Spanish 103 which introduces the students to a relatively more advanced level of 
the Spanish language, its grammatical structure and its cultural aspects, to further equip them with more adequate 
linguistic and lexical tools. This will enhance their communicative skills that will enable them to express themselves 
with a higher degree of ease and fluency. This course focuses on the use of advanced Spanish for professional, 
social, and business purposes.  
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THEOLOGY 
 
The Theology courses underline the very nature of Miriam College as a Catholic tertiary institution. It implements and 
supports the mission of promoting integral human formation and holistic education.  
 
The Theology department is primarily concerned that the students become enlightened and committed Christians 
who develop, first of all, a deep relationship with Christ and who strive to live Spirit-led lives imbued with Gospel 
values in their families and in their communities.  
 
The Theology courses are designed to help students understand as well as appropriate the Christian message 
through the reflective, experiential and contextual approach which includes service to different sectors of the society.  
 
Through its course offerings, the goal of the Theology Department, which are sequential from first year to the senior 
year, is to graduate Miriam students with a mature understanding and personal integration of Miriam Spirituality and 
their Christian faith lived in the Filipino context. 
 
 
COURSE DESCRIPTIONS 
 
T-101 | 3 UNITS       BIBLICAL FOUNDATION OF CHRISTIAN FAITH  
 
The Bible is a major source of doing Christian theology. This foundational course focuses on basic theological 
questions: 
Who is God? How does God communicate with us? 
Who is Jesus of Nazareth? How do we encounter Jesus Christ through the Sacred Scriptures? 
The students are introduced to the Bible (Hebrew and Christian Scriptures) as the basic text for understanding the 
structure of Christian faith, together with Tradition as mediated / interpreted by the Catholic Church and its teachings. 
The course aims to lead the students towards a faith-based, Christ-centered response to God’s ongoing revelation in 
their lives. 
The course requires attendance and active participation in a day of reflection/recollection. 
 
T-102.1 | 3 UNITS       THEOLOGY OF MISSION, COMMUNION AND SERVICE  
Prerequisite: T-101 Biblical Foundation of Christian Faith  
 
T-102.1 deals with the Christian Community, and how it has constantly laboured to continue Jesus’ mission of 
proclaiming the Reign of God. The course traces and explores the forms and dynamics of the community’s 
missionary activities throughout the centuries.  
 
This course also looks into the Sacraments as celebrations of life’s most important moments wherein God’s gracious 
presence is experienced and provides avenues for communion to the God who builds community.  
 
It emphasizes the theme of Mission, Communion/Discipleship and Service to the local communities and the whole 
Church in the context of the Miriam core values of Truth, Peace, Justice and Integrity of Creation. Parish and 
Community Involvement is an integral part of the course. An exposure to and involvement in Church organizations 
and ministries is the service-learning project of the course. 
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T-103 | 3 UNITS       CONTEMPORARY MORAL ISSUES  
Prerequisites: T-101 Biblical Foundation of Christian Faith and T-102.1 Theology of Mission, Communion 
and Service  
 
This course involves critical reflection on contemporary issues that confront the Filipino youth in the light of Christian 
faith.  Special attention is given to issues concerning sexuality and gender, relationships and commitment, marriage 
and family life.  Prior to analysis and reflection on specific issues, the students are introduced to the study of the 
basic values and principles that are necessary for discernment and moral decision-making.  This will equip them with 
concepts and tools that will help them understand and live in this fast-changing world.   
 
The Discernment Recollection is one of the major requirements of this course. It aims to help the students ground 
their decision-making experiences/processes in their faith, just as Miriam of Nazareth has exemplified as she kept all 
things in her heart. 
 
T-104 | 3 UNITS       THEOLOGY OF SOCIAL JUSTICE AND PEACE  
Prerequisites: T-101 Biblical Foundation of Christian Faith and T-102.1 Theology of Mission, Communion and 
Service  
 
This course attempts to integrate the Catholic Social Teaching and the Catholic Social Ethics with the Core-Values of 
Miriam College e.g. Truth, Justice, Peace, and Integrity of Creation. It seeks to explore the contents of major church 
documents and provide students with a greater understanding of the biblical and ecclesiological foundations of 
working for a just, humane and peaceful society. It prepares and guides them to examine and practice the various 
forms of expressing their commitment to the Christian Faith, especially as they enter the world of work.  
 
 

PHYSICAL EDUCATION 
 
Physical Education aims at holistic healthy development of human personality which includes physical, mental, 
social, emotional and moral aspects to make an individual a good and productive citizen who is able to make a 
valuable contribution to the nation’s fitness and sports development program. Thus, Physical Education aims at 
making an individual physically fit, mentally alert, emotionally balanced, socially well adjusted, morally true and 
spiritually uplifted. It consists of three (3) aspects: the Service Program, the Intramural Program and the Athletic 
Program. 
 
PATHF-1.0 | 2 UNITS 
PHYSICAL ACTIVITY TOWARDS HEALTH AND FITNESS I 
 
The course reintroduces the fundamental movement patterns that consist of non-locomotor and locomotor skills, 
which are integrated into core training (stability, strength, and power) to meet the demands of activities in daily living 
and sports performance. The training is in conjunction with fitness concepts, exercise, and healthy eating principles. 
Emphasis is on exercise progression and regression for the enhancement of fitness; adaptation of movement 
competencies for independent physical activity pursuits; and the periodic evaluation of PA and eating patterns to 
monitor one’s progress and achievement of personal fitness and dietary goals. The course provides ten (10) hours of 
flexible learning activities composed of both lectures and practical applications of various concepts.  
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PATHF-2.0 | 2 UNITS 
PHYSICAL ACTIVITY TOWARDS HEALTH AND FITNESS II 
 
The course focuses on and provides a variety of activities that impact the advocacy and promotion of healthy lifestyle 
and fitness through school-based and community connection and contribute to the health and well-being of the 
school and the larger community. Students also engage in skill-related performances and lecture demonstrations on 
the human anatomy. The fitness test assesses fitness level and improve students’ own physical activities as a 
continuation of their performance-related fitness test. Through these activities, students get to interact with the 
community to both encourage healthy lifestyle and improve personal well-being. The course culminates in a cheer 
dance exhibition and an outreach fitness program.     
 
PATHF-3.0 | 2 UNITS and PATHF-4.0 | 2 UNITS 
PHYSICAL ACTIVITY TOWARDS HEALTH AND FITNES III and IV 
 
These courses provide experiences in a variety of physical activities for the general purpose of optimizing health. 
Students choose from a menu of course offerings in Dance, Sports, Martial Arts, Group Exercise, and Outdoor and 
Adventure Activities. 
 

 
NATIONAL SERVICE TRAINING PROGRAM 
 
NSTP is a mandated subject in all baccalaureate courses based on Republic Act (RA) 9163, otherwise known as 
NSTP Law, which was passed by the Philippine Congress in 2001. 
 
The NSTP law aims to enhance civic consciousness and patriotism among the youth. It has three (3) main 
components namely, the Reserve Officers’ Training Corps (ROTC), Literacy Training Service (LTS), and Civic 
Welfare Training Service (CWTS). Miriam College only offers LTS and CWTS.  All LTS and CWTS graduates 
become members of the National Service Reserve Corps (NSRC) who can be tapped by the local or national 
government for civic welfare activities especially in times of disasters and calamities. 

GENERAL POLICIES  
1. No orientation, no exposure  
2. No permission letter, no community/institutional exposure  
3. Attendance and punctuality in all NSTP assemblies 
 
 
NSTP-1.1 | 3 UNITS 
NATIONAL SERVICE TRAINING PROGRAM  1.1 
 
NSTP 1.1 provides an opportunity for students to understand the Philippine economic, political and socio-cultural 
realities in the context of a changing world, particularly as they affect poor communities and marginalized sectors. 
They will also be exposed to the advocacies of Miriam College’s Center for Peace Education (CPE), Environmental 
Studies Institute (ESI), and Women and Gender Institute (WAGI) and will be given the opportunity to participate in 
school-based advocacy projects. Conscientization or awareness-raising will be the primary tool of NSTP 1.1 in 
encouraging students to build solidarity with the poor and marginalized sectors and become active citizens in the 
process. 
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NSTP-2.1 | 3 UNITS 
NATIONAL SERVICE TRAINING PROGRAM 2.1 
Prerequisite: NSTP 1.1 National Service Training Program–NSTP 1  
 
NSTP 2.1 expands and deepens the goals of NSTP 1.1 on active citizenship, and youth leadership and service. It 
provides the students with the opportunity to plan and implement projects for the benefit of the disadvantaged 
communities and/or resource-poor organizations. Projects are conceptualized based on  Miriam College’s core 
values of truth, justice, peace, and integrity of creation. 
 
This course also provides the students with orientation on peace education, voters education and an opportunity to 
re-examine history through a visit to Bantayog ng mga Bayani. 
 
 
MIRIAM CULTURE, IDENTITY, AND SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY 
 
The program emphasizes an understanding of the school vision-mission and its core values and how these values 
can be applied in their career and personal lives. 
 
COURSE DESCRIPTIONS 
 
MC-101 | 1 UNIT  
MIRIAM CULTURE, IDENTITY, AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY I 
 
Miriam Culture, Identity and Social Responsibility I (MC101) is a one-unit course that aims to guide the students to 
the path of self-actualization through the exploration of the 5 key senses (self, interconnectedness, mission, humor 
and stillness) that will shape their MC Identity.  It also introduces them to the culture and identity of Miriam College, 
its history, vision, mission, spirituality, core values and advocacies.  MC101 also consists of modules that will help 
students’ adjustment and success in college, both in academic and nonacademic areas, by enhancing and 
strengthening their self-esteem, leadership, organizational and social skills. 

 
MC-102 | 1 UNIT 
MIRIAM CULTURE, IDENTITY, AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY II 
 
Miriam Culture, Identity and Social Responsibility II (MC102) continues the MC101 objectives of orienting first year 
students to Miriam culture and identity.  Its focus remains on the 5 key senses that serve as a guide to self-
actualization through the exploration of self, interconnectedness, mission, humor and stillness.  In addition, it 
continues to help students’ adjustment and success in college both in academic and nonacademic areas by 
enhancing and strengthening their self-esteem, leadership, organizational and social skills. 
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NATURAL SCIENCES 
• Zoology Lecture/ Zoology Laboratory 
• Botany Lecture/ Botany Laboratory 
• Biophysics Lecture/ Biophysics Laboratory 
• Organic Chemistry Lecture/ Organic Chemistry Laboratory 
• Cell and Molecular Biology Lecture/ Cell and Molecular Biology 

laboratory 
 
 
COURSE DESCRIPTIONS 
 
3 UNITS LEC I S-103 LEC | 2 UNITS LAB I S-103 LAB 
GENERAL ZOOLOGY LECTURE 
 
This course deals with Kingdom Animalia focusing on their structural organization, chemical composition and 
interactions with their environment. Various aspects of zoology will be examined based on the features and problems 
shared by all animals ranging from their molecular and cellular organization to their genetic control, reproductive 
mechanisms, metabolism, responsiveness and evolution.  

 
GENERAL ZOOLOGY LABORATORY 
 
An introductory laboratory course dealing with the study of relationships between structure and function among 
different animal invertebrate phyla through morphological study. Laboratory activities will include the study of 
vertebrate organ systems, utilizing the frog or toad as representative organism.  

S-102 LEC & S-102 LAB | 3 UNITS LEC | 2 UNITS LAB 
GENERAL BOTANY LECTURE 
 
This course deals with the study of plant life forms and their significance to humans. Understanding of the plant body 
is achieved through the study of cells, tissues, organs and organ systems. Biological concepts are discussed in 
relation to environmental and societal issues.  

 
GENERAL BOTANY LABORATORY 
 
An introductory laboratory course dealing with the study of the relationship between structure and function among 
different plant life forms through morphological study. The laboratory activities will also emphasize the study of plant 
structures, tissues and organs utilizing representative plant species.  
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S-149 LEC & S-149 LAB | 2 UNITS LEC | 2 UNITS LAB 
BIOPHYSICS LECTURE 
 
Being the most basic science of all, Physics can explain varieties of physical phenomena in other filed of sciences 
like Chemistry and Biology. Moreover, Physics leads to the innovative applications in the applied sciences like 
Engineering, Instrumentation Sciences, and Medical Sciences. Due to the knowledge, it is essential to include 
Physics in all science curricula. In this course, the application of Physics ideas in Biology is to be discussed. In 
addition, the application of Physics in Medical Science is to be tackled.  

BIOPHYSICS LABORATORY 
 
This course is the experimental counterpart of the Biophysics lecture course.  

 

S-109.1 LEC | 2 UNITS LEC | 1 UNIT LAB 
ORGANIC CHEMISTRY LECTURE 
 
A one semester lecture course covering basic concepts in organic chemistry.  Topics include hybridization, 
isomerism, organic structures, reactions and mechanisms.  The concept that organic structures determine chemical 
reactivity and physical properties is given emphasis.  It also includes a brief study of the structure and properties of 
lipids, carbohydrates and proteins. 
 
ORGANIC CHEMISTRY LABORATORY 
 
A laboratory course covering experiments on separation and purification of organic compounds, basic organic 
chemical reactions, organic synthesis, and qualitative organic analysis. Experiments dealing with the properties of 
lipids, carbohydrates and proteins are also included. 

 
S-127 LEC & S-127 LAB | 2 UNITS LEC | 1 UNIT LAB 
CELL AND MOLECULAR BIOLOGY LECTURE 
 
This course is an introduction to cell and molecular biology that discusses the structure and function of the different 
components of the cell at the molecular level as well as the fundamental principles on structure and organization of 
genes including gene expression and regulation. In addition to this, cell communication will also be discussed. 
 
 
CELL AND MOLECULAR BIOLOGY LABORATORY 
 
The Cell and Molecular Biology laboratory course provides hands-on exercises in microscopy, isolation and 
characterization of biomolecules and basic techniques in molecular biology. 
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Master of Arts in Broadcast Communications                     
University of the Philippines  
 
Cruz, Corazon  
Doctor of Public Administration  
University of the Philippines 
 
Cruz, Frances Antoinette 
Masters in International Studies  
University of The Philippines  
Master of Arts Deutsch als Fremdsprache und 
Germanistik (German as a Foreign Language and 
German Studies) 
Universität Bielefeld, Germany 
 
Cruz, Nellie  
Master of Science in Chemistry  
University of The Philippines 
 

Dacillo, Jesus 
Doctor of Philosophy in Applied Cosmic Anthropology  
Asian Social Institute 
 
Datuin, Victorino  
Master of Business Administration 
De La Salle University 
 
David, Peter Jonas  
Master of Arts in Philosophy 
University of the Philippines  
 
Dela Rosa, Leah 
Doctor of Philosophy in Environmental Studies 
Miriam College 
 
De Asis, Paula Nicola  
Master in Business Administration  
De La Salle University  
 
De Castro, Patrick  
Master of Arts major in History (Cognate: Geography)  
University of the Philippines  
 
De Dios, Aurora  
Master of Arts in Asian Studies major in East Asia-
Japan  
University of the Philippines  
 
De Vela, Ma. Theresa Casal 
Doctor of Philosophy in Public Administration 
University of the Philippines 
 
Del Castillo, Noel  
Master of Arts in Economics 
University of the Philippines 
 
Dela Cruz, Renato 
Master of Arts in Pastoral Ministry 
Our Lady of the Angels Seminary  
 
 
 
 

Babaran, Riza  
Master of Arts in Filipino (Malikhaing Pagsulat)  
University of the Philippines 
 
Bagaman, Bernard  
Master of Arts in Communication  
Ateneo de Manila University 
 
Banlaoi, Rommel  
Doctor of Philosophy in International Relations  
Jinan University, People’s Republic of China 
 
Barnuevo, Marlon  
Bachelor of Science in Industrial Design 
De La Salle University- College of Saint Benilde 
 
Baybay, Maria Lourdes  
Doctor of Philosophy in Education major in Research 
and Evaluation  
University of the Philippines 
 
Bellen, Jonathan Jeffrey 
Master in Physical Education and Sports 
Polytechnic University of the Philippines 
 
Bello, Aylin  
Master of Arts in Counseling Psychology  
Ateneo de Manila University 
 
Bengzon, Jaime  
Bachelor of Arts in Interdisciplinary  
Ateneo de Manila University  
 
Biason, Ma. Garnet  
Master of Science in Applied Mathematics 
(Operations Research)  
University of the Philippines 
 
Blancas, Philip Jordan  
Master of Science in Physics  
University of the Philippines 
 
 
 

Bolaños, Jesus Anthony 
Master in Integrated Marketing Communication 
Miriam College 
 
Briones, Nicomedes  
Doctor of Philosophy in Agricultural and Resource 
Economics  
University of Hawaii, United States of America 
 
Broadway, Myra 
Master of Arts in Education with specialization in 
Filipino 
Philippine Normal University  
 
Cabatbat, Katherine Pia  
Master of Arts in Education major in Religious Studies  
La Consolacion University 
 
Caber, Maria Russel  
Master of Education major in Measurement and 
Evaluation 
Miriam College  
 
Calderon, Maria Lowella  
Master of Arts in Education major in Educational 
Administration  
University of the Philippines 
Master of Arts major in Pastoral Ministry 
Ateneo de Manila University 
 
Calingo, Jea Marjori 
Bachelor of Applied Arts major in Visual design 
Miriam College 
 
Camarador, Rhene 
Master in Physical Education and Sports 
University of the Philippines 
 
Camba, Gerardo 
Master in Hospital Administration 
St. Jude College  
Doctor of Medicine 
Far Eastern University 
 



Gellynck, Marc  
Doctor of Medicine  
University of Santo Tomas 
 
Gementiza, Rivero  
Master of Arts in Religious Education  
Ateneo de Manila University  
 
Go, Albert  
Master of Arts in Psychology major in Child and 
Family Development  
Ateneo de Manila University  
 
Go, Karl  
Bachelor of Arts in Linguistics  
University of the Philippines 
 
Herrera, Joanna 
Doctor of Psychology  
The Wright Institute, United States of America 
 
Israel, Lorna  
Master of Arts in Philippine Studies (Sociocultural 
Studies)  
University of the Philippines 
 
Jacinto, Liv  
Bachelor of Fine Arts major in Advertising Arts 
Far Eastern University 
 
Javier, Alessandra Marie  
Master of Humanities and Social Sciences major in 
Didactics of Languages and Disciplines specialization 
in Didactic of French as a Foreign Language,  
Second and Mother Tongue (FLESM) for Research 
and Professional use  
University of Nice Sophia Antipolis, France  
 
Joaquin, Jethro  
Bachelor of Arts in Theater Arts  
University of the Philippines 
 
 
 

Joves, Ronald  
Master of National Security Administration  
National Defense College of the Philippines 
 
Jurisprudencia, Jerry  
Doctor of Philosophy in Clinical Psychology  
Ateneo de Manila University  
 
Labora, Bonifacio  
Bachelor of Fine Arts major in Industrial Design  
University of Santo Tomas  
 
Labrador, Jhames  
Master ng Sining sa Araling Filipino medyor sa Wika, 
Kultura at Medya  
De La Salle University  
 
Lanzona, Raymund  
Master of Arts in Theology  
Ateneo de Manila University 
 
Lasam, Joel 
Master of Public Administration (Organization 
Studies) 
University of the Philippines 
Master of Public Policy and Administration Institute of 
Social Studies, now the International Institute of 
Social Studies, The Hague, The Netherlands 
 
Leonidas, Jose 
Master of Science in Sociology 
Asian Social Institute 
 
Libayan, Kebart 
Master of Science in International Studies 
Nanyang Technological University, Singapore 
 
Lim, Alice 
Master of Arts in Psychology (Applied Child 
Psychology) 
University of Guelph, Canada 
 
 
 

Dela Cruz, Ronel  
Doctor of Philosophy in Applied Anthropology  
Asian Social Institute 
 
Dela Cuesta, Karlo  
Master in International Studies 
Miriam College 
 
Domingo, Efren  
Master of Arts in Philippine Studies major in 
Language and Women Development Studies  
University of the Philippines 
 
Doroy, Nelson  
Master of Arts in Transportation Planning  
University of the Philippines 
 
Estarija, Consolacion  
Master of Arts in Education  
University of the Philippines 
 
Evangelista, Abileen 
Bachelor of Fine Arts major in Industrial Design 
University of Santo Tomas  
 
Evangelista, Francis Julius  
Doctor of Philosophy major in History and Philosophy 
of Education  
University of the Philippines 
 
Evangelista, Grace  
Doctor of Philosophy in Psychology  
University of the Philippines 
 
Fantonalgo, Raymund 
Master of Science in Marine Science (Marine Biology) 
University of the Philippines, Diliman 
Master of Science in Biology with cognate in 
Environmental Biology and Microbiology 
University of the Philippines, Iloilo  
 
Fontanilla, Cecille  
Master of Arts in Integrated Marketing Communication  
Miriam College 
 
 

Fontanilla, Robert  
Bachelor of Science in Biochemistry  
University of Santo Tomas 
 
Fortez, Sarah Joy  
Master of Arts in Urban and Regional Planning  
University of the Philippines 
 
Fortin, Pacita  
Master of Arts in Development Studies specialization 
in Women, Gender & Development  
Institute of Social Studies, now the International 
Institute of Social Studies, The Hague, The 
Netherlands  
 
Galace, Jasmin  
Doctor of Philosophy in Educational Psychology  
University of the Philippines  
 
Galang, Angelina  
Doctor of Philosophy in Environmental Science  
Miriam College 
 
Galang, Gail Frances  
Doctor of Philosophy in Child and Family Studies  
Miriam College 
 
Galian, Joseph  
Bachelor of Fine Arts major in Visual Communication  
University of the Philippines 
 
Garchitorena, Aron Jayson  
Master of Arts in Philippines Studies major in Socio-
Cultural Studies 
University of the Philippines 
 
Garcia, Carlo 
Doctor of Philosophy in Environmental Education 
Miriam College 
 
Garcia, Lynda  
Master of Arts in Communication  
Ateneo de Manila University 
 



Paulino, Ma. Dinna  
Bachelor of Laws  
San Beda College 
 
Paulite, Maria Clara Francesca 
Master of Arts in Political Science major in Global 
Politics 
Ateneo de Manila University 
 
Peñalosa, Ma. Carmen 
Doctor of Public Administration 
University of the Philippines 
 
Portus, Lourdes 
Doctor of Philosophy in Communication  
University of the Philippines 
 
Princesa, Belen Cristina 
Bachelor of Laws  
Far Eastern University 
 
Rama, Reina  
Master of Science in Mathematics Education  
Ateneo de Manila University 
 
Renta, Joseph Richard III 
Master in Cultural Heritage Studies  
University of Santo Tomas 
Master of Arts in Liberal Studies major in Global 
Development and Social Justice  
St. John’s University, United States of America 
 
Reyes, Donna Paz  
Doctor of Philosophy in Environmental Studies  
Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology, Australia 
 
Reyes, Melanie  
Master of Arts in Public Administration  
University of the Philippines 
 
Ricafort, Rogelio  
Master of Science in Public Policy and Management  
University of London, United Kingdom 
 
 

Rivera, Redante 
Bachelor of Arts in Multimedia Arts 
De La Salle - College of Saint Benilde 
 
Rocha, Regina 
Bachelor of Science in Tourism Management   
Trinity University Asia 
 
Roque, Christia Angela  
Bachelor of Arts major in Communication Arts 
Miriam College 
 
Sagmit, Johann Andrew  
Master of Arts in Counseling Psychology  
Ateneo de Manila University 
 
Sajo, Dennis  
Doctor of Education  
Trinity University of Asia 
 
San Diego, Therese  
Master of Arts in Communication Management  
Asian Institute of Journalism and Communication 
 
Santiago, Joy 
Bachelor of Science in Geography 
University of the Philippines 
 
Santos, Opaline 
Bachelor of Arts major in Communication Arts 
Miriam College 
 
Santos, Ramon Arvin  
Master of Science in Microbiology  
University of Santo Tomas 
 
Sardea, Gilbeys 
Bachelor of Arts in Communication 
Miriam College 
 
Seño, Reuel Rito  
Master of Arts in Theology  
University of Santo Tomas 
 
 
 

Lim, Lea Zoraina 
Bachelor of Fine Arts (Painting) 
University of The Philippines 
Bachelor of Science major in Management 
Ateneo de Manila University 
 
Loanzon, Jeanette Isabelle  
Doctor of Philosophy in Economics  
Philipps University of Marburg, Germany 
 
Lumiqued, Fr. Arsenio  
Doctor of Philosophy in Education major in 
Educational Management  
Angeles University 
 
Malapitan, Sr. Ana 
Masters in Pastoral Studies 
Ateneo de Manila University  
 
Mariano, Melissa Paulita  
Doctor of Medicine  
University of Santo Tomas 
 
Maribbay, Jose  
Master of Science in Teaching Mathematics  
Ateneo de Manila University 
 
Martinez, Luz Maria  
Master in Social Work  
Jane Addams College of Social Work, United States 
of America 
 
Martinez, Sheba  
Master of Arts in Religious Studies major in Women 
and Religion  
Institute of Formation and Religious Studies 
 
Matias, Celeste Joy 
Master of Arts in Math 
University of the Philippines  
 
Media, Amor 
Master of Arts in Education major in Special 
Education 
National University  

Mejia, Armand  
Master of Laws  
Pamantasan ng Lungsod ng Maynila 
 
Mendoza, Herman  
Doctor of Engineering (Material Processing and 
Mineral Engineering)  
Tohoku University Institute for Advanced Materials 
Processing, Japan 
 
Minguillan, John Mark  
Master of Arts in Korean Language and Literature 
Chonnam  
National University, South Korea 
 
Miñoza, Ma. Golda Gigi  
Juris Doctor of Laws  
University of the Philippines 
 
Moral, Kristine Faith 
Bachelor of Arts major in Psychology  
University of the Philippines 
 
Moreno-Javier, Joanne Rina 
Master of Arts in Psychology  
University of the Philippines  
 
Morillo, Hannah Misha  
Master of Arts in Psychology  
University of the Philippines 
 
Motilla, Ronaldo  
Doctor of Philosophy major in Clinical Psychology  
Ateneo de Manila University 
 
Paclarin, Jelen  
Master in Public Administration  
University of the Philippines 
 
Parayno, Phares  
Doctor of Philosophy in Energy Management and 
Environment Policy  
University of Pennsylvania, United States of America 
 



COLLEGE OF BUSINESS, ENTREPRENEURSHIP 
AND ACCOUNTANCY 
 
Abad, Lourdes 
Masters in English Language and Literature Teaching  
Ateneo De Manila University 
 
Agapay, Rex Emmanuel  
Master in Business Administration 
Philippine School of  
Business Administration 
 
Alagaran, Jose Reuben  
PhD in Communication Major in Educational 
Technology and  
Distance Education 
University of the Philippines 
 
Alvarado, Micah 
Master in Business Administration 
Ateneo De Manila University 
 
Alminar-Mutya, Ruby  
Doctor in Business Administration   
Philippine School of Business Administration 
 
Antonio, Ma. Gracia Kathrina 
Master in Business Administration 
University of the Philippines 
 
Arididon, Jay  
BS in Tourism 
University of the Philippines 
 
Asuncion, Maria Cristina  
BS in Tourism 
University of the Philippines 
 
Barroga, Christina 
Bachelor of Laws 
University of the East 
 
 
 

Berbano, Alfred Lindon  
Master in Business Administration 
Philippine School of Business Administration 
 
Boquiren, Elaine  
Doctor in Business Administration  
Philippine School of Business Administration 
 
Bolaños, Jesus 
Master of Arts in Integrated Marketing Communication 
Miriam College 
 
Buensuceso, Noel  
Master in Business Administration 
Asian Institute of Management 
 
MA In Education Major In Basic Education Teaching 
Ateneo De Manila University 
 
Burgos, Antonio 
Master in Business Administration 
Philippine School of Business Administration 
 
Cruel, Joedy Liza 
Master in Business Administration 
De La Salle University 
 
Cui, Lope, Jr.  
Master in Business Administration  
University of the Philippines 
 
Dalimot, Michael 
Master in Business Administration  
University of Santo Tomas 
 
Damole, Jona-V 
BS Accountancy 
Miriam College 
 
Del Rosario, Ramon Hercules  
Master in Business Administration 
Centro Colleges of the Philippines 
 
 

Sevilla, Aleli  
Doctor of Philosophy in Sociology and Anthropology  
University of the Philippines 
 
Shivers, Michael 
Bachelor of Fine Arts (Industrial Design) 
University of the Philippines 
 
Sildan, Marcelino 
Doctor of Philosophy in Forestry major in Silviculture 
and Forest Influences  
University of the Philippines - Los Baños 
 
Sinon, Rosario  
Master of Arts in Integrated Marketing Communication  
Miriam College  
 
Soriano, Grace Annette  
Master of Arts in Education  
Ateneo de Davao University 
 
Tica-Ortiz, Mirma Mae  
Master in International Studies  
Miriam College  
 
Toledo, Joel  
Master of Arts in English Studies major in Poetry  
University of the Philippines 
 
Torres, Susan  
Master of Arts in Mathematics  
University of the Philippines 
 
Trinidad, Nicholas 
Bachelor of Fine Arts 
University of the Philippines 
 
Ulili, Rechilda 
Master of Arts in Integrated Marketing Communication 
Miriam College 
 
Ungson, Lilian 
Doctor of Philosophy in Forestry 
Michigan State University, United States of America 

Walet, Monica 
Doctor of Philosophy in Psychology 
University of Santo Tomas 
 
Villasante, Jonalyn  
Master of Arts in International Relations 
Master of Diplomacy  
Australian National University, Australia 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Tan, Emelita Jane  
MA in Educational Major in Educational Technology 
Roosevelt College  
 
Tang, Allan Paul  
MA in Education 
University of Santo Tomas 
 
Timbang, Ferdinand  
MS in Computational Finance 
De La Salle University 
 
Vidal, Myrna 
Master in Public Management 
Development Academy of the Philippines 
 
Villegas, Angelito  
Master in Business Administration 
Makati University 
 
Yoingco, Faye Jessica  
Master of Business Administration  
Ateneo Graduate School of Business 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dingcong, Shiela  
Master of Industrial Relations 
University of the Philippines 
 
Duque, Aida  
Master in Business Administration 
Philippine School of Business Administration 
 
Efre, Lawrence Albert 
AB Business Administration 
Miriam College 
 
Estadilla, Leandro  
Master in Business Administration 
Polytechnic University  
of the Philippines 
 
Fong, Stella Eloisa 
Master of Arts in Speech Communication  
University of the Philippines 
 
Garcia, Maria Cristina  
Bachelor of Laws 
University of The Philippines 
 
Gatchalian, Ma. Luisa  
MA in Education With Specialization  
In Values Education  
University of Asia and the Pacific 
 
Hermoso, Ma. Rica Emilia 
Master in Business Administration 
Asian Institute of Management 
 
Ignacio, Ronald  
Bachelor of Laws 
Arellano University  
 
Jorda, Reynaldo  
PhD in Educational Management 
Philippine Normal University 
 
 
 

Lopez, Antonio  
Doctor in Business Administration  
Philippine School of Business Administration 
 
Macalincag, Ma. Liza  
Master in Labor and  
Industrial Relations 
University of the Philippines 
 
Macapagal, Roehl 
Master in Business Administration 
Ateneo De Manila University 
 
Matutino, Anthony  
Master in Business Administration 
Philippine School of Business Administration 
 
Mendoza, Leah Lydia  
PhD in Human Social Information Sciences 
Tohoku University 
 
Quinitio, Leonardo  
Master in Business Administration 
Lyceum of the Philippines 
 
Racho, Noel  
PhD in Organization Development 
Southeast Asian Interdisciplinary Development 
Institute 
 
Rodriguez, Ma. Corazon  
Doctor in Public Administration 
University of the Philippines 
 
Romualdo, Romualdo  
Master of Business Administration 
Philippine School of Business Administration 
 
Sevilla, Mildred  
MA in Measurement and Evaluation 
Miriam College 
 
 
 
 



 
Noleal, Ryan 
Master of Arts in Education Major in Curriculum 
Studies 
University of the Philippines 
Master of Learning Sciences and Technology 
The University of Sydney 
 
Padilla, Cristina Rowena 
Master of Arts in Psychology Major in Child and 
Family Development 
Ateneo de Manila University 
 
Pado, Felicitas 
Doctor of Philosophy in Education Major in 
Educational Psychology 
University of the Philippines 
 
Pawilen, Greg 
Doctor of Philosophy in Education Major in Curriculum 
Studies 
University of the Philippines 
 
Santos, Katherine Joy 
Master in Guidance and Counseling 
Miriam College 
 
Sison, Trixie Marie 
Doctor of Philosophy in Education Major in 
Educational Leadership and Management 
De La Salle Araneta University 
 
Tan, Emelita Jane 
Master of Arts in Educational Technology 
Roosevelt College 
 
Tiamzon, Bernardita 
Doctor of Philosophy in Family Studies 
Miriam College 
 
Yuzon, Marie Rose 
Master of Arts in Basic Education Major in Preschool 
Education 
Ateneo de Manila University 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COLLEGE OF EDUCATION 
 
Abesamis, Gerson 
Master in Education major in Technology, Innovation 
and Education 
Harvard University 
 
Agoncillo, Roland Niño 
Doctor of Philosophy in Educational Leadership and 
Management Executive Program 
De La Salle University 
 
Agustin, Estrella 
Doctor in Philosophy in Education 
Major in Educational Psychology 
University of the Philippines 
 
Almario, Ani 
Master of Arts in Education Learning, Design, and 
Technology 
Stanford University 
 
Bacero, Mon Ritche 
Master in Education Major in E-Learning 
Miriam College 
Master of Arts in Educational Management 
Roosevelt College – Cainta 
 
Buensuceso, Celina Adele 
Master of Education Major in Early Childhood 
Education 
Monash University 
 
Caligner, Eduardo 
Doctorate in Psychology 
University of Sto. Tomas 
 
Camiling, Mark 
Master of Education Major in Health Education 
University of the Philippines 
 
Carino, Amabelle 
Master of Arts in Education 
Ateneo de Manila University 

Castro, Loreta 
Doctor of Education Major in Social Studies 
University of the Philippines 
 
Chavez, Maria Lourdes 
Doctor of Philosophy in Counseling 
Miriam College 
 
De Guzman, Sofia Soledad 
Master of Arts in Education Major in Language and 
Literacy Education 
University of the Philippines 
 
Donato, Jamie 
Master of Family Life and Child Development 
University of the Philippines 
 
Elgincolin, Gisella 
Master in Family Life and Child Development 
University of the Philippines 
 
Halal, Cristina Nieves 
Master of Arts in Educational Foundations Major in 
Educational Psychology 
University of the Philippines 
 
Hizon, Evalyn 
Doctor of Philosophy in Philippine Studies 
University of the Philippines 
 
Ligon, Clarissa Carmelita 
Doctor of Philosophy in Family Studies 
Miriam College 
 
Manaligod, Ma. Paz  
Doctor of Philosophy Major in Child and Family 
Studies 
Miriam College 
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